		WIC Program Ma	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 10	00		
		Date: 04/17/2024	Page 1 of 6		
		Table of Contents			
<u>Section</u>		<u>Title</u>	Date		
Table of Cont	<u>ents</u>				
1000	Table of Contents		01/24		
Introduction					
1010		nd Overview of the Special ition Program for Women,Infants	09/21		
1011	Acronyms and Def	<u>înitions</u>	02/23		
1012	WIC Program Man	WIC Program Manual Use and Maintenance			
1013	Use of WIC Acronyr	Use of WIC Acronym and Logos			
1015	Applying to Sponse	or a WIC Program	09/21		
1020	Participant-Centered	Participant-Centered WIC Environment			
WIC Program L	<u>egislation</u>				
1030	<u>WIC Program Legi</u>	slation	12/21		
1035	WIC Regulations		12/21		
1038	Program Complaint	ts and Suspected Fraud Abuse	04/21		
<u>Civil Rights</u>					
1040	Civil Rights and Nor	ndiscrimination Statement	02/24		
1041	Language Access		08/21		
1043		asing/Disclosure of Information	07/22		
1044	<u>GuidelinesforJPSA</u> <u>Requests</u>	A,MOU,Research and Data	10/23		

1046	Section 100 Date: 04/17/2024 Table of Contents <u>Title</u> Reporting Suspected Child Abuse or Maltreatment	00 Page 2 of 6 <u>Date</u>
1046	Table of Contents <u>Title</u>	
<u>Section</u> 1046 1047	Title	Date
		Date
	Reporting Suspected Child Abuse or Maltreatment	
1047		05/23
	Fair Hearing Process for Participants	04/22
	Section 1100	
1100	WIC Certification Overview	07/22
1101	Physical Presence	12/19
1102	WIC Services Documentation	06/23
1115	Duplicate Record Prevention and Resolution Policy	01/23
1120	Waiting Lists	02/21
Categorical and F	Residential Eligibility	
1110	Offering the Opportunity to Register to Vote	01/22
Income Eligibi	lity	
1130	Income Eligibility	09/20
1133	Income Eligibility for Military Families	01/21
1134	Federal Income Eligibility Guidelines	05/23
Nutritional Risk E	ligibility	
1135	Nutrition Assessment Process	06/22
1136	Nutritional Risk Criteria and Priority System	05/21
WIC Certificatio	<u>n</u>	

	WIC Program	Manual			
	Section	Section 1000			
	Date: 04/17/2024	Page 3 of 6			
Table of Contents					
<u>Section</u>	<u>Title</u>	Date			
1183	Immunization Screening	03/21			
1184	Anthropometry	02/21			

1185	Hematological Testing and Lead Screening	05/23
1186	Substance Use Screening, Education and Referral	11/22

Section 1200

Nutrition Education

1200	Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials	10/22
1205	Food Safety	03/23
1216	High Risk Care	02/21
Breastfeeding	g Promotion & Support	
1220	Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services	07/21
1221	Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program	07/22
1224	Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support	02/21
1225	Breast Pump Program	06/21
<u>Outreach</u>		
1240	Outreach and Retention	10/23
1241	Referral to Other Services	07/22

		WIC Program Ma	anual
		Section 10	000
		Date: 04/17/2024	Page 4 of 6
		Table of Contents	
<u>Section</u>		<u>Title</u>	Date
<u>Supplement</u>	al Foods		
1250	WIC Food Packag	les and Tailoring	01/23
1253	WIC Formulas		06/22
1255	Food Package III	and Medical Documentation	10/22
1260	Food Benefit Issu	ance	09/22
		Section 1300	
Food Instrum	nent Processing & Aut	horization	
1325	eWIC Card Inven	tory	04/22
Exceptions to	Normal WIC Check Proc	essing	
1330	Lost, Stolen or Da	maged eWIC Cards	05/22
		Section 1400	
Management F	Records		
1401	Record Retention		06/17
1402	Nutrition Services &	Administration Expenditures	10/23
1405	Local Agency Polic	cy and Procedure Manual	02/21

01/21

08/21

Compliance and Self-Assessment

Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Planning

1406 1408

	WIC Program Manual						
		Section 10					
		Date: 04/17/2024	Page 5 of 6				
	Table of Contents						
<u>Section</u>		<u>Title</u>	Date				
Budget Proces	<u>ss</u>						
1410	Program Administ	ration	03/12				
1412	Annual WIC Progr	<u>am Budget</u>	06/13				
1415	Reimbursement Red	quests	03/14				
1418	Budget Modification	on Requests	08/11				
1419	Site Changes and	Site Changes and Renovations					
1420	Sub-Contracts, Ag	Sub-Contracts, Agreements and Leases					
1421	Purchasing		01/22				
1422	Asset Inventory		07/17				
1423	Travel		09/21				
1426	Incentive Items		07/17				
Management In	formation System						
1451	Electronic Commu	nications Use	08/21				
1452	User Account Sec	10/22					
<u>Staffing</u>							
1460	Local Agency Nutr	ition Staff	06/21				
1465	Student Interns		08/21				
1466 1467	<u>Employee Particip</u> <u>Staff Training</u>	<u>pants</u>	07/21 03/21				

	WIC Program M	lanual
	Section 1	000
	Date: 04/17/2024	Page 6 of 6
	Table of Contents	
<u>Section</u>	Title	Date
	Section 1500	
Farmers' Ma	rketNutritionProgram	
1500	Farmers' Market Nutrition Program	03/23
	Section 2000	
Vendor Man	agement Agencies	
2001	Vendor Management and Stakeholder Communications	07/21
	Derticipent Access	05/04
2002	Participant Access	05/21
2002 2003	Vendor Authorization	11/23
2003	Vendor Authorization	11/23
2003 2004	Vendor Authorization Vendor Training	11/23 07/21
2003 2004 2005	Vendor Authorization Vendor Training Vendor Monitoring	11/23 07/21 10/21
2003 2004 2005 2006	Vendor Authorization Vendor Training Vendor Monitoring Vendor File Reviewand File Maintenance	11/23 07/21 10/21 04/21

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual		
	WIC	Section 1010		
	Program	Date: 09/2022	Page 1 of 5	
Missio	n,Historyand Ove	rviewoftheSpecial Supp	blemental	
Nu	trition Program f	or Women, Infants and	Children	

Mission Statement

The New York State WIC Program (NYS WIC) is an adjunct to health care programs intended to improve the nutrition and health status of income-eligible women, infants, and children up to age five. NYS WIC's mission is to assure healthy pregnancies, healthy birth outcomes, and healthy growth and development for WIC families by providing:

- breastfeeding promotion and support
- nutritious supplemental foods
- · participant-centered nutrition and health education
- referrals to health care and other services

NationalWIC History

In January 1971, a pilot program sponsored by the Maryland Food Committee known as the Cherry Hill Iron-FortifiedMilk Distribution Program for infants was aimed at improving the health of pregnant mothers, infants, and children in response to growing concern over malnutrition among many poverty-stricken mothers and young children in Baltimore. After four months of implementing the Supplemental Food program, Dr. David M. Paige, a Johns Hopkins University Research Scientist, reported his preliminary findings. Hestated, "Infant formula programs contribute significantly in upgrading the nutritional status of high-risk infants and reducing frequencies of iron-deficiency anemia, while seemingly contributing to an accelerated improvement in the height and weight of these infants."

In 1971, the Office of Economic Opportunity funded a project in the Provident Neighborhood Health Center in the Bedford-Stuyvesant area of Brooklyn, in cooperation with the Mead-Johnson Company (a manufacturer of infant formula), which had developed a similar infant feeding program. The participants' need for iron-enrichment in Bedford-Stuyvesant was obvious and overwhelming. Ninety percent of the individuals using the Center's services, which were restricted to welfare recipients, showed evidence of iron deficiency anemia. The presence of the new program increased the Center's patient load, which resulted in families beginning to use other medical services provided by the Center. A valuable finding emerged from this project: when supplemental foods were provided by a health care facility, the medical awareness of the families served was increased. Families, originally attracted to the health center by the nutrition program, began to utilize the Center to improve their overall health status.

The medical successes and statistical information, provided by the Cherry Hill and Bedford-Stuyvesant projects, became the cornerstone of the current national WIC Program. Senator Hubert Humphrey advocated for the idea of WIC and kept the legislation alive in Congress. On September 26, 1972, President Richard Nixon signed Public Law 92-433 and the "Special Supplemental Food Program," was enactedestablishing the WIC Program. Thefirst WIC site opened in Kentucky inJanuary 1974 and by the end of the year, WIC was operating in 45 states.

In 1975, WIC was established as a permanent program by legislation P.L. 94-105 to provide supplementalfoods tochildren up to age 4 and breastfeeding and postpartum mothers. That sameyear, eligibility was extended to non-breastfeeding women (up to 6 months postpartum) and children up to age 5. In 1978, legislation was enacted to require the program to provide nutrition education and to ensure that supplemental foods targeted nutritional deficiencies of the target population and had relatively low levels of fat, sugar, and salt. The 1978 legislation also required states to coordinate referrals to social

Section 1010

Date: 09/2022

Page 2 of 5

Mission, Historyand Overviewofthe Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children

NEW

YORK

STATE

WIC

Program

services; including immunization, alcoholand drug abuse prevention, child abusecounseling, and family planning.

WIC continued to evolve in the 1990s. In 1992, WIC introduced an enhanced food package for exclusively breastfeeding mothers to further promote breastfeeding. Under theHealthy Meals for Healthy Americans Act of 1994, the name of the WIC Program was changed from the Special SupplementalFood Program for Women, Infants, and Children, to the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children, to emphasize its role as a nutrition program. USDA implemented the Loving Support Makes Breastfeeding Work campaign in 1997 to increase breastfeeding rates among WIC mothers and improve public support of breastfeeding.

The <u>Breastfeeding Peer Counselor initiative</u> was launched in 2004. Women with breastfeeding experience and training (often past WIC participants) became counselors to support other women learning to breastfeed.

In 2007, based on recommendations made by the Institute of Medicine (IOM) of the National Academies in its report, "WIC Food Packages: Time for a Change," USDA introduced a new food package with foods consistentwith the Dietary Guidelines for Americans and established dietary recommendations for infants and children over two years of age via an Interim Rule. Fruits, vegetables, and culturally sensitive substitutes for WIC foods are now part of the WIC food package. In addition, mothers who exclusively breastfeed receive more healthy foods with the enhanced WIC food package for exclusively breastfeeding mothers. The changes werephased in nationwide by October 1, 2009, and in 2014, USDA issued the Revisions in the WIC Food Packages Final Rule.

The Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010 (HHFKA) included provisions related to electronic benefit transfer (EBT) for the WIC Program. The <u>FinalRule: Implementation of the Electronic Benefit Transfer-Related Provisions of PL 111-296</u>, effective May 2, 2016, required each WIC State agency to convert their current food delivery method to an EBT delivery method by October 1, 2020. The EBT delivery method must operate statewide – meaning all WIC clinics and WIC vendors are capable of issuing and redeeming benefits via a common EBT system. EBT provisions of the HHFKA and other EBT implementation requirements included in this final rule are: a definition of EBT; a mandate that all WIC State agencies implement EBT delivery method by October 1, 2020; system management and reporting requirements; revisions to current provisions that prohibit the imposition of costs on vendors; a requirement for the Secretary of Agriculture to establish minimum lane equipage standards; a requirement that State agencies use the National Universal Product Code (NUPC) database.

Due to the nationwide spread of COVID-19, on March 18, 2020, Congress passed the Families First Coronavirus Response Act, setting the expectation that WIC services would continue through the COVID-19 public health emergency. NYS adapted and adjusted how WIC would continue to provide services. This included social distancing waivers (including the Physical Presence and Remote Issuance waivers). In September 2020, USDA issued a memorandum that extends certain active waivers until 30 days after the end of the nationally declared public health emergency under section 319 of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 247d).

The WIC Program is one of the nation's most successful and cost-effective nutrition intervention programs.Early intervention canhelp prevent medicaland developmental problems duringcritical periods of child growth and development. Collective findings of studies, reviews, and reports demonstrate that the

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC ProgramManual		
	Program	Section 1010		
-		Date: 09/2022	Page 3 of 5	
Missio	n,Historyand Ove	erviewoftheSpecial Supp	lemental	
Nu	trition Program f	or Women, Infants and	Children	

WIC Program is cost-effective in protecting or improving the health/nutritional status of low-income women, infants, and children. Today, on average, over half of all infants in the United States, over a quarter of all pregnant and postpartum women, and over a quarter of allchildren less than 5 years of age participate in the WIC program.

LearnmoreintheUSDApublication The WIC Program: Background, Trends, and Issues.

HistoryofWIC in New York State

In 1976, Dr. John Browe became the first Director of the NYS Bureau of Nutrition under the direction of Andrew Fleck, M.D., Director of the Division for Maternal and Child Health. Sharon Smith became the first NYS WIC Director.

In 1989, the Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) was established in NYSDOH. This Program provides coupons to WIC participants for fresh fruits and vegetables.

In 1992, the Division of Nutrition was established to oversee the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC), Food and Nutrition Program (FAN), and the distribution of Farmers' Market Nutrition Program coupons through WIC local agencies.

In 2004, the NYS WIC Program received a grant from USDA to establish Enhanced Peer Counseling Programs in local agencies. The Program continued to expand the initiative, with all local agencies supporting a Peer Counseling program by 2009.

The NYS WIC Program conducted a six-month statewide vegetable and fruit demonstration project from January 1 through June 30, 2006. This innovative project was the first of its kind in the country and involved over 158,000child participants, all103 NYS WIC local agencies (representing over 500 program sites), and all 4,400 authorized grocery stores. Children received three cash value checks each allowing the purchase of up to \$5.00 of fresh, frozen, or canned vegetables and/or fruit.

New York became the first state to implement the sweeping food package changes required by the 2009 Interim Rule.

NYS WIC implemented a new Management Information System, NYWIC, and converted from paper WIC checks to Electronic Benefit Transfer card (eWIC) beginning with a pilot in Albany, Schenectady, and Rensselaer Counties on April 30, 2018. NYWIC and eWIC were fully implemented statewide one year later in April 2019.

In 2018, NYS WIC launched eWIC, an electronic benefit transfer card, eliminating the paper WIC checks. eWIC provides a more convenient way for families in the WIC program to shop for food. The eWIC cards provide all the family benefits on one account, allowing participants to purchase as needed.

Overviewof the NYS WIC Program

The NYS WIC Program is regulated and funded by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Food and Nutrition Service and is administered by the New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH) through a complex series of federal and state regulations. These regulations govern the actions of the

TURK	WIG	WIC ProgramManual Section 1010		
	WIC			
STATE	Program	Date: 09/2021	Page 4 of 5	
Missio	n,Historyand Ove	rviewoftheSpecial Supp	lemental	

Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children

local agencies and specify the oversight responsibilities and activities of the NYS DOH. As the third largest food and nutrition assistance program, WIC served about 6.2 million participants per month in fiscal year 2020, including almost half of all infants born in the United States.

WIC is not an entitlement program—that is, Congress does not set aside funds to allow every eligible individual to participate in the program—but rather a Federal grant program for which Congress authorizes a specific amount of funding each year for program operations.

To qualify for WIC, an applicant must be one of the following: (1) a woman who is currently pregnant, postpartum(upto 6 months), or breastfeeding(up to infant's first birthday);(2) an infant younger than age one; or (3) a child up to their fifth birthday. Eligibility for WIC is based on residential, income, and nutritional risk criteria. WIC applicants must have family income at or below 185 percent of the U.S. poverty level or participate in SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, formerly the Food Stamp Program), Medicaid, or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Program. Applicants must also meet a State residency requirement and be at nutritional risk, as determined by a health professional, such as a physician, dietitian, nutritionist, or nurse.

The WIC Program provides supplemental nutritious foods; participant-centered nutrition education and counseling; health care screening and referrals to pregnant women, breastfeeding and non-breastfeeding postpartum women, infants, and children up to age 5.

Participant demographics, risks, and needs change over time, as do the scientific knowledge and best practices for methods to improve the health of women, infants, and children. The WIC Program has adapted to these changes and has enhanced the program to address emerging health-related risks and the changing needs of participants. By focusing on a health outcome-based approach, and offering participant-centered services, WIC Program staff can assist participants in reaching their desired individual health outcomes.

By incorporating a stronger focus on obesity prevention and healthier lifestyles, NYS WIC has implemented changes to greater health benefits to low-income families at nutritional risk. The new foods available to participants are higher infiber and lower in fat, and include whole grain cereals and breads, and fruits and vegetables. Participants are encouraged to take individual actions that will promote a healthier lifestyle, such as choosing low fat milk and more fruits and vegetables and increasing physical activity.

The WIC Programpromotes and supports the establishment of successful, long-term breastfeeding and is committed to providing additional support to breastfeeding mothers and infants. WIC offers breastfeeding mothers food packages with the most amount of food, breast pumps when needed, targeted support, and nutrition services. The NYS WIC Program funds Breastfeeding Peer Counseling programs at local agencies, as these programs have been shown to be successful in encouraging new mothers to initiate and continue breastfeeding.

The WIC Program nutritionist prescribes a carefully defined age appropriate package of supplemental foods, which will address the specific nutrient needs of individual participants at important stages of human growth and development. Participants redeem these prescribed benefits at WIC authorized food stores and/or pharmacies. A wide variety of state and local organizations cooperate in providing the food and health care benefits. The WIC Program works closely with the vendor community to ensure that nutritious WIC foods are available and accessible to participants.

W	/	С	Pr	'nq	rar	nМ	an	ual

Section 1010

Date: 09/2021

Page 5 of 5

Mission, Historyand Overviewofthe Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children

WIC has established a strong inter-program referral system, involving Head Start, Child Health Plus, Medicaid, and Immunization Screening, as well as increased access to health services. The NYS WIC Program makes referrals to, or provides information on, a variety of programs offered by the NYS Department of Health as well as other health and social services agencies.

According to USDA, six of the ten leading causes of death in the United States are linked to a poor diet. By focusing on the dietary and nutritional needs of pregnant women, new mothers and their infants, the WIC Program has had a positive impact on lives for whom a proper diet is crucial. Women who participate in the program during their pregnancies receive prenatal care earlier, show improvement in dietary intake and weight gain, and generally have lower Medicaid costs for themselves and their babies than women who did not participate.

Children enrolled in WIC are more likely to have a regular source of medical care, have more up-to-date immunizations, and demonstrate improved intellectual development.

WIC participation has produced positive health outcomes, such as:

WIC

Program

NEW

YORK

STATE

- Ionger gestation periods
- higher birth weights
- lower infant mortality
- improved growth of nutritionally at-risk infants and children
- adecreaseintheincidence ofirondeficiency anemia inchildren

NYS WIC's participant-centered services focus on nutrition education and consist of guided conversations to encourage participants to develop their own nutrition/health goal(s) and identify their own solutions to life's barriers. NYS WIC staff stress the relationship between proper nutrition, physical activity, a healthy lifestyle, and improvements to one's life situation to achieve positive health outcomes.

RESOURCES

Other:

- NationalWICAssociation- WIC ProgramOverview and History
- USDAEconomic ResearchService- WICProgramOverview
- USDAEconomic Research Service Economic Information Bulletin No. (EIB-134) 44 pp: The WIC Program: Background, Trends, and Economic Issues, 2015 Edition

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1011	
		Date: 02/2023	Page 1 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

POLICY

This section provides acronyms and definitions for terms used in the WIC Program Manual. Any new terms included in new or updated manual sections will be added to this section. These definitions are intended to provide a brief description of the term.

REGULATIONS

Definitions, 7 CFR §246.2

ACRONYMS

Acronym	Term
ACH	Automated Clearing House
APL	Approved Product List
AR	Authorized Representative
BAPT	Breastfeeding Attrition Prediction Tool
BAS	Basic Allowance for Subsistence
BFC	Breastfeeding Coordinator
BFPC	Breastfeeding Peer Counselor
BLT	Benefits Loaded Through
BMI	Body Mass Index
BSD	Benefit Start Date
BSROE	Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures
BVT	Benefits Valid Through
CAP	Corrective Action Plan
CBIC	Common Benefits Identification Card
CBT	Competency-Based Training
CDC	Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
CIR	Citywide Immunization Registry
CLC	Certified Lactation Counselor
CLIA	Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment
CMP	Civil Monetary Penalty
COLA	Cost of Living Allowance
CPA	Competent Professional Authority
CSEP	Child Support Enforcement Program
CVB	Cash Value Benefit
DOD	Date of Delivery
DOH	Department of Health
DBE	Designated Breastfeeding Expert
DSS	Department of Social Services
EBT	Electronic Benefit Transfer
EDD	Expected Date of Delivery
EDC	Expected Date of Confinement
ePACES	Electronic Provider Assisted Claim Entry System
EPC	Enhanced Peer Counseling Program
EPSDT	Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment
FAIN	Federal Award Identification Number



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 2 of 32

FDA	United States Food and Drug Administration
FGD	Facilitated Group Discussions
FMNP	Farmers' Market Nutrition Program
FNS	Food and Nutrition Service of the United States Department of
	Agriculture
FOIL	Freedom of Information Law (Request)
FFY	FederalFiscal Year
FPC	Food Package Change
HCP	Health Care Provider
HH	Household
HIN	Health Information Network
HIPPA	Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
HNU	Health and Nutrition Update
IBCLC	International Board-Certified Lactation Consultant
IBF	Infant Breastfeeding Fully
IBP(m)	Infant Breastfeeding Partially (mostly)
IBP(s)	Infant Breastfeeding Partially (some)
ICP	Individual Care Plan
IHS	Indian Health Service of the U.S. Department of Health and Human
	Services
INB	Infant Non-Breastfeeding
JPSA	Joint Program Service Agreement
LA	Local Agency
LAPPM	Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual
LACASA	Local Agency Compliance and Self-Assessment
LBW	Low Birth Weight
LMP	Last Menstrual Period
MARL	Maximum Allowable Reimbursement Level
MIS	Management Information System
MDF	Medical Documentation Form
ME	Management Evaluation
MEVS	Medicaid Eligibility Verification System
MIS	Management Information System
MMR	Measles, Mumps, Rubella (vaccination)
MOU	Memorandum of Understanding
NA	Nutrition Assistant
NC	Nutrition Coordinator
NERO	North East Regional Office of the U.S. Department of Agriculture
NSA	Nutrition Services and Administration Costs
NTE	Not to Exceed Amount
NVRA	National Voter Registration Act
NYS	New York State
NYSIIS	New York State Immunization Information System
NYWIC	New York WIC Management Information System
NOAP	Non-Open Application Period
OAP	Open Application Period
ONPS	Other Non -Personal Service
OTPS	Other Than Personal Service
PC	Peer Counselor
PCC	Peer Counselor Coordinator



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 3 of 32

PCNS	Participant-Centered Nutrition Services
PE	Presumptive Eligibility
POS	Point of Sale
PS	Program Support
P/S/P	Parent/Spouse/Partner
QA	Quality Assurance
QN	Qualified Nutritionist
QRR	Quarterly Record Review
QRG	Quick Reference Guide
RD/RDN	Registered Dietitian Nutritionist
RFA	Request for Applications
RFP	Request for Proposals
RUCA	Rural Urban Commuting Area
SA	Sponsoring Agency
SBOE	New York State Board of Elections
SCD	Signature Capture Device
SLMS	Statewide Learning Management System
SNAP	Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
SNS	Supplemental Nursing System
STC	Stop the Clock
TANF	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
TPP	Third Party Processor
TPS	Temporary Protected Status
UHT	Ultra-High Temperature Milk
USDA	United States Department of Agriculture
VCASA	Vendor Compliance and Self-Assessment
VENA	Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment
VMA	Vendor Management Agency
VOC	Verification of Certification
WBF	Woman Breastfeeding Fully
WBP(m)	Woman Breastfeeding Partially (mostly)
WBP(s)	Woman Breastfeeding Partially (some)
WIC	Women, Infants, and Children
WNB	Woman Non-Breastfeeding
WPG	Woman Pregnant



DEFINITIONS

A	4
В	6
C	8
D	11
E	11
F	13
G	15
Н	15
I	16
J	17
κ	17
L	18
Μ	18
N	20
0	21
P	21
Q	24
R	25
S	26
Τ	29
U	29
V	30
W	31

Α	
Above 50 Percent Vendor	A vendor that receives more than 50 percent of its annual food sales revenue from WIC redemptions. Newly authorized vendors are subject to evaluation of this criteria within six months of authorization in the program.
Acceptable Foods	The variety of foods that have been approved by the New York State WIC program for purchase by participants.



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 5 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Accruals	Unspent, budgeted funds accumulated throughout the fiscal year due to unforeseen circumstances that may include
	staff turnover leading to vacancies, or reduced space or travel costs.
Active Vendor	Avendor currently authorized to accept WIC food benefits.
Ad Hoc Training (Vendor)	Educational instruction provided to vendors which focuses
······································	on specific deficiencies and may be required as a result of a
	Stipulation and Order issued to a vendor.
Adjunctive Eligibility	Active enrollment in Medicaid, Supplemental Nutrition
, , ,	Assistance Program (SNAP) or Temporary Assistance for
	Needy Families (TANF), which automatically qualifies an
	individual or household to receive WIC benefits for the
	length of the certification.
Administrative Costs	Indirect cost or overhead expenses related to administering
	the sponsoring organization, which are allocated across
	programs within that organization.
AdministrativeLaw Judge	A person designated by the Commissioner of Health to
(WIC)	conduct hearings under Subpart 60-1, WIC Program – Violations and Hearings Involving Applicants, Participants,
	Food Vendors and Local Agencies of Title 10 (Health) of
	the Official Compilation of Codes, Rules, and Regulations
	of the state of New York. The commissioner may delegate
	power to the Administrative Law Judge to render final
	decisions in these matters.
Adult Participant	An adult participant is a participant assigned a woman
-	category. In the scenario of a child participant returning as
	an adult participant, the category has changed from a child
	category to a woman category.
Advance	Payment to a contractor in advance of actual expenditures,
	determined by forecasting cash disbursements, and is limited to 17% of the projected annual budget. Also referred
	to as Cash Advance and Advance Payment.
Adverse Action	The imposition of monetary penalties, suspension, or
	disqualification from, or the denial of participation in the
	WIC Program;
Allocation	Distribution of costs and/or time among budget
	categories according to a budget plan within the
	contract deliverables status of a contract period
	and/or negotiating process.
Alternative Hours(for WIC	Time designated for WIC appointments on the local
appointments)	agency's schedule outside of normal clinic hours
	and outside the hours of 9:00AM to 5:00PM,
	Monday through Friday to accommodate
Aggregate Data	scheduling needs of participants. Data that is considered as a total and does not contain
Aggregate Data	personal identifiers.
Anthropometric Measurements	Height/length and weight measurements obtained to
	determine percentiles, Body Mass Index (BMI) and
	nutritional risk of WIC applicant or participant.
Anthropometry	The science of measurement of the size, weight, and
	proportions of the human body.



WIC

Program

NEW	
Y	



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 6 of 32

Applicant (WIC Participant)	A pregnant woman, breastfeeding woman, postpartum woman, infant or child applying to receive WIC benefits, Applicants include individuals who are currently participating in the program but are re-applying because their certification period is about to expire.
Applicant (WIC Vendor)	A retail food store or pharmacy that submits an application to a WIC Vendor Management Agency (VMA) for authorization to provide food and/or formula to WIC participants.
Approved Product List	A database of universal product codes (UPC) and product look-up (PLU) codes for all WIC allowed products.
Asset	Tangible property purchased in whole or part with WIC funding that has a unit value of at least \$500 and a useful life of more than one year.
Audit	 Other Non-Personal Services sub-category of expense used to budget funds to support the cost of the financial audit, which must be submitted in accordance with the contract. A series of procedures, usually completed by an independent accountant, to selectively test transactions and internal controls in order to issue a written opinion on the accuracy of financial statements and determine the extent to which internal accounting controls are available and being used. An organization-wide audit conducted pursuant to the requirements of OMB super-circular covering federal grant awards and sub-awards used as funding for states, local governments, and non-profit organizations.
Audit Exception	The citing or notification of non-compliance with WIC program policy requirements discovered through an audit.
Authorization Criteria	Established requirements used to consider a vendor for authorization.
Authorized Representative	An adult participant or enrolling parent, kinship care provider, guardian, or foster parent responsible for primary care of child participant.
Automated Clearing House	Banking transaction used to credit or debit a vendor's bank account electronically.
	В
BasicAllowancefor Subsistence	An allowance provided to military personnel to offset the cost of the service members' meals. The monthly rate is based on the cost of food and readjusted annually. It is not intended to cover the costs of meals for family members.
Benefits	Nutrition education and counseling, breastfeeding support, supplemental foods, breast pumps and referrals.
Benefits Valid Through Date	The last day to use the last month of issued benefits.
Benefits Start Date	The first day of the benefit cycle.



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 7 of 32

Bid (NYS)	A formal process that involves releasing an additional for
Bid (NYS)	A formal process that involves releasing specifications for an item or service whereby interested vendors submit a cost proposal by a fixed date.
Breastfeeding	The practice of feeding a mother's breast milk to an infant(s) at least once a day.
Breastfeeding Aids	Items that directly support the initiation and continuation of breastfeeding. Examples include, breast shells, nursing supplementers, manual expression cup, nipple shields, storage bags, nursing bras, and nursing bra pads.
Breastfeeding Assessment (WIC)	The review and evaluation of a breastfeeding dyad's experience and objective data (i.e. anthropometry, hematology, etc.), which is used as a basis for providing participant-centered counseling, education, support, and referrals. The Breastfeeding Assessment is conducted through a conversation with the participant and may include, but is not limited to, content areas such as the birth experience, postpartum recovery and support, the infant's needs, milk supply, latch and position, and parent and infant health.
Breastfeeding Attrition Prediction Tool	A tool that can help a provider assess a participant's breastfeeding knowledge, support, and confidence, in order to predict their likelihood for early cessation of exclusive breastfeeding and tailor services accordingly. The tool predicts attrition of breastfeeding; it alone does not impact breastfeeding rates.
Breastfeeding Coordinator	Working under the direction and supervision of the WIC Coordinator, this person is responsible for managing all breastfeeding promotion and support activities for all sites within the agency, and for the planning, implementation and evaluation of the Peer Counselor program.
Breastfeeding Dyad	Refers to the breastfeeding parentand infant pair for the purpose of WIC certification.
Breastfeeding Peer Counselor	Working under the supervision of the Peer Counselor Coordinator or the Breastfeeding Coordinator, this individual is recruited and hired from the target population and trained to provide mother-to-mother support for breastfeeding. The peer counselor is available to WIC participants outside usual site hours and outside the WIC environment.
Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Coordinator	Working under the direction and supervision of the Breastfeeding Coordinator, this person assists in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of the Peer Counselor program
Breast Pumps	Manual, electric, or battery-operated devices used to express breast milk.
Breast Pump Collection Kit	A kit that includes the necessary parts to connect to the breast pump. It is used with the breast pump to collect breastmilk.

WIC	
Program	

NEW YORK STATE

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 8 of 32

Budget Modification Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures	 Any change to the approved budget in the current contract. A Budget Modification that revises the total Personal Services or Other Than Personal Services subtotals by 10% or more for contracts with a value less than \$5 million or 5% for contracts with a value greater than \$5 million, or increases or decreases the total contract value requires a contract amendment that must be approved by the Office of the State Comptroller. Monthly line item summary of the WIC program budget including prior and current expenditures.
	C
O a l'h a a t' a a	
Calibration	Adjustments made to set the equipment/instrument correctly to give the correct result of a known standard value.
Call Letter	A directive sent to contractors that notifies them of the funding amount and assigned caseload for the upcoming federal fiscal year and directs them to prepare and submit a budget request.
Caretaker	A person designated by the Authorized Representative or Parent/Spouse/Partner to act on their behalf at recertification or nutrition education appointments. This person may be a parent, spouse, partner, or a representative, who is able to provide information on eating habits/medical condition of participant(s).
Case Conferencing	As part of the implementation of the Breastfeeding Attrition Prediction Tool (BAPT), these conferences are held among key WIC staff to discuss issues, barriers, concerns and progress of a participant's case. The goal of the conference is for WIC staff to communicate frequently and collaborate on a participant's case, to ensure consistent and coordinated care and support is provided to participants at highest risk for breastfeeding attrition.
Caseload Management	Identifying the target population and special populations within it, implementing strategies to enroll the potential population, and utilizing caseload effectively to reach the desired populations.
Cash Value Benefit	A fixed-dollar amount associated with the WIC electronic benefit transfer (EBT) card used by a participant to obtain authorized fruits and vegetables.
Categorical Eligibility	A person who meets the definition of pregnant woman, breastfeeding woman, postpartum woman, infant or child. (see definitions)
Certification	The use of criteria and procedures to assess and document each applicant's or participant's eligibility for the WIC Program.
Certified Lactation Counselor	CLC certification means that a person has received training and competency verification in breastfeeding and human lactation support.
Change of Ownership	A change in the controlling financial interest of a grocery store or pharmacy.





Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 9 of 32

Child	For purposes of WIC categorical eligibility. A person over one year of age who has not reached their fifth birthday.
Civil Monetary Penalty	Avendor sanction that may be imposed by the Department of Health against a vendor for violations in lieu of disqualification from the WIC program.
Cognizant Agency	The federal agency that acts on behalf of all federal agencies in reviewing, negotiating and approving cost allocation plans or indirect cost proposals developed under an Office of Management and Budget (OMB) circular. Generally, the federal agency with the largest dollar value of direct awards with an organization will be designated as the cognizant agency. The OMB publishes a list of cognizant agencies.
Common Benefits Identification Card	A card issued to eligible NYS residents through which Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and Medicaid benefits can be accessed.
Competency-Based Training	Outcome-based training designed to develop the essential knowledge, skills, and confidence necessary to provide effective participant-centered services.
CompetentProfessional Authority	An individual at a local agency who meets the New York State qualifications of a CPA. This individual is qualified to perform nutrition-related duties at the local agency under the supervision of a Qualified Nutritionist (including determining nutrition risk, prescribing supplemental foods, and providing participant centered nutrition education to participants. In addition, the CPA works in conjunction with the Qualified Nutritionist when providing nutrition education/counseling to High Risk participants.
Complaint	A verbal or written expression or report of dissatisfaction or discrimination, or misuse of program funds or benefits, made by any individual regarding any aspect of or individual, store or participant associated with the WIC Program that requires further investigation.
CompleteNutrition Assessment	The comprehensive review and analysis of a person's medical and diet history, laboratory values and anthropometric measurements to identify an individual's nutrition/health concerns and underlying causes for the purpose of providing personalized nutrition intervention and tailored WIC services, and promoting positive health outcomes.
Compliance Buy	A covert, on-site investigation in which an individual transacts one or more food purchases and the purchaser does not reveal that he or she is a program representative.
Complete Vendor Application	Application submitted by a retail food store or pharmacy to become a WIC vendor that contains all the documentation requested by the WIC vendor management agency and state staff.



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 10 of 32

Conference (WIC)	A meeting prior to a request for a fair hearing, between a
	representative of a local agency and an applicant or participant who is aggrieved by the determination or action of such agency, to discuss such determination or action.
Confidential Participant Information	Any information about an applicant or participant, whether it is obtained from the applicant or participant, another source, or generated as a result of WIC application, certification or participation, that individually identifies an applicant or participant and/or family.
Confidential Vendor Information	Any information about an authorized or applicant vendor, whether it is obtained from the applicant or another source, that individually identifies a vendor. All NYS WIC Vendor information is confidential except for the vendor's name, address, telephone, website/email address, store type, and authorization status.
Continuity of Care	An opportunity for both the Competent Professional Authority (CPA)/Qualified Nutritionist (QN) and the participant to examine progress toward goals, provide positive support, identify barriers that may be hindering the participant's progress, and reassess and refine future nutrition education plans. Staff follow-up provides ongoing support by reinforcing nutrition education message(s) and referral(s), including referrals to health care providers when appropriate.
Contract Budget	An estimate of proposed expenditures by category of expense (or by deliverable for deliverable-based contracts) for a specified period to accomplish the work plan objectives. The contract budget is included as Attachment B in the contract.
Contract Foods and Formulas	The food and formula items approved in New York State for which the WIC Program receives a manufacturer's rebate for each unit purchased.
Corrective Action Plan	A step-by-step plan of action and schedule for correcting a state-identified performance issue of a contractor
Cost Containment Measure	A competitive bidding process, rebate system, competitive price selection criteria, maximum allowable reimbursement levels, limits on an authorized foods list, or other system or mechanism put in place by the state agency to contain food costs, as described in its approved State Plan of operation and administration.
Cost of Living Allowance	 (Military Personnel) An additional allowance provided to active duty uniformed service members in designated overseas high-cost areas. (State) When available, this funding is allocated to current contractors based on a fixed percentage of the previous year's contract amount.
Cultural Exception Criteria	Criteria determined by the Department of Health that allows vendors the ability to apply for authorization outside their open application period.

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 11 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

NEW YORK STATE

WIC

Program

D		
Deliverables (Contract)	A written list of standards and requirements to which local agencies need to adhere. Contract deliverables are included as Attachment C of the contract.	
Denials (WIC)	WIC applicants found ineligible for WIC benefits at initial certification or mid-certification must be notified in writing of their ineligibility and of their right to a fair hearing.	
Designated Breastfeeding Expert	An individual who is an expert with special experience or training in helping breastfeeding dyads and who provides breastfeeding expertise and care for more complex breastfeeding problems when other WIC face situations outside of their scope of practice.	
Desk Audit (Vendor)	The examination of invoices or other proof of purchase documents used to determine if a vendor purchased sufficient quantities of allowable foods/formula from an authorized supplier to substantiate redemptions during a specific time frame.	
Direct Costs	Costs that can be identified specifically with operating the WIC Program. Examples of direct costs are compensation to employees for the time devoted and related to a specific contract or award; cost of materials acquired, consumed or expended specifically for the contract or award; equipment and other approved expenditures acquired and used specifically of the purpose of the contract or award; and travel expenses incurred specifically to carry out the contract or award.	
Disqualification	 (Participant) The act of ending the WIC program participation of a participant, whether as a punitive sanction or for administrative reasons. (Vendor) Removal of a vendor from participation in the WIC program during the contract period (with 15 days' notice) for regulatory and/or contractual violations. 	
Documentation	 (Participant) The electronic, verbal and/or written documents/dataentered/maintained in theapplicantor participant's record for certification of eligibility and continuity of care. (Vendor Management Agency/Local Agency) Evidence supplied in support of the budgeted item (e.g., lease, indirect cost plan, job description, etc.). 	
Dual Participation	Simultaneous participation in the WIC Program in more than one state or more than one local agency.	
	E	
Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment	In New York State, known as Child/Teen Health Plan, this is the medical assistance program (Medicaid) provided to age 21.	
Economic Unit	One individual or a group of related or unrelated individuals who are living together and who share income and the consumption of goods and services. Refer to Household.	





Section 1011

Page 12 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Date: 02/2023

Education Materials	The assortment of written and audiovisual information
	utilized in the provision of WIC nutrition, health,
	breastfeeding education, and general participant
	information to facilitate participant learning.
Electronic Benefit Transfer	The method to electronically make benefits available to
	participant accounts (eWIC). EBT is used for SNAP, TANF,
	and WIC allowing participants to access benefits
	electronically.
Electronic Benefit Transfer	An electronic system that allows for the issuance of benefits
Account	via a magnetically encoded payment card. The New York
	State WIC Program uses an electronic WIC EBT account
	(eWIC) to issue appropriate benefits to WIC eligible
	participants.
Electronic Communication	The exchange of information that includes the use of
	technology including but not limited to email, the Internet,
	texting, social media, and mobile applications.
Electronic Reimbursement	A direct electronic payment used to credit a vendor's WIC
	bank account for approved reimbursements. Also known as
	an ACH (Automated Clearing House) transaction.
Electronic Signature	An electronic sound, symbol, or process, attached to or
	associated with an application or other record and executed
	and or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the
	record.
Emergency Preparedness and	A written plan of designated actions that employers and
Disaster Plan	employees must take to ensure the safety of employees,
	customers, or the public in an emergency. It provides for
	continued delivery of services to participants and describes
	recovery operations.
Employee Participant	A WIC local agency employee who receives benefits from
	the WIC Program or whose family members or foster
	children receive benefits from the WIC Program.
Enrollment	The total number of participants currently certified and
	eligible to receive WIC Program benefits for a month from a
	local agency. This number includes all categories of
	participants who may or may not receive food benefits.
Enrollment Criteria (Vendor)	A specific set of guidelines for use in evaluating a vendor's
	application for WIC authorization.
Electronic Provider Assisted	A web-based application available on the Medicaid
Claim Entry System	website, eMedNY.org, that enables staff to verify an
	applicant/participant's active enrollment in the Medicaid
	program.
Equal Access	To be informed of, participate in, and benefit from services,
	programs, and activities offered by the WIC Program at a
	level equal to English speaking individuals.
Equipment	Tangible property (including information technology
	equipment) having a useful life of more than one year and a
	per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser
	of the capitalization level established by the non-Federal
	entity for financial statement purposes, or \$5,000.
Estimated Eligibles	



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 13 of 32

aWIC Conchin	
eWIC Capable	The WIC vendor demonstrates their cash register system or payment device can accurately and securely obtain WIC food balances associated with an EBT card, maintain the necessary files (Approved Product List), and successfully complete WIC EBT purchases.
Exclusive Breastfeeding	The infant only receives human milk; no formula is provided. No other liquids or solids except for vitamins, minerals, or medicines are given.
Exempt Infant Formula	An infant formula that meets the requirements for an exempt infant formula under section 412(h) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. 350a(h)) and the regulations at 21 CFR parts 106 and 107.2. These regulations define exempt infant formula as an infant formula intended for commercial or charitable distribution that is represented and labeled for use by infants who have inborn errors of metabolism or low birth weight, or who otherwise have unusual medical or dietary problems.
Exit Counseling	Counseling for women participants graduating from WIC to reinforce the important health messages received through the WIC Program such as intake of folic acid, continued breastfeeding, up to date immunizations, health risks of using alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs, and the need for a well-balanced diet.
Extended Hours	See Alternative Hours (for WIC appointments)
	F
Freedom of Information Law Request	A request for records of a government agency. Based on New York State's Freedom of Information law, members of the public are allowed to access records of governmental agencies.
Facilitated Group Discussions	Group sessions using an interactive form of learner- centered education where the learners discuss a specific topic and share their questions and knowledge with other group members. This allows learners to gather information from each other in a supportive environment where their culture, prior experience and personal concerns are acknowledged and respected.
Fair Hearing	A procedure by which applicants, participants, food vendors or local agencies may appeal certain determinations by the state or vendor management agency that have resulted in an action against the participant, vendor, local agency, or vendor management agency.
Farmer	An individual authorized by the State to accept WIC cash value benefits and/or FMNP checks in exchange for eligible fruits and vegetables at a farmers' market.
Farmers'Market Nutrition Program	Designed to provide nutrition benefits to WIC families and to promote purchasing of New York State fresh fruits and vegetables from farmers at authorized community farmers' markets throughout the state.

NEW YORK WIC	WIC Program	Manual
	Section 1011	
STATE Program	Date: 02/2023	Page 14 of 32
Acro	onyms and Definitions	
Fiscal Year	 (Federal) The period of 12 October 1 of any calendar y 30 of the following year. (State) The period of 12 cal April 1 of any calendar year a following year. 	vear and ending September endar months beginning
Food Benefit Issuance	Food Benefit Issuance – Adding a family's eWIC account while the present at the WIC clinic or rem presence, depending on the circ	e participant is physically otely, without physical
Food Package III Formula	All WIC formula (contract and ex nutritionals issued to a participa qualifications and has appropriate to receive Food Package III.	nt who meets the e medical documentation
Food Package Change	An adjustment to the formula or formula issued to a participant.	od benefits originally
Food Delivery Methods	Authorization and distribution of vendors to ensure lowest practica with adequate participant access ensure effective management, of authorized vendors. Includes pr vendor applications outside of id inadequate participant access is vendor are authorized.	able food prices consistent s to supplement foods oversight and review of ocedures for processing entified timeframes when
Food Package Prescription	The determination of the quantity foods that is appropriate for each seven federally defined food pac the WIC participant's eligibility of status, nutrition, dietary and med conditions. Only the Competent Qualified Nutritionist is authorized packages.	participant from one of the ckages; must be based on category, breastfeeding lical needs, and household Professional Authority or
Food Package Tailoring	The process by which the Compe or Qualified Nutritionist adapts s better meet the assessed needs personal/cultural/religious prefe	standard food packages to s of participants and

Food Sales

changes or substitutions to food types (e.g., milk vs. cheese), to food forms (e.g., dry milk vs. fluid milk), and to quantities of foods, in accordance with state policies.

Sales of all SNAP (previously referred to as the Food Stamp Program) eligible foods intended for home preparation and consumption, including meat, fish, and poultry; bread and cereal products; dairy products; fruits and vegetables. Food items such as condiments and spices, coffee, tea, cocoa, and carbonated and noncarbonated drinks may be included in food sales when offered for sale along with foods in the categories identified above. Food sales DO NOT include non-food items such as pet foods, soaps, paper products, beer, wine, liquor, all other alcoholic beverages, cigarettes, cigars, all other tobacco products, vitamins, medicines as well as hot foods

or food that will be eaten in the store.

NEW YORK	WIC
STATE	Program

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 15 of 32

Frankfort Plane Fringe Benefits	 The line from the hole in the ear (beginning of the auditory canal) to the bottom of the orbit (the bone of the eye). The Frankfort Plane should be parallel to the floor to determine the correct position of the head for standing height. The Frankfort Plane should be perpendicular to the back of the measuring board that is placed on the table, or floor of the correct position of the head for recumbent length. Benefits an employee receives in addition to salary such as: Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA), Medicare, health insurance, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, life insurance, workers' compensation, pension/retirement funds, and other miscellaneous employer-provided benefits.
Full Nutrition Benefit	Minimum monthly amount of reconstituted fluid ounces of liquid concentrate, ready-to-feed, and powder infant formula for each food package category and infant breastfeeding status.
	G
Gross Income	All income before deductions are made for income taxes, employee social security taxes, insurance premiums, bonds, etc. For WIC Program eligibility, the amount cannot exceed 185% of federal poverty guidelines.
Growth Chart	A standardized chart used by the Qualified Nutritionist and Competent Professional Authority to plot and assess a participant's weight gain and growth during the certification period and compare it with normal ranges by age group.
	<u> </u>
Health and Nutrition Update	A tailored nutrition and health assessment that is required at the approximate mid-point of the certification period for children, infants, and breastfeeding women whose certification period is longer than six months.
Health Care Provider	For WIC purposes, an individual who is permitted to write and sign prescriptions. In New York State, authorized prescribers are: Physicians, Osteopathic Physicians (D.O.), Physician Assistants, Nurse Practitioners and Midwives with prescriptive privileges.
High Risk Participant	A designation of a participant based on the nutrition risk condition(s). Criteria for a participant being designated "high risk" are based on State agency policy. The nutrition services associated with "high risk" include an individual care plan, more frequent education contacts, and the provision of nutrition services by a Qualified Nutritionist.
High Risk Vendor	A vendor identified as having indicators of a high probability of committing a vendor violation.
Household	One individual or a group of related or unrelated individuals who are living together and who share income and the consumption of goods and services. Refer to Economic Unit.

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 16 of 32

Household Adjunctive Qualifier	A specific government assistance program that has
	A specific government assistance program that has eligibility guidelines similar to WIC: SNAP, TANF, Medicaid presumptive eligibility for pregnant women or Medicaid for infants or pregnant women. Participation of a household member in one of these programs provides adjunct eligibility to everyone in the household.
Household ID Number	A number specifically assigned to each Authorized Representative.
Incentive Item (Program)	Refers to a class of goods, usually of a nominal value, that are given to applicants, participants, potential participants, or persons closely associated with the WIC program for purposes of outreach, nutrition education or breastfeeding promotion.
Incentive Item (Vendor)	An item or service provided by a vendor to attract customers or encourage customer loyalty.
Income	The total gross cash income of all household members.
Income Poverty Guidelines	Guidelines used by agencies to determine the income eligibility of persons applying to participate in the WIC Program. Adjusted annually by the federal Office of Management and Budget.
Indirect Costs	Costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one program or grant award. These costs are not readily allocated to the program or grant award benefitting from them. Some examples of indirect costs are costs of operating and maintaining facilities, equipment, and grounds; depreciation or use allowances; personnel administration; and accounting. Agencies must submit an approved indirect cost rate agreement to the Department of Health or elect to charge a de minimis rate of 10% of modified total direct costs (MTDC) to budget indirect costs. Indirect costs may not be recovered on equipment, capital expenditures, or the portion of subawards or subcontracts exceeding \$25,000.
Individual Care Plan	The plan of care developed for high risk participants that will assist the participant in improving identified nutrition and health-related behaviors. The individual care plan includes relevant nutrition assessment information, plans that include goals and desired health outcomes, and follow-up documentation
Infant	A person under one year of age (prior to first birthday).
Infant Breastfeeding Fully	Breastfed infant or infant who receives breast milk without supplemental formula from WIC.
Infant Breastfeeding Partially (Mostly)	Infant is breastfed or receives breastmilk supplemented with less than 50% of the maximum amount allowed for formula fed infants. Formula amounts provided must be individually tailored based on the assessed need.
Infant Breastfeeding Partially (Some)	Infant is breastfed or receives breast milk supplemented with formula more than 50% of the maximum amount allowed for formula fed infants. Formula amounts provided must be individually tailored based on assessed need.







Section 1011

Page 17 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Date: 02/2023

Infant Formula Supplier List	The list of wholesalers, distributors, retailers, and manufacturers approved by the NYS WIC Program to	
	provide infant formula to authorized vendors.	
Infant Non-Breastfeeding	Infant is not breastfed or receiving any breast milk. Formula is the primary source of nutrition.	
Informed Consent	A person's voluntary agreement to participate in research based upon adequate knowledge and understanding of the research project. Informed consent may not waive or appear to waive legal rights. Consent form content is determined by USDA confidentiality regulations and is reviewed by the Institutional Review Board.	
Initial Certification	Certification for individuals new to the program or for participants coming back onto the program when more than one month has elapsed after the expiration date of the participant's previous certification period.	
In-Kind Benefit	Payment/compensation other than money, given in goods, commodities, or services.	
In-Kind Expenses	Non-reimbursable contributions provided by a sponsoring agency to support the operation of their local agency WIC Program.	
In State Transfer	The transfer of a household or individual from one local agency to another local agency within New York State.	
Integrated Cash Register System	An electronic cash register system that can transact multiple tenders, such as, cash, credit card, SNAP and WIC.	
Internal Control	The plan of organization and coordinated methods and measures to safeguard assets, ensure reliability of accounting data, promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence to agency policies and procedures. A system of checks and balances that protects against mistakes and fraud.	
Interpretation	The act of verbally or visually explaining the meaning of information in a language understood by the Limited English Proficient (LEP) applicants/participants.	
Inventory Audit (Vendor)	The examination of invoices or other proof of purchase documents to determine if a vendor has purchased sufficient quantities of authorized supplemental foods from an authorized supplier to substantiate benefit redemptions by that vendor during a specified period of time.	
	J	
Joint Program Services Agreement	An agreement between the WIC local agency and another party that seeks to provide service to WIC eligible applicants or participants. Service may occur in the WIC clinic or at the other entity's location. Assurances must be established that WIC applicant or participant involvement is voluntary and there is no sharing of WIC data or goods in this arrangement.	
Justification	An explanation of howcosts were determined, why the costs are requested and how the costs relate to the WIC program.	
	Κ	

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1011	
	Date: 02/2023 Page 18 of 32	
Acron	nyms and Definitions	
Kinship Care	Full-time care of children by relatives, members of their tribes or clans, godparents, stepparents, or any adult who has a kinship bond with a child. These family members are caring for children both inside and outside the foster care system. There is no subsidized guardianship program for kin raising children in foster care in New York State.	
	L	
Less-Than-Arms-Length Agreement	An agreement in which one party at the transaction is able to control or substantially influence the actions of the other(s). Such transactions include, but are not limited to, those between divisions of an organization. As an example, if a sponsoring agency rents clinic space to the WIC local agency contractor it may not be the true value as there is a relationship between the sponsoring agency and the WIC local agency contractor.	
Limited English Proficient	An individual who does not speak English as their primary language and who has a limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English.	
Line Item Interchange	A budget revision whereby allocations are adjusted and various contract budget line items without changing the to amount of the budget. All line item interchanges require written approval by the state before expenditures can be made against the revised budget amount(s).	
Local Agency	A hospital, public health or human service agency or a private, non-profit health or human service agency that provides health services, either directly or through contrac in accordance with the federal regulations. Generally use to refer to an agency that has contracted with New Yor State to provide WIC benefits to participants.	
Local Agency Compliance and Self-Assessment	State to provide WIC benefits to participants. New York State's Department of Health management evaluation tool to assess local agency compliance with WIC Program regulations combined with the annual Nutrition Services Management Plan USDA requirements (including the Annual Nutrition Education Plan). The annual LACASA identifies each agency's strengths and weaknesses in key program areas, establishes program goals and action steps to address program needs, and monitors/evaluates WIC Program operations.	
Local Agency Policyand Procedure Manual	A collection of policies developed by the local agency and its sponsoring agency. The manual includes certain policies required by the WIC Program Manual that outline local agency-specific details on subjects, such as general operations, human resources, and fiscal practices of the organization.	
	Μ	
Medicaid Managed Care Plan Card	The card issued to NYS Medicaid participants to identify their participation in a managed care plan. While different than the Common Benefits Identification Card issued by Medicaid, it can be used for verifying Medicaid participation when it includes the Medicaid Client Identification Number (CIN).	





Section 1011

Dog

Date: 02/2023

Page 19 of 32

Management Evaluation	An evaluation process required by Federal regulation. Refer to Local Agency Compliance and Self-Assessment (LACASA).	
Management Information System	A computerized information-processing system designed to certify participants and issue benefits in accordance with WIC Program guidelines while archiving supporting data for records.	
Market Basket	A collection of WIC food items that includes cereal, peanut butter, dry beans/peas/lentils, eggs, cheese, low-fat or fat free milk, baby food vegetables and fruit, and juice. A vendor's shelf prices of these products are used to determine if a vendor is high priced in comparison to other vendors in the same peer group.	
Maximum Allowable Reimbursement Level	Indicates the maximum amount that will be paid by the WIC Program to the vendor for the food/formula purchased on EBT card.	
Medicaid Eligibility Verification System	A system used to verify Medicaid eligibility through eMedNY either by a touch tone telephone or a computer with internet connection and registration with ePACES.	
Medical Documentation Form	A form developed by the NYS WIC Program for Health Care Providers to document participant qualifying conditions and other pertinent medical/health data required to determine Food Package III eligibility. This form or comparable documentation must be signed by a health care professional licensed to write medical prescriptions under State law.	
Memorandumof Understanding	A legal contract between organizations defining the basic terms under which they agree to work together on a particular project. It defines the roles and responsibilities of each organization in relation to the other and provides a framework to enable the process/project to begin. A MOU is required to share WIC participant data or services for program coordination and service delivery to WIC participants.	
Mid-Axillary Line	An imaginary line that bisects the body from the side.	
Migrant Farm Worker	An individual whose principal employment is in agriculture on a seasonal basis, who has been so employed within the last 24 months, and who establishes, for the purpose of such employment, a temporary abode. Also includes categorically eligible women, infants, and children who are members of the migrant farm worker's family.	
Military Income	Entitlements, benefits, and deductions received by members of the U.S. military and reported on the Leave and Earnings Statement (LES). See Income Eligibility for Military Policies Supplement #1133 for a list of military terms. Refer to Income Eligibility for Military Families Policy Supplement #1133 for list of military terms.	
Minimum Authorization Criteria	Criteria defined in federal regulations and used by the Department of Health to authorize vendors located in areas identified as having inadequate participant access.	



Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 20 of 32

Minimum Stock Requirements	The required quantities and varieties of WIC acceptable foods below which a vendor must not allow their stock to fall. This requirement must be maintained throughout the contract period.
	N
Nutrition Servicesand Administration Costs	As defined in federal regulations, those direct and indirect costs, exclusive of food costs, that state and local agencies determine to be necessary to support WIC program operations.
New York State Department of Health	The state agency in New York State responsible for administration of the WIC Program.
New York State Resident	An individual who lives in New York State, regardless of citizenship.
NY State of Health	The state's official health plan marketplace designed to help NYS resident shop for and enroll in health insurance coverage. New Yorkers can complete the Marketplace application online, in person, or over the phone.
No-Show	 (Daily) Participants not attending their appointments as listed in. (Monthly) The difference between an agency's participation and enrollment during a month. Refer to Participation Rate.
Non-Open Application Period	A specified time frame during which vendor applicants located within an identified geographic area, as defined by the Department of Health, may not apply for authorization unless they meet exception criteria specified by the Department of Health.
Nutrition Assessment Process	An ongoing process of obtaining and synthesizing relevant information in order to: assess nutrition status and risk; collaborate with the participant to design personalized nutrition education and counseling; tailor the food package to address nutritional needs; provide appropriate referrals; and follow-up to ensure continuity of care. The process is cyclical in nature, builds on information collected initially and throughout the certification period, to provide effective nutrition services.
Nutrition Assistant	An individual at a local agency who is qualified to provide clinic and office support to the Competent Professional Authorities and Qualified Nutritionists, including gathering information for nutrition assessments.
Nutrition Education Contact	Individual or group education conducted by a CPA or QN appropriate to each individual participant's nutrition/health needs, which includes verbal communication between the WIC local agency staff and WIC participant.

	W	С

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 21 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

NEW YORK STATE

WIC

Program

Nutrition Risk	Detrimental or abnormal putrition conditions detectable by
NYS WIC Approved Formulas	Detrimental or abnormal nutrition conditions detectable by biochemical or anthropometric measurements, or other documented nutrition-related medical conditions, or dietary deficiencies that impair or endanger health, or conditions that predispose persons to inadequate nutrition patterns or nutrition-related medical conditions. Nutrition risks are established by USDA and used in determining WIC eligibility. Formulas and medical foods authorized by the NYS WIC
	Program for issuance to infants and participants with special dietary needs.
	0
On-Demand Reports	A set of predefined reports run by the local agency from the MIS.
Open Application Period	A specified time frame during which vendor applicants located within an identified geographic area, as defined by the Department of Health may apply for authorization.
Other Harmful Substances	Tobacco, prescription drugs, over the counter and other medications or substances that can be harmful to the health of the WIC population especially the pregnant woman and their fetus.
Other Non-Personal Service	A subcategory under Non-Personal Services, which consists of expenses related to: Audit,Breast Pumps and Collection Kits, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling, and Indirect Costs.
NonPersonal Services	The cost of expenses other than salaries and fringe benefits. A category of expense in the contract budget, which consists of Contractual Services, Travel, Equipment, Space/Property and Utilities, and Other.
Out of State Verification of Certification (VOC) Transfer	The inbound or outboundtransfer of a household or participant between NYS and another state.
Outreach	The systematic actions undertaken to promote WIC Program benefits and services to maximize the enrollment and participation of eligible individuals.
Outreach Event	An activity in which the management information system is used to prescreen applicants and schedule appointments.
	Р
Paper Certification	A certification completed using an approved alternative process to determine a participant's eligibility for the WIC program. The approved alternative process must only be used in allowed circumstances.
Paraprofessional(Peer Counselor)	Peer counselors who performs specific tasks within a defined scope of practice and assists professionals, but are not licensed or credentialed as healthcare, nutrition, or lactation consultant professionals
Parent/Spouse/Partner	The other parent, spouse, partner or primary person responsible for additional care of the participant(s) who is designated by the Authorized Representative or Parent/Spouse/Partner.
Participant	A woman, infant, or child who receives WIC benefits.



NEW YORK STATE

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 22 of 32

Participant Access	The minimum number of vendors to be authorized by the Department of Health to ensure participants have access to WIC foods.
Participant Access Criteria	Criteria established by the Department of Health to be used when assessing vendor applications to ensure participant access is met.
Participant-CenteredNutrition Counseling/Education	An educational approach based on interactive dialogue between the participant and the local agency staff where participants' health and nutrition concerns, needs and interests are considered. This approach involves actively listening, setting meaningful goals together with the participant, providing support and motivation through the change process, and reinforcing positive behavior. This approach may involve providing advice and meaning to the appropriate health messages when asked by the participant.
Participant-Centered Services	A systems approach designed to encourage all staff to positively engage the participant/caretaker in dialogue, information exchange, listening and feedback, and to focus on topics and issues that are relevant to the participant in all interactions. This approach puts the participant's needs and goals for healthy behavior change at the core of WIC service delivery. It helps all staff focus on a person's capacities, strengths, and developmental needs, not solely on their problems, risks, or negative behaviors. Refer to the definition of Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment.
Participant ID Number	A number specifically assigned to each participant.
Participant Profile	The characteristics of a participant, including the category, age range, priority level, breastfeeding status, living situation (e.g., homeless), and special needs. The management information system uses the participant profile information to assign the default food package.
Participant Representative	A representative designated by the participant or Authorized Representative to participate in WIC appointments and receive benefits on behalf of the participant or Authorized Representative. This individual may be designated as an Authorized Representative, Parent/Spouse/Partner, Caretaker, or Proxy. Refer to each individual term and its corresponding definition in this policy.
Participant Violation	Any action by a participant, Authorized Representative, or anyone acting on their behalf that violates federal or state statutes, regulations, policies, or procedures governing the WIC Program.
Participation	The number of persons who received food benefits during the reporting month, including infants less than six months fully breastfeeding and breastfeeding women (some) whose infant is more than six months who were issued the 'no food' food package.
Participation Rate	The percentage of certified individuals who receive WIC benefits in a given month.



NEW YORK STATE

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 23 of 32

Percent of Eligible Population	The percentage of eligible individuals in a
Served	community that receive WIC benefits.
Performance Period	Each one-year period of a multi-year Vendor Contract.
Performance Standard	Achievable level of service; basis for assessing local
	agency performance.
Personal Adjunctive Qualifier	Participation of a child or postpartum or breastfeeding
	woman in Medicaid, which provides eligibility only for that individual.
Personal Privacy Protection Law	New York State's Personal Privacy Protection Law is part of the NYS Public Officers' Law. It protects an individual's
	privacy and governs the state's maintenance and disclosure of personal information.
Personal Services	The category of expense consisting of the cost of wages, salaries, and fringe benefits, paid currently or accrued, for services rendered under the terms of the contract during the contract period. Personal service can include overtime, shift differential, and severance pay, if applicable.
Persons with Disabilities	A person who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities or has a record of such an impairment or is regarded as having such an impairment.
Pharmacy (WIC)	A store licensed by the NYS Education Department where prescribed medications are dispensed and authorized by the WIC Program to redeem WIC formula.
Physical Inventory	Involves actual sighting of the item, confirming its location and verifying the serial number or unique tracking number.
Physical Presence	A Federal requirement that all applicants/participants must be physically present in the WIC clinic to receive WIC services and benefits.
Planning Area	Geographic area in which a WIC local agency provider is authorized to provide WIC services.
Point of Sale	Avendor's cash register system for conducting transactions and payments
Policy	High level program statements that define what must be done by state, regional and local agencies to ensure compliance with federal and state regulations. Policy states the rule rather than how to implement the rule.
Pop-up Site	A full-service WIC site run on a trial basis that meets all NYS DOH site requirements.
Postpartum Woman	A woman up to six months after the termination of their pregnancy. A woman whose pregnancy ends with or without a live birth is considered a postpartum woman.
Presumptive Eligibility	Refers to the status of a pregnant woman who has applied for Medicaid benefits, but the assessment process has not yet been completed. Only pregnant women can have this status.
Price/Stock Survey	The collection of shelf prices and review of vendor stock levels of WIC minimum stock requirements.





Section 1011

Deer

Date: 02/2023

Page 24 of 32

Priority	Number assigned to nutrition risk criteria to distinguish
	levels of nutritional need. Priority code numbers range from highest priority of one (I) to the lowest of six (VI). The applicant/participant is assigned the priority based on the category and nutritional risk(s) identified.
Priority System	A classification method used to determine the priority of a category of participants based on the nutritional risk factors assigned to them. It can be used to establish the nutritional order to certify applicants when waiting lists are in effect. Priority code numbers range from highest priority of one (1) to the lowest of six (VI).
Privacy Act of 1974	Federal law designed to protect an individual's privacy that governs the maintenance and disclosure of personal information. Allows individuals access to their own records and gives them the right to correct, amend or delete information that is inaccurate, irrelevant, outdated, or incomplete.
Processing Time Frame	The timeframe within which applicants must be notified of their WIC program eligibility or ineligibility after the date of first request for program benefits.
Program Operations	A budget sub-category within Non-Personal Services consisting of consumable materials and supplies used to operate the WIC program, telecommunication costs, equipment leases (if applicable) and printing costs.
Program Support	Budget designation for all other staff not authorized and/or functioning as a Nutrition Assistant, Competent Professional Authority, or Qualified Nutritionist. WIC Coordinators can be categorized as program support if they spend most of their time performing administrative services.
Prorate	To reduce the amount of WIC food benefits that a participant receives based on the remaining days/weeks in the issuance cycle.
Ргоху	A person designated by the Authorized Representative or Parent/Spouse/Partner to participate in Nutrition Education and HNU appointments, and receive benefits, on behalf of the participant.
	Q
Qualified Nutritionist	A qualified nutritionist at a local agency who has completed the educational requirements and practical experiences required to earn a degree and/or credential in the field of nutrition. This individual possesses expertise that qualifies them to perform all nutrition-related duties at the local agency, including providing and overseeing high risk care to all high-risk participants.
Quick Reference Guide	Written step by step instructions and guidance for local agency staff on performing a specific function in NYWIC. It usually contains NYWIC screen shots as well as narrative.
Quote	Price submitted by a potential vendor for an item or service in writing (fax or email acceptable).





Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 25 of 32

R		
Reasonable and Necessary Costs	Costs incurred to carry out essential program functions that cannot be avoided without adversely impacting the program objectives. Priority expenditures are relative to other demands on available administrative resources; have a proven or potentially positive outreach or nutrition education impact; provide the program a benefit generally commensurate with the costs incurred; are competitive with the costs of similar items from other vendors; and are in proportion to other program costs for similar functions.	
Reasonable Prices	Vendor average selling prices that do not exceed 110 percent of the average selling prices among vendors in the same vendor peer group.	
Rebate	The amount of money refunded under cost containment procedures to any state agency from the manufacturer of the particular food product as the result of the purchase of the supplemental foods via EBT by a participant in each state agency's WIC program. Such rebates shall be payments made subsequent to the exchange of a retail transaction for food.	
Recertification	Certification for participants already participating in the WIC Program, such as a prenatal woman who is subsequently certified as a breastfeeding woman or a child currently participating in the program whose certification has expired and continues to meet the eligibility criteria.	
Record	Any information kept, held, filed, produced, or reproduced in any form.	
Recoupment	 Method of recovering an advance made to contractors by reducing the amount requested for reimbursement by a predetermined amount (based on the cash forecast) over a specified period of time. Advances must be fully recouped by the end of the contract period. Recovery of payments made to the State by a contractor for costs that have been disallowed or for contract non-compliance. 	
Recumbent Length	Distance from the crown of the head to the bottom of the heels while the child is measured lying down (for children less than two years of age); often referred to as "length".	
Referrals	 Providing information to applicants/participants about services provided by other health-related and public assistance programs and human services and facilitating the use of those resources to meet needs of the participant identified during screening and assessment, when appropriate. Receiving information from community and healthcare partners about applicants/participants to be used for individual outreach and follow-up. 	
NEW MARC	WIC Program Manual	
-----------------------------------	--	--
	Section 1011	
STATE Program	Date: 02/2023 Page 26 d	
Acror	yms and Definitions	
Registered Dietitian Nutritionist	 A food and nutrition expert who has met academic and professional requirements including: Earned a bachelor's degree with course work approved by the Academy of Nutrition and Diet Accreditation Council for Education in Nutrition Dietetics (ACEND). Coursework typically includes and nutrition sciences, foodservice systems management, business, economics, computer science, sociology, biochemistry, physiology, microbiology and chemistry. Completed an accredited, supervised practice pr at a health care facility, community agency or foodservice corporation. Passed a national examination administered by the Commission on Dietetic Registration. Completes continuing professional educational requirements to maintain registration on an ongo basis. 	
Reinstatement (Participant)	Re-activating a terminated certification before the certification end date.	
Reinstatement (Vendor)	Status of a vendor that was removed from participation the WIC program due to violations(s) of WIC statute regulations or policies and was subsequently reauthor to accept WIC food benefits.	
RemoteBenefit Issuance	When benefits are issued to a participant's eWIC account without the participant or participant representative physically present at the local agency.	
Request for Applications	A formal request for applications issued by the NYS De solicit grand funded WIC program services.	
Request for Proposals	A formal request for proposals issued by the NYS DOF solicit applications to provide miscellaneous contrac goods/services.	
Respondent	A WIC food vendor or local agency from which the stat agency seeks a monetary penalty.	
Retention	Continued participation in the WIC Program until no lor eligible.	
Rural Urban Community Area	Codes developed by USDA to measure geography a capture labor and food commodity market differences contribute to food price differences.	
	S	
Sales Exception Criteria	Criteria established by NYS DOH allowing vendors to a for authorization outside their OAP if they meet the s exception threshold and demonstrate Electronic Ber Transaction (EBT) readiness.	
Sanction	Penalty for violating New York State WIC Program rules regulations, policies, or procedures.	
Self Declaration Form	The form signed by participants, or the Authorized Representatives, to explain why identity, residency, or income documentation does not exist.	





WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 27 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Signature	The full name (first name, middle initial, last name) of a	
	person written with their own hand. An initial is only allowed for a first name when it is part of the person's legal signature. Those who are unable to write may use an "X" or other mark for signature as long as legal identification has been shown and the marking is witnessed.	
Single Audit	An organization-wide audit conducted pursuant to the requirements of in 2 CFR § 200, Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; Final Rule covering federal grant awards and sub awards used as funding for states, local governments, and non-profit organizations.	
Site(s)	The location(s) at which WIC program services are provided to participants.	
Site Change	An approved change in the demographic information (address, phone number, fax number, contact representative information) of a WIC site.	
Site Renovations	Changes to space designated for a WIC clinic or Vendor Management Agency that results in the increase or reduction of space, altering the flow of participants, relocation of staff, permanent or temporary partitions, or a change in data and security systems.	
Space	Budget category for work or storage space and related costs of WIC Program activities and services.	
Space-Related Costs	Janitorial/cleaning, maintenance, repairs, capital improvements and the cost of utilities that are not included in base rent or space costs.	
Sponsoring Agency	A public health or human service agency or a private non- profit health or human service agency that provides health services either directly or through a contract in accordance with federal regulations, <u>7CFR</u> , <u>part 246</u> , <u>246.5</u> for the WIC program. Generally used to refer to those agencies sponsoring WIC program services through a contract with the NYS DOH.	
Sponsoring Agency Priority System	System defined by the WIC federal regulations (7CFR, part 246) governing the selection of new sponsoring agencies.	
Stand Beside Device	A payment device separate from the cash register, which includes a bar code scanner, card reader, printer and PIN pad that is used by authorized WIC vendors solely for the use with the WIC Program.	
Standard Precautions	The minimum infection prevention practices that apply to all patient care, regardless of suspected or confirmed infection status of the patient, in any setting where health care is delivered.	
Standard Voucher	The means by which a contractor requests an advance payment or reimbursement for expenditures (AC3253-S Claim for Payment). All vouchers, with the exception of those submitted for advance payments, must be accompanied by a properly completed "Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures".	





Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 28 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Standing Height	Distance from the crown of the head to the bottom of the
	heels while the child/adult (two years of age or older) is measured standing; often referred to as "height".
State Agency	The health department or comparable agency of each state; a Native American tribe, band or group recognized by the Department of the Interior; an intertribal council or group that is the authorized representative of Native American tribes, bands, or groups recognized by the Department of the Interior; or the Indian Health Service of the Department of Health and Human Services. Generally, refers to New York State Department of Health, Division of Nutrition, Bureau of Supplemental Foods Program.
State Contract Manager	State vendor staff designated as contract managers to provide program guidance and technical assistance to vendor management agencies. Each vendor manager agency is assigned a contract manager.
State Plan	A plan of the WIC program that describes the manner in which the state agency intends to implement and operate all aspects of WIC program administration within its jurisdiction in accordance with federal regulations.
Stature	Distance from the crown of the head to the bottom of the heels measured either standing (standing height) or lying down (recumbent length).
Stipulation and Order	An agreement to end an administrative proceeding on certain terms with a directive from the Commissioner of Health to implement those terms.
Stop the Clock	Section 179(f) of State Finance Law requires the State to pay most eligible vendors within 30 days of voucher receipt to avoid the accrual of interest. The STC is written notification to a vendor that the "30-day clock" has been temporarily paused due to outstanding issues that need to be resolved or corrections that need to be made to a voucher.
Student Intern	A student or recent graduate referred to WIC from an accredited university or college, who seeks supervised practical experience in a community setting without pay, to gain the skills and competencies required for public health or community nutrition.
Subcontract	A contract between the local agency and a provider of services.
Supplemental Foods	Those foods containing nutrients determined by nutritional research to be lacking in the diets of pregnant breastfeeding, and postpartum women, infants and children, and foods that promote the health of the population served by the program, as indicated by relevant nutrition science, public health concerns and cultural eating patterns, as prescribed by the USDA Secretary.
Supplemental Nursing System	A feeding device that includes a chamber, to hold breast milk or formula, and two thin tubes which are taped to the person's breast. The cap has a valve that prevents milk from flowing until the baby sucks.



Date: 02/2023

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Page 29 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Target Caseload	Stated in each local agency's fiscal year contract; represents the participants, including exclusively breastfed
	infants of participating mothers, expected to receive WIC benefits each month. Determined by the number of WIC
	eligible persons in the service area, existing service levels, the present need, the service capacity of the local agency,
	and available resources.
Tare (Anthropometry)	To set the weight of a scale to zero when a weight (person) is on the scale.
Temporary Protected Status	Temporary immigration status into the United States, granted to eligible nationals of designated countries.
Termination	(Participant) The act of ending the participation of a WIC participant for reasons including the normal end of a certification period, a participant transfer out of state, a missing proof not provided by the end of a temporary 30- day certification, benefits not claimed for 60 days, a participant chooses to leave the program, or as a punitive
	action. (Contract) The action taken to discontinue a contract for the remainder of the contract period. (Vendor) The action taken (with 15 days' notice) to discontinue a WIC vendor contract for the remainder of the contract period.
Third Party Processor	A company that interfaces between the vendor and the EBT processor to accept payments on behalf of the vendor and deposit the payments into the vendors bank account.
Transmittal Form	A Board of Elections form to be submitted with completed voter registration forms and on which the NVRA site coordinator summarizes NVRA activity.
Travel	Budget category of expenses for transportation, lodging, meals, and conference registration fees incurred by contractor, employees and volunteers who travel on official business related to the program. Employee travel to and from work is not included.
	U
Ultra-High Temperature Milk	Ultra-high temperature milk is pasteurized using an ultra- high temperature treatment and does not require refrigeration until opened.
Unallocated Line	A budget line used in WIC contracts that is not cash backed. This line serves as an administrative tool to facilitate an increase or decrease in a local agency contract budget without processing a contract amendment. No expenditure can be made against the Unallocated line.
Unmet Need	An estimate of the number of people who are eligible to receive WIC services but are currently not enrolled in WIC. It is the difference between the estimated eligible population and average participation in a given period.
User Identification (User ID)	A unique identifier assigned to authorize access to a MIS; provides the electronic signature for functions completed in the MIS.



WIC

Program



WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Dr

Page 30 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Date: 02/2023

	V	
Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment	USDA initiative to improve nutrition services in the WIC Program. VENA provides guidance to enhance and ensure the collection and interpretation of accurate and relevant nutrition and health information to provide targeted and relevant nutrition services to WIC participants. VENA connects WIC nutrition assessment to effective and appropriate nutrition services that best meet each participant's needs. Participant-centered nutrition counseling/education is a key component of VENA.	
Vendor	An authorized, contracted retail food store or pharmacy that supplies WIC acceptable foods and/or infant formula to WIC participants.	
Vendor Agreement	An agreement with an authorized vendor not to exceed three years and signed by a representative who has the legal authority to obligate the vendor and the VMA.	
Vendor Authorization	The process by which the Vendor Management Agency assesses, selects, and enters into agreements with stores that apply or subsequently reapply to be authorized as vendors.	
Vendor Authorization Criteria	Criteria established by the Department of Health to be used when selecting vendors for authorization.	
Vendor Bulletin	A notice issued to authorized vendors/stakeholders by the NYS WIC Program that contains important information regarding program requirements or policy changes.	
Vendor Conference	A meeting with the New York State Department of Health Commissioner's designee to discuss a vendor's violations of the WIC Program uncovered during compliance buys or inventory audits.	
Vendor Inventory Audit	The examination of a vendors physical inventory, in addition to invoices or other proof pf purchase documents to determine if a vendor has purchased sufficient quantities of authorized supplemental foods from an authorized supplier to substantiate redemptions by the vendor during a specified period of time.	
Vendor Management Agency	A local agency that performs vendor management activities within a defined geographic area.	
Vendor Monitoring	Onsite visit conducted prior to authorization and periodically throughout the vendor authorization period to ensure compliance with program requirements.	
Vendor Training	Using a standardized training developed by the Department of Health to train vendors during the initial authorization period and at least every twelve months.	
Vendor Violation	Any intentional or unintentional action of a vendor's current owners, officers, managers, agents or employees (with or without the knowledge of management) that violates the vendor's agreement or federal or state statutes, regulations, policies or procedures governing the WIC Program.	
Verification (Equipment)	Determination of the accuracy of an instrument/equipment by comparing it with a known standard.	

WIC	
Program	

NEW YORK STATE

WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 31 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Manification of Oastification	The form form of the set form of the little
Verification of Certification	The transfer of an active certification, and the resulting documentation, that ensures participants can receive benefits through their current certification period at another state.
Verification of Certification (VOC) Card	A document issued to participants who are or who will be transferring from one WIC local agency to an out of state local agency that serves as proof of active certification in the WIC Program. At a minimum, a VOC transfer card must contain the participant's name, date of certification, and date the certification expires.
Vital Documents	Documents that explain information essential to understanding program eligibility requirements, rights and responsibilities, providing enrollment instructions, or are necessary to apply for services.
	W
WIC-Eligible Nutritionals	Certain enteral products that are specifically formulated to provide nutritional support for individuals with a qualifying condition, when the use of conventional foods is precluded, restricted or inadequate. Such WIC-eligible nutritionals must serve the purpose of a food, meal, or diet (may be nutritionally complete or incomplete) and provide a source of calories and one or more nutrients; be designed for enteral digestion via an oral or tube feeding; and may not be a conventional food, drug, flavoring, or enzyme.
WIC Medical Referral Form	A form developed by the NYS WIC Program for Health Care Providers to record anthropometric, hematological, and other medical/health data which helps to determine WIC Program eligibility based on risk status and to facilitate certification into the WIC Program.
WIC Coordinator	The local agency's highest WIC management and policy making position. Major functions of this position include policy development, planning, evaluation, fiscal control, management, and supervision. May also, if qualified, function as a Competent Professional Authority or Qualified Nutritionist and have managerial experience in health or human service delivery. Most often referred to as the title of WIC Coordinator who coordinates contract requirements through the Executive Director of the Sponsoring Agency.
WIC2Go Application	The mobile application designed for NYS WIC participants. The application can be used on Android and Apple cellular telephones to check WIC benefits and scheduled appointments, locate WIC clinics and WIC-authorized stores, and to scan bar codes to see whether foods are WIC-approved.
Waiting List	A list of applicants and participants who have met the eligibility requirements but cannot receive WIC benefits because of insufficient funding.
Written Directive	A written request from the New York State Department of Health to a not-for-profit organization authorizing the organization to continue services on a specified date during the negotiation of a renewal contract.

	{	NEW
E	_	YORK
	2	E.



WIC Program Manual

Section 1011

Date: 02/2023

Page 32 of 32

Acronyms and Definitions

Woman Breastfeeding Fully	Participant who breastfeeds or gives breast milk to infant(s) without supplemental formula from WIC.
Woman Breastfeeding Partially (Mostly)	Infant is breastfed or receives breast milk supplemented with less than 50% of the maximum amount allowed for formula fed infants. Formula amounts provided must be individually tailored based on assessed need. A breastfeeding participant who is up to one year postpartum, whose infant receives infant formula from WIC up to the maximum provided for an infant breastfeeding partially, mostly.
Woman Breastfeeding Partially (Some)	Infant is breastfed or receives breast milk supplemented with formula more than 50% of the maximum amount allowed for formula fed infants. Formula amounts provided must be individually tailored based on assessed need. A breastfeeding participant who is up to 6 months postpartum, whose infant receives infant formula from WIC up to the maximum provided for an infant breastfeeding partially, some.
Woman Non-Breastfeeding	Participant is not breastfeeding or giving any breast milk. Formula is infant's primary source of nutrition.
Woman Pregnant	A participant determined to have one or more embryos or fetuses in utero.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes ⊠No

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available □Yes ⊠No

RESOURCES

WIC Library:

• NYWIC Guidance Packet

WIC	
Program	-

WIC Program Manual

Section #1012

Page 1 of 2

WIC Program Manual Use and Maintenance

Date: 02/2023

POLICY

NEW

YORK

ΤΑΤΕ

- 1. Federal regulations require State WIC Programs to develop a WIC Program Manual that must contain instructions for WIC local agency operations, regulations, and policies developed by the United States Department of Agriculture and the New York State Department of Health.
- 2. The United States Department of Agriculture must approve the WIC Program Manual and all updates before distribution.
- 3. The electronic WIC Program Manual is the official version. WIC local agencies must provide electronic access to the WIC Program Manual to all local agency staff.
- 4. Each local agency must develop and maintain a Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual that includes policies and procedures as directed by the state.

REGULATIONS

Federal regulation in 7 CFR Subpart B, State and Local Agency Eligibility, §246.4 (*a*) 11, requires each state agency to provide within its State Plan, "...a copy of the procedure manual developed by the State agency for guidance to local agencies in operating the Program."

Theregulations further dictate that the following procedures be included for guidance in this Manual:

- 1. Certification procedures, including:
 - a list of the specific nutritional risk criteria by priority level which explains how a person's nutritional risk is determined
 - hematological data requirements including timeframes for the collection of such data
 - the procedures for requiring proof of pregnancy, consistent with §246.7(c)(2)(ii), if the state agency chooses to require such proof
 - the state agency's income guidelines for Program eligibility
 - adjustments to the participant priority system (see §246.7(e)(4)) to accommodate high-risk postpartum women or the addition of Priority VII
 - alternate language for the statement of rights and responsibilities which is provided to applicants, parents, or caretakers when applying for benefits as outlined in §246.7(i)(10) and (j)(2)(i) through (j)(2)(iii); this alternate language must be approved by FNS
- 2. Methods for providing nutrition education, including breastfeeding promotion and support, to participants. Nutrition education will include information on drug abuse and other harmful substances.
- 3. Instructions concerning all food delivery operations performed at the local level, including the list of acceptable foods and their maximum monthly quantities as required by §246.10(b)(2)(i).
- 4. Instructions for providing all records and reports which the State agency requires local agencies to maintain and submit; and

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section #1012	
	Date: 02/2023	Page 2 of 2

WIC Program Manual Use and Maintenance

5. Instructions on coordinating operations under the program with drug and other harmful substance abuse counseling and treatment services.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE
LA/VMA Policy Required 🗌 Yes 🗹 No
1. The WIC Program Manual (WPM) must be available as a reference for all WIC staff and in the training of new staff, as it contains the information necessary for WIC operations.
2. Local agencies must contact their Regional Office for clarification of Federal regulations and State policies referenced within the WIC Program Manual.
GUIDANCE
Policy Supplement Available 🗌 Yes 🗹 No
Updates to the WPM are shared via a Local Agency Policy Memorandum (LA Memo) and posted to the WIC library.
Local agency staff may print out and use copies of the WPM for their convenience. However,

WIC Coordinators are responsible for ensuring that any paper copies used by staff are current.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1035: WIC Regulations
- #1405: Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual

) TURK	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual Section 1013	
			UseofW

POLICY

- 1. WIC local agencies andvendor management agencies must obtain written permission from the Department of Health to use the New York State Brand logo and the Federal WIC logo.
- 2. Localagencies andvendor management agencies may develop their own logo using the WIC acronym, without obtaining written approval from the Department of Health.

BACKGROUND

Authority to regulate the use of the acronym "WIC" and the (federal) WIC logo are provided by 42 U.S.C. 1786, 15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq., and 7 CFR 246. The acronym and logo are registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

In 2014 New York State released a set of branding guidelines intended to streamline the representation of New York agencies, authorities and programs through use of a consistent graphic approach.

DEFINITIONS

FederalWICLogo – asymbolshowing awomanholding aninfant in her arms and achild by the hand.

New York State Brand WIC Program Logo – a graphic of New York State with the wording, "New York State of Opportunity", along the right side, followed by a side bar and the wording, "WIC Program". Developed for use in 2015.

WICAcronym – formed from the full title of the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children.

PROCEDURE

- 1. Noentity may use the NYS or Federal WIC logo without obtaining prior written approval from the Department of Health.
- 2. TheNYSlogomustbeused in its entirety and the colors may not be changed.
- 3. Useofthe WIC acronym, including use in a logo developed by alocalagency or vendor management agency, does not require Department of Health approval.

GUIDANCE

Localagencies may use the WIC acronym without seeking prior permission. Local agencies are encouraged to develop their own logo to use without prior approval.

Local agencies, vendor management agencies and any other organization, including sponsor organizations andvendors, must obtain prior written approval from the Department of Health to use either the NYS Brand WIC Program logo or Federal WIC logo.

) TURK	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1013	
		Date: 11/2016	Page 2 of 2
	Useof	WIC Acronym and Logos	

At least six weeks prior to desired date of use, submit requests to use the NYS or Federal WIC logo to the Regional Office Representative or Contract Manager with a copy/sample of the way in which it will be used, including both design and content.

Appropriate use of the WIC logos might include leaflets, brochures, bulletins, posters, billboards, manuals, and educational or outreach materials.

ContacttheRegionalOffice Representative for additionalguidance.

		MIC	WIC Program	nManual
2		Drogram	Section 1015	
STATE	Program	Date: 09/2021	Page 1	

Applying to Sponsor aWIC Program

of 3

POLICY

- 1. TheNew York State Department of Health(NYSDOH), Division of Nutrition, Bureau of Supplemental Food Programs will seek applications from organizations to provide services for the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).
- Organizations will be selected by means of a competitive procurement, with successful applicants entering into contracts with the New York State Department of Health. After the selection process is complete, no further applications will be considered until the next procurement.
- 3. Contracts shall ensure that local agencies comply with all fiscal and operational requirements as prescribed in Federal and New York State regulations.
- 4. Anorganization applying to sponsor a WIC program must complete all sections of the application form and follow all procedures relevant to the application process.
- 5. During the term of the contract, the NYS WIC Program may expand or contract an organization's service area based on need.

REGULATIONS

Selection of local agencies, <u>7 CFR §246.5</u> – This federal regulation sets forth the procedures the State agency shall perform in the selection of local agencies and the expansion, reduction, and disqualification of local agencies already in operation.

NYS Economic Development Law, <u>Article 4C (140-146)</u> - Sets forth the requirements and guidelines for publishing procurement contract opportunities.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAV/MAPolicy Required □Yes⊠No

 In accordance with New York State procurement guidelines, the Bureau of SupplementalFood Programs periodically issues a Request for Applications (RFA) to identify and select agencies wishingtosponsor a Special SupplementalNutrition Programfor Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) to provide WIC services through established contracts. The RFA is usually issued every five years. All prospective contractors must submit an application to be considered for sponsorship of a WIC Program.

S YORK	wic	WIC Program	nManual
	VVIC.	Section 1015	
		Date: 09/2021	Page 2 of 3
	A		

Applying to Sponsor aWIC Program

The State has identified planning areas or geographic areas in which there are populations eligible for WICservices. In upstate New York, planning areas are typically one or more counties. In the New York metropolitan region, planning areas typically include contiguous neighborhoods.

- 2. Pursuant to 7 C.F.R. §246.5, the NYS WIC Program shall establish standards for the selection of new local agencies. The following priority system, which is based on the relative availability of health and administrative services, will be used in the selection of local agencies:
 - First consideration shall be given to a public or a private nonprofit health agency that will provide ongoing, routine pediatric and obstetric care and administrative services;
 - Second consideration shall be given to a public or a private nonprofit health or human service agency that will enter into a written agreement with another agency for either ongoing, routine pediatric and obstetric care or administrative services;
 - Third consideration shall be given to a public or private nonprofit health agency that will enter into a written agreement with private physicians, licensed by the State, in order to provide ongoing, routine pediatric and obstetric care to a specific category of participants (women, infants or children);
 - Fourth consideration shall be given to a public or private nonprofit human service agency that will enter into a written agreement with private physicians, licensed by the State, to provide ongoing, routine pediatric and obstetric care; and,
 - Fifth consideration shall be given to a public or private nonprofit health or human service agency that will provide ongoing, routine pediatric and obstetric care through referral to a health provider.
- 3. NYS DOH will upload the new grant opportunity into the Grants Gateway and post a link to the NYS DOH funding opportunity website page. NYS DOH will also advertise the opportunity in the New York State Contract Reporter.
- 4. To apply to operate a WIC program, organizations must first register with the Grants Gateway and then complete all areas of the WIC Local Agency Application. The application must be submittedthrough the Grants Gateway following the instructions on the NYSG rants Management website.
- 5. Allgrantapplications must be submitted to the State by the advertised due date and time.
- 6. Each application will be evaluated by teams of NYS DOH WIC Program staff. The evaluation teams will review the applicant's qualifications according to the standards and requirements outlined in the RFA. After reviewing information on all applications and supporting documentation, and considering all factors identified above, the applications will be grouped by planning area, and an acceptable group of applicants will be ranked in order of highest score.
- 7. The NYS DOH has the authority to establish new sponsoring agencies. Based on the results of the procurement process, the Department may elect to replace an existing sponsoring agency. Such circumstances might occur if a new sponsoring agency is available that can operate a program more effectively and efficiently, if other agencies rank higher in thesponsoring agency

WIC ProgramManual

Section 1015

Date: 09/2021

Page 3 of 3

Applying to Sponsor aWIC Program

priority system as set forth in Federal WIC regulations and have the ability to operate an efficient and effective WIC Program, or if an existing sponsoring agency is found to be operating out of compliance with the terms of its WIC contract.

GUIDANCE

NEW

YORK

STATE

Policy Supplement Available □Yes ⊠No

WIC

Program

Bothcurrent and potential WIC Agencies should make surethat allstate and Federalrequirements are current at the time of the application submission. Some requirements are specific to particular organizational types while others allow exemptions under some circumstances; please verify which requirements apply toyour organizationwith the appropriate governing body. Requirements include but are not limited to:

- current certified vendor responsibility questionnaires through the NYS VendRep System for the prime contractor and eachsubcontractor to be paid over \$100,000 for the life of the contract
- anonline questionnaire is considered "current" if ithas beencertified withins ix months of the agency-defined due date for the questionnaire
- currentcharitable organizationregistration and annual financial report filed with NYS Attorney General's Office Charities Bureau
- proofofworkers'disability benefits insurancecoverage orexemption
- · proof of workers' compensation insurance coverage or exemption; and
- currentsingleaudit reportfiledthroughtheFederal Audit Clearinghouse

RESOURCES

- <u>New York StateGrants Management</u>:Find, Apply for, and Manage New York State Grants
- <u>TheVendRepSystem</u>: Asecureapplication which allows vendors to enter, maintain and certify their Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire
- <u>TheNew York StateContract Reporter:</u>The officialNYSsource of contracting opportunities
- <u>The New York State Attorney General's Charities Bureau</u>: An online portal for submitting charities' annual financial filings

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1020	
	Program	Date: 01/2021	Page 1 of 3

Participant-Centered WIC Environment

POLICY

- 1. Participant-centeredservicesmustbeintegratedintoall program operations.
- 2. Local agency staffmustprovideparticipant-centeredservices inanenvironmentthat communicates respect and is conducive to participants achieving positive healthoutcomes.

REGULATIONS

Provisions of agreement, <u>7 CFR §246.6 (b)</u> Processing standards, <u>7 CFR §246.7 (f)</u> Programreferralandaccess, <u>7 CFR §246.7 (b)(4)</u> Participant contacts, <u>7 CFR §246.11 (e)(6)</u> Confidentialityofapplicantandparticipantinformation, <u>7 CFR §246.26 (d)</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsand Definitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

- 1. Thelocal agency (LA)mustbeaphysical environmentthat facilitates participant-centered services, which includes, but is not limited to, ensuring:
 - signagewhichmakes iteasy tolocatetheLA
 - participantprivacy in all areaswhere participantinformation is obtained, including anthropometric, hematological, household composition, and eligibility information
 - appointmentsare conductedinamanner thatallows LAstaff tosit face-to-facewith participants, without physical barriers, as feasible
 - theentire space clean, comfortable, inviting, well-maintained, child-friendly, child-safe, and accessible to people with disabilities
 - aspatiallayoutthatenhancesclinic flowtominimizewait time
 - anon-smokingenvironment
 - breastfeedingissupportedandencouraged throughout theLA
- 2. LAsmustprovidecustomer service thatis participant-centered, which includes, but is not limited to, ensuring participants:
 - aretreated with respect, and are provided services in a respectful manner
 - feeltheirtimeis valued andrespected
 - feel engaged and are respected through all delivery methods of appointments
 - aregreetedonarrival inawarm and friendlymanner
 - areinvitedtotheirappointmentusingtheimame, as appropriate
 - understand theappointmentprocess, including staff they will speakwith, and expected length of the appointment

WIC Program Manual Section 1020 Date: 01/2021 Page 2 of 3 Participant-Centered WIC Environment • have access to age-appropriate activities for children to enhance the opportunity for focused communication between participant/participant representatives and staff

- are aware of the program benefits including nutrition education from a Qualified Nutritionist (QN)/Competent Professional Authority (CPA), and breastfeeding support such as peer counseling services, breast pumps, and referrals to other services
- can easily see signage, posters, and displayed materials that convey positive messages and images, that are culturally diverse, and emotion-based, whenappropriate
- canreceiveinformationwithinrespectivecultural and language preferences
- benefit from a clinic f low system which identifies appropriate staffing, roles and responsibilities to meet theneeds of the LA
- 3. LAs must ensure that procedures for establishing appointments are participant-centered, which includes, but is not limited to:
 - providingoptionsforparticipantswhom theclinic LAcannotaccommodateatthat time
 - ensuring that applicants receive certification appointments within the required time frames
 - utilizing an effective system for appointment reminders, and for missed appointments that is effectivebased on theparticipant's preferred mode of communication
 - offeringparticipantssamesite/dayappointments,whichincludesofferinglunchtimehours
 - offering scheduled alternative extended appointment hours based on prior approval from DOH. Lunch time hours are not considered alternative hours. LAs must provide, at a minimum, a total number of alternative hours based upon the LA's current federal fiscal year's caseload target as follows:

AssignedParticipantCaseload Target	Minimum Number of Alternative Hours Required Per Month
1,500orless	8
1,501-3,500	12
3,501-7,000	16
7,001 orgreater	24

- 4. DesignatedmanagerswithintheLA are responsible for implementing and maintaining effective participant-centered services, which includes:
 - modelingtheparticipant-centered approach and providing guidance to all LA staff
 - ensuring that LA staffunderstand their roles, responsibilities, jobdescriptions, and performance standards to provide quality services
 - offeringcompetency-basedtraining,continuingeducation,andmentoring opportunities for staff, as appropriate, and based on assessed needs
 - monitoringcustomerservicethroughouttheLA by conductingqualityassuranceactivities
 - offering participants and staff the opportunity to provide feedback on LA environment and customerservice

GUIDANCE

 ${\sf PolicySupplementAvailable}\ \Box{\sf Yes}\ \boxtimes{\sf No}$

WIC Program Manual

Section 1020

Date: 01/2021

Page 3 of 3

Participant-Centered WIC Environment

The participant's experience within the LA is influenced by the environment and the way services are delivered. Participant-centered services support positive interactions between staff, participants, and participant representatives which impact their experience.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1043:Confidentiality, Releasing/DisclosureofInformation
- #1100:WICCertification Overview
- #1135:NutritionAssessmentProcess
- #1200:Participant-Centered NutritionEducationandCounseling
- #1224:WIC Breastfeeding-FriendlyEnvironment
- #1460:Local AgencyNutritionStaff

WICLibrary:

- WICNutritionServices Standards, August 2013
- PCNSAssessmentTools

Other:

<u>AtarumInstitute Participant-CenteredNutritionEducationResourceGuide</u>

NEW YORK STATE	wic	WIC ProgramManual	
	Program -	Section 1030	
		Date: 12/2021	Page 1 of 1
WIC ProgramLegislation			

WICProgram Legislation

The United States Department of Agriculture regulates New York State WIC Program policy and provides federal grants to states and Indian Tribal Organizations for supplemental foods, nutrition education and referrals to other services.

Federal legislation specific to the WIC Program is under Section 17 of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 as amended. The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) was established under the authorization of the aforementionedFederal Child Nutrition Act, by Public Law 92-433, and enacted on September 26, 1972. The WIC Program is reauthorized every five years.

The most current version of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 as amended through Public Law 111-296, Effective December 13, 2010 – Section 17 can be accessed at https://www.fns.usda.gov/cna-amended-pl-111-296

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1035	
		Date: 12/2021	Page 1 of 1
WICRegulations			

WIC PROGRAM REGULATIONS

WIC Regulations are published by the Federal Register in the Code of Federal Regulations, 7 C.F.R. Part 246, and are used to guide and inform New York State WIC Program policies and procedures. The CFR is updated with files with an effective date as of January 1 each year. The CFR, in print or on-line, represents updates as of January and will not include changes which have been subsequently published.

The most current version of the WIC Regulations are available via the USDA website and can be accessed at <u>https://www.fns.usda.gov/wic/wic-laws-and-regulations</u>.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program	Manual
		Section 1038	
	Program	Date: 04/2021	Page 1 of 3

Program Complaints and Suspected Fraud or Abuse

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies andvendormanagement agenciesmustproperly documentandreferall allegations of suspected WIC Program fraud and abuse.
- 2. Localagenciesandvendormanagementagenciesmustproperlydocumentandresolveall complaints received relating to participants and authorized vendors.
- 3. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must develop policies and procedures relating to fraud referrals and complaints. These policies and procedures must be included in the agency policy and procedure manual.
- 4. Localagencyandvendormanagementagencystaffmustreceiveannual trainingtoidentify, document and report complaints and allegations of fraud and abuse.

BACKGROUND

Participant parent/caretaker, proxy, vendor, complaints - $\underline{\$7 CFR 246.12(o)}$ – The state agency must have procedures to document the handling of complaints by participants, parents or caretakers of infant or child participants, proxies, vendors.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required Xes No

Reporting Suspected Fraud and Abuse

Localagenciesandvendormanagementagenciesmustreportall suspectedWICProgram fraudand abuse. This includes anywillful violationofWIC program rules, regulations, policies, or procedures committed by WIC participants, authorized vendors or employees, or WIC staff.

- 1. Use the *Bureau of Special Investigations (BSI)Referral Form* to documentall information related to suspected WIC Program fraud and abuse.
- 2. Anonymousreporterswhodonotwish tobecontacted mustbeasked toprovide as much information as possible so that the allegation can be investigated.

NEW YORK STATE	wic	WIC Program	Manual
	Program	Section 1038	
		Date: 04/2021	Page 2 of 3
Dreamon Ocumulainte and Overseted Frend on Abuse			

Program Complaints and Suspected Fraud or Abuse

3. Transmitallegations of fraudandabusetoBSIby telephone, fax,email,ormail using contact information found on the form.

Program Complaint Procedures

Program complaints that do not involves us pected cases of fraudorabuse can be referred directly to the appropriate local agency, vendor management agency, or the NYS WIC Program.

- 1. DocumentallinformationrelatedtoacomplaintontheNYSWIC ProgramComplaint Form.
- 2. Submit as much information as possible related to vendor customer service complaints to the appropriate vendor management agencies by telephone, fax, email, or mail. Customer service-related complaints that may be educational in nature and require follow up by the vendor management agency.
- 3. Submit as much information as possible regarding participant complaints to the appropriate local agency by telephone, fax, email, or mail. Customer service-related complaints may include complaints that may be educational in nature and require follow up by the local agency.
- 4. ComplaintsmayalsobereportedtotheNYSWICProgram,ordirectly toUSDA.
- 5. Discriminationor civil rightscomplaints should be submitted in accordance with procedures outlined in WPM Section 1040 Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement.

Documentation and Training Requirements

- Local agencies and vendor management agencies must maintain a confidential file that includes the BSI Referral Form, the NYSWIC Complaint Form and the Report Log. The Report Log must include the following information: date that the information/allegation was received; name or initials of the staff person who received the allegation; subject of the allegation; and date that the referral or complaint was submitted, by what means, and to whom.
- 2. Local agencyandvendormanagementagency policyandproceduresmustinclude
 - Theprocedures forcollecting,logging,and filinginformation related to complaintsand suspected fraud or abuse, including documenting in the information system.
 - Timeframesandprocedures forforwardingsuspectedcasesoffraudorabuse to theBSI and resolution.
 - Timeframesandprocedures for resolving complaints.
 - Procedures for following-upwithcomplainants.
- Local agency and vendor management agency staff must receive annual training that includes identifying fraud and abuse, and the process used to document and report allegations to BSI. Training must also include steps staff will take to differentiate complaints that are customer service/educational and/or training based, and the process used to document and resolve the complaint.

WIC Program Manual

Section 1038

Date: 04/2021

Page 3 of 3

Program Complaints and Suspected Fraud or Abuse

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \boxtimes Yes \Box No

Anyone may report suspected fraud or abuse directly to BSI via the NYS WIC Fraud Hotline 1-877-282-6657 or via email to <u>foodfraud@health.ny.gov</u> or <u>bsiwicvendors@health.ny.gov</u> or mail to: BSI, PO Box 2061, Albany, NY 12220-2061.

Information related to suspected fraud or abuse may also be reported directly to USDA via <u>usda.gov/org</u> or (800) 424-9121 or fax (202) 690-2474 or USDA Office of Inspector General, PO Box 23399, Washington, DC 20026-3399.

Complaints can be submitted directly to the appropriatelocal agency **or** vendor management agency, or to the NYS WIC Program at (518) 402-7093 or WIC Program Director, NYSDOH, Room 605, 150 Broadway, Albany NY, 12204 or email to <u>nyswic@health.ny.gov</u>, or directly to USDA.

Local agencies and vendor management agencies should utilize in-service opportunities and staff meetings to incorporate a review of this policy and the agency's policies and procedures during staff training. Examples of BSIreferrals and program complaints obtained from theagency's Report Log may provide amoremeaningful training and assiststaff to helpclarify the difference between a complaint and an allegation of fraud or abuse.

RESOURCES

WPMSections:

- WPM#1467-Competency BasedandMandatory Training
- WPM#1040-CivilRights andNondiscriminationStatement

Other Resources:

- BSIReferral Form
- NYSWICComplaint Form
- WICVendor Handbook
- WICParticipantRights and Responsibilities

Section 1040

Page 1 of 7

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement

Date: 02/2024

WIC POLICY

NEW

YORK

ΓΑΤΕ

WIC

Program

- 1. Local agencies and the vendor management agency must ensure that equal treatment is provided to all applicants, vendors, participants, and employees in compliance with all federal and state regulations and policies concerning civil rights and nondiscrimination.
- 2. Local agency and vendor management agency staff must complete the *WIC Annual Civil Rights Training* that complies with all civil rights requirements, including procedures for handling complaints.
- 3. Local agencies and the vendor management agency must advise applicants, vendors and participants of their right to file a complaint, how to file a complaint, and the complaint procedures, and process complaints in a timely manner.
- 4. All local agency and vendor management agency staff must process complaints in accordance with procedures provided by the New York State Department of Health.
- 5. The nondiscrimination statement must be included on all material produced by local agencies for public information, public education, or public distribution.
- 6. Local agencies must ensure that the WIC program is accessible to all applicants and participants to ensure equal access to WIC benefits and services.

REGULATIONS

Nondiscrimination, <u>7 CFR §246.8</u> Records and reports, <u>7 CFR §246.25(a)</u> Collection of demographic information, <u>NYS HRL §170-E*2</u> Unlawful discriminatory practices[employment, licensing], <u>NYS HRL §296.1</u>. Unlawful discriminatory practices [reasonable accommodation of disability in employment], <u>NYS HRL §296.3</u> Unlawful discriminatory practices [age discrimination] <u>NYS HRL §296.3(a)</u>, Unlawful discriminatory practices [accommodation of religious practices], <u>NYS HRL §296.10</u> Unlawful discriminatory practices [conviction], <u>NYS HRL §296.15</u> Unlawful discriminatory practices[arrest], <u>NYS HRL §296.16</u> Food and Nutrition Services Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement – Nutrition Programs and Activities, <u>FNS Instruction 113-1</u>

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

Racial Justice - <u>Racial justice</u> is the systematic fair treatment of people of all races that results in equitable opportunities and outcomes for everyone.

Equity - Equity means fairness and justice and focuses on outcomes that are most appropriate for a given group, recognizing different challenges, needs, and histories. It is distinct from diversity, which can simply

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1040	
	Date: 02/2024	Page 2 of 7

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement

mean variety (the presence of individuals with various identities). It is also not equality, or "same treatment," which doesn't take differing needs or disparate outcomes into account. <u>Equity</u> recognizes that each person/community has different circumstances and allocates the exact resources and opportunities needed to reach an equal outcome.

PROCEDURE

Local Agency/Vendor Management Agency Policy Required 🛛 🛛 Yes 🗹 No

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination

- Local agencies and the vendor management agency must ensure that no individual(s) be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination at the New York State WIC Program on the grounds of any protected classes under federal or New York State Human Rights Law, or retaliation for prior civil rights activity.
- 2. Local agencies must implement and demonstrate a commitment to racial justice through policies, procedures, and training.
- 3. Local agency staff must inform participants of their rights and responsibilities and provide guidance of their right to file a complaint.

Staff Training

- All local agency "frontline staff" with a NYWIC account who interact with program applicants or participants, persons who supervise "frontline staff," and all vendor management agency staff must complete the WIC Annual Civil Rights Training upon hire and annually thereafter. This includes all local agency and vendor management agency staff, plus agency Coordinators and vendor management agency Directors. Excluded from this requirement are: vendor management agency Coordinators/Directors' supervisors, agency fiscal staff, and any other sponsor agency staff.
- 2. The WIC Annual Civil Rights Training includes nine required elements:
 - complaint procedures
 - collection and use of civil rights data
 - effective public notification methods
 - compliance reviews
 - resolution of non-compliance
 - requirements of reasonable accommodations of persons with disabilities
 - requirements for language assistance/access
 - conflict resolution
 - customer service
- 3. If an agency identifies a staff deficiency in understanding of any of the nine training elements, the agency must provide additional training with a focus on that topic.

NEW YORK STATE Prog		WIC Program	Manual
		Section 1040	
		Date: 02/2024	Page 3 of 7

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement

4. All WIC sites, including local agency administrative offices, permanent, temporary, and pop-up sites, must prominently display the most up-to-date *And Justice for All poster*.

Complaints

- 1. A civil rights complaint is a discriminatory complaint related to any of the protected classes under federal law. Federally Protected classes are the following:
 - race
 - color
 - national origin
 - sex (including gender identity and sexual orientation)
 - disability
 - age

Federally protected classes are also protected under the New York State Human Rights Law.

- 2. Other complaints may include complaints that are not related to the federally protected classes. The following classes are also protected under the New York State Human Rights Law and are considered "other non-civil rights" complaints:
 - creed
 - military status
 - predisposing genetic characteristics
 - familial status
 - marital status
 - domestic violence victim status

Filing and Logging Complaints

- 1. If a participant/applicant/vendor feels that WIC has discriminated against them, local agency or vendor management agency staff must offer and provide assistance in completing the appropriate complaint form.
- A participant/applicant/vendor may choose to submit a letter of complaint instead of filling out a complaint form. The letter should contain all information requested in the complaint form to avoid a processing delay; however anonymous, verbal, and partially completed forms will be accepted.
- 3. The United States Department of Agriculture Civil Rights Complaint Form (or a letter containing the same information as the form) must be submitted directly to the United States Department of Agriculture to the fax, email, or mailing information provided in the United States Department of Agriculture nondiscrimination statement. The local agency/vendor management agency must also submit a copy of the complaint to the New York State Department of Health at: <u>nyswic@health.ny.gov</u>. Documentation of all civil rights complaints must be maintained by the local agency for at least seven years from the date of receipt.

	WIC Program Manual			
YORK WIC	Section 1040			
STATE Program	Date: 02/2024	Page 4 of 7		
Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement				

- 4. All discrimination complaints must be filed within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory action.
- 5. Civil rights complaints must be securely and separately maintained from all other program complaints.

Other non-civil rights complaints and fair hearing requests must be sent to the New York State WIC Program Director. If the complaint is deemed to be a protected basis under the United States Department of Agriculture nondiscrimination statement, it will be forwarded to the United States Department of Agriculture for review within five days. Please refer to WIC Program Manual #1038 Program Complaints and Suspected Fraud or Abuse and WIC Program Manual #1047 Fair Hearing Process for Participants for more information.

Nondiscrimination Statement

- The full nondiscrimination statement must appear on local agency produced materials for public information, education, and distribution, including but not limited to local agency websites, social media sites, outreach materials and application/certification materials. In addition, any document that includes the full nondiscrimination statement must also include the New York State complaint and Fair Hearing statement and WIC Program Director's contact information.
- 2. The text of the full nondiscrimination statement can be smaller than the material's text and must be legible. The font and point size must be taken into consideration. However, the format of the statement must not be altered. Refer to the WIC Library for the full English and Spanish nondiscrimination statements.
- 3. The full nondiscrimination statement reads:

In accordance with federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including gender identity and sexual orientation), disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity.

Program information may be made available in languages other than English. Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication to obtain program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language), should contact the responsible state or local agency that administers the program or USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.

To file a program discrimination complaint, a Complainant should complete a Form AD-3027, USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form which can be obtained online at: <u>https://www.usda.gov/sites/default/files/documents/ad-3027.pdf</u>, from any USDA office, by calling (866) 632-9992, or by writing a letter addressed to USDA. The letter must contain the complainant's name, address, telephone number, and a written description of the alleged discriminatory action in sufficient detail to inform the Assistant Secretary for Civil

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program	Manual
		Section 1040	
	Fiogram	Date: 02/2024	Page 5 of 7

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement

Rights (ASCR) about the nature and date of an alleged civil rights violation. The completed AD-3027 form or letter must be submitted to USDA by:

1. mail:

U.S. Department of Agriculture Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; or **2. fax:** (833) 256-1665 or (202) 690-7442; or **3. email:** program.intake@usda.gov

This institution is an equal opportunity provider.

For other complaints or to request a Fair Hearing contact:

 mail: WIC Program Director NYSDOH, Riverview Center 150 Broadway, 6th Floor Albany, NY 12204
 phone: (518) 402-7093;
 fax: (518) 402-7348; or
 email: nyswic@health.ny.gov

- 4. The local agency must request approval from the Department of Health to use the short statement, which must read "This institution is an equal opportunity provider." in text no smaller than the material's text. The local agency may use the short non-discrimination statement if the material is not collecting vital information (i.e.: collecting information for eligibility or providing a notice of change in participation status etc.).
- Internet, radio, and television public service announcements are generally short in duration, and the nondiscrimination statement does not have to be read in its entirety. Rather, "This institution is an equal opportunity provider." is sufficient to meet this requirement.
- 6. The nondiscrimination statement is not required for:
 - nutrition education and breastfeeding promotion and support material that provide only nutrition messages, without any mention of the WIC Program
 - WIC items such as buttons, caps, magnets, and pens because of size and/or configuration

Program Accessibility

NEW YORK STATE Program	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Program	Section 1040	
		Date: 02/2024	Page 6 of 7

Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement

- 1. Local agencies must:
 - comply with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements to ensure that all
 categorically eligible individuals with disabilities have an equal opportunity to apply
 and participate in the WIC Program by offering facilities and services accessible to
 persons with disabilities (including participants' representatives and proxies)Notify the
 applicant/participant that free services or other aids are available upon request for
 persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication to obtain
 program information. Notify the applicant/participant that if they have difficulty
 understanding English, free language assistance services are available upon request.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🗹 Yes 🗆 No

Local agencies and the vendor management agency are encouraged to keep a record of staff's civil rights training completion.

The United States Department of Agriculture nondiscrimination statement is available in other languages located here: <u>https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/fns-nondiscrimination-statement</u>. This link does not include the New York State complaint and Fair Hearing statement and WIC Program Director's contact information. This information can be found at the bottom of all translated WIC vital documents.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1038: Program Complaints and Suspected Fraud or Abuse
- #1041: Language Access
- #1047: Fair Hearing Process for Participants Policy
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1401: Record Retention Policy
- #1467: Competency Based and Mandatory Training Policy
- #1451: Electronic Communication Use

WIC Library:

- USDA Nondiscrimination Statement and NYS WIC Complaint Information
- Spanish USDA Nondiscrimination Statement and NYS WIC Complaint Information

Other:

	WIC Program Manual			
STATE Program	Section 1040			
STATE Program	Date: 02/2024	Page 7 of 7		
Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement				

- <u>USDA Civil Rights Website</u>
 <u>NYS Complaint Form</u>

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1041		
		Date: 08/2021	Page 1 of 3	
Language Access				

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies must ensure that Limited English Proficient and Non-English Proficientapplicants and participants have equal access to WIC Program information, services, and benefits.
- 2. Local agencies must adhere to all federal and state regulations and policies concerning nondiscrimination and equal treatment of Limited English Proficient and Non-English Proficient individuals.
- 3. Local agenciesmustdevelopaLanguageAccess Planandupdateit annually.
- 4. Localagenciesmustdesignatea LanguageAccessContacttoensurecompliancewiththispolicy.

REGULATIONS

FederalCivilRightLegislation, TitleVIof theCivilRightsActof 1964

Nondiscrimination, Non-English materials §246.8(c)

NewYorkState(NYS)HumanRightsLaw, <u>ExecutiveLaw Article15.u7u</u>

Statewide Language Access Policy, NYSExecutive Order No. 26.1

ImprovingAccess toServices forPersonswithLimitedEnglishProficiency,<u>FederalExecutiveOrder</u> <u>#13166</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection 1011.

PROCEDURE

LAV/MAPolicy Required ⊠Yes □No

Assessment and Documentation Requirements

- 1. Local agencies (LAs) must develop policies and procedures that include a Language Access Plan. The Language Access plan must include the required components, as outlined in the Language Access Policy Supplement, and must be updated at least annually.
- 2. LA staffmustprovide equal access within therequired timeframes forall applicants and participants regardless of whether they speak English as their primary language.
- 3. Freeoralinterpretationservicesmustbeprovided to any individual requesting an interpreterand to an individual identifying a non-English language as their primary language.

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1041	
	Date: 08/2021	Page 2 of 3

Language Access

- When a Limited English Proficient (LEP) or Non-English Proficient (NEP) individual chooses not to use freeinterpretation services, LA staff must obtain a completed Waiver of Right to Free Interpretation Services form to allow afamily household member (whois at least 18 years old) to act as an interpreter, except for emergency situations or routine questions. An LEP/NEP individual is notpermitted to use an interpreter of their choosing when legal matters are involved.
- The individual or designee must sign the Waiver of Right to Free Oral Interpretation Services Form annually; however, best practice is to obtain a signature at every appointment to document that free oral interpretation services havebeen declined. Once the waiver form is signed, LA staff must scan or upload a copy of the form in the participant's record.
- 4. LA staff must document a participant's primary language and language assistance needs in the participant's record and ensure that all future interactions with the participant include proper delivery of interpretation services.

Interactions with LEP/NEP Individuals

- 1. The "ISpeak" and "Rightto Filea Complaint" posters, and other local LA materials about the available language assistance services, must be placed in publicareas of the WIC clinic.
- 2. LAstaffmustuse the "ISpeak" poster, or similar resource, to assist inidentifying the language of an LEP/NEP individual.
- 3. LAstaffmustnotdiscourage, delay, or refuse WIC services to individuals due to LEP/NEP.
- 4. LA staff must inform LEP/NEP individuals who have a need for language services (in person or by phone) that language assistance services can be provided free of charge, at any point during the visit.
- 5. LAstaffmustcontactthelanguageinterpretationproviderifany of thefollowingscenarios occur:
 - theindividual requestsaninterpreter
 - theindividual'slanguagecannot bedeterminedusing the "ISPEAK" poster
 - theindividual appears to not understand the question

Language Assistance Services

- 1. Bilingualstaffare the preferred means of meeting the language access needs of LEP/NEP individuals.
- 2. LAsmusthaveanaccount, or access to the sponsoragency's account, for language interpretation services.
- 3. AllLAstaffmustknow how to access the language interpretation services.
- 4. LAs must have NYS WIC vital documents readily available in languages commonly spoken by the individuals they serve. Refer to the Document Translations Desk Guide, in the Language Access Policy Supplement, for a listof translated WIC vital documents and other documents.

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1041	
	Date: 08/2021	Page 3 of 3
Language Access		

5. Educational andoutreachmaterials produced by local agencies must be translated, as necessary.

Complaints

- 1. LA staff must provide the most recent version of the Access to Services in Your Language: Complaint Form to individuals wishing to file a language access complaint. Staff must ensure the individual's language assistance needs are met during the process.
- 2. LAsmustdisplay and makevisible themostrecentRight toFileAComplaintposter inall permanent and temporary sites
- 3. LA staffmustnotdelay ordenyservices toindividualswhohavesubmittedacomplaint regarding language access or language access violations.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available ⊠Yes ⊡No

LAs may use a variety of resources to meet the language assistance needs of applicants or participants, including written translations of a variety of vital documents, bilingual staff and volunteers, interpretation services, and community-based organizations.

LAscanpartnerwithcommunity-basedorganizationsinorder tomeetlanguageassistance needs.

Manypublications and forms are available in other languages in the Distribution Center, on the Department of Health website, and in the NYS WIC Library.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

• #1040CivilRights andNondiscriminationStatement

WIC Library:

- WaiverofRighttoFree InterpretationServicesForm
- "ISpeak"Poster
- LanguageAccessRight toFileaComplaint Poster

Other:

- TAHITVideo Language Access Public Service Announcement
- AccesstoServicesinYourLanguageComplaint Form

Language Identification Resources:

- ISpeak-NYS LanguageIdentificationToolChart
- LimitedEnglishProficiency(LEP)-AFederal InteragencyWebsite:https://www.lep.gov
- NewYorkStateDepartmentofHealthLanguageAccessPlanforLEPIndividuals: <u>https://www.dhr.ny.gov/language-access</u>

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Program	Section 1043	
		Date: 7/2022	Page 1 of 5

Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information

POLICY

- 1. Allinformation that individually identifies WICP rogram applicants and participants is confidential.
- 2. All information that individually identifies WIC Program vendors is confidential except for vendor name, address, telephone number, website/email address, store type, and current authorization status.
- 3. Applicant, participant, and vendor information with individual identifiers must not be released without the written consent of the applicant, participant, or vendor, except as required by law.
- 4. The local agency or vendor management agency is only required to provide applicants, participants, and vendors access to information the applicant, participant, or vendor has provided to the WIC Program.
- 5. Applicant, participant, and vendor information must not be released without permission of the New York State Department of Health, except as specified in this policy, or as required by law.
- 6. WIC staff must not share confidential applicant, participant, and vendor information with other staff who do not provide direct services to WIC applicants/participants.

REGULATIONS

Federal Regulations <u>§246.26</u> (d) and (e) indicate that confidential applicant, participant, and vendor information is any information about an applicant, participant, or vendor, whether it is obtained from the applicant, participant, vendor, another source, or generated as a result of WIC application, vendor application, or participation, that individually identifies an applicant, participant, and/or family member(s), or vendors (except vendor: name, address, telephone number, website/email address, store type, and authorization status). Except as otherwise permitted, the State agency must restrict the use and disclosure of confidential applicant, participant, and vendor information to persons directly connected with the administration and enforcement of the WIC Program whom the State agency determines have a need to know the information for WIC Program purposes.

Federal regulations allow the State agency flexibility in determining when confidential applicant or participant information may be disclosed to public organizations for use in the administration of their programs that serve persons eligible for the WIC Program. The New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) must approve in writing any non-WIC uses of applicant and participant information, and the names of the organizations to which such information may be disclosed.

Federal regulations allow the disclosure of confidential applicant, participant, or vendor information pursuant to a valid subpoena or search warrant in accordance with specific procedures.

The Freedom of Information Law (FOIL) prohibits the release of information if the release would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. New York State's Personal Privacy Protection Law is also applicable.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1043	
		Date: 7/2022	Page 2 of 5

Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA PolicyRequired

🗌 Yes 🛛 No

Applicants, Participants, and Vendors

Rightsto Privacyof WIC Program

- 1. Local agency (LA) and vendor management agency (VMA) staff must protect the right to privacy of WIC Program applicants, participants, and vendors, and keep their information confidential by:
 - taking reasonable measures to ensure that office space is available where private and confidential topics can be discussed with applicants, participants, and vendors in a respectful, dignified manner
 - ensuring there is no confidential applicant, participant, or vendor information sent in unencrypted emails
- 2. When a LA or VMAreceives research and data requests, staff must follow procedures detailed in the WIC Program Manual (WPM) section Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests.

Confidentiality Statement

- The confidentiality statement must be signed in the management information system (MIS) upon hire and annually by all LA and VMA staff. Confidentiality requirements must be outlined in the sponsoring agency's personnel policies and included in the staff application and/or hiring package.
- Students, volunteers, other program staff, and other individuals working under a Joint Program Services Agreement (JPSA) or a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) present in the LA or VMA, are required to maintain the same standard of confidentiality as LA and VMA staff, and must sign the paper confidentiality statement on their start date and annually (if applicable) thereafter.

Disclosureof Information

.

Freedomof InformationLaw (FOIL) Requests

- 1. WhenaFOILrequest is received, the LAor VMAmustcontacttheir legalcounsel.
- 2. Withinfivebusiness days of thereceipt of awrittenrequest, the LAor VMA must:
 - providewritten acknowledgment ofreceipt ofsuchrequest; or
 - decisioninresponse tothe informationrequest:
 - approvedisclosure of theinformation requested
 - deny request because the information is protected by law or would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1043	
		0	desticites Delegation

Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information

returnrequest tosender for further clarification

Subpoenas and Search Warrants

- 1. ALA or VMA served with a subpoena must immediately contact the LA or VMA legal counsel and NYS DOH.
- 2. Upondeterminingthevalidity of the subpoena or search warrant, the LA or VMA must:
 - comply with the subpoena or search warrant, releasing only the specified information being requested
 - retain acopy of thesubpoenaor searchwarrant and the agency's response in its files
 - inform the individual producing the subpoena or search warrant that the information is confidential

Ignoring or failing to reply to asubpoena is not acceptable, and an individual could be found in contempt of court.

Applicantsand Participants

ReleasingInformationto Applicantsand Participants

- An Authorized Representative (AR), adult applicant/participant, and Parent/Spouse/Partner (P/S/P) may have access to information they provide to the WIC Program or to an associated child's record, as well as associated Medical ReferralForms and Medical Documentation Forms. This information can be requested either in person, in writing, or by telephone.
- 2. Staffnotes or information obtained from athird party must notbeshared.
- 3. Staff must verify the identity of the Participant Representative requesting the information by verifying the AR's date of birth and mailing address zip code.
- 4. When Participant Representatives request information about others in the WIC household, the applicable individuals must give consent and sign a release of information. In the case of an applicant or participant who is an infant or child, the access may be provided to the parent or guardian.
- 5. In cases involving child custody and guardianship, LA staff must immediately contact their legal counsel and NYS DOH for guidance.

ReleasingApplicantand Participant Information to ThirdParties

- 1. All WIC applicant/participant information is confidential and cannot be shared outside of the WIC program without specific written consent from the applicant/participant. The applicant or participant must sign arelease form authorizing the disclosure and specifying the parties to which the information may be disclosed.
- 2. TheLAmust notre-release information provided by athird party to another third party.
- 3. The LA must not release participant information for non-WIC purposes unless an MOU or similar agreement is established and approved by NYS DOH. Staff must follow procedures detailed in the WPM section Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests.

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1043	
		Config	lentiality, Releasing

<u>Vendor</u>

Releasing VendorInformation

- 1. Vendor name, address, telephone number, website/email address, store type, and current authorization status may be released, without prior approval.
- 2. Disclosure of confidential vendor information must be limited to:
 - individuals NYS DOH determines to have a need to know of the information for WIC purposes
 - avendor that is subject to an adverse action, and the confidential information is related to the adverse action
 - at the discretion of NYS DOH, authorized vendors and vendor applicants regarding vendorsanctions. Disclosure of information is limited to vendor name, address, length of disqualification/civil money penalty, and a summary of the reason(s) for the sanction.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available	🛛 Yes	🗆 No

Auditors conducting single audits to review WIC LA activities are acting in accordance with the administration of the WIC Program as specified by federal regulations. Therefore, an MOU, or similar agreement, is not required to provide confidential information to these auditors.

A release form (such as the Sample Release Form, Talent Release Form, or comparable form) must be completed and signed before sharing any information, or publishing names or pictures of participants online, in newsletters, brochures, or videos.

Release forms are not required when aggregate data, without identifying information, is shared with outside entities upon DOH approval.

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services has clarified that WIC is not a Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) covered entity and that the HIPAA standards do not extend to WIC. Therefore, WIC confidentiality provisions take precedence in protecting applicant and participant information. If WIC is performing activities on behalf of another program that must comply with HIPAA, and it is determined that these activities must be HIPAA compliant, no costs associated with HIPAA compliance may be incurred by the WIC Program. Such costs must be incurred by the program requesting WIC's assistance.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture and the Comptroller General of the United States have access to all WIC Program records, including confidential applicant, participant, and vendor information. Letters from law firms are not legal documents, and information is not allowed to be released upon these requests unless the Authorized Representative, parent/spouse/partner or vendor provides consent.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sectionsand Policy Supplements:

#1044: Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests
NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 104	Section 1043	
	Program	Date: 7/2022	Page 5 of 5	

Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information

- #1046: Reporting SuspectedChild Abuse or Maltreatment
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1241: Referral toOther Services
- #1255: Food Package III and MedicalDocumentation
- #1451: Electronic Communications Use

WICLibrary

- Confidentiality Statement- WIC Applicant, Participant, and Vendor Information
- SampleRelease Form
- TalentRelease Form

WIC	Program	Manual

Section 1044

Page 1 of 6

Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

Date: 09/2023

POLICY

NEW

YORK

WIC

Program

- 1. The local agency must obtain approval from the New York State Department of Health before allowing other programs to offer services in the office.
- 2. The local agency must obtain approval from the New York State Department of Health to share data, services, and goods with another program.
- 3. The local agency must notify the New York State Department of Health within five business days when any Joint Program Service Agreement or Memorandum of Understanding is terminated.
- 4. WIC local agencies and vendor management agencies are under no obligation to support a research request or participate in a research project.
- 5. Any person, organization or institution interested in collecting WIC applicant, participant or vendor data or conducting research that involves WIC participants, local agencies, or vendor management agencies, must have written approval from the New York State Department of Health prior to engaging in any research related activities.
- 6. Participants must be informed that they have the right to decline participation in other programs and research, and that declination has no impact on their WIC participation.
- 7. All WIC applicant/participant information is confidential and cannot be shared outside of the WIC program without specific written consent from the participant.
- 8. WIC program data, other than what is available via public domain, is confidential and cannot be used for research purposes without the consent of the New York State Department of Health.
- 9. Funds intended to support WIC staff salaries and program services cannot be used to conduct research.

REGULATIONS

Protection of human subjects, 45 CFR §46

New York State law for the protection of human subjects, NYS Public Health Law Article 24-A

Confidentiality of applicant and participant information, 7 CFR §246.26 (d)

Confidentiality of vendor information, <u>7 CFR §246.26 (e)</u> -. Confidential vendor information is any information about a vendor (whether it is obtained from the vendor or another source) that individually identifies the vendor, except for vendor's name, address, telephone number, Web site/e-mail address, store type, and authorization status [History of vendor authorization is confidential.]



Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

Requirements for use and disclosure of confidential applicant and participant information for non-WIC purposes, <u>7 CFR §246.26 (h)</u>

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

Data Use Agreement (DUA) – a contract that governs the exchange of specific data between two parties. DUA's establish who is permitted to use and receive a unique data set, along with the allowable uses and disclosures of the data by the recipient.

Key Informant Interview – an interview between WIC staff and a college student inquiring about programmatic experience or challenges in the field of breastfeeding promotion or nutrition education within a government-funded or administered program.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required Yes ⊠No

Joint Program Services Agreement (JPSA)

When another program seeks permission to provide services in a local agency (LA) WIC office, the LA must obtain information on the proposed activities and request conceptual approval by NYS DOH and follow procedures below in order. A JPSA allows services to be provided in the LA WIC office, but no sharing of data or goods between WIC and the other program.

- 1. The LA must submit a draft JPSA to the Regional Office for NYS DOH review.
 - a. A JPSA must include the following:
 - a description of the services provided
 - the terms, conditions, and duration of the agreement
 - the roles and responsibilities of each party
 - the name, contact information, date and signature of each party
 - the full USDA nondiscrimination statement for use on printed and printable publications
 - the Confidentiality Statement WIC Applicant, Participant, and Vendor Information
 - a statement ensuring applicant and participant information is not shared with the other party without proper consent
 - a statement requiring staff who conduct the activity sign the Confidentiality Statement and the signed statements are kept on file with the JPSA
 - a statement requiring applicants and participants are approached at the completion of the WIC appointment



Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

- a statement to inform the applicant and participants that the other party is not affiliated with WIC, participation with the other party is voluntary and does not affect WIC eligibility, and their information will not be shared without proper consent
- 2. Once the JPSA is approved, the LA and the other program must sign the agreement. A copy of the signed JPSA must be returned to Regional Office.
- 3. The LA must keep a copy of the approved, signed JPSA on file and provide a copy to the other program.
- 4. The other program's staff who will provide services must sign the Confidentiality Statement prior to rendering those services. The signed Confidentiality Statements must be maintained with the JPSA.
- 5. The LA must review the JPSA at least annually to determine if any changes or updates are needed and if the services provided are still appropriate for WIC participants.
- 6. Either party can terminate the agreement at any time with written notification. The LA must notify the Regional Office when an agreement has been terminated or has expired.
- 7. Any request to collect data, conduct surveys or focus groups at the WIC site, for the purposes of research, must follow the research procedures outlined in the "Research" section below.
- 8. If a JPSA is not approved, the LA must notify the other program.

Data Requests

- 1. Aggregate data that does not include participant identifiers, and will not be used for research, can be shared with the sponsor agency without NYS DOH approval.
- 2. Data that is available via public domain that will not be used for research can be released without NYS DOH approval. Suggestions for obtaining WIC Program data via public domain are available on the WIC Library.
- 3. All other data sharing requires NYS DOH approval and sharing participant level data also requires a memorandum of understanding.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

- 1. When the LA and another organization seek permission to share data, services or goods to improve program coordination and service delivery to WIC families, the LA must obtain information on the request and receive conceptual approval from the NYS DOH.
- 2. If applicant and participant information is requested for non-WIC purposes, refer to Federal Regulations <u>7 CFR §246.26 (d) (2)</u> and <u>7 CFR §246.26 (h) (1-3)</u> for a list of allowable uses

WIC Program Manual

Section 1044

Date: 09/2023

Page 4 of 6

Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

and for additional requirements for the request. Access to confidential WIC applicant and participant information requires a Data Use Agreement. A Data Use Agreement must be approved and signed by the NYS DOH. LAs must contact NYS DOH for further assistance on these requests.

3. An MOU must include the following:

WIC

Program

NEW

YORK

STATE

- a description of the sharing of data, services or goods between WIC and the other party involved
- the purpose of the collaboration
- signed, written consent from the WIC applicant or participant for any WIC information with individual identifiers, prior to the release of this information
- use and disclosure of applicant or participant information limited to purposes necessary for program implementation contained in the MOU
- Other entity agrees to sign the WIC Confidentiality Statement and the NYS WIC Information Sharing Statement prior to any data sharing
- the terms, conditions, and duration of the agreement
- the roles and responsibilities of both parties
- names, contact information, dates, and signatures of the parties involved
- clearly state when no costs are involved when services are shared
- 4. The LAs must submit a draft MOU to the Regional Office for review.
- 5. Once NYS DOH review is complete and the MOU is approved, both the LA and other program must sign the agreement.
- 6. The LA must submit the signed MOU to the Regional Office for the WIC Director's signature.
- 7. The Regional Office will return the MOU with the WIC Director's signature to the LA. The LA must keep a signed copy of the MOU on file and provide a copy to the other organization.
- 8. The LA must review the MOU at minimum yearly to assess the program services provided by WIC and the other program.
- 9. Either party can terminate the MOU by at any time with written notification. The LA must notify the NYS DOH when an agreement has been terminated or has expired.
- 10. The Confidentiality Statement must be signed by the other program's staff prior to rendering services if they provide services in the office. The signed Confidentiality Statements must be maintained with the MOU.
- 11. If the MOU is not approved, the LA must notify the other organization.

Research

WIC Program Manual

Section 1044

Date: 09/2023

Page 5 of 6

Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

- When the LA or vendor management agency (VMA) is contacted by a researcher to participate in a research study, the LA or VMA must inform the researcher that all research projects require written approval from NYS DOH and refer the researcher to <u>nyswic@health.ny.gov</u>.
- 2. Requests for research that will be conducted in the LA's office require that the researcher obtain a written letter of support from the LA.
- 3. It is the responsibility of the researcher to provide all information requested by NYS DOH and to ensure compliance with state and LA requirements, including obtaining and submitting evidence of the researcher's corresponding Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval when necessary. This requirement includes research that may be funded or supported by USDA or other federal agencies.
- 4. The researcher must submit documents to NYS DOH for review before any dissemination of results can occur in the form of posters, oral presentations, scientific reports or manuscripts.
- 5. When a research request involving a LA or VMA is approved, the LA or VMA must:
 - a. establish and maintain a file for each research project. At a minimum, the file must contain:
 - the research project and design
 - the IRB approval(s)

NEW

YORK

STATE

WIC

Program

- the project's approved time period for study
- copies of correspondence with the NYS WIC program, including the concept approval letter and letter of approval for the research project from NYS DOH
- copies of signed consent forms from participants, if appropriate
- any agreements or contracts related to the research project

b. provide oversight of research activities to ensure that:

- WIC staff and resources are not used to conduct research suspected breaches in the research protocol are reported to the NYS DOH
- participant and vendor confidentiality is protected
- no additional information is collected from WIC participants after the approved time period for data collection has ended
- the researcher submits a new study approval request if the researcher wishes to continue with data collection activities after the approved study period has ended
- 6. WIC staff must not engage in activities viewed as contributing to study promotion and/or study recruitment. WIC staff can not advertise a study, recruit WIC applicants or participants for a study, or share study information with WIC applicants or participants. The researcher is allowed to post a flyer on the LA's website or outside the WIC office on a community board. With the LA's permission, the researcher is allowed to recruit participants at the WIC site after the participants' WIC appointments are completed.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	WIC	Section 1044	
	Program		Page 6 of 6

Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests

- 7. For USDA research studies, WIC staff may be asked to engage in certain research activities which are allowable. LA staff must consult with NYS DOH for further guidance on a USDA study conducted in the NYS WIC Program.
- 8. A key informant interview conducted between WIC staff and a college student conducting research is allowable and does not require NYS DOH IRB approval.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available □ Yes ☑ No

To maintain program integrity and ensure participant/vendor confidentiality, it is recommended that the LA or VMA consult with the NYS DOH whenever they are contacted regarding research or sharing of WIC Program information or data.

Optional JPSA and MOU templates are available for parties to complete and sign. If the parties decide to develop their own agreement, the agreement must contain, at a minimum, the information described in the procedures.

A full review of a JPSA may take up to 30 days. A full review of a MOU may take up to 45 days.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1040: Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement Policy
- #1043: Confidentiality and Releasing/Disclosure of Information Policy
- #1043: Confidentiality LA Policy Supplement: Confidentiality of Applicant and Participant Information Policy Supplement
- #1043: Confidentiality of Vendor Information Policy Supplement
- #1451: Electronic and Communications Use Policy

WIC Library:

- Joint Program Services Agreement template
- Memorandum of Understanding template
- Confidentiality Statement: Confidentiality Statement WIC Applicant, Participant, and Vendor Information
- NYS WIC Information Sharing Statement
- WIC Program Data Available via Public Domain

WIC	Program	Manual
-----	---------	--------

Section 1046

Page 1 of 2

Reporting Suspected Child Abuse or Maltreatment

Date: 05/2023

POLICY

- 1. Staff who are required by state law, title, or license to report known or suspected child abuse or maltreatment must do so.
- 2. Local agency staff must comply with any local or sponsoring agency requirements in the reporting of suspected child abuse or maltreatment.

REGULATIONS

NEW

YORK

STATE

WIC

Program

Federal regulations <u>7 CFR §246.26(d)(3)</u> provides that staff of the state agency and local agencies required by state law to report known or suspected child abuse or neglect may disclose confidential applicant and participant information without the consent of the participant or applicant to the extent necessary to comply with the law.

<u>New York State's Social Services Law §413</u> identifies persons and officials required to report cases of suspected child abuse or maltreatment.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes ⊠No

- 1. Staff reporting suspected child abuse or maltreatment must call the NYS Office of Children and Family Services (OCFS) Child abuse Hotline at 1-800-342-3720. A trained specialist at NYS OCFS will help to determine if the information provided can be registered as a report.
- 2. Staff must document and maintain the information that led to the report in a secure location other than in the participant's record.
- 3. If Child Protective Services requests information on a WIC participant, the local agency must contact NYS DOH immediately for guidance.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \Box Yes \boxtimes No

As per NYS OCFS, "anyone may report any suspected abuse or mistreatment at any time, and is encouraged to do so." WIC program staff in job titles that are not specifically identified as mandated

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Contraction Contraction (Contraction)	Section 1046	1046
	Program	Date: 05/2023	Page 2 of 2
Reporting Suspected Child Abuse or Maltreatment			

reporters by New York State law or by federal regulations should still consider making a report if abuse or maltreatment is suspected.

Staff considering making a report regarding a WIC participant or their authorized representative/proxy should discuss concerns with a supervisor or the WIC Coordinator before reporting.

Section 419 of the NYS Social Services Law provides that any person, official, or institution participating in good faith in the making of a report shall have immunity from any liability, civil or criminal, that might otherwise result by reason of such actions. An individual who makes a report is not required to conduct a complete investigation, just have a reasonable cause for suspecting abuse or maltreatment.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1043: Confidentiality, Release/Disclosure of Information Policy
- #1043: Confidentiality, Release/Disclosure of Information Policy Supplement

Other:

• NYS OCFS website: http://OCFS.ny.gov/main/cps/

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual Section 1047	
	Drogram		
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 1 of 4

POLICY

- 1. Applicants, participants, and their representatives have the right to request an appeal, verbally or in writing, of any adverse action or decision that results in the individual's denial of participation or disqualification from the WIC Program, or that requires repayment of program benefits.
- 2. At the time an applicant or participant is deemed ineligible for program services, the local agency must provide written notification to the applicant, participant, or representative of their right to request a Fair Hearing.
- 3. When an applicant, participant, or representative requests a Fair Hearing, the local agency must refer the request to the New York State Department of Health.

REGULATIONS

Fairhearingprocedures for participants, 7CFR246.9(a)

WICProgram—FairHearings forApplicants andParticipants, 10NYCRR Section 60-1.6

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAV/MAPolicy Required □Yes ⊠No

- 1. Localagency (LA) must notify an applicant, participant, or representative of their right to aFair Hearing in writing in a language they understand when:
 - the individual is determined ineligible to participate in the WIC Program during the initial certification or recertification process, or during the active certification period.
 - the individual has aspecial nutritional risk condition and did not receive a determination of eligibility within 10 days of application.
 - the individual does not have aspecialrisk condition and did not receive a determination of eligibility within 20 days of application.
 - the individual disagrees with an action that adversely affects their program participation or benefits.
- 2. For individuals who are deemed ineligible before the end of acertification period, notification that the certification is ending must be provided at least 15 days before benefits are ended.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1047	7
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 2 of 4

- 3. The LA must use the appropriate New York State (NYS) Department of Health (DOH) approved notice of ineligibility letter to notify applicant, participant, or representative of their right to a Fair Hearing,
- 4. LA staff must also inform the applicant, participant, or representative of the option to have a Pre-Fair Hearing conference with LA staff and the NYS DOH, and that the request must be made within seven days from the date a notice of denial of participation or disqualification is served.

WhenaPre-FairHearing is requested:

- the LA must notify NYSDOHofthe Pre-Fair Hearingconference request.
- the Pre-Fair Hearing conference must be held within 10 business days of receipt of the applicant, participant, or representative request for a Fair Hearing or Pre-Fair Hearing conference.
- the LA must promptly provide the applicant, participant or representative with a notice containing the date, time and place for the conference and inform them that they may bring a representative. The Pre-Fair Hearing conference may be conducted in person or remotely.
- during the Pre-Fair Hearing conference with the applicant, participant, or representative, the LA and NYS DOH must review the adverse action and clarify WIC Program policy.
- if the applicant, participant, or representative does not attend the conference, the LA must contact them to decide if further action should be taken or if the request is being withdrawn.
- attheconclusion of theconference, the applicant, participant, or representative must be informed if the decision to deny or discontinue benefits was appropriate.
- ifappropriate, the action will become effective as scheduled, unless the applicant, participant, or representative requests or requested a Fair Hearing.
- ifinappropriate, the LA must reverse the decision immediately.

A Pre-Fair Hearing conference does not affect the right of an applicant, participant, or representative to request a Fair Hearing.

Fair Hearing

- 1. When the LA receives a Fair Hearing request within 15 days of notifying participant of their right to request a hearing, the LA must not take adverse action until the Fair Hearing decision is made unless:
 - theparticipant is determined to be categorically ineligible.
 - aninitialcertification has not beengranted.
 - thecertification periodhas ended.
- 2. When a Fair Hearing is requested, the LA must forward the *Fair Hearing Request form* and copy of the termination or disqualification letter to the NYS DOH which will be forwarded to the Bureau of Adjudication within one business day.
- 3. The NYS DOH Bureau of Adjudication will send a written notice of the hearing by certified mail to the applicant, participant, or representative, and the LA at least 10 days before the date of the

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	Drogram	Section 1047	
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 3 of 4

hearing. The Fair Hearing must bescheduled within 21 days from the date NYSDOH receives the request.

- 4. Thenotice of the hearing will:
 - provide the date, time and location of the hearing.
 - statebriefly the issues which are to be the subject of the hearing.
 - explaintheFair Hearing process.
 - advisetheapplicant, participant, orrepresentative of their rights.
 - state that failure to appear at the hearing will end the applicant, participant, or representative's right to a hearing.
- 5. Therole of the LA is to present evidence to support the agency's decision to deny benefits. The LA must work with the NYS DOH to gather appropriate evidence.

Notification of FairHearing Outcome

- 1. The NYS DOH Bureau of Adjudication must send a copy of the Fair Hearing decision to the applicant, participant, or representative, and the LAwithin 45 days of the date the hearing request was received by NYS DOH, unless the applicant, participant, or representative has been given a postponement.
- 2. TheLAmustcomply with allFair Hearing decisions.
- 3. Records of the Fair Hearing must be kept at the LA forsevenyears from the date of the decision.

Referrals to the Bureau of Special Investigations (BSI)

1. The LA must refer any suspected violations to BSI. An applicant or participant is entitled to a Fair Hearing when charged with a WIC Program violation and is disqualified from the WIC program or required to repay benefits.

GUIDANCE

Participants whose certification period has ended or who are appealing a denial of initial certification are not eligible to receive benefits during the appeal process.

NoticeoftherighttoaFair Hearing is notrequired attheendofeachcertification period.

BSI will send a copy of disqualification letters to local agencies for their records. Agencies will not be notified if the participant requests a hearing unless there is a specific reason to do so. LA staff should refer to NYWIC when checking if a participant is disqualified, and contact BSI if there are any questions.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual Section 1047	
	Drogrom		
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 4 of 4

DenialorDismissal of aFairHearing Request

Arequestfor aFair Hearingwill be denied or dismissedby the NYSDOH ifthe:

- request is not received by the LA within 60 days of the date the LA gives the applicant, participant, or representative the notice of adverse action.
- applicant, participant, or representative fails, without good reason, to appear at the scheduled hearing.
- request is withdrawn in writing by the applicant, participant, or representative or is stated for the record at the hearing.
- applicant, participant, or representative cannot belocated at the last known address provided.
- applicant is determined to be categorically ineligible at the initial certification.
- applicanthas been denied participation at aprevious hearing and cannot provide new evidence that circumstances have changed since the denial of eligibility.

Record Keeping

LAs are required to maintain Fair Hearing Records for sevenyears per record retention policy. Best practice is to keep a log of all Pre-Fair Hearing Conference and Fair Hearings which includes:

- name(s) of involved persons
- reason(s)foradverse action
- date of request for hearing
- dateoffair hearing
- outcomeoffair hearing

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1038:ProgramComplaints andSuspectedFraud and Abuse
- #1040:CivilRights andNondiscrimination Statement
- #1100:WICCertification Overview
- #1401:Record Retention

WIC Library:

- WICParticipant Rights and Responsibilities
- NotEligible at Certification Letter
- No Longer Eligible Letter
- 5249- WICFair Hearing RequestForm(alsoavailable on DOH/WIC Website)

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Brogram	Section 1100	
	Program	Date: 07/2022	Page 1 of 9

WICCertification Overview

POLICY

- 1. To qualify to receive WIC Program benefits, applicants must meet categorical, residency, income, and nutrition risk eligibility requirements.
- 2. Applicants must provide proof of residency, income, and identity eligibility at initial certifications and recertifications.
- 3. Applicantsmustnotincur expenses for applying orcertifyingfor WIC Programbenefits.
- 4. AuthorizedRepresentatives mustprovideacceptable proof of identity atcertification appointments.
- 5. Aparticipantcannotreceive benefits from more than one WIC localagency at thesame time.
- 6. Local agencies must follow mandatory processing guidelines when scheduling certification appointments, determining eligibility status, and notifying applicants of eligibility.
- 7. At least two local agency staff must participate in the certification of each applicant: one staff member to determine residential and income eligibility, and one qualified nutrition staff to assess nutritional risk and assign a food package.
- 8. Local agencies must offer a temporary 30-day certification to a participant who provides at least two of the three required proofs of eligibility.

REGULATIONS

Definitions, <u>7 CFR §246.2</u> - Defines certification as the implementation of criteria and procedures to assess and document each applicant's eligibility for the Program. United States citizenship is not required to receive WIC benefits.

Certification of participants, <u>7 CFR §246.7</u> - For participants to qualify for the program; infants, children, and pregnant, postpartum, and breastfeeding women must:

- reside within the jurisdiction of the State (except for Indian State agencies). However, the State agency may not use length of residency as an eligibility requirement.
- meet the incomecriteriaspecified in paragraph(d) of this section.
- meet the nutritional risk criteriaspecified in paragraph(e) of this section.

Nondiscrimination, <u>7 CFR §246.8(a)(3)</u> - Collection and reporting of racial and ethnic participation data is required by title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination in federally assisted programs on the basis of race, color, or national origin. This data is provided to United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

State plan, <u>7 CFR §246.4(a)(26)(iii)</u> - WIC local agencies are prohibited from the practice of one employee determining eligibility for all certification criteria and issuing food benefits for the same participant.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	C WIC Program Manual Section 1100 Date: 07/2022 Page 2	Manual
	WIC		0
	Program		Page 2 of 9
	WIC	Certification Overview	

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section1011.

PROCEDURE

Processing Timeframes

- 1. Processing timeframes apply to initial certification appointments for new applicants, and for participants whose previous certification ended more than 30 days before the scheduled appointment.
- 2. Thecertification processing timeframe for an applicant begins when the applicant contacts the local agency (LA) during clinic hours to request program benefits orally or in writing.
- 3. LAs must process applications for special nutrition risk individuals **within 10 calendar days** of applicant contact for the following categories:
 - pregnant women
 - infants uptosix months ofage
 - migrantfarmworkers and their family members
 - applicants with emergency referrals
 - homeless persons

In rare emergency circumstances, LAs may request an extension of the notification period to a maximum of 15 days for special nutrition risk applicants. The request must be a written request to the NYS Department of Health (DOH) that includes a justification of the need for an extension and a specified time period. If the request is approved, staff must enter a note in the participant's record documenting the reason for the extension.

- 4. LAs must process applications for individuals **within 20 calendar days** of applicant contact for the following categories:
 - breastfeeding and postpartumwomen
 - infantssix months to oneyear old
 - childrenone to fiveyears old
- 5. If an applicant is scheduled outside of the required timeframe, staff must document the reason in the applicant's record.

Prevention of Dual Participation

- 1. Local agency staff must use existing participant records for participants who have previously participated in NYS WIC program.
 - LA staff must ask the applicant if they are receiving, or have received in the past, WIC benefits from another clinic.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1100			
	Drogram				
	Program	Date: 07/2022	Page 3 of 9		

WICCertification Overview

- LA staff must perform a statewide search of the applicant and AR prior to prescreening or completing a certification.
- If an existing participant record is identified, staff must use that record. If more than one record is identified, staff must use the record which has the most recent certification.
- If a previous child participant returns as an adult participant, a new record must be created.

Scheduling Certification Appointments

- 1. LAs must monitor both email and phone messages on a regular basis, especially for times when the agency is busy or closed. LAs must have an email account and a telephone system with a voicemail that functions at all times.
- 2. LAs must provide access to WIC Program services by offering alternative hours at all permanent clinic sites, and lunch time appointments at all sites for those who need appointment options beyond regular business hours, as directed by the state.
- 3. The LA must attempt to contact applicants to remind them of initial certification appointments. If an applicant misses the first scheduled appointment, the LA must contact the applicant within 10 days of the missed appointment to reschedule. All attempts to contact the applicant must be documented.
- 4. Incases where there is difficulty in appointment scheduling for infants or children, the certification period may be shortened or extended by a period not to exceed 30 days. If a certification is extended, staff must document the reason in the participant's record.

Identity

- LA staff must verify the identity of all adult participants and representatives prior to beginning any appointment. Infants and children are only required to provide proof of identity at certification appointments.
- 2. LAstaffmustverify the identity of the individual requesting that WIC food benefits be issued.
- 3. LA staff must verify identity using an approved document listed in the *What to Bring to Your WIC Appointment* brochure.

Notification of Rightsand Responsibilities

- At certification appointments, the WIC Participant Rights and Responsibilities must be read to or by the applicant or Participant Representative before eligibility data is obtained. Staff must answer any questions to ensure understanding. Applicants must be offered a copy of this document.
- 2. At secondary appointments before issuing benefits, staff must confirm the Participant Representative understands the *WIC Participant Rights and Responsibilities* and answer any questions.

1 IURN	wic	WIC Program Manual	
	Program -	Section 1100	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 4 of 9
	14/100		

WICCertification Overview

3. The Participant Representative must sign an attestation statement in the MIS indicating they have read and understand the *WIC Participant Rights and Responsibilities*. Participant Representatives must be informed that by signing, they are stating that the information they provide is true and accurate, with the understanding that the information may be verified by WIC.

Determining Eligibility

- 1. Appropriate LAstaff must:
 - Provideallservices in the applicant's preferred language.
 - Provideparticipant-centered services throughout all aspects of the certification process and inform the applicant that all information shared will be kept confidential.
 - Promoteandsupportbreastfeeding,as applicable.
 - Ask applicants to identify their ethnicity and race at the initial certification and must advise applicants that the data is reported without personal identifiers and has no effect on the determination of eligibility. If an applicant refuses to disclose their ethnicity or race, staff must ask probing questions to determine where they are originally from.
 - Determine an applicant's categorical eligibility based on available documentation or a verbal statement.
 - Verify the applicant's identity, residency, and income eligibility and record the type of document or electronic proof used to determine eligibility in the applicant's record. Staff must enter eligibility information exactly as it appears on the acceptable documentation. If using online verification, staff must be sure that online names and addresses match the applicant's information. One current document or electronic proof, providing all necessary information, may be used for all 3 proofs.
 - Explain WIC procedures, certification timeframes, and appointment requirements for the certification period.
 - Ask the AR or Parent/Spouse/Partner (P/S/P) how they prefer to be contacted (mail, phone, e-mail, or text) for appointment reminders, appointment rescheduling, clinic closings, and/or peer counselor contact to ensure confidentiality is maintained. If they choose not to be contacted, the refusal must be documented in the applicant's record.
 - Offer allapplicants the opportunity toregister tovote.
 - Provide information on the Verification of Certification (VOC) process and a VOC Card if the applicant decides to transfer out-of-state.
 - Complete a nutrition assessment and tailor and assign a food package to each applicant and add food benefits to the household's eWIC account in accordance with the Nutrition Assessment Process and WIC Food Packages and Tailoring Policies.
 - Offer the applicant, AR, or P/S/P to choose a Caretaker to attend recertification, health and nutrition update, and nutrition education appointments; and/or appoint Proxies to participate in health and nutrition update and nutrition education

YORK	WIC
STATE	Program

WIC Program Manual

Section 1100

Date: 07/2022

Page 5 of 9

WICCertification Overview

appointments, if they are able to provide medical and health information. Refer to the *Participant Representatives Desk Guide* in the WIC Library for additional guidance.

• Inform applicants of the length of thecertification period according to the following table:

Category	Certification Period
Pregnant woman	Certifiedfor theduration of the pregnancy and uptosix weeks postpartum
Postpartum woman	Certified up tosix months postpartum
Breastfeeding woman	Certifiedup to the infant's first birthday
Infant0 to <6 months	Newborncertified up to the first birthday
Infant>=6 months to<12 months	Certifiedfor six months
Child>=12 months	Certifiedat intervals of 12 months, endingat thechild's fifth birthday

- 2. Documentation of all certification information must be maintained in the applicant's record.
- 3. LA staff must process a paper certification when the MIS is not available. The Rights and Responsibilities page of the *Household Eligibility Paper Certification Form* must be signed and retained in the applicant's record. Refer to the NYWIC Paper Certification Policy Supplement.

Issuing Benefits

- 1. Prior to issuingbenefits, aparticipant mustbeoffered nutritioneducation and counseling.
- 2. If the staff person issuing benefits is different than the staff person who marked the participant onsite, the staff person issuing benefits must first verify the identity of the participant or representative by viewing a physical proof of identity or asking for the AR's DOB and mailing address zip code.
- 3. LAstaff mustcarefully review WIC food benefits at the time of issuance to ensure:
 - thefood benefits and issuanceperiod are accurate
 - benefits areadded to the household's eWIC account
 - theshopping list is provided
 - the AR is educated onshopping with eWIC

Release of Information Forms

1. Release forms authorizing disclosure of applicant or participant information to physicians or other Health Care Providers (HCP) can be included as part of the certification process. LA staff must indicate that signing the release form is not a condition of eligibility and that refusing to sign the

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1100	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 6 of 9
	WIC	Certification Overview	

formwillnotaffectparticipation in the WIC Program.

2. Release forms for referrals to other services must occur after thecertification process is complete.

Temporary30-Day Certification

- 1. At a certification appointment, the applicant must present documentation of at least two of the three required proofs of eligibility (residency, income, and identity). If an applicant is missing one of the required proofs of eligibility, staff must offer the option to:
 - reschedule the appointment within 7 days, allowing the applicant to return with the missing proof and complete a full certification, or
 - receivea temporary 30-day certification with no more than 30 days wort of benefits
- 2. If the applicant chooses to receive a temporary 30-day certification, they must self-declare the missing proof by signing a *Temporary 30-Day Benefit Letter*. The *Temporary 30-day Benefit letter* is the documentation of the missing proof and must be signed by the AR and maintained in the applicant's record. Staff must enter a brief note which states the eligibility document that must be verified before additional benefits can be issued. Adjunct program participation cannot be self-declared.
- 3. The applicant must provide the missing proof to be certified for the full certification period.
- 4. When the missing documentation is provided and the applicant is found eligible, the applicant must be certified for the full certification period, beginning with the initial date of the certification. Staff may issue up to two additional months of benefits.
- 5. When the missing documentation is provided and the applicant is found ineligible, staff must document ineligibility in the participant's record and notify the applicant in writing, using the *Not Eligible at Certification Letter*, that they are not eligible and have the right to request a Fair Hearing. In these cases, no additional benefits can be issued because they are initial determinations.
- 6. The *Temporary 30-day Benefit Letter* suffices as written notification that no further benefits will be issued if the applicant fails to provide the missing documentation within 30 days.

Self-Declaration

- When acceptable proof of residency, income or identity does not exist, an applicant may selfdeclare that this proof does not exist and confirm in writing. Self-declaration must not be used to circumvent documentation requirements, or for administrative ease. Self-declaration statements allowing a full-length certification must only be used in rare situations.
- 2. There are avariety of applicants who may need toself-declare, including:
 - homeless individuals or families
 - migrant workers

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1100	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 7 of 9
WICCertification Overview			

- military personnel
- refugees or those with Temporary Protected (Immigration) Status (TPS)
- persons newlyrelocatedtoNew York State
- persons paid incash

When an applicant self-declares that a proof does not exist, they must complete and sign the *WIC Self Declaration Form* that states the eligibility document the applicant is self-declaring. The signed self-declaration statement must be maintained in the applicant's record. LA staff must document the reason for using the statement in the applicant's record. A new *WIC Self Declaration Form* must be completed for each certification period.

Noticeof Certification Ending

- 1. At least 15 days before the end of acertification period, LAs must provide written notification to the AR that the certification period is ending and the effective date.
- 2. If the participant remains categorically eligible at the end of the certification period, the LA must include notification of the need to recertify, and the documents required for the recertification.
- 3. LAstaff must offer a recertification appointment to avoid interruption of benefits.
- 4. If the participant is no longer categorically eligible at the end of the certification period, the LA must notify the AR of the reason, in writing, by providing the appropriate letter of notification.
- 5. LAs must obtain the AR's signature on the letters of notification and retain copies in the participant's record.

Noticeof Ineligibility

- If an applicant is found ineligible to participate in WIC because of information provided at an initial certification, LAs must notify the applicant in writing and include the reason for ineligibility and the right to a Fair Hearing. The notice must provide a description of the procedures to request a Fair Hearing. Benefits cannot be issued.
- 2. Ineligible applicant information must be documented in the applicant's record and is subject to retention requirements.
- 3. The AR must be advised that eligibility is based on information provided at the certification appointment and if any of that information changes, the LA must be notified. At subsequent appointments, LA staff must ask if any information has changed.
- 4. When the LA learns that a participant's income eligibility has changed, either from the participant or another source, a reassessment must be completed to determine if the participant is still eligible, unless there are 90 days or less remaining in the certification period. The 90-day rule is applied only when income eligibility has changed.
- 5. When a participant is determined to be ineligible mid-certification, the AR must be notified in writing at least 15 days before the certification is terminated of the reason for ineligibility. The AR

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program	Manual
		Section 1100	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 8 of 9
	WICCe	ertification Overview	

must be advised of the right to a Fair Hearing and the procedures to request a Fair Hearing. When a Fair Hearing request is made within 15 days of the notification of ineligibility, WIC benefits must continue until the results of the Fair Hearing are known, or until the end of the certification period, whichever comes first. For additional information, refer to the Fair Hearing Process for Participants policy.

- 6. When an LA determines a participant to be ineligible mid-certification or at a recertification, the LA must provide 15 days of WIC food benefits if:
 - written notification was not provided 15 days in advance to inform the Authorized representative that the certification period was ending, or
 - the ineligibility was determined prior to the end of the current certification period and there are less than 15 days of WIC food benefits for the participant in the household's eWIC account
- 7. LAs must obtain the AR's signature on the letters of notification and retain copies in the participant's record.

MissedAppointmentsand Unclaimed Benefits

- 1. Within 10 days of any missed appointment, LAs must notify participants that they missed an appointment, that they may still be eligible for benefits, and provide information on how to schedule an appointment.
- At least 15 days prior to terminating acertification, LAs must provide written notification to the AR that WIC benefits are being discontinued and that they are still eligible for services until the certification end date. The notification must include information on how to schedule an appointment.
- 3. A participant's certification is terminated by the MIS when they fail to claim benefits for at least two consecutive months (60 days).

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available ⊠Yes □No

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sectionsand Policy Supplements:

- #1038:ProgramComplaints andSuspectedFraudor Abuse
- #1043: Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1101: PhysicalPresence Requirements
- #1130:Income Eligibility
- #1135:Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1136:NutritionRisk Criteria and Priority System
- #1047:Fair Hearing Process for Participants
- #1451:Electronic Communication Use

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1100	
	Date: 07/2022	Page 9 of 9
WIC	Certification Overview	

- #1460:LocalAgency NutritionStaff
- #1041:LanguageAccess
- #1110:OfferingtheOpportunity to Register to Vote
- #1401:Record Retention
- #1405:LocalAgency Policy and ProcedureManual
- #1160:Transfers and Verification of Certification
- #1241:ReferraltoOther Services

WICLibrary:

- Whatto Bringto Your WIC Appointment brochure
- WIC Participant Rights and Responsibilities document
- SelfDeclaration Form
- Paper Certification Forms
- Participant Representatives Desk Guide
- WICLetters, Reminders, and Forms Table
- Allmandatory letters and appointmentreminders

Other:

- <u>NYSDOHWICProgram website</u>
- USDANondiscrimination Statement

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1101	
		Date: 12/2019	Page 1 of 3
Physical Presence			

POLICY

- WIC applicants must be physically present at the local agency for all certification and health and nutrition update appointments unless an exemption is granted and documented in the electronic record.
- 2. Persons with disabilities are not automatically exempt from physical presence requirements unless the disabilities are a barrier to physical presence at WIC clinics.
- 3. Although an applicant may be exempt from physical presence at a certification appointment, the Authorized Representative must provide therequired documents to determine eligibility to participate in the WIC program.
- 4. Theneedfor an exemption must be evaluated and documented at eachcertification or upon notification of disability.

BACKGROUND

Per CFR §246.7(o), the local agency (LA) must require all applicants to be physically present at each WIC certification, although exceptions are allowed.

Physical presence enables the WIC staff to more effectively assess the applicant/participant's nutrition/health status, make the necessary referrals and tailor food packages. In addition, physical presence enables the participant to actively participate in nutrition education and counseling.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms and Definitions.

PROCEDURE

- 1. Local agency staff must grant an exception to applicants who meet eligibility requirements and have disabilities resulting in the inability to be physically present. Examples of such disabilities include:
 - Amedical condition that necessitates the use of medical equipment that is not easily transportable
 - Amedical condition that requires confinement to be drest
 - Aserious illness that may be exacerbated by coming into the WIC clinic
 - An impairment which limits major lifeactivities and reates abarrier to travelto the WIC clinic such as medically fragile individuals

An exception can also be granted for Authorized Representatives (AR) and Parent/Spouse/Partners (PSP) who are individuals with disabilities that meet the above

NEW YORK STATE P	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1101	
		Date: 12/2019	Page 2 of 3
		Dhysical Dressnes	

Physical Presence

standards.Inrare instances the AR or PSPcan provide a signed letter to designate acaretaker to represent the applicant for initial certification.

- 2. Localagency staff may exempt from the physical presence requirement an infant under eight weeks of age whocannot be present at certification for an appropriate reason, and for whom all necessary certification information is provided. An example of an appropriate reason may include but is not limited to an infant who remains in the hospital and whose mother is certified. No benefits are issued for the infant.
- 3. An infant or child, who was present at his/her initial WIC certification appointment and is receiving ongoing health care, may be exempt from physical presence requirements if being physically present would pose an unreasonable barrier.
- 4. Local agency staff may exempt from the physical presence requirement a child who is under the care of one or more working parents or caretakers whose working status presents a barrier to bringing the child into the WIC clinic and who meets all of the following conditions:
 - Was present athis/her initialWICcertification appointment
 - Was present at ahealth and nutrition update within the one-year certification period ending on the date of the most recent certification
- 5. Local agency staff must obtain prior approval from the NYS DOH to allow for a temporary exemption to physical presence due to an outbreak of a communicable disease in the service area(s). The approvals will be provided on a month-to-month basis.
- 6. When a participant's certification is the result of a VOC transfer from another state, the participant must be physically present upon recertification in New York.

GUIDANCE

Although an infant under eight weeks of age may be granted an exemption as noted above, it is expected that the infant will be brought to the WIC clinic at the earliest opportunity.

Thelocal agency staffshould use professionaljudgment when determining whether physical presence is exempt due to disasters or extreme weather. Best practice is to reschedule the appointment or refer to another WIC local agency capable of servicing the applicant or participant.

The working parent/caregiver exemption is limited to:

- Two-parent/caretaker families when both are working, or
- Single parent/caretaker families when the single parent is working.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1101	
		Date: 12/2019	Page 3 of 3
Physical Presence			

For the working parents/caregiver exemption (procedure #4), refer to the examples in the tables below:

Age	Appointment type/Certification Period	Physical Presence
1 week	InitialCertification/One Year Certification	Required
6 months	HNU	Required
1year old	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-mustprovide required documents
18 months	HNU	Required
2year old	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-must provide required documents
30 months	HNU	Required

Age	Appointment type/Certification Period	Physical Presence
2 months	InitialCertification/One Year Certification	Required
8 months	HNU	Required
1year old	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-mustprovide
		required documents
18 months	HNU	Required
2year old	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-mustprovide
		required documents
30 months	HNU	Required

Age	Appointment Type/Certification Period	Physical Presence
8 months	InitialCertification/Six Month Certification	Required
14 months	Recertification/One Year Certification	Required
20 months	HNU	Required
26 months	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-must provide required documents
32 months	HNU	Required
38 months	Recertification/One Year Certification	Exempt-mustprovide required documents

RESOURCES

RefertoWPMSections on:

WPM1100WICCertification Overview

/IC rogram
Ì

WIC Program Manual

Section 1102

Page 1 of 3

WIC Services Documentation

Date: 6/2023

POLICY

1. Local agencies must maintain complete and accurate documentation in each applicant and participant's record, which gives a clear description of the participant's health and nutrition status, and the WIC services offered and provided.

REGULATIONS

Nutritional risk, 7 CFR §246.7(e)

Certification forms, 7 CFR §246.7(i)

Medical documentation, 7 CFR §246.10(d)

Participant contacts, 7 CFR 246.11(e)

Recordkeeping requirement, 7 CFR §246.25(a)

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

- 1. All documentation must be:
 - consistent and organized
 - clear and easily understood
 - complete and accurate, illustrating participant's continued care and follow-up plans
 - concise to exclude extraneous or duplicative information
- Local agency (LA) staff must use appropriate questions and fields, notes, individual care plans (as needed), and scanning functionalities of the management information system to document all eligibility and assessment information, services offered and provided, follow-up plans, appointments, and communications.
- 3. LA staff must use the notes fields in the management information system (MIS) to document additional pertinent information that is not captured elsewhere.
- 4. Any occurrences outside normal procedure, including the justification, must be documented in a note.

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1102	
	Date: 6/2023	Page 2 of 3
14/10.0		

WIC Services Documentation

- 5. LA staff must use NYS DOH approved acronyms, abbreviations, and terminology when writing notes to ensure other staff can easily understand what is being communicated.
- 6. All participant records must contain the following:
 - eligibility information
 - nutrition assessment information, including all pertinent risks/needs identified
 - food package prescribed
 - attempts to contact health care providers for missing information from medical documentation or referral forms, as appropriate
 - details of a food package change, including number of unopened containers of formula returned as applicable
 - nutrition education (provided or refused)
 - breastfeeding assessment, support and education provided, as appropriate
 - referrals made and follow-up on previous referrals, as appropriate
 - an individual care plan, as appropriate
 - all kept or missed past and future appointments
 - any applicable documents including, but not limited to:
 - i. Self-declaration forms
 - ii. Medical Referral forms
 - iii. Medical Documentation forms
 - iv. Mandatory letters
 - v. Custody documents
 - other pertinent information needed for continuity of care
- 7. LA staff must use a participant centered approach to engage participants in an open dialog; using an appropriate mix of mandatory and non-mandatory questions within the management information system to obtain and document the required and pertinent information needed to tailor WIC services appropriately.
- 8. Any errors made in a participant's record must be corrected if possible or documented in a note in the participant's record.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \Box Yes \boxtimes No

Accurate, complete, and consistent documentation serves as the primary communication means by which vital information is relayed about nutrition services and benefits a participant receives and their specific needs. It is imperative that documentation be consistent, well organized, professional, contain appropriate acronyms and abbreviations, and include relevant information in order to promote the continuity of care of WIC participants.

LA staff should refer to each WIC Program Manual section to determine more detailed information that must be maintained in the participant's record according to policy.

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1102	
		nviona Documentation

WIC Services Documentation

The Documentation Types in NYWIC section of the NYWIC Guidance Packet serves as a guide for local agencies to determine the most appropriate place to enter information in the participant's record based on the topic of the note.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1011: Acronyms and Definitions
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1135: Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1183: Immunization Screening
- #1185: Hematological Testing and Lead Screening
- #1200: Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials
- #1216: High Risk Care
- #1220: Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services
- #1225: Breast Pump Program
- #1241: Referral to Other Services
- #1255: Food Package III and Medical Documentation

WIC Library:

- WIC Nutrition Services Standards
- WIC Letters, Reminders, and Forms Table

Other:

- NYWIC Guidance Packet, available on the Miscellaneous tab in NYWIC:
 - Documentation Types in NYWIC
 - o Acronyms & Abbreviations for NYWIC Documentation Quick Reference Guide

WIC	Prog	ram	Man	ual
-----	------	-----	-----	-----



Program -

Section 1115 Date: 1/2023

Page 1 of 2

Duplicate Record Prevention and Resolution Policy

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staff must ensure participants are enrolled and receiving benefits from only one WIC local agency at a time.
- 2. Local agency staff must first determine if there is an existing participant record in the Management Information System prior to performing a prescreening or certification.
- 3. Local agency staff must review and resolve dual enrollment.

REGULATIONS

Certification of Participants, 7 CFR §246.7 (j)(1), (l)

WIC

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required $ext{ Ves } \Box ext{ No}$

Local agency (LA) staff are responsible for the prevention and resolution of dual participation within the WIC Program.

- 1. LA staff must use existing participant records for individuals who have previously participated in the NYS WIC Program. To prevent duplicate records, staff must:
 - Ask the applicant if they are receiving, or have received in the past, WIC benefits from another WIC LA in New York State.
 - Perform a statewide search for the applicant(s) and Authorized Representative (AR) prior to performing a prescreening or certification.
 - If an existing record is identified, use that record. If more than one record is identified, use the record that has the most recent certification.
 - \circ $\:$ If a previous child participant returns as an adult applicant, a new record must be created
- 2. WIC Coordinators or their trained designee(s) must:
 - Review and resolve possible duplicate records using the Resolve Dual Enrollment screen in the Management Information System (MIS).
 - Complete a review of the WIC Dual Enrollment report located in the MIS at a minimum on a quarterly basis.
 - Best practice is to complete this process on a monthly basis

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1115	
	Drogram		
	Program	Date: 1/2023	Page 2 of 2

Duplicate Record Prevention and Resolution Policy

3. LA policies and procedures for referrals to the NYS Bureau of Special Investigations (BSI) must be followed for complaints and suspected program fraud or abuse.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \Box Yes \boxtimes No

Thefollowing information is compared within the MIS for dual participation:

- The first 4 letters of the participant's first name
- The first 4 letters of the participant's last name
- Sex
- Date of birth

WIC Coordinators should work with their staff and Regional Office (RO) Representative, as needed, to resolve duplicate records. Staff may need to submit a Help Desk ticket for additional assistance when an RO representative determines further review from Central Office staff is needed.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1020: Participant-Centered WIC Environment
- #1038: Complaints and Suspected Program Fraud or Abuse
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1452: User Account Security and Guidelines

WIC Library:

- NYWIC Guidance Packet (Resolving Duplicate Records QRG)
- Managing Duplicate Records Training Video

1 IUKN	WIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1120	
		WaitingLists	

POLICY

- 1. TheNew York StateDepartmentofHealthwill notifylocal agencieswhenwaitinglists mustbe established.
- 2. The local agency must implement the waiting list plan for applicants and participants as directed by the New York State Department of Health and maintain the list in accordance with the Department of Health's Waiting List Implementation plan.
- 3. Thelocal agency'swaitinglistmustbecreatedfortheentireagency, not by site.
- 4. Thelocal agencymustinform allapplicantsandparticipantswhenastatewidewaitinglistisineffect.
- 5. When wait-listed applicants can be served, certification appointments must be scheduled based upon Verification of Certification status, priority level, and date placed on the waiting list.

REGULATIONS

Nutritionalriskprioritysystem,<u>7CFR §246.7(e)(4)</u> WaitingLists,<u>7CFR §246.7(f)(1)</u> Transferofcertification,<u>7CFR §246.7(k)(3)</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinWPMSection#1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes ☑ No

- 1. The New York State (NYS) Department of Health (DOH) will issue an Administrative Directive to announce a waiting list is in effect and provide the DOH Waiting List Implementation Plan. Local agency staff must implement the plan as directed by the DOH.
- 2. Staff must include the applicant or participant's contact information, including their name, address and phone number, priority level determined by the priority system, status (e.g. pregnant, breastfeeding, age of applicant), date of birth and date of the request on the waiting list.
- 3. Staff must inform all applicants and participants that a waiting list is in effect. If the priority system indicates a level that is not being served, the applicant or participant must be offered to be placed on the waiting list.
- 4. Staff must place participants with a valid Verification of Certification (VOC), in a priority level not being served, ahead of all others on the waiting list.
- 5. Staff must notify individuals of their placement on a waiting list within 20 days after the individuals have visited the local agency during the site office hours or contacted the local agency by phone.

	NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual Section 11/2020		
				-
WaitingLists				

6. Applicants or participants who are determined outside of the priority levels being served at initial and mid-point certification will receive a written notification of ineligibility, a written notice of their right to a fair hearing, and referrals to other food assistance programs.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \Box Yes \boxdot No

Waiting lists are established to ensure that when resources are limited, WIC benefits are delivered to those with the greatest need. USDA works with the New York State Department of Health to determinewhenestablishing awaiting lists appropriate. This usually occurs when food funding is insufficient to cover food costs.

USDA encourages states to pursue a number of strategies prior to determining that a waiting list situation is necessary. States mustmaximizecost savings through rebate management and other cost containment activities. States may also make appropriate and allowable food package administrative adjustments.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1100:WICCertificationOverview
- #1136:NutritionRisk CriteriaandPriority System
- #1160:Transfersand VerificationofCertification

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1110	
	Program	Date: 1/2022	Page 1 of 3

Offering the Opportunity to Register to Vote

POLICY

- 1. Localagenciesmustofferall WIC applicants and participants the opportunity to register to voted uring certification or recertification, and when notified of a name or address change.
- 2. LocalagenciesmustdesignateaNational VoterRegistrationAct(NVRA)coordinator for eachsite.
- 3. VoterRegistrationFormsandTransmittal Formsmustbesubmitted to theLocal BoardofElections on a weekly basis.

REGULATIONS

The National Voter Registration Act (NVRA) of 1993 - Enacted into <u>Public Law 103-31</u> on May 20, 1993 and became effective January 1, 1995. Section 7 of the Act requires states to offer voter registration opportunities at all offices that provide public assistance. Chapter 659 of the Laws of 1994, as amended, codified the NVRA into New York State Election Law.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required 🗌 Yes 🛛 No

- 1. All staffinvolvedinvoterregistrationactivitiesmust:
 - offerevery applicant and participant that will be 18 years oldorolder by the end of the year the opportunity to register to vote
 - offer individuals that are 16-17 years of age the opportunity to pre-register to vote with the understandingthattheregistrationwill bemarked as "pending" and they will notbeableto cast a ballot until they turn 18
 - provide the voter registration form to all applicants and participants at all certification appointments, upon notification of name or address change, or when notified of a request to change enrollment in a political party
 - provide the same level of assistance incompleting the Voter Registration Forms to every applicant and participant including those individuals whose primary language is not English, unless the applicant or participant declines such assistance
 - provideapplicants and participants wishing to register to vote with basic voter registration information including how to access the State Board of Elections (SBOE) website
 - review theVoterRegistrationforms forcompleteness and notify the individual if information is missing
 - informapplicantsandparticipantsthatnotificationofregistrationwill bemailedtothem from theirrespectivelocal BoardofElections

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1110	
		Date: 1/2022	Page 2 of 3

Offering the Opportunity to Register to Vote

- display SBOE information and promotional materials including the National Voter . Registration Act (NVRA) poster in every location where certification and recertification
- services are provided informapplicants and participants that applying to register or declining to register to vote willnotaffecttheirWIC benefits
- provide a mail-in Voter Registration Form to any applicant or participant who wishes to register to vote but prefers not to do so at the WIC local agency askapplicantsand participantsdecliningtoregistertovotetocomplete and sign the
- declinationsection of the voter registration form
- 2 Allstaffinvolvedinvoterregistrationactivitiesmustnot:
 - attempttoinfluenceanapplicant'sorparticipant'spolitical preferenceorpartyaffiliation
 - displayanyinformationorliteratureonpolitical preferenceorpartyallegiance
 - attempttodiscourageanapplicantorparticipant from registering to vote
 - presumetoknow anindividual'scitizenshipstatus orcriminal history

NVRA Site Coordinator Duties

- 1. On aweekly basis, the NVRA sitecoordinator must complete the Voter Registration Transmittal Form summarizing NVRA activity and submit it with all signed Voter Registration Forms to the appropriate Board of Elections. However, forms received by the local agency between the 25th and 30th day before an election must be transmitted to the appropriate Board of Elections by whatever means to assure their receipt by such Board not later than the 20th day before such election.
- 2 TheNVRAsitecoordinatormust:
 - attend mandatory annual training provided by the SBOE or its designated state agency **NVRA** trainers
 - maintaincurrent proficiencyinNVRA procedures
 - retainpaper copies of all signeddeclinations and VoterRegistrationTransmittal Forms for 22 months (do not retain blank forms)
- 3. TheNVRAsitecoordinatorisresponsiblefor:
 - trainingall WIC staffinvolvedinvoterregistration activities
 - ensuringthatWIC staffareinformedofanychanges toNVRApolicy and procedures ٠
 - ascertainingthat all NVRAmaterials arekeptinstock and up-to-date, and that they are prominently displayed
- 4. The NVRA coordinator must submit anychanges to a site coordinator's contact information such as name, address, email address and/or telephone number to the NYSDOH contractmanager.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available ☐ Yes ⊠ No

NVRAsitecoordinators receive newsletters aswell asnotifications onvoterregistration deadlines and of periodic training from the SBOE.

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1110	
		Offering th	e Opportunity to Register to Vo

NYS DOH receives reports on WIC local agency submissions of voter registration forms from the SBOE. NYS DOH contract managers monitor these monthly NVRA data reports and contact local agencies when the reports indicate missing submissions.

Local agencies must provide individuals withbasic voter registration information and assistance in completing the voter registration form completely. For example, if a participant checks "not a U.S.Citizen", but thenproceeds to complete and sign the registration form, local agency staff may provide assistance to the individual to correct the form.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1041:LanguageAccess
- #1460:LocalAgencyStaff
- #1467:Competency BasedandMandatedTraining

WIC Library:

- NVRASiteCoordinatorTraining Manual
- NVRASiteCoordinatorTrainingPowerPointPresentation

Other:

<u>https://www.elections.ny.gov</u>

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section	Section 1130	
Date: 09/2020 Page 1 of 7		Page 1 of 7	
IncomeEligibility			

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staffmustdeterminewhoisincluded in the economicunitofaWIC Program applicant before proceeding with the income eligibility determination process.
- 2. Applicantsmust provideproof of current participation in any adjunct program thatmakes them income eligible for the WIC Program, and local agency staff must verify the proof. Self-declaration of adjunctive eligibility is not acceptable.
- 3. Forapplicantswhoare notadjunctively eligible,local agency staffmustverify theincomeof the economic unit and apply Federal income guidelines to determine eligibility.
- 4. Themethodofverifyinganadjunctprogram orincomemustbedocumentedin the participant's record.
- 5. Incomeeligibilitymustbe reassessed when the local agency receives information from the participant or another source indicating a change in economic unit size, income, or adjunct program participation.
- 6. At least two local agency staff must participate in the certification of each applicant: one staff member to assess nutritional risk and assign food package, and another member to determine residential and income eligibility.
- 7. Staffdocumentingincomeor conductingincomereassessmentmustnotissuefoodbenefits.

REGULATIONS

Income criteria and income eligibility determinations, <u>7 CFR §246.7 (d)</u> – The State agency shall establish, and provide the local agencies with, income guidelines, definitions, and procedures to be used in determining an applicant's income eligibility for the Program.

Definition of "Income", <u>7 CFR §246.7(d)(2)(ii)</u> – gross cash income before deductions for income taxes, employees' social security taxes, insurance premiums, bonds, etc. Other cash income includes, but is not limited to, cash amounts received or withdrawn from any source including savings, investments, trust accounts and other resources which are readily available to the family.

USDA WIC Policy Memorandum #2013-3, Income Eligibility Guidance, provides clarification regarding income eligibility determination and documentation requirements necessary for participation in the WIC Program.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinSection 1011.
	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1130	
	Date: 09/2020 Page 2	
IncomeEligibility		

PROCEDURE

EconomicUnit

The WIC Program begins the process of determining income eligibility by identifying who is included in the economic unit. For WIC Program purposes, an economic unit is one individual or a group of related or unrelated individuals who live together and share income and living expenses.

- 1. Beforeassessingincomeeligibility, all members of the economic unit must be identified, including non-WIC members.
- 2. A child can be a member of only one economic unit; in cases of joint or shared custody, the child is counted in the economic unit of whichever parent/guardian first comes to WIC to apply on behalf of the child.
- 3. Eachfosterchildmustbeconsideredaneconomicunitof one.

Adjunctive Eligibility

Usingadjunctprogramsisthepreferredmethodto documentincomeeligibility.

- 1. To confirm eligibility for the WIC Program, local agency staff must verify the applicant is currently participating in Medicaid, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), or is a member of an economic unit:
 - whichincludes a SNAPrecipient
 - whichincludesaTANFrecipient
 - inwhichapregnantwomaniscertifiedfully orpresumptively eligibletoreceiveMedicaid
 - inwhichaninfantis certifiedeligibletoreceive Medicaid
- 2. The actual documentation is preferred on the day of the certification appointment; however, if an applicant does not bring it, agency staff may verify that the applicant is actively enrolled and receiving benefitselectronically.
- 3. Local agency staffmustrecord enrollmentinall adjunctprogramsinwhicheconomicunitmembers participate, even when it is not used as the income qualifier.
- 4. Estimated incomemust be documented when an applicant or participant is adjunctively eligible and must be entered for each household member contributing income and resources to the economic unit. Proof of estimated income is not required. Staff should explain that the applicant's response will have no bearing on present or future eligibility. However, if the applicant refuses to provide this information, staff must document the refusal in a note in the participant's record.

NEW WIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1130	
STATE Program	Date: 09/2020	Page 3 of 7

IncomeEligibility

Medicaid

- 1. The Common Benefits Identification Card (CBIC) or Managed Care Plan card with the Medicaid Client Identification Number (CIN) is thepreferred proof of Medicaid participation. When either card is presented, staff must verify the recipient's Medicaid is active. Acceptable methods of verification include:
 - ElectronicProviderAssistedClaimEntrySystem (ePACES)
 - TelephoneVerification Process
- 2. If the applicant or participant does not have the CBIC card, but knows their Medicaid CIN number, or if the CIN is available in the participant's WIC record, staff can use this to verify Medicaid is active using either ePACES or the Telephone Verification Process.
- 3. The Medicaid Statement of Eligibility, issued by the New York State of Health, is acceptable for an initial certification or when a current WIC participant is using Medicaid as an adjunctive qualifier for the first time.
- 4. Infants born to mothers receiving Medicaid are automatically eligible for Medicaid for one year from their date of birth. The mother must apply for Medicaid benefits for the infant while she is pregnant to ensure immediate Medicaid coverage of theinfant after birth.
- 5. Within the first 30 days after birth, an infant can be certified for WIC benefits using the mother's Medicaid, if it is active on the date of certification. After that period, the infant must have their own Medicaid card to be adjunctively eligible.
- 6. The Medicaid Excess Income program (also referred to as the "Spend Down program" or the "Surplus Income program") is an adjunctive qualifier for WIC when the participant's Medicaid is active on the date of certification.
- 7. When recertifying due to a category change, an infant or pregnant woman no longer qualifies the other WIC members of the economic unit for adjunctive eligibility. Staff must re-verify all income or adjunct programs for all economic unit members to determine further eligibility.

Medicaid Presumptive Eligibility

Thepregnantwomanmustprovide a MedicaidPresumptive Eligibility Screening form (DOH-5224) signed and dated by a presumptive eligibility (PE) provider/screener. PE begins on the date the provider/screener determines PE and continues until a finding of Medicaid eligibility ismade. If the woman does notfollow up to complete a Medicaid application, eligibilityends the lastday of the month followingthemonthwhenthe PEwasdetermined.Local agency staffshould review this form andensure the dates on the form arewithin the eligibility period.The form does notneed to be scanned into the participant's record.

ThePEis anacceptable proofofincomeeligibility for thelength of theWIC certification unlesslocal agency staff learn there is a change.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual		
	WIC Drogram	Section 1130	1130	
	Program	Date: 09/2020	Page 4 of 7	

IncomeEligibility

SNAP

- The WIC applicant must provide proof of current participation in SNAP using an official document from the local department of social services (DSS) or online verification using the applicant's account. The documentation must include the approved period of eligibility and a list of all members of the household who are included in the benefits. At least one member of the SNAP household must be a member of the WIC economic unit.
- 2. The WIC applicant must provide proof that he/she resides with the individual named in the SNAP household. The address listed on SNAP documentation must match the WIC applicant's proof of residency.

TANF

- 1. The WIC applicant must provide proof of current participation in TANF using an official document from the local DSS or online verification using the applicant's account. The documentation must include the approved period of eligibility and a list of all members of the household who are included in the benefits. At least one member of the TANF household must be amember of the WIC economic unit.
- The WIC applicant must provide proof that he/she resides with the individual named in the TANF household. The address listed on TANF documentation must match the WIC applicant's proof of residency.

Income Eligibility

- 1. Staffmustreview and documentall sourcesofincome for all economic unitmembers.
- 2. Acceptable documentation or electronic verification of gross income must be provided for current income, the 30 days prior to the appointment date, unless annual income is being used, and include:
 - thenameofthepersontowhom paymentwasissued;
 - thetimeperiod the payment covered; and
 - thenameandaddress of the employer.
- 3. If an income assessment is being done prospectively for an applicant who has been authorized to receive unemployment benefits or disability, then "current" refers to income that will be available to the economic unit in the next 30 days.
- 4. Staff must use the economic unit's current or prospective income or income during the past twelve months, whichever most accurately reflects the economic unit's financial situation. For example, applicants with seasonal employment or overtime might have an annual income that qualifies them for WIC.
- 5. Each income source is annualized, then the sum and economic unit size must be compared to the Federal WIC Income Eligibility Guidelines to determine eligibility.

) IOKK	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	WIC	Section 1130	
	Program	Date: 09/2020	Page 5 of 7
IncomoEligibility			

IncomeEligibility

- A pregnant woman is counted as one member of the economic unit; however, if she is ineligible for participation in the Program because she does not meet income guidelines, the size of the economic unitmay be increased by the number of embryos or fetuses in utero.
- When the size of the economic unit has been increased for the pregnant woman, the same increased size is used for any of her categorically eligible economic unit members.
- Whenincreasing thesizeofapregnantwoman's economicunitconflicts with her cultural, personal, or religious beliefs, the agency must not count the unborn child.
- 6. Applicantswhohaveincome, butcannotdocumentit, must use the Self-DeclarationStatement to explain why no documentation of income exists.
- 7. Applicants with no income must be prompted to describe, in detail, their living circumstances and how they obtain basic living necessities such as food, shelter, medical care, and clothing. Staff must make appropriate referrals to community resources.
- 8. Self-declarationmust:
 - be used when an applicant cannot provide written documentation of income and requiring documents would present an unreasonable barrier to participation. These instances might include persons who are homeless, migrant workers, or those who work on a "cash only" basis. The local agency must require the applicant to sign a statement specifying why he/she cannotprovidedocumentation of income. A signed statement is not requiredwhen there is no income.
 - notbeusedtocircumventincomedocumentationrequirementsor for administrative ease.
 - notbeusedtodetermineadjunctprogramparticipation.

Temporary 30-Day Certification

At a certification appointment, if applicants forget their adjunct program documentation or the adjunct program cannot be verified by an acceptable method, the applicants must be asked for income documentation, and an income assessmentmust be completed. If noincome documentation is available, the local agency must offer the applicant the opportunity toself-declare income. When the self-declared incomeappears tobewithin Federal WIC IncomeEligibility Guidelines, and the applicant meets all other eligibility criteria, a temporary 30-day certification may be issued. Self-declaration of participation in an adjunct program for income eligibility is never allowed.

Fordetails, refertoSection#1100: WICCertificationOverviewPolicy.

Income Inclusions and Exclusions

Use the following table of inclusions and exclusions when determining income. Refer to WPM 1130– Income Eligibility Policy Supplement for a complete list.

NEW YORK STATE Program		WIC Progran Section	n Manual n 1130
STATE Program	Dat	te: 09/2020	Page 6 of 7
200 X	IncomeE	ligibility	
INCLUSIONS		EXC	LUSIONS
Monetarycompensationforservice, includ (includingovertime),salary,commissior fees		In-kindhousingandoth includingfood or hou	erin-kindcompensation, Ising in lieu ofwages
Netincomefromfarmandnon-farm self-emp	oloyment	Loans,notincludingam hasconstantorunlim	nountstowhichthe applicant nited access
SocialSecurity benefits including disabilit SupplementalSecurityIncome(SSI)	y(SSD)and	Valueotassistancetror SchoolLunchActPro	mSNAPand theNational ogram
Dividendsorinterestonsavings orbonds, in from estates or trusts, or net rental inco		Paymentsfromfede	ralvolunteerprograms
Publicassistanceorwelfare payments		Paymentsunder theLo Assistance Act	ow-incomeHomeEnergy
Unemploymentcompensation		Paymentsfromfede	raljobtrainingprograms
Governmentcivilianemployeeormilitaryretirement orpensionsorveterans'payments		National Affordable	dertheCranston-Gonzales Housing Act, unless the income s or exceeds 80 percent of the the area
Privatepensionsorannuities		Imputedincome	
Alimonyorchildsupport payments		Paymentsfromfede	ralchildcareprograms
Regularcontributionsfrompersons notlivin household	iginthe	Federalcompensati	ionfordisasterandemergency
Netroyalties		Federalcompensation	toNativeAmericans
Othercashincome.Othercash incomeincludes,but is not limited to, cash amounts received or withdrawn f rom any source including savings, investments, trust accounts and otherresources which are readily available to the family		payments -forlostp expenses, includin insurancecompanies lif e, personal, med	ompensatory lump sum personal property ormedical g amounts received from sorothersources(automobile, dical) for loss or damage of or payment for medical bills ccident or injury
 Grantsandscholarsnipsusedior: Roomand board Dependentcare expenses Living expenses 		 educational institution Tuitionand fees Costs for rental materialorsupplier of study Allowance for be and miscellaneer 	ostorcosts toattendan n which include: of purchase of equipment, esrequiredinthesamecourse poks, supplies, transportation ous personal expenses for a lig on at leasta half-time basis

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual		
	WIC Drogroup	Section 1130	1130	
	Program	Date: 09/2020	Page 7 of 7	
IncomeEligibility				

Income Reassessment

- 1. Incomereassessmentis onlynecessary duringacertification period when a change in income eligibility status is reported to WIC staff.
- 2. Staffmustnotifyparticipants tobringall incomedocumentation foreach economicunitmember to the next scheduled appointment.
- 3. When staff are notified by a third party of a change in a participant's economic unit, income, or adjunct program participation, or when fraud is suspected, an income reassessment must be scheduled as soon as possible.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available ☑ Yes □ No

Whenapplicants contact the local agency, staffshould provide information about the eligibility documents needed for a certification appointment.

The WIC household may not be the same as the SNAP/TANF household. If it is different, staff must ask probing questions to confirm that the household member with verified SNAP/TANF benefits physically resides in the WIC household and that all members of the WIC household physically live together and shareresources.

The only income documentation that should be maintained in the participant's record is the Self-DeclarationStatement, if applicable. A sampleSelf-Declaration Statement in 15languages is available in the WIC Library under the Enrollment folder.

If there is any reason to suspect fraudby applicants, participants, or staff, make areferral to the Bureau of Special Investigations (BSI) via phone (1-877-282-6657), fax (518-402-1637), email (<u>foodfraud@health.ny.gov</u>), ormail the completed referral to BSI, POBox 2061, Albany NY 12220-2061. Bureau of Special Investigations Referral Form is available in the WIC Library.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1038:WICProgram Integrity-ReportingFraud andAbusePolicy
- #1100:WICCertificationOverview Policy
- #1100:WICCertificationOverviewPolicySupplement
- #1133:IncomeEligibilityforMilitary FamiliesPolicy
- #1133:IncomeEligibilityforMilitaryFamiliesPolicy Supplement

WIC Library:

- Self-DeclarationStatement
- BureauofSpecial InvestigationsReferralForm

NEW YORK STATE Progra	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	651080991800099950098	Section #1133	
	Program	Date: 01/2021	Page 1 of 4

IncomeEligibilityfor Military Families

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staffmust determine who is included in the economic unit of a military WIC applicant before proceeding with the income eligibility determination process.
- 2. Military applicants must provide proof of current eligibility for participation in any adjunct program that makes them income eligible for the WIC Program. Self-declaration of adjunctive eligibility is not acceptable.
- 3. Formilitary applicants who are not adjunctively eligible, local agency staffmust determine the income of the economic unit and apply Federal income guidelines to determine eligibility.
- 4. Local agencystaffmustbeawareofvarious typesofmilitaryincomeandspecificexclusions.
- 5. Themethod ofverifyingan adjunctprogram orincomemustbedocumentedintheparticipant's electronic record.

REGULATIONS

Federal WIC Program regulation <u>7 CFR §246.7</u> – Certification of Participants, establishes the guidelines for the WIC certification process including income eligibility determination in accordance with WIC's authorizing legislation, the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 USC 1771), as amended.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinSection 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes☑No

Determining Household Size

- 1. Servicemembersdeployed overseas orstationedinalocationseparate from their families countas part of the household.
- 2. Children**in the temporary care of** friends or relativesas aresultofdeploymentmustbecountedin one of the following ways:
 - If the deployed parent(s) provide(s) adequate financial support for the children, count the children and parent(s) as a household separate from the temporary one.
 - If the deployed parent(s) does/do not provide adequate financial support for the children, count the children as part of the household of the person(s) they are residingwith. Eligibility is determined by the income of the temporary household.

NEW	MIC	WIC Program Ma	nual
STATE Program	Section #1133		
	Program	Date: 01/2021	Page 2 of 4

IncomeEligibilityfor Military Families

Determining Income

- 1. ThemonthlyLeaveandEarningsStatement(LES)is thepreferreddocumenttousewhen determining WIC eligibility.
- 2. All income received by household members servinginthemilitary, unless specifically excluded, must be included in the household's total income.
- 3. Thefollowingpays and allowances must be included:
 - BasicPay
 - BasicAllowanceforSubsistence(BAS)orSubsistenceAllowance(ALWS)
 - ContiguousUnitedStatesCostof LivingAllowance(CONUS COLA)
 - SelectiveRetentionBonus (SRB): Ifgiveninalumpsum,1/12of total allowance onlyis used to calculate current income
 - ClothingAllowance: Giveninalumpsum annually; maybedivided outtoamonthly amount.
 - RefundSocial Security and Refund Medicare areadjustments to taxes takenout. This happens atthebeginning of theyear, and counts asincome. (Usually asmall amount)
 - SurvivorBenefitPlan(SBP):Lifeinsurance plan
 - Bonuses:Paideitherinalumpsum,annual installments, oracombination of the two; maybe divided out to a monthly amount
 - Specialpays and benefits are considered income unless otherwise excluded
 - Paymentsforroom andboardfromVeteran'sEducational AssistanceAct/GIBill
 - Paymentsfordependentcareservices fromVeteran'sEducational AssistanceAct/GIBill
 - RuralBenefitPayment
- 4. Thefollowingpays and allowancemust be excluded:
 - Mandatory salary reductionamountformilitaryservicepersonnel usedtofund theVeteran's Educational Assistance Act/GI Bill
 - Tuitionand feespaid to an educational institution from Veteran's Educational Assistance Act/GIBill
 - Annualbooksandsuppliesstipendup to\$1000
 - Educationalpayment assistancethroughYellowRibbonProgram
 - FamilySupplemental SubsistenceAllowance(FSSA)
 - TheOverseas and Non-ContiguousUnitedStatesCostofLivingAllowance(OCONUS COLA). (This includes COLA for Alaska and Hawaii)
 - BasicAllowance forHousingfor USmilitary personnel residinginmilitary installations orin privatized housing, whether off or on base, including:
 - BasicAllowance forHousingintheUnitedStates (BAH)
 - OverseasHousingAllowanceprovidedtomilitarypersonnel livingoverseas (OHA)
 - FamilySeparationHousingprovided tomilitary personnel foroverseas housing
 - TemporaryLodgingExpense(TLE)

	WIC Program Manual			
	Section #1133			
	Date: 01/2021 Page 3 of 4			
IncomeEligibilityfor Military Families				

- Refund Debt: It is the service members' group life insurance (SGLI) payment. It is added to their check, and then taken back out as an SGLI payment
- Advance Debt: This is put into the service member's pay as "a reminder of an upcoming payment due." This is not income-it is taken out of pay, either in the same check or in the following paycheck
- AdvancePay:Aloan, usually to helppay for relocation. Must be paidback and is not income
- 5. Thefollowing pays and allowances **must be excluded if** the servicemember is deployed to acombat zone and the income has not been received before deployment:
 - CombatPay(normally shownintheentitlementcolumn of LES)
 - ForeignDutyPay (FDP)
 - ForeignLanguageProficiencyPay (FLPP)
 - FamilySeparation Allowance(FSA)
 - HostileFire/ImminentDangerPay (HFP/IDP)
 - Otherspecial and incentive pays and benefits:
 - SpecialorHazardousDutyPay
 - o Incentivepays-DEMO,FLY,JUMP,SAVE,ESD, etc.
- 6. There may be other inclusions or exclusions to income not listed here. LA staff must use critical thinking skills or consult it the WIC Coordinator or Regional Office for guidance if a specific source should be included or excluded as military income.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🗹 Yes 🗆 No

Military families with family members who are temporarily absent or serving overseas may have difficulty producing the LES or other documentation of the gross military income. In some cases, the only documentation available may be a bank statement confirming the amount of a deposit. In circumstances where requiring an applicant to provide documentation would present an unreasonable barrier to participation, the applicant may self-declare income, accompanied by the applicant's signature on the self-declaration statement indicating why he/she cannot provide documentation of income.

WIC Programs areavailable in alimited number of other countries. Military families who have been transferred overseas may be able to continue participation in WIC without having to recertify.

RESOURCES

Refer to WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1130:IncomeEligibility Policy
- #1130IncomeEligibilityPolicy Supplement
- #1134:FederalIncomeEligibilityGuidelinesPolicy
- #1160:Transfersand VerificationofCertificationPolicy
- #1160:TransfersandVerificationof CertificationPolicySupplement

	WIC Program Manual		
	Section #1133		
	Date: 01/2021 Page 4 of 4		
IncomeEli	gibilityfor Military Families		

WIC Library

• Self-DeclarationStatement

Other Resources:

- WICOverseasProgram Officeat1-877-267-3728oratwww.tricare.mil/wic
- <u>www.military.com</u>
- www.militaryonesource.mil
- www.milspouse.com

TUKK	WIC
STATE	Program

WIC Program Manual

Section 1134

Date: 06/2023

Page 1 of 2

Federal Income Eligibility Guidelines

POLICY

- 1. Staff are required to use the federal income guidelines for determining income eligibility. The maximum income eligibility allowed is 185% of poverty as established by the United States Department of Agriculture.
- 2. Refer to the United States Department of Agriculture/New York State WIC Income Eligibility Guidelines in this section to determine Annual, Monthly, Twice-Monthly, Bi-Weekly, and Weekly income levels of eligibility.

REGULATIONS

Income Eligibility Guidelines, <u>7 CFR §246.7(d)(1)</u> – The State agency may prescribe income guidelines either equaling the income guidelines established under section 9 of the National School Lunch Act for reduced-price school meals or identical to State or local guidelines for free or reduced-price health care.

If the State agency uses State or local free or reduced-price health care income guidelines, it will ensure that the definitions of income (see <u>paragraph (d)(2)(ii)</u> of this section), family (see § 246.2) and allowable exclusions from income (see <u>paragraph (d)(2)(iv)</u> of this section) are used uniformly to determine an applicant's income eligibility. This ensures that households with a gross income in excess of 185 percent of the Federal income guidelines (see <u>paragraph (d)(1)</u> of this section) are not eligible for Program benefits. The exception to this requirement is persons who are also income eligible under other programs (see <u>paragraph (d)(2)(vi)</u> of this section).

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) WIC Policy Memorandum #2023-4, Publication of the 2023-2024 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) Income Eligibility Guidelines – This memorandum transmits the 2023-2024 Income Eligibility Guidelines (IEGs) for the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) that were published in the Federal Register on February 21, 2023, at 88 FR 10495. The income limit is 185% of the Federal poverty guidelines, as adjusted. Section 9(b) also requires that these guidelines be revised annually to reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

1. All local agencies must use the following income eligibility guidelines issued by the USDA annually and based on 185% poverty levels:



Federal Income Eligibility Guidelines

FEDERAL WIC INCOME ELIGIBILITY GUIDELINES

Effective through June 30, 2024

Household Size	Annual	Monthly	Twice- Monthly	Bi-Weekly	Weekly
1	\$26,973	\$2,248	\$1,124	\$1,038	\$519
2	36,482	3,041	1,521	1,404	702
3	45,991	3,833	1,917	1,769	885
4	55,500	4,625	2,313	2,135	1,068
5	65,009	5,418	2,709	2,501	1,251
6	74,518	6,210	3,105	2,867	1,434
7	84,027	7,003	3,502	3,232	1,616
8	93,536	7,795	3,898	3,598	1,799
For each additional member, add:	+\$9,509	+\$793	+\$397	+\$366	+\$183

Gross Income

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement available \Box Yes \boxtimes No

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements

- #1130: Income Eligibility
- #1133: Income Eligibility for Military Families

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	Program	Section 1135	
		Date: 06/2022	Page 1 of 4

Nutrition Assessment Process

POLICY

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authority must conduct acomplete nutrition assessment for each participant at every certification.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authority must conduct one Health and Nutrition Update for all infants, children, and breastfeeding women for each certification period that is longer than six months.
- 3 Local agency staff must use consistent screening tools and procedures in conjunction with a participant-centered approach to determine the most appropriate services for each participant.
- 4. All relevant information collected during the nutrition assessment process must be documented in the participant's record and used to determine nutrition risk eligibility, tailor services, and facilitate continuity of care throughout the certification.
- 5. The Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authority must complete the nutrition assessment before providing nutrition education and counseling.
- 6. At subsequent nutrition education visits, including Health and Nutrition Updates, staff must review and assess nutrition and health status, goals and interventions, and current services. All nutrition risk criteria, education, services, goals, and interventions must be updated and documented in the participant's record as appropriate.

REGULATIONS

Nutritional risk, <u>7CFR §246.7(e)</u> - A competent professional authority of the local agency shall determine if a person is at nutritional risk through a medical and/or nutritional assessment.

USDA Policy Guidance Memo, Guidance for Providing Quality WIC Nutrition Services during Extended Certification Periods, 8/29/2011 - One nutrition assessment during the certification period (in addition to the nutrition assessment performed at certification) is required for participants with certification periods of longer than six months.

USDA WIC Policy Memo 2006-5: VENA WIC Nutrition Assessment Policy – The Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment (VENA) initiative was developed to improve nutrition services in the WIC Program by establishing standards for the assessment process used to determine WIC eligibility and personalize nutrition education, referrals, and food package tailoring. VENA is the foundation for targeted and relevant nutrition education and other WIC nutrition services that guide and support families in making healthy eating and lifestyle choices.

USDA WIC Policy Memo 2008-4: WIC Nutrition Services Documentation – Quality documentation facilitates the delivery of meaningful nutrition services and ensures continuity of care for WIC participants.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	Program	Section 1135	
		Date: 06/2022	Page 2 of 4

Nutrition Assessment Process

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes⊡No

Nutrition Assessment Process

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN)/Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must conduct a complete nutrition assessment at each certification by following these steps (refer to the Nutrition Assessment Policy Supplement for detailed requirements of each step):
 - settingthe agenda
 - collectingrelevant information
 - clarifying and synthesizing information
 - guidingnutrition services
 - documentingthe assessment
 - conducting follow-up
- 2. TheQN/CPA must actively involve the participant in the assessment process through dialogue, information exchange, listening, and feedback by explaining the assessment process.
- 3. The QN/CPA must identify and collect relevant information from appropriate data sources to ensure a complete nutrition assessment and generation or assignment of applicable nutrition risk criteria. This includes, but is not limited to, the following data:
 - anthropometric
 - biochemical/hematological
 - clinical/health/medical
 - dietary; breastfeeding/infant feeding
 - immunization screening
 - lifestyle,includingdrug and other harmfulsubstance use,environmental,andfamily factors
 - visualobservation
 - reviewof previous nutrition assessments, nutrition education, goals, interventions, and services
 - other pertinent information, such as notes, individual care plans, referrals, NYS WIC Medical Referral Forms, NYS WIC Medical Documentation Forms, etc.
- 4. Referral medical/health data may be accepted from a health care provider (HCP). When referral data is received on the NYS WIC Medical Referral Form, the NYS WIC Medical Documentation Form, a comparable form, or a letter on official letterhead, it must be signed and dated by the HCP and scanned into the participant's record. LA staff may not use the NYS WIC Medical Referral Form (or equivalent) to record medical/health data obtained on-site or verbally.
- 5. TheQN/CPA must conduct breastfeeding assessments, as needed, to provide breastfeeding support and anticipatory guidance to the breastfeeding dyad. Any urgent or complex situations must be referred to the Breastfeeding Coordinator or Designated Breastfeeding Expert.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual		
		Section 1135		
		Date: 06/2022	Page 3 of 4	
Nutrition Assessment Process				

- 6. The QN/CPA must ask probing questions and use critical thinking skills to clarify and process the information draw appropriate conclusions throughout the assessment. The QN/CPA must organize, evaluate, and prioritize the information they have collected prior to documenting the data in the participant's record.
- 7. LA staff must document collected relevant information in the participant's record to facilitate continuity of care. Notes must be objective, concise, pertinent, and include information not captured elsewhere in the record, to reflect the outcome of the contact.
- 8. The QN/CPA must summarize the assessment, conveying pertinent nutrition/health risks and concerns to the participant/participant representative(s) in asensitive manner that promotes positive health outcomes.
- 9. The QN/CPA must work with the participant to identify and prioritize the participant's needs and concerns so they can be addressed through the appropriate nutrition services (including nutrition and breastfeeding education/counseling, food package tailoring, and appropriate referrals).
- 10. At subsequent appointments throughout the certification period, including HNU appointments, QN/CPA staff must follow up with the participant to assess previous and new nutrition/health risks and participant concerns, evaluate the effectiveness of the current nutrition interventions toward behaviorchange, reinforce educational messages, elicit feedback from the participant and update or revise nutrition interventions, as necessary.
- 11. Whenschedulingappointments, participants/participant representative(s) must be informed when:
 - Anthropometric dataisrequired, and hematological datamay beneeded; and
 - Thephysical presence of the participant is required unless an exemption has been granted and documented.

Healthand Nutrition Update(HNU)

- 1. The QN/CPA must conduct an HNU for infants, children, and breastfeeding women whose certification is longer than 6 months to ensure that the required health and nutrition assessments occur.
- During an HNU, the QN/CPA must conduct a brief, tailored nutrition assessment using the steps of the nutrition assessment process to assess changes in the participant's nutrition/health status, evaluate the effectiveness of current intervention(s), and provide appropriate participant-centered care. The HNU appointment includes, but is not limited to:
 - abriefassessment of nutrition and healthstatus;
 - obtaining and reviewing anthropometric measurements and hematological data, as warranted;
 - immunizationscreening, as appropriate;
 - assigningany new nutritionriskcriteria identified;
 - breastfeedingpromotion and support, as needed;
 - initiatingand/or updating relevant individualcare plans;
 - nutritioneducation or counseling to meet the needs of the participant;
 - providingand/or following-uponappropriate referrals;
 - tailoringfood packages; and
 - documentingallrelevant information and services provided in the participant record

IC ogram

WIC ProgramManual

Section 1135

Date: 06/2022

Page 4 of 4

Nutrition Assessment Process

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🗹 Yes 🗆 No

The nutrition assessment process supports a positive approach based on health outcomes rather than deficiencies. The process may need to be adjusted when a participant has urgent needs to address (such as recent eviction, domestic violence, substance use, etc.). If urgent questions arise during the assessment, LA staff should use professional judgment to adjust the assessment process as needed.

Best practice is to schedule an HNU appointment at the approximate mid-point of the certification period. Use professional judgment when scheduling this appointment in a way that works best for the participant and allows for physical presence.

LA staff may accept data from referral sources. The QN/CPA may use professional judgment to request and obtain up-to-date nutrition and health data for participants if more current information would enhance the participant's nutrition assessment.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- WPM1136NutritionalRisk Criteria and Priority System
- WPM1406 Compliance and Self-Assessment
- WPM1460 LocalAgency Staff
- WPM1467 StaffTraining

WICLibrary

- LACASAGuidance Manual
- NYSWIC Medical Referral Form(DOH-799)
- NYSWIC MedicalDocumentation Form(DOH-4456)
- Participant-Centered Nutrition Assessment and Education Quality AssuranceForm

Other

- USDAValue Enhanced Nutrition Assessment(VENA) Guidance
- USDA, Food and Nutrition Service Nutrition Services Standards, August 2013, Standard 6: Nutrition Assessment

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1136		
		Date: 05/2021	Page 1 of 3	
Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System				

POLICY

- As part of the nutrition assessment process, the Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authoritymust determine nutrition risk eligibility using the New York State WIC Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System, including the defined New York State WIC High Risk Criteria for identifying participants at high risk.
- 2. Eachparticipantmusthave atleastone nutritionriskcriteriaidentifiedfor eachcertification.
- 3. The Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authority must document applicable nutrition risk criteria in the participant's record, as well as the supporting nutrition and health information that corresponds with the qualifying nutrition risk criteria identified.
- 4. The Qualified Nutritionist/Competent Professional Authority must ensure that the highest possible priority level is assigned for each participant based on identified nutrition risk criteria.

REGULATIONS

NutritionalRisk,<u>7CFR§246.7(e)</u> WICPolicyMemo#2011-5:<u>WICNutritionRiskCriteria</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □ Yes ☑ No

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must determine nutrition risk eligibility after performing a complete nutrition assessment, including a thorough review of all information available.
- Basedon the complete nutritionassessment, the QN/CPA mustidentify all applicable nutrition risk criteria andsystem-generate or manually assign theappropriaterisk(s) in the participant's record.Refer to the NYS NutritionRiskCriteria and Priority System policy supplement for a full list of allowable nutrition risk criteria, including detailed definitions, interpretations, and parameters.
- 3. TheQN/CPAmustdocumentall nutritionrisk criteria fromanout-of-stateVerification of Certification card in the participant's record.
- 4. For all nutrition risk criteria, including manually assigned risks, the supporting health and nutrition information must be apparent upon review of the participant's record.

	MIC	WIC Program Ma	inual
	WIC	Section 1136	
	Program	Date: 05/2021	Page 2 of 3

Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System

- The QN/CPA must address identified nutrition risk criteria in a participant-centered manner and work with the participant to determine appropriate nutrition services, including nutrition and breastfeeding education/counseling, food package tailoring, and appropriate referrals, as warranted.
- 6. The QN/CPA must ensure that the highest possible priority level is established in the participant's record based on the participant's qualifying nutrition risk criteria. All nutrition risk criteria have an assigned priority level from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). Priority levels are assigned based on the following:

<u>Priority I</u>: Pregnant women, breastfeeding women, and infants at nutrition risk as demonstrated by hematological or anthropometric measurements or other documented nutritionally-related medical conditions which demonstrate the need for supplemental foods.

<u>Priority II</u>: Infants up to six months of age born to mothers who either participated in the WIC Program during pregnancy or whosemedical record documents that they were at nutrition risk during pregnancy due to nutrition conditions detectable by biochemical or anthropometric measurements or other documented nutritionally-related medical conditions whichdemonstrate the need for supplemental foods. Priority II infants have no documentable risk conditions that would otherwise qualify them under Priority I.

<u>Priority III</u>: Children at nutrition risk as demonstrated by hematological or anthropometric measurementsorother documentedmedical conditions whichdemonstratethechild's need for supplemental foods; high risk postpartum women at nutrition risk as demonstrated by hematological or anthropometric measurements or documented nutritionally-related conditions that are indicative of the woman's increased need for supplemental foods.

<u>Priority IV</u>:Pregnantwomen,breastfeedingwomen,andinfants atnutritionrisk due toan inadequate dietary pattern.

PriorityV: Childrenatnutritionriskduetoaninadequate dietary pattern.

PriorityVI:Allat-risk postpartumwomenwhodonototherwisequalifyunderPriorityIII.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable ☑ Yes □No

Participants who have transferred into the local agency from another state will be system-assigned the Transfer of Certification risk. If the participant presents a VOC card, the QN/CPA must document any risks identified on the VOC card. This can be done by writing a note in the participant's record to indicate the pertinent risk information or by completing an assessment to system-assign any risks identified on an out-of-state VOC card.

Self-reporting of a diagnosis by a health care provider should not be confused with self-diagnosis, where a person simply claims to have or to have had a medical condition without any reference to professional diagnosis. For nutrition risk criteria that are self-reported by the participant, best practice is for the

	MIC	WIC Program Ma	inual
	WIC	Section 1136	
-	Program	Date: 05/2021	Page 3 of 3

Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System

QN/CPA to validate the nutrition risk by asking probing questions. The QN/CPA may also verify a medical diagnosis with the participant's health care provider with the permission and written consent of the participant. The establishment of a relationship with health care providers will help WIC staff provide better nutrition/health education and reinforcement of care, as well as a better understanding of WIC's role in health promotion, screening, and counseling.

TheNewYork StateWIC Medical Referral Formshouldbeused todocumentnutritionrisk eligibility from a referral source whenever possible.

The USDA Nutrition Risk Write-Ups provide detailed information for all nutrition risks used by the NYS WIC Program, including the risk definition and cut-off values; participant category and priority level; the risk justification; implications for WIC nutrition services, and references.

RESOURCES

WICProgramManualSections andSupplements:

- #1120:Waiting Lists
- #1135:NutritionAssessment Process
- #1160:Transfersand VerificationofCertification
- #1216:HighRisk Care

WIC Library:

- USDANutritionRisk Write-Ups
- USDA, FoodandNutritionServiceNutritionServicesStandards, August 2013

Other:

• USDAWICPolicyMemorandum 2011-5:WICNutritionRiskCriteria

WIC	
Program	

WIC Program Manual

Section 1160

Date: 5/2023

Page 1 of 3

Transfers and Verification of Certification

POLICY

NEW

YORK

ΓΑΤΕ

- 1. At all certification appointments, local agencies must inform participants of their right to receive uninterrupted benefits if they choose to transfer to another WIC agency.
- 2. Participants transferring within New York State are not required to have a Verification of Certification card because staff can verify certification using the NYS management information system.
- 3. For a participant who is moving out of New York state, the outbound (sending) local agency must issue a Verification of Certification card immediately upon request to prevent disruption of WIC benefits.
- 4. For a participant who is moving into New York State, the inbound (receiving) local agency must complete the transfer immediately upon request, with consideration to participant needs.
- 5. For all types of transfers, local agency staff must verify the identity and residency of all members of the household that are transferring into the local agency.

REGULATIONS

Section 17 (f)(8B) and (9) of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966, as amended, requires that transferring WIC participants receive continuous benefits during their certification periods, within the funding limitations of the inbound local agency.

Federal Regulation §7 CFR 246.7(k)(1): Each state agency shall ensure issuance of a Verification of Certification card to every participant who is a member of a family in which there is a migrant farmworker or any other participant who is likely to be relocating during the certification period.

Federal Regulation §7 CFR 246.7(k)(2): The state agency shall require the receiving local agency to accept Verification of Certification cards from participants, including participants who are migrant farmworkers or members of their families, who have been participating in the Program in another local agency within or outside of the jurisdiction of the state agency. A person with a valid Verification of Certification card shall not be denied participation in the receiving state because the person does not meet that state's particular eligibility criteria.

Federal Regulation §7 CFR 246.7(k)(3): The Verification of Certification card is valid until the certification period expires and shall be accepted as proof of eligibility for WIC benefits. If the receiving local agency has waiting lists for participation, the transferring participant shall be placed on the list ahead of all waiting applicants.

USDA WIC Policy Memorandum 2016-04: State or local agencies must not require participants to sign a release of information to share Verification of Certification information with other state or local agencies. Information collected by WIC is considered confidential and may be disclosed to persons directly connected with the administration or enforcement of the WIC Program. This policy memo dictates Verification of Certification information must be provided to the receiving agency no later than the next business day.

NEW MALIC	WIC Program	n Manual
STATE Drogram	Section '	1160
STATE Program	Date: 5/2023	Page 2 of 3

Transfers and Verification of Certification

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

- 1. Staff must determine if a transfer request is for an individual participant or a household.
- 2. Statewide Search
 - A statewide search for the Authorized Representative (AR) and participant(s) must be completed before transferring or adding the household or participant(s) to avoid creating duplicate records. To avoid transferring the wrong individual, staff must verify the both the AR and participant's name, date of birth and mailing address zip code.
- 3. Processing Timeframes
 - For an in-state transfer (between NYS local agencies), staff should complete the transfer upon request; however, regulations allow one business day for processing.
 - For an out-of-state Verification of Certification (VOC), the sending agency must complete the transfer within one business day. If the sending agency does not meet this time frame, the receiving agency must contact the state-agency point-of-contact to process the VOC transaction.
 - For an inbound VOC, the receiving local agency (LA) must enter the VOC data into the management information system, verify identity and proof of residency, assign an eWIC card, issue benefits, and schedule the next appointment within one business day, as feasible. If the receiving agency has a wait list, transferring participants with a valid VOC must be placed on the waiting list ahead of all other applicants, regardless of their priority status, and enrolled as soon as possible. If more than one transferring participant with a VOC is on the waiting list, they will be seen in the order in which were received by the agency.
- 4. Transfer Requests
 - For both inbound and outbound transfers, LA staff can only accept requests from the AR, Participant, or Parent/Spouse/Partner (P/S/P).
 - Transfer requests cannot be accepted from caretakers or proxies.
- 5. VOC Cards
 - Staff should anticipate a VOC card to include:
 - the name of the participant
 - o participant's certification start date
 - o date income eligibility was last determined
 - o nutritional risk condition
 - o certification end date
 - signature and printed/typed name of local agency staff (sending agency)
 - local agency name and address
 - o identification numbers
 - The transferring participant must not be penalized, nor services delayed for the failure of a sending agency to properly include the required components; therefore, at

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1160	

Transfers and Verification of Certification

minimum, a VOC card is considered valid if it contains the participant's name and the certification start and end date. The receiving agency must contact the sending agency to obtain any additional missing information.

- A VOC card is not required for in-state transfers (between New York State local agencies)
- 6. Refer to the Transfers and Verification of Certification policy supplement for detailed procedures for each type of transfer.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement \square Yes \square No

If a transferring participant's certification has the same NYS certification length and is expired, no VOC is needed. Recertify the participant per usual certification procedures following processing standards based on participant category. If the VOC card presented displays a certification length less than NYS certifications, then staff must calculate the NYS Cert End Date based on the NYS certification length.

There are no special procedures for processing a VOC for participants moving to Puerto Rico. These should be handled like any other out-of-state VOC. A WIC overseas VOC is handled in the same manner as any other VOC. Military families with current WIC certification who are transferring overseas should be issued a VOC card. If the families need additional information, staff may provide the toll-free number for the WIC Overseas Program office: 1-877-267-3728 or the website address: www.tricare.mil/wic.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1120: Waiting Lists
- #1130: Income Eligibility
- #1260: Food Benefit Issuance

Other:

- NYWIC Guidance Packet (Transfers and Changes of ID)
- National WIC State Agency Directory a list of state agency VOC points of contact is available at http://www.fns.usda.gov/wic/wic-contacts

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1183		
		Date: 03/2021	Page 1 of 4	
Immunization Screening				

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staff must screen infants and children for immunizations at each certification and Health and Nutrition Update appointment until all marker immunizations are met.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must provide appropriate referrals for infants and children to obtain immunizations when they are not up-to-date, or they lack documented proof of immunization.
- 3. TheQualifiedNutritionistorCompetentProfessional Authority must documentimmunization status, referrals, exemptions, and refusals in the participant's record.
- 4. Local agenciesmusthave access to the New York StateImmunization InformationSystem and/or Citywide Immunization Registry.
- 5. Localagencystaffcannotdeny theprovisionofbenefits for failure toshow proofofimmunization status.

REGULATIONS

WIC Policy Memorandum #2001-7, Immunization Screening and Referral in WIC - outlines WIC's role as an adjunct to health care and standardizes minimum procedures for immunization screening and referral in WIC. USDA requires Diphtheria, Tetanus and acellular Pertussis (DTaP) screening. The NYS WIC Program screens for additional immunizations, Hepatitis B (HepB), Polio, Measles, Mumps and Rubella (MMR).

<u>NYS Public Health Law §2164</u> – Immunizations for Polio, Measles, Mumps and Rubella, Diphtheria, Haemophilus influenza type b, Hepatitis B and Varicella are mandatory for all children in any public, private or parochial child care center, day nursery, day care agency, nursery school, or kindergarten. Those who cannot pay for immunizations can obtain them at no cost.

<u>NYS Public Health Law §2168</u> - Mandatory creation of a statewide immunization registry for New York State healthcare providers, outside of the five boroughs of New York City, for the purposes of collecting and storing mandated information on immunizations administered to all persons less than 19 years of age.

NYSAssemblyBillA2371A-exemptions forschoolimmunization requirementsbased onreligious

beliefs are no longer allowed as of June 2019. This applies to children between the ages of 2 months and 18 years who are attending day care, prekindergarten, and kindergarten through 12th grade. This does not apply to children who are homeschooled.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

TURK	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1183		
		Date: 03/2021	Page 2 of 4	
Immunization Screening				

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \boxtimes Yes \square No

 At each certification and Health and Nutrition Update (HNU) appointment, local agency (LA) staff must screen infants and children for marker immunizations against Polio, Hepatitis B, Diphtheria, Tetanus and acellular Pertussis and Measles,Mumps and Rubella until thetotal number of doses are met,based on the Marker Immunizations Tablebelow which is adapted from the <u>CDC immunizations</u> <u>schedule</u>. The number of doses counted for each immunization is dependent on the age of the participant at the time of screening.

Age at Time of Screening	Marker Immunizations	Total Number of Doses
Birth–2 Months	HepatitisB (HepB)	2
2 – 12 Months	Diphtheria,Tetanus and acellularPertussis (DTaP)	3
	Polio(IPV)	2
	HepatitisB (HepB)	3
12–18 Months	Diphtheria,Tetanusand acellularPertussis(DTaP)	3
	Measles,Mumps and Rubella(MMR)	1
	Polio(IPV)	3
	HepatitisB (HepB)	3
18Months–2 Years	Diphtheria,Tetanusand acellularPertussis(DTaP)	4
	Measles,Mumps and Rubella(MMR)	1
	Polio(IPV)	3

MarkerImmunizations Table

- 2. Toscreenparticipantsforimmunizations,LA staffmust:
 - reviewandverify theimmunizationstatus;
 - countthetotal numberofdoses and compare to the numberof doses required for the participant's age at time of screening; and
 - documenttheimmunizationstatus in the participant's record, including refusals, medical exemptions, or extenuating circumstances.
- Each LA is required to have access to the New York State Immunization Information System (NYSIIS),New York Citywide ImmunizationRegistry (CIR), or both, depending on physical location of the LA. All Qualified Nutritionists (QNs) and/or Competent Professional Authority (CPAs) must have this access. The WIC Coordinator or designee may determine additional staff for which access is appropriate.

NEW WIC	WIC Program	Manual
YORK YORK	Section 118	3
STATE Program	Date: 03/2021	Page 3 of 4
In	nmunization Screening	
as: NewYorkStatelmmunizationIn NewYorkCitywideImmuniz NYSWICMedicalReferralFor immunizationrecords signed documentationofdiseaseor set otherofficialimmunizationregist electronicmedical record schoolimmunizationrecord	zationRegistry(CIR) m orcomparableform orstampedbythe healthcareprovider(HCP) rological evidenceofimmunity byHCP ryrecordoronefrom anotherstate	status,such
be scanned into the participant's re records should be viewed and ver participant or shredded.	on the NYS WIC Medical Referral Form cord, under WIC Medical Referral. All oth ified by LA staff for documentation purp	ner forms of immunization oses and returned to the
	opriate number of doses of all marker im The participant record should indicate "n	
7. If the participant does not present im	munizationrecords attheappointment,or t	he number of

- immunizations presented does notmatch the minimum required dose, LA staff must:
 - useNYSIISand/orCIRorsimilarimmunizationregistry tolookfor immunizationrecords;
- provideinformationabouttherecommendedimmunizationsfortheparticipant's age;
- refertheinfantor childforimmunizationservices;
- documentreferralsintheparticipant'srecord;and
- encouragetheparticipantrepresentative tobring theimmunization record tothenext appointment.
- 8. LA staff must provide appropriate referrals for infant and children participants when immunizations are not up-to-date. Referral sources for immunizations may include a HCP, health care clinic, pharmacies, and on-site services.
- 9. QN/CPAstaffmustprovideparticipant-centered educationabouttherecommended immunizations for the participant's age when the participant representative refuses immunizations.

GUIDANCE

LAstaffareencouragedto:

- verifyimmunizationsviaNYSIISand/orCIR inadvanceof thescheduledappointment;
- encourage the participant representative to bring the infantor child's updated immunization record to each appointment until all the marker immunizations are met

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program	Manual	
		Section 1183	
	Flogram	Date: 03/2021	Page 4 of 4

Immunization Screening

LA staff may recommend that the HCP document medical exemptions by completing the Immunization Requirements for School Attendance, Medical Exemption Statement for Children 0-18 Years of Age form (DOH Form 5077).

Electronic immunization registries vary by physical location. The CIR includes participants who livewithin the five boroughs of New York City, and NYSIIS includes participants who live throughout New York State, excluding the five boroughs of New York City. Best practice is for LAs to obtain access to both registries to ensure access to records for participants who move locations.

Verbal recall of immunizations from the participant representative is not acceptable proof of immunization status.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1135:NutritionAssessment Process
- #1241:Referral toOtherServices

WIC Library:

- WICMedicalReferral Form(DOH-799)
- USDAFoodandNutritionServiceWICNutritionServices Standards

Other:

- <u>NewYorkStateLaw,Title10,SubchapterG</u>:AIDSTesting,CommunicableDiseases and Poisoning
- NewYorkStateImmunizationInformationSystem(NYSIIS): NYSDOH Bureau of Immunization Phone:(518)473-4437 Email: <u>immunize@health.ny.gov</u> <u>http://www.health.ny.gov/prevention/immunization/information_system/</u>
- NewYorkCitywideImmunizationRegistry(CIR): Citywide Immunization Registry Phone:(347)3962400 Fax:(347)3962559 Email:cir@health.nyc.gov http://nyc.gov/health/cir
- USDAFoodandNutritionServiceWICPolicyMemorandum#2001-7:ImmunizationScreening and Referral in WIC
- DOHForm5077:ImmunizationRequirements forSchool Attendance,Medical Exemption Statement for Children 0-18 Years of Age
- <u>CDCRecommendedChildandAdolescentImmunizationScheduleforages18yearsoryounger,</u> <u>United States, 2020</u>
- <u>VaccinateYourFamily:TheNextGeneration of EveryChildByTwo</u>

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual			
	Drogram	Section 1	184	
	Program	Date: 02/2021	Page 1 of 4	
Anthropometry				

POLICY

- 1. Anthropometric measurements (weight, standing height or recumbent length) must be performed onsite or obtained from an allowable referral source and documented in each participant's record at the time of initial certification, recertification, and Health and Nutrition Update.
- 2. Weight and height or length shall be measured notmore than 60 days prior to certification or Health and Nutrition Update.
- 3. Local agenciesmustensure all staffwho take and record anthropometricmeasurements are trained and exhibit competency.
- 4. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must review measurements for accuracy and assess for anthropometric nutrition risk criteria. Appropriate nutrition counseling and educationmustbebased on nutritional risk assessment andtheparticipant's needs and interests.
- 5. Local agenciesmustpurchase, calibrate, and maintain equipment based on the specifications required by the New York State WIC Program.

REGULATIONS

Determination of nutritional risk, <u>7CRF §246.7(e)(1)(i)</u> -Ata minimum, weight and height/length measurements shall be performed or documented in the applicant's file at the time of certification.

Timingofnutritional risk data,<u>7CRF§246.7(e)(1)(ii)</u>-Weightandheight/length shall bemeasured not more than 60 days prior to certification for program participation.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required ☑ Yes □ No

Staff Training

- 1. Localagency (LA)staffwhotakeand recordmeasurementsmustcompletecompetency-based training prior to taking participant measurements. Staff are expected to:
 - demonstrateappropriateanthropometricmeasurement techniques
 - readandrecordmeasurements accurately
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must complete competency-based training to ensure measurements are plotted correctly on the appropriate growth chart and that growth and prenatal weight gain are interpreted correctly.

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 11	84
	Flogram	Date: 02/2021	Page 2 of 4

Anthropometry

Anthropometric Measurement Requirements

- 1. At a minimum, LA staff must obtain category-specific height/length and weight measurements at each certification and Health and Nutrition Update (HNU) by performing on-site measurements or via referral source.
- 2. Ifaparticipant's referral dataisoutdated(older than60 days)orappears tobeinaccurate,LA staff must offer to complete measurements on-site.
- 3. Allowablereferralsources include the following:
 - NYSWICMedical Referral Form, or comparable form
 - medicalordinical recordviaphysical orelectronicformat
 - viewingelectronicpatientportalssharedby the participant viacell phone, tablet, etc.
 - verbal result provided by a health care provider (HCP). When a verbal result is used, document the result in the participant's record and collaborate with the HCP to obtain written confirmation.
- 4. Prior torequestingparticipant information from anHCPorotherorganization,LA staffmust ensure that there is asigned consent for release of information on file for the participant.
- 5. Local agencies must not deny or withhold benefits based on a lack of anthropometric measurements at HNU appointments. In the rare circumstance that current measurements cannot be obtained during an HNU for the participant onsite (e.g., a child participant is not present for theHNU) staffshould attempt to acquire the data from an allowable referral source. If this is not possible, staff mustwork with the participant to determine the best method to obtain current measurements (e.g. provide 1monthof benefits and reschedule theHNU for thefollowing month or reschedule the appointment to another day that week, etc.).
- 6. TheQN orCPAmustassess anthropometric data to determinenutritionrisk, and providenutrition education, referrals, and an individual care plan, as warranted.
- 7. LA staffmust excuse a participant or applicant with a disability from anthropometric assessment if obtaining the data would present an unreasonable barrier under circumstances defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act. Staff must document the circumstance in the participant's record and make reasonable efforts to obtain the data from a referral source.

Documentation

- 1. LAstaffmustdocument thefollowinginformationintheparticipant's record:
 - length/heightandweightmeasurements(converted appropriately,as needed)
 - datethemeasurementsweretaken
 - ifthemeasurementswerereceivedfrom areferral source(indicateNon-WIC)
 - anyfactorsthatmay affectaccuracy(e.g.uncooperativeparticipant)
 - anthropometricrisk(s)identifiedthroughout thecertification period
 - nutritioneducation/referrals
 - anIndividual CarePlan, as needed

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1184	
Date: 02/2021 Page 3 of 4		Page 3 of 4
Anthropometry		

2. Whenanthropometric data is received on a NYS WIC Medical Referral Form or comparable form, staff must scan it into the participant's record, under WIC Medical Referral Form. All other forms of anthropometric data received from a referral source must be reviewed and returned to the participant or shredded after the data is entered into the participant's record.

Anthropometric Equipment

- 1. The LA must have convenient access to appropriateweighing and measuring equipment on-site for all participant categories (scales and stadiometers for adults, infant scales and recumbent measuring boards for infants.)
- 2. The LA must purchase medical grade equipment in accordance with purchasing requirements outlined in WPM 1421 Purchasing, and that meets the specifications outlined in the WPM 1184 Anthropometry Policy Supplement.
- 3. LAstaffmustappropriately use, calibrate, and maintain equipment as directed by the manufacturer and as outlined in the WPM1184 Anthropometry PolicySupplement.
- 4. The NYS WIC Program Anthropometry Equipment Maintenance Form, or comparable form, must be used to document equipment maintenance and be kept on file at the LA and available for NYS DOH review.

GUIDANCE

LA staff may use professional judgment to obtain and document more frequent measurements based on the nutrition assessment and the participant's needs and interests.

- Forpregnantwomenandparticipantswithanthropometric risks,staffareencouraged toobtain and assess measurements at every visit to closely monitor growth and provide appropriate follow up.
- Infantgrowthpatterns areimportanttomonitorfrequently. Datamorethan30days old,for example, may not reflect the infant's current growth pattern. LA staff are encouraged to obtain current measurements (in addition to birth measurements) during initial certifications for infants even if under 60 days old.

Measurements reported verbally by the participant or participant representative may be accepted in the following circumstances:

- Birthweightandlengthforinfants and children:
 - Infantsunder8weeks oldwhoarenotpresentatcertification:

LAstaffmay acceptverbalbirthmeasurements butmust obtain measurements on-site or from a referral source at the next appointment.

 <u>All otherinfantsandchildren (includinginfantsunder8weeksold)whoarepresentat</u> <u>certification:</u> LAstaffmayacceptverbal birthmeasurementsonly ifcurrentmeasurementsaretaken

LAstaffmayacceptverbal birthmeasurementsonly ifcurrentmeasurementsaretaken on-siteorareavailablefrom areferral source.

WIC Program Manual		
	Section 1184	
Date: 02/2021 Page 4 of 4		Page 4 of 4

Anthropometry

- Pre-pregnancyWeight,WeightGainedDuringPregnancy,andWeight at Delivery:
 - LA staff may accept verbal pre-pregnancy weight, weight gained during pregnancy, and weight at delivery from the applicant if no other documentation (e.g., medical record) is available.

Growth charts consist of a series of percentile curves that illustrate the distribution of selected body measurements inchildren. In NYSWIC, the CDC,WHO, Fenton, and DownSyndrome Growthcharts are used to assess growth of participants. The Fenton and Down Syndrome growth charts are not used to assign anthropometric nutrition risk criteria. Staff are encouraged to use these charts as a tool to track and monitor growth of infants until 40 weeks' gestational age and/or infants and children with Down Syndrome. Refer to Growth Chart Guidance and Guidance for Anthropometric Data & Conversions for more information.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Supplements:

- #1184:AnthropometryPolicy Supplement
- #1135:NutritionAssessment Process
- #1136:NutritionRiskCriteria& Priority System
- #1043:Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1421:Purchasing

WIC Library:

- AnthropometryQuality AssuranceForms
- NYSWICMedicalReferralForm (DOH-799)
- NYSWICProgramAnthropometryEquipment MaintenanceForm

Other:

- WICWorksGrowthChartTrainingModules
- USDAFoodandNutritionServiceNutritionServicesStandards, August 2013
- Refer to *GrowthChart Guidance* and *Guidance forAnthropometricData & Conversions* within the NYWIC Guidance Packet, available on the Miscellaneous tab in NYWIC <u>WHOGrowthCharts</u> .
- •
- **CDCGrowthCharts**
- **FentonGrowthChart** .
- CDCDownSyndrome GrowthCharts
- **CDCPrenatalWeightGain**

NE YO ST/	RK	WIC Program
	RN	-

WIC Program Manual

Section 1185

Page 1 of 5

Hematological Testing and Lead Screening

Date: 5/2023

POLICY

5

- 1. A hematological test for anemia such as a hemoglobin or hematocrit test must be performed on-site or obtained from a referral source and documented for all participants at the time of certification when appropriate.
- 2. Local agency staff must screen children at 6 months of age and older for a blood lead test at each certification by asking if a blood lead test has been performed, documenting available results and providing referrals as appropriate.
- 3. Local agency staff must refer participants to obtain hematological testing free of charge and within the required timeframe when on-site hematological testing is not available.
- 4. Local agencies must not deny or withhold benefits based on lack of hematological test or blood lead test results.
- 5. Local agencies must purchase all appropriate hematological testing equipment and monitor inventory, per New York State WIC Program purchasing and inventory policies.

REGULATIONS

Nutritional Risk, <u>7 CFR 246.7(e)(1)(i)(B)</u> - hematological tests shall be obtained for all participants, including those who are determined at nutritional risk based solely on the established nutritional risk status of another person.

USDA WIC Policy Memo #2001-2 WIC Bloodwork Requirements

USDA WIC Policy Memo 2001-1 Clarification of WIC's FY 2001 Appropriations Act Provisions Regarding Blood Lead Screening

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Bloodborne Pathogens Standard 29 CFR Part 1910.1030

Public Law 106-387 WIC nutrition services and administration (NSA) funds cannot be used to conduct blood lead tests.

New York State (NYS) Public Health Law, Article 5, Title V, designates the NYS Department of Health (DOH) Wadsworth Center to regulate all facilities providing clinical laboratory testing. In addition to fee collection, application process and regulation, the NYS DOH Wadsworth Center provides periodic site inspections.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

NEW	NEW MALE	WIC Program	n Manual
YORK STATE Program	Section 1185		
	Date: 5/2023	Page 2 of 5	
	Hemotologia	Fasting and Load Saraa	

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \boxtimes Yes \square No

Hematological Testing Requirements

1. Local agency (LA) staff must obtain and monitor hemoglobin or hematocrit data according to the requirements for the participant category, as outlined in the following table:

Category	Requirement	Required timeframes	Other guidance specific to category and/or age
Pregnant Women	One test	At earliest opportunity during the current pregnancy.	N/A
Breastfeeding and Postpartum Women	One test	After delivery or termination of the pregnancy.	Best practice is to collect 4 – 6 weeks after delivery or termination of pregnancy. No additional test is required for breastfeeding women 6 – 12 months postpartum if a test was taken after delivery and documented by WIC staff.
Infants	One test	Between 9 – 12 months of age, before the first birthday.	A blood test result between 6 – 12 months of age can be used to meet this requirement. Testing is appropriate for infants prior to 9 months in the following circumstances: • born prematurely • low birth weight • fed formula without iron
Children 1 – 2 years	One test	Between 12–24 months of age.	Best practice is to test at 15 to 18 months of age. Test taken at or before the first birthday does not satisfy the requirement for both the infant (6-12 months) and the children's 12-24 months requirement.
Children 2 – 5 years	One test	Once every 12 months (starting from the date of last bloodwork), if test results are within normal limits.	If test results are outside of normal range, all infants and children must have a test at 6 months intervals until within normal limits.

HEMATOLOGICAL TESTING REQUIREMENTS TABLE

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1185	
	Program	Date: 5/2023	Page 3 of 5

- The collection of hematological data can be deferred for up to 90 days after the date of certification, 2. or recertification when appropriate, and if at least one qualifying nutritional risk factor is identified at the time of certification.
- 3. LA staff must obtain hematological data by performing on-site hematological testing via invasive (fingerstick) and/or non-invasive (bloodless) methods, from a referral source, or both.
- 4. Hematological data must be recorded in the participant's record and reflect the date of measurement. Any data obtained from a referral source must be documented as "Non-WIC" in the participant's record.
- 5. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must document refusal or any exceptions to obtaining bloodwork in the participants record. Exemptions include the following:
 - participants whose religious beliefs prohibit hematological testing
 - participants diagnosed with certain medical conditions in which hematological testing could cause harm may be exempt from testing. The medical condition must be documented in the participant's record and a written confirmation must be obtained from a health care provider (HCP).
 - If the condition is considered to be treatable, a new statement from the HCP is required for each subsequent certification. If the condition is considered "lifelong", a new statement from the HCP would not be necessary for subsequent certifications. 0
 - 0
- 6. The QN or CPA must assess hematological data to determine nutrition risk and the need for an individual care plan, and provide nutrition education, and referrals, as warranted.
- 7. LA staff must determine and inform participants when further bloodwork is required and schedule appointments, appropriately.

On-Site Hematological Testing

- 1. On-site hematological testing may include the use of:
 - invasive hematological testing equipment for all participants, including those less than two • years of age
 - non-invasive hematological testing equipment for participants age two years and older •
 - a combination of both methods
- LAs conducting hematological testing using the invasive method must:
 - obtain and maintain a current Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment (CLIA) certificate • on file with the NYS DOH Wadsworth Center's Clinical Laboratory Evaluation Program
 - display their CLIA certificate at all sites where invasive hematological testing is performed •
 - have an Exposure Control Plan (ECP) that is reviewed annually and updated whenever necessary to reflect new or modified tasks and procedures which affect occupational exposure
 - maintain a Hematological Testing Log documenting all participant hemoglobin or hematocrit test results performed

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1185	
	Fiogram	Date: 5/2023	Page 4 of 5

- keep a Sharps Injury Log of all percutaneous injuries to participants or staff from contaminated sharps that occur within the LA. Any related injuries must also be reported to NYS DOH Regional Office within 24 hours, or the next business day, whichever occurs first.
- offer the Hepatitis B vaccination at no cost to LA staff performing hematological testing
- maintain documentation that staff have been offered the Hepatitis B vaccination
- retain signed Hepatitis B Vaccination Declination Form in the employee's personnel record if the vaccine is declined
- 3. LA staff must be trained appropriately to ensure the accuracy of hematological testing and the safety of participants and staff while performing either method of on-site testing. Each LA must ensure that all staff performing hematological testing meet the following criteria:
 - have a high school diploma or equivalent
 - complete training for hematological testing procedures used by the LA, including equipment handling, and maintenance
 - complete an annual training on standard precautions and maintain documentation in the staff's personnel record
- 4. LA staff must follow the operating instructions provided by the manufacturer for specific information on use, cleaning, calibrating, and maintenance of hematological testing equipment.

Hematological Data from Referral Sources

- 1. Prior to requesting participant information from a HCP or other organization, LA staff must ensure that there is a signed consent for release of information on file for the participant.
- 2. Allowable sources of referral data include:
 - the NYS WIC Medical Referral Form or comparable form
 - medical or clinical records via physical or electronic format
 - electronic patient portals shared by the participant via cell phone, tablet, etc.
 - verbal result provided by the HCP. When a verbal result is used, staff must document the result in the participant's record and collaborate with the HCP to obtain written confirmation.
- 3. LA staff must document all attempts made to obtain hematological data in the participant's record. In cases in which a participant fails to provide hematological data, despite efforts by the LA to assist the participant in obtaining it, the participant cannot be denied certification or benefits, or be terminated from the WIC Program.
- 4. While hematological data is pending, staff must issue the appropriate number of months of benefits, based on the participant's risk factors, needs, and concerns.

Lead Screening

- 1. The QN or CPA must document if a blood lead test has been performed for children at 6 months of age and older at each certification.
 - For infants under 1 year of age who have not yet been screened for lead, staff must use professional judgment to determine if a referral is warranted.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1185	
		Date: 5/2023	Page 5 of 5

- For children 1 year of age and older who have not yet been screened for lead, staff must offer a referral to programs where they can obtain a blood lead test.
- 2. The QN or CPA must assess and document blood lead values, when available, as part of the nutrition assessment to determine appropriate nutrition risk, nutrition education, referrals, and the need for an individual care plan.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available SYes 🛛 No

The QN or CPA may use professional judgment to request and obtain hematological data for participants if more current hematological data would enhance the participant's nutrition assessment.

For LAs with access to an electronic registry that provides lead values, staff may use this resource to review a participant's lead status.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1043: Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1135: Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1136: Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System
- #1405: Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual
- #1421: Purchasing
- #1422: Asset Inventory

WIC Library:

- Hematology Quality Assurance Form
- NYS WIC Medical Referral Form (DOH-799)

Other:

- <u>CDC's Recommendations to Prevent and Control Iron Deficiency in the United States</u>
- CDC Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention
- USDA WIC Revised/Reissued Policy Memorandum #93-3 A
- USDA Food and Nutrition Service WIC Nutrition Services Standards, August 2013

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1186	
		Date: 11/2022	Page 1 of 3

Substance Use Screening, Education, and Referral

POLICY

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must screen all women, infant and child participants for substance use or exposure at certification appointments.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must provide and document education about the dangers of drug and other substance use to all women and participant representatives of infants and children.
- 3. Local agency staff must provide and document appropriate referrals for all women and participant representatives of infants and children participants to substance use services, as needed.
- 4. Local agencies must maintain an up-to-date referral list of current resources for substance use counseling and treatment programs.

REGULATIONS

Drug and other harmful substance abuse screening, $7 \text{ CFR } \frac{5246.7(n)(1-2)}{2}$ – screening for drugs and other harmful substances must be integrated in the certification process as part of the medical or nutritional assessment.

Nutrition education, <u>7 CFR §246.11(a)(3)</u> – ensure local agencies provide drug and other harmful substance use information to all pregnant, postpartum and breastfeeding woman and to parents or caretakers of infant and children participating in the program.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

- The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must screen all women
 participants for alcohol, tobacco, exposure to secondhand smoke, drugs and other harmful
 substances that may cause harm to a developing fetus or child. This screening is completed as part
 of the nutrition assessment via the substance use questions in the management information system.
 Staff must complete the screening at certification appointments and at other appointments, as
 applicable, based on the professional judgment of staff and participant needs and concerns.
- 2. The QN/CPA must verbally provide education about the dangers of drug and other harmful substance use to all women and participant representatives of infants and children during certification appointments.
| NEW
YORK
STATE PI | WIC
Program | WIC Program Manual | |
|-------------------------|----------------|--------------------|-------------|
| | | Section 1186 | |
| | | Date: 11/2022 | Page 2 of 3 |

Substance Use Screening, Education, and Referral

- 3. The LA must document in each participant record that substance use education was provided to all women and participant representatives during the certification appointment.
- 4. The LA must maintain and make available for distribution a referral list of providers related to substance use including counseling providers, treatment programs, and local resources for drug and other harmful substance use. This list must be updated as needed, and at a minimum annually. The LA is encouraged to collaborate with listed programs to determine guidelines for receiving referrals.
- 5. The QN/CPA must provide drug and other harmful substance use referrals, as needed, to all women and participant representatives of infants and children, based on nutrition and health needs and concerns, individual situation, and stage of change.
- 6. LA staff must document all substance use referrals in the participants' record, including any follow-up at subsequent appointments
- The QN/CPA must use current information on substance use and professional judgment to determine the recommended frequency of contacts necessary depending upon the participant's needs and concerns.
- 8. LA staff must receive role-based training and keep current on the health implications of drug and other harmful substance use, screening for substance use, providing education, and making appropriate referrals to relevant programs, resources, and providers.
- 9. LA staff must follow confidentiality procedures to ensure that substance use information for all participants and participant representatives is kept private and confidential.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available \Box Yes \boxtimes No

WIC's role in preventing substance use is to provide participants with education, referrals, and coordination of services. Although basic screening is necessary to assist in fulfilling the referral mandate, it is not within the scope of WIC to diagnose substance use disorders or to provide in-depth counseling. Through established linkages and coordination with local resources, LA staff make and facilitate referrals to local substance use services.

Education requirements are achieved by providing information regarding the dangers of drug and harmful substance use verbally or during a conversation and by providing a referral, if appropriate. Written education materials or handouts may be used to reinforce information provided during a discussion; at time of referral; or if accompanied with further education. These materials, when used alone, do not meet the requirements for providing education.

Documentation of all substance use education in each participant record allows for continuity of nutrition education.

NEW YORK STATE Progra	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	Section 1186	
	Program	Date: 11/2022	Page 3 of 3

Substance Use Screening, Education, and Referral

Screening and interventions conducted by LA staff provide a mechanism to raise awareness about the hazards of substance use, motivate participants to think about their risk behavior, promote or maintain cessation, and support dynamics of making healthy lifestyle changes.

The USDA Substance Use Prevention, Screening, Education, and Referral Resource Guide for Local WIC Agencies, located on the WIC Library, assists LA staff with integrating substance use information and referral elements into their activities. It contains available resources and links to access a variety of appropriate educational materials for WIC participants and training materials for LA staff.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1043: Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1135: Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1136: NutritionalRisk Criteria and Priority System
- #1200:Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials
- #1241: Referralto Other Services

WICLibrary:

- USDA Substance Use Prevention, Screening, Education, and Referral Resource Guide for Local WIC Agencies
- WhatYouNeed to Know About Marijuana Useand Pregnancy
- LACASAGuidance Manual
- USDAFood and Nutrition Service WICNutrition Services Standards, August 2013

Other:

- <u>New York StateOffice of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS)</u>
- NYSTobacco Control Program
- NYS Smoker's Quitline : 1-866-NY-QUITS (1-866-697-8487)
- NYSHOPEline Services: 1-877-8-HOPENY(467369) or Text HOPENY(467369)

) IOKK	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Program -	Section 1200	
		Date: 10/2022	Page 1 of 5

Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials

POLICY

- 1. Nutrition education contacts must be made available to each participant at least once every three months at no cost to the participant.
- 2. Nutrition education contacts and education materials must be based on the nutrition assessment and tailored to meet the participant's needs, goals and cultural preferences, and aim to improve health status and achieve positive change.
- 3. Each localagency must designate a Nutrition Coordinator.
- 4. The local agency must develop and implement policies and procedures to ensure an effective, ongoing process for compliance and annual review of education materials.
- 5. Exitcounseling must be offered to allwomen participants.
- 6. Information on the dangers of substance use must be provided to all women participants and participant representatives of infants and children.
- 7. The local agency must develop an annual Nutrition Education Plan that aligns with the state's nutrition and breastfeeding priorities.

REGULATIONS

Nutrition education, <u>§246.11</u>

SubstanceUse, 7CFR §246.11(a)(3)

WIC Policy Memorandum: #94-9 WIC ExitCounseling Brochure

DEFINITIONS

Exit Counseling – Counseling for women participants graduating from WIC to reinforce the important health messages received through the WIC Program such as intake of folic acid, continued breastfeeding, up to date immunizations, health risks of using alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs, and the need for a well-balanced diet.

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

WIC Program Manual

Section 1200

Date: 10/2022

Page 2 of 5

Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials

PROCEDURE

NEW

YORK

LA/VMA Policy Required ☑ Yes□ No

WIC

Program

Nutrition Education Contacts

The first nutrition education contact is the counseling and education provided at the Certification appointment. Follow-up nutrition education contacts occur at Nutrition Education and Health and Nutrition Update (HNU) appointments to continue the counseling and education initiated at certification and follow-up on nutrition needs and interventions.

- 1. Local Agency (LA) staff must must explain the positive, long-term benefits of nutrition education and encourage participants to attend and participate in these activities.Participants must not be denied benefits for failure to attend or participate in nutrition education activities.
- 2. LA staff must inform participants of the available delivery methods for nutrition education and work collaboratively to best meet the needs of the participant.
- 3. Nutrition education contacts must be offered at least once every three months during the certification period and scheduled in coordination with the participant.
- 4. The nutrition education that is offered, provided, or refused must be documented in the participant record at each nutrition education contact to ensure continuity of care.
- 5 Nutrition education must be provided and documented by a Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA).
- 6. QNs and CPAs must attend competency-based trainings that are relevant and appropriate to their job functions to ensure quality nutrition services are provided to participants.
- 7. Nutrition education contacts provided by a third-party provider, in accordance with an established Memorandum of Understanding or Joint Program Services Agreement, must be documented in the participant's record as a note and/or within an individual care plan.

Counselingand Delivery Methods

Effective nutrition education consists of counseling methods that consider the multiple learning aptitudes identified during the nutrition assessment process and subsequent follow-up. Nutrition education and counseling can be conducted through a variety of delivery methods.

- 1. LAstaff must use participant-centered counseling approaches that:
 - helpparticipants setsimple and attainable goals
 - engage the participant in meaningfuldialogue without passingjudgement
 - tailor nutrition education and referrals based on the nutrition assessment and address the participant's needs, including those specific to migrant farm workers, homeless individuals, substance using individuals, high-risk participants, and/or breastfeeding women

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1200	
		Date: 10/2022	Page 3 of 5
Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials			

- 2. LA staff must offer a variety of effective delivery methods for appointments, this may include but not limited to:
 - individualor householdcontacts
 - facilitated groups
 - contacts using technology that include, but are not limited to phone, online platform, or video conferencing that have no cost or barriers to the participant
- Providing education materials alone, without counseling, is not considered effective and must not be used as the sole means of nutrition education. Reinforcement of nutrition education may include, but not limited to publications, paper handouts, take-home activities, newsletters, videos/DVDs, bulletin boards, displays, health fairs, and public service announcements such as radio, TV advertisements, social media, and text messaging.

Nutrition Education Content

- 1. The QN or CPA must review the nutrition assessment to identify the participant's nutrition risk factors, needs and concerns before offering nutrition education.
- 2. LA staff must ensure nutrition education contacts deliver accurate, relevant, and consistent messages to participants to help achieve optimal health outcomes
- 3. LA staff must consider many factors when determining the content of nutrition education contacts and education materials provided to participants, including, but not limited to:
 - nutrition risks, needs and concerns, household situation, cultural practices, gender identity, geographic locations, environmental influences and educational abilities of the participant identified through the nutrition assessment process
 - participant's literacy leveland primary languagespoken
 - participants with disabilities
 - the relationship between nutrition, physicalactivity, and health
 - aparticipant's motivation to change
 - currentscience, evidence-based and/or effective strategies, methodologies, techniques, and nationally recognized sources
 - a life course perspective approach to improve maternal and child health that emphasizes not only risk reduction during pregnancy, but also health promotion and optimization across the life course
 - breastfeeding-friendly messages while also meeting participant needs by providing information on bottle feeding and/or formula feeding, as appropriate.
- 4. Nutrition education and counseling must be participant-centered, focusing on the topics and issues that are relevant to the participant. Additionally, federal regulations have specific requirements for two education topics: exit counseling and the dangers of substance use. These topics must be presented to participants, in addition to any needs and concerns identified.

Substance Use:

• The QN or CPA must provide and document information and education about the dangers of substance use to all women participants and participant representatives of infants and children.

	WIC	WIC Program	Manual
		Section	1200
1 and	Program	Date: 10/2022	Page 4 of 5

Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials

Exit Counseling:

- The QN or CPA must offer exit counseling to all women participants graduating from WIC at or near their final nutrition education contact. The education offered during exit counseling establishes a solid foundation to promote positive health outcomes after a women's eligibility with WIC. This counseling reinforces the important health messages received through the WIC Program. Exit counseling should not replace nutrition education when more risk-specific counseling is needed, and should be offered in addition to the nutrition risk-specific counseling. The key messages include, but are not limited to:
 - importance of adequate folic acid intake duringchildbearingyears
 - breastfeeding as the preferred method of infant feeding
 - importance of immunizations
 - healthrisks associated within take of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs
 - the need of awell-balanced diet
- The QN or CPA must offer an exit counseling brochure in conjunction with providing exit counseling to women participants. The NYS WIC Program offers "You are an Amazing Mom" as the exit counseling brochure for women participants. If the LA chooses to create their own exit counseling brochure it must include, at a minimum, information about all of the exit counseling key messages.
- The QN or CPA must document that exit counseling was offered and indicate if the brochure was accepted or refused in the participant record. Best practice is to document the specific key messages discussed.

Nutrition Education Materials

- 1. LA staff must perform an annual review of education materials which are created, purchased, or obtained from other sources, including websites, which are provided directly to participants to ensure information is current and accurate.
- 2. The LA must maintain an effective system to discard or replace outdated education materials.
- 3. LA staff must evaluate the need for the current nondiscrimination statement and WIC acronym and logos to be included on agency-developed education materials.
- 4. Education materials must include an effective combination of styles and visual images that represent the participant population and foster inclusivity.
- 5. Education materials must not endorse brand specific products, and any recommendations must be free of sponsor and product bias. Free of sponsor and product bias means free of the following:
 - brand name, company, or logo is not promoted or advertised directly to participants, unless discreetly listed as credit on a resource
 - brand names and allproduct promotion whichcouldsend a double message
 - excessive or misleadingclaim as to thebenefits of a product

) IUKK	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1200	
		Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials	

Nutrition Coordinator

Each LA must designate a Nutrition Coordinator (NC) to oversee all aspects of nutrition services and education, in coordination with the WIC Coordinator, to ensure quality nutrition services are provided to participants.

Nutrition Education Plan

The LA's Nutrition Education Plan establishes nutrition priorities, including breastfeeding promotion and support, and describes action steps planned for the year to improve participant health and nutrition outcomes. Through the Local Agency Compliance and Self-Assessment (LACASA) LAs must evaluate these priorities and develop measurable goals outlining the LA's plan to deliver quality nutrition services.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🗹 Yes 🗆 No

Any participant representative may attend a Nutrition Education appointment; however, the optimal interaction is with the authorized representative/parent, and when possible, the child participant.

The Nutrition Coordinator and Breastfeeding Coordinator are encouraged to manage the review of education materials to ensure LA compliance. However, all nutrition staff may assist in the review of education materials on an ongoing basis.

Maintenance of a tracking log by the LAfor thereview of education materials is encouraged.

LA staff may use the NYS Division of Nutrition Recipe Guidelines to assess and determine if a recipe is appropriate for distribution to participants.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual and Policy Supplements:

- #1013: Use of WIC Acronym and Logos
- #1040: CivilRights and Nondiscrimination Statement
- #1044: Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests
- #1102: WIC Services Documentation
- #1135: Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1186Substance Use Screening, Education, and Referral
- #1405: LocalAgency Policy and Procedure Manual
- #1451: Electronic Communications Use
- #1460: Local Agency Staff
- #1467:Competency Basedand Mandatory Training

WICLibrary:

- NYSDivision of Nutrition RecipeGuidelines
- LACASAGuidance Manual

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1200		
		Date: 10/2022	Page 6 of 5	
Nutrition Education Contacts and Materials				

- Youare an Amazing Mom- ExitCounseling Brochure
- Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment in WIC
- USDAFood and Nutrition Service, WIC Nutrition EducationGuidance, January 2006
- USDAFood and Nutrition Service, Nutrition Services Standards, August 2013

NEW YORK STATE Program	WIC Program Manual		
	Program	Section 1205	
		Date: 03/2023	Page 1 of 2

Food Safety

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staff conducting food demonstrations must adhere to food safety practices.
- 2. Anyone exhibiting symptoms of illness must not work in any component of food preparation or distribution.
- 3. Participants must not engage in any component of the preparation or distribution of foods, unless closely supervised by a trained local agency staff member.
- 4. Local agencies must develop and maintain policies and procedures to address food safety practices when conducting food demonstrations, per the Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual.
- 5. WIC Local Agency Coordinators and Nutrition Coordinators must monitor food recall and outbreak announcements on the <u>NYS WIC Vendors website</u>, as well as subscribe to email alerts from the <u>Food</u> and <u>Drug Administration</u>.
- 6. Local agency staff must provide food recall information and education to participants and advise on the importance of monitoring the recalls and what to do if a recall matches a product they have recently purchased or consumed.

REGULATIONS

Food and Drug Administration Food Code (2022)

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required ⊠Yes □No

- 1. Staff conducting food demonstrations must regularly review and adhere to their local agency policies regarding food safety.
- 2. Each local agency must maintain documentation of food demonstration activities, and respective monitoring and safety procedures for at least 90 days after the event.
- 3. Staff must maintain receipts of purchases as per record retention requirements.
- 4. WIC allowable foods must be used when conducting food demonstrations.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1205	
		Date: 03/2023	Page 2 of 2
Food Safety			

- 5. Prepared food from demonstrations must be consumed within two hours if left at room temperature. After two hours, any prepared food must be discarded and cannot be reused or reserved.
- 6. Staff must ask participants if they have any food allergies at the start of food demonstrations and ensure that participants with food allergies are not served food(s) that contain or are in contact with the allergen(s). In the case of a severe food allergy that is triggered by exposure, staff must ensure that the food(s) that contain the allergen(s) not be prepared or served during the food demonstration
- 7. To control for the risks of foodborne illness and cross-contamination in a food demonstration:
 - staff conducting the demonstration must be free from illness including sore throat, fever, jaundice, diarrhea, or foodborne illness
 - participating staff members must wash their hands using the proper hand washing technique
 - the food demonstration must be conducted in an area where there is adequate space to clean, prepare, cook, and serve the food
 - staff must not leave food or equipment unattended
 - food must be protected from biological, chemical, and physical contamination
 - food that is contaminated must be discarded immediately
 - staff must prepare, hold, and store food at proper temperatures as designated by the USDA Safe Minimum Internal Temperatures, located in the <u>Food and Drug Administration Food</u> <u>Code (2022)</u>

GUIDANCE

Supplies for food demonstrations are an allowable component of program operations and education materials. Staff should consider the cultural and demographic backgrounds of their participants when choosing appropriate ingredients and recipes to present.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1405: Local Agency Policy and Procedures Manual and Supplement
- #1401: Record Retention

Other:

- Food and Drug Administration Food Code (2022)
- Foodsafety.gov
- FDA Food Information Line 1-888-SAFEFOOD (1-888-723-3366)
- WIC Works Food Safety Education Materials and Information Resources
- WIC Works Food Safety for Children and Pregnant and Breastfeeding Women Resources
- USDA Dietary Guidelines for Americans, Food Safety Principles and Guidance for Consumers
- USDA Allergies and Food Safety Information

	WIC Program Manual Section 1216 Date: 02/2021 Page 1 of 3	
High Risk Care		

POLICY

- 1. All participants who meet high risk criteria must be assessed by a Qualified Nutritionist to determine the need for high risk care, at the appointment at which the high risk criteria was identified or at their next scheduled appointment.
- 2. Whenhighrisk careiswarranted, the QualifiedNutritionist mustinitiate, implement, and document an individual care plan based on the nutrition assessment, and the needs and concerns of the participant.
- 3. Whenhighrisk careis nolongerwarranted, theQualified Nutritionist orCompetentProfessional Authority must end the individual care plan.
- 4. All highrisk participantsmust beseen by aQualifiedNutritionist at leastonceduringeach certification period.

REGULATIONS

Participant Contacts, 7 CFR §246.11(e)(5) - an individual care plan shall be provided for a participant based on the need for such plan as determined by the competent professional authority, except that any participant, parent, or caretaker shall receive such plan upon request.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

Individual Care Plan – The plan of care developed for high risk participants that will assist the participant in improving identified nutrition and health-related behaviors. The individual care plan includes relevant nutrition assessment information, plans that include goals and desired health outcomes, and follow-up documentation.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required ☑ Yes □ No

- 1. Thelocal agency (LA)mustuseNew YorkState's designated highriskcriteria, perWIC Program Manual 1136 Nutrition Risk Criteria and Priority System.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) may manually assign high risk status to participants that do not have any designated high risk criteria, but have several significant risks, or concerns that the QN and participant agreeshould be followed closely andwarrant an Individual Care Plan (ICP), or as referred by a Competent Professional Authority (CPA).
- 3. The LA must have a procedure for the QN to assess participants identified as high risk, or referred for a higher level of care by the CPA, preferably at the appointment at which the high risk is identified, but no later than the next appointment.

	WIC Program I	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 121	Section 1216	
Date: 02/2021 Page 2 of 3		Page 2 of 3	
High Risk Care			

- The QN and CPA must use participant-centered skills to inform participants about the benefits of high risk care and meeting with the QN or CPA individually. Staffmustcollaborate with participants to determine the types and frequency of follow up appointments that meet the participant's needs.
- 5. When the QN determines that high risk care is warranted, or upon participant request, the QN must initiate and develop an ICP based on the participant's nutrition risk and priority level, professional judgment, and the needs and concerns of the participant/participant representative.
- 6. Ataminimum, the ICP must include:
 - subjective information
 - nutritionassessmentinformation, including identification of nutrition-related concerns
 - anaction plan thatincludes goals, desired healthout comes, and nutrition and breastfeeding supportprovided
 - aplanforfollow-up care
- 7. The ICP must be updated at each individual or household appointment to indicate progress toward goals, and to follow-up on referrals and interventions. Follow-up notes in the ICP must reflect the content of the visit, maintain a clear picture of the participant's status, and ensure continuity of care. When participants opt to attend nutrition education appointments other than individual or household appointments, staff are not required to update the ICP unless pertinent high risk related information was obtained about the participant during that appointment.
- 8. AnICPmustbeendedby the QN or CPA in the following circumstances with a documented reason when:
 - highriskcareisnolonger needed basedonimprovedhealthoutcomes .
 - aparticipant declines or nolongerwishes to receive highrisk care, or is not interested in • setting goals
 - aparticipant'scertificationperiod ends
- 9. Recertification appointments for high risk participants must be scheduled with a QN for reassessment. If the participant no longer needs or desireshighrisk care, the QN mustend the ICP from the previous certification.
- 10. For participants who have high risks that carry over to a new certification, a new individual care plan(s) must be initiated, to allow for new subjective information, and an updated assessment/plan of care to be documented.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable □Yes I No

All WIC participants areatnutritional risk, but some health conditions put participants at greaterrisk for poor health outcomes. Some of the goals of WIC high risk care and follow-up are to: • reducefetaldeathsandinfantmortality

- reduce the incidence of infants bornatlow birthweight
- increase the duration of pregnancy

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1216	
Section 121		
Date: 02/2021	Page 3 of 3	
Lilah Diak Cara		

High Risk Care

- improvegrowthofnutritionallyat-risk infantsandchildren
- reducetheincidenceof iron-deficiencyanemia
- assureregularmedical care and follow-up
- makereferralsforhealthcareorforotherresourcesas needed

Best practice is for high risk participants to see a QN at each visit for an individual appointment. However, once the ICP has been established by the QN, the participant may be scheduled with CPA staff for future nutrition education and Health and Nutrition Update (HNU) appointments.

LAs are encouraged to promote follow-up by the same QN that completes the certification and ICP. When a CPA is carrying out the ICP established by the QN, the CPA and QN should work together to ensure continuity of care and to decide when the ICP can be closed.

Obtaining anthropometry and bloodwork values more often than is required per policy may enhance the care provided to high risk participants. However, this is not required and should be discussed with the participant/parent in a participant-centered manner and be mutually agreed upon.

A QN or CPA may choose to initiate an ICP for non-highrisk participants, when warranted. Protocols may be determined by the LA, as it is not required to follow standard high risk careprocedures in this instance.

Participants should only have one ICP for the certification period. The QN/CPA uses professional judgment to end the ICP during the certification period, and/or initiate a new ICP, based on the number of risk criteria, and the participant's needs and concerns.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1102-WICServicesDocumentation
- #1135-NutritionAssessment Process
- #1136-NutritionRiskCriteriaandPriority System
- #1405-LocalAgencyPolicyandProcedureManual
- #1460-LocalAgencyStaff

WIC Library:

• USDA, Food and Nutrition Service Nutrition Services Standards, August 2013

Other:

• Refer to *Guidance forDocumenting Individual CarePlansinNYWIC* within the NYWIC Guidance Packet, available on the Miscellaneous tab in NYWIC

NEW	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
YORK	Program	Section 1220	
-	Program	Date: 07/2021	Page 1 of 4

Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services

POLICY

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must be trained and competent in conducting a breastfeeding assessment and supporting breastfeeding through the prenatal and postpartum periods.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must conduct a breastfeeding assessment at the certification of a breastfeeding dyad, when a breastfeeding dyad encounters a situationthatmayimpactmilk supply, andwhena breastfeedingparticipantrequests WIC formula.
- 3 The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must tailor WIC services based upon the breastleeding assessment, professional judgement, and the participant's breastleeding goals to support a successful breastleeding experience.
- 4. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must tailor food packages to meet the needs of the dyad, while minimizing adverse impacts on the participant's breastfeeding goals.
- 5. TheQualifiedNutritionistorCompetentProfessional Authority mustbe familiarwith the medical contraindications to breastfeeding and provide appropriate counseling and referrals.

REGULATIONS

Foodpackagesandbreastfeedingassessments, CFR246.10(e)

Nutritioneducationincludingbreastfeedingpromotionand support, CFR 246.11(d)

Encouragingbreastfeeding to all participants unlesscontraindicated forhealthreasons, $\underline{\text{CFR 246.11}}_{(\underline{e})(\underline{1})}$

DEFINITIONS

Case Conferencing – As part of the implementation of the Breastfeeding Attrition Prediction Tool (BAPT), these conferences are held among key WIC staff to discuss issues, barriers, concerns and progress of a participant's case. The goal of the conference is for WIC staff to communicate frequently and collaborate on a participant's case, to ensure consistent and coordinated care and support is provided to participants at highest risk for breastfeeding attrition.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxdot No

- 1. The Breastfeeding Coordinator (BFC) must ensure that QualifiedNutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) staff are trained and competent in conducting breastfeeding assessments, providing appropriate breastfeeding services, and tailoring food packages to assist participants in meeting their needs and reaching their breastfeeding goals.
- 2. TheQN orCPAmustreviewidentified contraindications to breastfeedingandprovide counselingandreferrals, as appropriate.Participantswhodisclose that theyareHIV-

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1220	
	Date: 07/2021	Page 2 of 4
Breastfeeding	Assessment and Tailoring Ser	rvices

positivemust be advised not to breastfeed and referred to their healthcare provider. WIC staff must maintain participant confidentiality and ensure privacy during discussions regarding a participant's HIV status.

- 3. Staff must inform pregnant participants of the food packages available to breastfeeding participants and the length of the certification period.
- 4. The QN or CPA must respect a participant's informed decision as to the infant feeding method choice and provide appropriate support, education, and tailored services, as needed.
- 5. The QN or CPA must encourage exclusive, continued breastfeeding and educate participants on how supplemental feedings of formula interfere with breast milk production and breastfeeding success.
- The QN or CPA must tailor the appointment schedule and frequency of contacts based on the assessment, professional judgement, and the participant's needs/breastfeeding goals.
- 7. The QN or CPA must refer situations that are outside their scope of practice to the BFC or Designated Breastfeeding Expert (DBE).

Conducting the Breastfeeding Assessment

- 1. Duringassessmentand counseling, the QN orCPA mustprovide participant-centered counseling, education, and anticipatory guidance, using positive words of encouragement, supporting breastfeeding as the standard method of infantfeeding, and with sensitivity to the participant's individual breastfeeding experience.
- 2. The QN or CPA must evaluate a participant's breastfeeding knowledge, support, and confidence to ensure barriers are identified and discussed prior to or during the breastfeeding assessment.
- Trained staffmay observe afeeding to assess breastfeeding questions, concerns or complications the dyad is experiencing. The DBE and other trained and credentialed breastfeeding staff may provide hands-on assistance with permission from the participant, and if allowed by sponsor agency protocol and any professional scope of practice.
- 4. Based on the breastfeeding assessment, the QN or CPA must tailor food packages to support exclusive breastfeeding. When a breastfeeding participant requests WIC formula, the QN or CPA must issue the minimum amount, based on the assessed need and provide support and education.
- 5. The QN or CPA must discuss the option of using a breast pump to provide expressed breast milk to the infant and to maintain milk supply when a participant requests WIC formula or when the breastfeeding dyad is separated.
- 6. The QN or CPA must not routinely issue any quantity of WIC formula to breastfed infants less than one month of age. After a complete breastfeeding assessment, there may be

	WIC Program Manual Section 1220 Date: 07/2021 Page 3 of 4	
Breastfeeding	Assessment and Tailoring Serv	ices

instanceswhenadyadneedsminimalsupplementation. Amaximumofonecan (or equivalent) of formulamaybeissuedwhenoneof the followingconditions is present: a Separationofmotherandinfantformedical reasons

- b. Motherwithprevious breastsurgery/trauma
- c Cleftpalate/liporothercongenital abnormalities
- d Multiplebirth
- e Delayedlactation
- f Medicationsaffectingbreastmilksupply
- g Insufficientglandular tissue
- h Hormonal/endocrineabnormalities(PCOS,DM,Thyroidissues)
- i QN/CPAprofessional judgement

Ifonecan (or equivalent) of formulaisissued within the first monthof life, staff must clearly document the rationale in the infant's record.

- 7. At any time, a participant may change breastfeeding status. Any request for formula or additional formula must be assessed by a QN or CPA. If a breastfeeding infant is receiving formula, the amount of formulamust be tailored to support breastfeeding goals. Any amount of formula issued must be the minimum amount needed, based on the new breastfeeding status.
- 8. The QN or CPA must continue to reassess the breastfeeding experience at all subsequent individual and household appointments and provide on-going support, guidance, participant-centered counseling and referrals, as needed.

GUIDANCE

The WIC breastfeeding assessment is the review and evaluation of a breastfeeding dyad's experience and collected/objective data which is used as a basis for providing participant-centeredcounseling with the breastfeeding participant. Assessment of breastfeeding practices must be documented in the participant's record; however, the use of the breastfeeding assessment tool shouldbe used as aguidefor new staffas they acquire theskills necessary to gather data in a participant-centered manner within the management information system.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1221:BreastfeedingPeer CounselorProgram
- #1225:BreastPump Program
- #1135:NutritionAssessment Process
- #1460:LocalAgencyStaff
- #1250:WICFoodPackages andTailoring

WIC Library:

- U.S.DepartmentofAgricultureVENA Guidance
- NYSBreastfeedingAssessmentTool andGuidance
- USDAPeerCounselorTrainingCurriculum
- CPAandBFCCompetencies

Section 1220

Date: 07/2021

Page 4 of 4

Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services

Other:

- U.S.DepartmentofAgriculture, Food andNutritionServiceBreastfeedingPolicy and Guidance, • July2016
- U.S.DepartmentofAgriculture,FoodandNutritionServiceNutritionServicesStandards, • August 2013 NYSDOHPolicyStatement:SituationsWhereBreastfeedingisContraindicated
- •
- AmericanAcademy of Pediatrics PolicyStatement: Breastfeedingand the Use of Human • Milk

	{	NEW
E	_	YORK
		Y

Section 1221

Page 1 of 4

Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program

Date: 07/2022

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies must establish and maintain a Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program in accordance with the USDA WIC Breastfeeding Model Components for Peer Counseling and the USDA WIC Breastfeeding Curriculum.
- 2. The LA Breastfeeding Coordinator is responsible for developing, implementing and monitoring the Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program, including supervision of the Peer Counselor Coordinator and Peer Counselors.
- 3. Peer Counselors must provide a minimum number of participant contacts based on the LA's established protocols and document all contacts and attempted contacts in the management information system.
- 4. Peer Counselors must work within their scope of practice and yield appropriately to the WIC-Designated Breastfeeding Expert or other qualified staff.
- 5. Peer Counselor time and activity must be exclusively for the provision of breastfeeding promotion and support activities. Peer Counselors do not replace WIC staff or perform their duties.
- 6. Peer Counselor funding must be used in accordance with the Allowable Costs for Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Programs.

REGULATIONS

<u>USDA Breastfeeding Policy and Guidance Document 2016</u> – Breastfeeding Peer Counselors add a critical dimension to WIC's efforts to help women initiate and continue breastfeeding. Evidence from randomized controlled trials evaluating breastfeeding peer counseling indicates that Peer Counselors effectively improve rates of initiation, duration, and exclusivity. FNS' goal is to integrate peer counseling as a core WIC service and assure that Peer Counselors are available in as many local agencies as possible.

<u>USDAWIC Breastfeeding ModelComponents for Peer Counseling</u>– Outlines the specific components required for a WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program.

<u>The 2011 SurgeonGeneral's Call to Action to Support Breastfeeding</u> - Recommends that peer counseling be available to all women in WIC.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section1011.

WIC Program Manua

Section 1221

5	NEW
\sim	YORK
/	
	- STATE
	Yes

Date: 07/2022

Page 2 of 4

Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required Yes No

WIC

Program

PeerCounselors

- 1. Peer Counselors(PCs) must meet the following qualifications:
 - be a paraprofessional, in which they perform specific tasks within a defined scope of practice and assist professionals, but are not licensed or credentialed as healthcare, nutrition, or lactation consultant professionals
 - be recruited and hired from WIC's target population, and, to the extent possible, represent the same racial/ethnic background as the participants they support
 - havebreastfed at least one baby
 - be available to WIC clients outside usual local agency (LA) hours and outside the WIC LA environment
- 2. The Breastfeeding Coordinator (BFC) or Peer Counselor Coordinator, (PCC) must train PCs using the USDA WIC Breastfeeding Curriculum.
- 3. PCs must follow a defined scope of practice, limited to the support of normal breastfeeding as outlined in the USDA WIC Breastfeeding Curriculum.
- 4. The BFC must train allstaff on the Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program and the Peer Counselor's scope of practice and establish an efficient referral system to PC services.
- 5. LAs must use the Frequency of Peer Counselor Contacts Guidance to establish protocols for peer counselor contacts, especially focusing on those time periods critical to breastfeeding. (Refer to the Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Policy Supplement.)
- 6. PCs must manage their caseloads and document all contacts and attempted contacts with WIC participants in a timely manner, using the Peer Counselor Module in the management information system (MIS).
- 7. PCs must have regular, systematic, supervision and monitoring by the LABFC or PCC.
- 8. LAs must establish procedures for PCs to complete and submit the NYS WIC Peer Counselor Productivity Record to adequately track all time worked. The BFC or PCC must review these records upon submission. The NYS WIC PC productivity records must be available for NYS DOH review for monitoring purposes.
- 9. The BFC must review PC Program data utilizing the reports found in the PC Module on aroutine basis as a method of monitoring and oversight.
- 10. The BFC or PCC must observe various types of PC counseling, involving both prenatal and postpartum participants, when conducting quality assurance activities.

NEW	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
NEW YORK STATE Program Date	Section 122	Section 1221	
	Program	Date: 07/2022	Page 3 of 4
	Breastfeed	ling Peer Counselor Progra	m

- 11. PCs must receive payment based on a fair wage within the region and must be paid for time spent training.
- 12. LAs must monitor PC Program spending and work to maximize funds to provide optimal PC services.
- 13. The BFC must assess the PC program annually using the Peer Counseling Program Assessment Form.
- 14. LAs must establish community partnerships to enhance the effectiveness of the WIC peer counseling program.
- 15. Peer Counselors mustorly provideWIC PCservices to WICparticipants.
- 16. PCs that providesupport in the hospital:
 - must comply with hospitalvisitation policies and yield to the hospital's lactation consultant
 - mustorly provide WIC PCservices to WIC participants
 - may provide WIC outreachtonon-WIC participants

GUIDANCE

BFCs areencouragedtoprovidePCs mentorshipopportunities withmoreexperiencedPCs.

PCs should have regular internet access and the equipment that they need to be able to document immediately after the contacts are made. Breastfeeding peer counseling funds may be used to purchase cellphones, laptops, tablets, and other technology to help PCs carry out their role. Refer to the Allowable Costs for Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Programs document for a full list of allowable expenses.

LAs that provide PC services in the hospital and/or in-home settings should designate PCs with additional PC training and experience, who work well independently, and demonstrate exemplary counseling skills for the needs of these participants during critical breastfeeding time periods.

To provide models and motivate other LAs to strengthen their breastfeeding promotion and support activities and ultimately increase breastfeeding initiation and duration rates among WIC participants, LAs should consider applying for a WIC Breastfeeding Award of Excellence when eligibility requirements are met for each award level.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sectionsand Policy Supplements:

- #1224: Breastfeeding Education, Promotionand Support
- #1460:LocalAgency Staff



Section 1221

Page 4 of 4

Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program

Date: 07/2022

WICLibrary:

NEW YORK

STATE

- AllowableCosts for Breastfeeding Peer Counseling
- TheNYSWICPeer Counselor Productivity Record
- NYSWICPeer Counseling ProgramAssessmentForm
- LAAdministrativeDirective 07/21-#49NYS WIC Peer Counselor Productivity Record

OtherResources:

- USDAFoodandNutrition ServiceNutrition Services Standards, August 2013
- USDAWIC Breastfeeding Support Website
- USDAWICBreastfeeding Awards of Excellence
- USDABreastfeeding Policy and Guidance, July 2016

Section 1224

Date: 02/2021

Page 1 of 4

Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies must include breastfeeding education, promotion and support goals and activities in their annual Nutrition Services Plan.
- 2. EachlocalagencymustdesignateaBreastfeedingCoordinator.
- 3. Local agency staff must provide education on the benefits of breastfeeding, inform participants of WIC breastfeeding services, and offer all prenatal and breastfeeding participants a referral to a peer counselor.
- 4. Local agencies must incorporate role-specific breastfeeding education, promotion and support training into orientation programs for new staff, and ongoing training for all staff who have direct contact with participants.
- 5. Local agenciesmustprovide a breastfeeding-supportive environmentthatpromotespositive breastfeeding messages and encourages breastfeeding anywhere in the clinic.
- 6. Localagenciesmustfosterpositive relationshipswithcommunity breastfeeding partners and other entities that interfacewith participants to form referral networks and establish a continuum of care.
- 7. Local agencies must receive approval from New York State Department of Health prior to implementation or involvement with an external mother support group.

REGULATIONS

Breastfeeding Promotion and Support, <u>7CFR §246.11(c)(7)</u> - Establish standards for breastfeeding promotion and support which include, at aminimum, the following: a policy that creates a positive clinic environment which endorses breastfeeding as the preferred method of infant feeding; a requirement that each local agency designate astaff person to coordinate breastfeeding promotion and support activities; a requirement that each local agency incorporate task-appropriate breastfeeding promotion and support training into orientation programs for new staff involved in direct contact with WIC clients; and a plan to ensure that women have access to breastfeeding promotion and support activities during the prenatal and postpartum periods.

Breastfeeding Promotion and Support, <u>7CFR 246.11(d)(2)</u> - Develop an annual local agency nutrition education plan, including breastfeeding promotion and support, consistent with the State agency's nutrition education component of Program operations.

<u>USDA Breastfeeding Policy and Guidance Document 2016</u> – A major goal of WIC is to improve the nutrition status of infants; therefore, unless medically contraindicated, WIC staff must provide education and anticipatory guidance to pregnant and postpartum women about breastfeeding and encourage women to breastfeed for as long as possible.

Right to breastfeed, <u>NY CLS Civ R §79-e</u> - a mother may breast feed her baby in any location, public or private, where the mother is otherwise authorized to be, irrespective of whether or not the nipple of the mother's breast is covered during or incidental to the breastfeeding.

Section 1224

Date: 02/2021

Page 1 of 4

Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAPolicyRequired ØYes □No

- Localagencies(LAs)mustdeveloppoliciesandprocedures thatdefineall staffrolesand responsibilities in breastfeeding education, promotion and support.
- Local agencies must designate a Breastfeeding Coordinator (BFC) to manage breastfeeding promotion, education, and support activities. Adequate time must be allotted to the BFC to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position. Refer to WPM 1460 Local Agency Staff.
- 3. All staffmusthaveabasicknowledge of breastfeeding and understand their unique role in order to effectively promote and support breastfeeding as the standard method of infant feeding.
- 4. Staffmustinform participants of thebreastfeeding services that WIC provides, including breastfeeding food packages and the length of the certification period available to breastfeeding women, breastfeedingassessments and education from gualified staff, breastpumps and peercounseling services.
- 5. The BFC must provide relevant breastfeeding training to all new WIC employees, and at a minimum of once per year, to all staff in the direct contact with WIC participants. This training must be relevant to the various staff roles, knowledge and needs. Documentation of training content and staff attendance must be maintained.
- 6. Ongoingstafftrainingonbreastfeedingpromotionandsupportincludesbutisnotlimitedtothe followina:
 - WICprogramgoals, philosophy, policies and procedures on breastfeeding education, • promotion and support
 - staffroles and responsibilities related to promoting and supporting breastfeeding •
 - breastfeedingassessment strategies •
 - appropriatefood packageassignmentand tailoring toensureminimal amounts offormulaare • provided to breastfeeding infants culturallyappropriate breastfeedingpromotion and supportstrategies
 - •
 - currentbreastfeedingmanagement techniques •
 - breastfeedingcounselingandeducation strategies •
 - breastpumpassessment, issuanceand inventory •
 - referralprocedureswhenabreastfeedingissuearisesoutsideofastaffperson's scope of practice
- 7. Unless contraindicated for health reasons, LA staff must provide culturally appropriate breastfeeding education and support, starting in the prenatal period, to encourage parents to exclusively breastfeed their infant for thefirst sixmonths andto continuebreastfeeding, with the addition of complementary foods, for the firstyear of life and thereafter for as long as mutually desired by the breastfeeding dyad.

NEW	WIC	WIC Program	
		Section 12	24
Y	Program	Date: 02/2021	Page 3 of 4

Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support

- 8. AllLAstaffmustrespectamother'sinformeddecisionas toherinfantfeedingmethod ofchoice.
- 9. Local agenciesmustnotdisplayimages of teats and breastmilksubstitutematerials. This includes, and is not limited to, any materials that feature bottles or bottle feeding.
- 10. Local agenciesmustprovideeducational and promotional materials that portray breastfeeding as the standard method of infant feeding.
- 11. A spacemustbe provided forbreastfeedingparticipants wishing tobreastfeed and/orexpress milk in private and be easily located through clear signage.
- 12. Local agencies must receive approval from New York State Department of Health (DOH) prior to implementation or involvement with an external mother support group that includes non-WIC attendees, such as a baby cafe.
- 13. Local agencies that provide breastfeeding education, promotion and support services through an external mother support group must ensure all materials are consistent with USDA's Peer Counselor Training Curriculum, Federal Regulations, policies, and guidance.

GUIDANCE

Whenappropriate, the participant's family and friends should be included in breastfeeding education and supports essions.

Local Agencies are encouraged to support breastfeeding-friendly workplace policies for all WIC staff.

Professional staffshouldattendadvancedlactation training on acontinual basis and keep up-to-dateon the most current evidenced-based lactation information and research.

Aspartof theLAs breastfeedingeducation, promotion and support activities, LAs are encouraged to plan and participate in World Breastfeeding Week and National Breastfeeding Month.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1020:Participant-CenteredWIC Environment
- #1220:Assessingthe BreastfeedingDyad
- #1221:BreastfeedingPeerCounselorProgram
- #1200NutritionEducationContacts andMaterials

Other:

 U.S.DepartmentofAgricultureLovingSupport toGrow andGlow inWIC:BreastfeedingTraining for Local WIC Staff



Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support

- U.S.Department of Agriculture, Foodand Nutrition Service Nutrition Services Standards, August
- 2013
 USDAWIC BreastfeedingSupportWebsite
- NationalWIC AssociationSixSteps toAchieveBreastfeedingGoalsChecklist
- NYSWICBreastfeedingPartners Website

•

- NYSBreastfeedingCoalition-Laws and Legislation
- NYSDepartmentofHealth- BreastfeedingPromotion,ProtectionandSupport

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	Program	Section 1225	
		Date: 06/2021	Page 1 of 5
	Brea	st Pump Program	

POLICY

- 1. Prior to issuing a breast pump, staff must conduct a breast pump assessment to identify the participant's need and determine themost appropriate type of pump. Breast pumpassessments must only be conducted by trained Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority staff.
- 2. A breast pumpmust only be provided to a participant with an active certification, after the birthof the infant, when a need is identified.
- 3. Local agencies must have readily available, hospital grade electric, personal grade electric and manual breast pumps thatmeet New York StateWIC technical specifications.Staffmustmaintain an ongoing breast pump inventory in the management information system and conduct a monthly physical inventory of all breast pumps and collection kits.
- 4. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must provide education to each participant issued a breast pump on how to use and maintain the breast pump and ensure that the participant understands and signs a breast pump agreement.
- 5. TheQualifiedNutritionistorCompetentProfessional Authority mustprovideeducation on hand expression of breast milk to all participants interested in breastfeeding.
- 6. Localagenciesmustprovidebreastpumps,collectionkits, and breastfeeding aids at no charge to participants.
- 7. Local agencies must not deny participants' benefits, terminate certifications, or suspend participants for unreturned, damaged, or lost breast pumps. Local agencies must not charge participants replacement fees or costs of the breast pumps.

REGULATIONS

<u>USDA Food and Nutrition Services Standards, Breastfeeding Education, Promotion and Support,</u> <u>Standard 8 (C)(4)(d)(g)</u> - specifies provision of breastfeeding support and assistance throughout the postpartumperiod. This includes support for breastfeedingparents separated from their infants because of hospitalization or illness; breastfeeding parents of multiples or infants with special needs, and breastfeedingparents returning to work or school. Thestandard states that distribution of breast pumps is to be based on assessment, appropriateness, and what is to be most supportive for the participant's needs and situation.

<u>USDA Breastfeeding Policy and Guidance Document 2016</u> – A major goal of WIC is to improve the nutrition status of infants; therefore, unless medically contraindicated, WIC staff must provide education and anticipatory guidance to pregnant and postpartum women about breastfeeding and encourage women to breastfeed for as long as possible.

	WIC Program	NIC Program Manual
WIC Program	Section 1225	
	Date: 06/2021	Page 2 of 5
Breas	st Pump Program	

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required ØYes □No

The WIC Coordinatormustensure that a system is established to meet participants' breast pump needs. TheBreastfeeding Coordinator (BFC) is responsible formanaging the breast pump program and ensuring that Qualified Nutritionist (QN) and Competent Professional Authority (CPA) staff are trained and competent in the following duties when issuing breast pumps to breastfeeding participants:

- breastpumpassessment
- participanteducationand follow-up
- issuance/return/participant liability
- breastpumpsandbreastfeeding aids
- inventorymanagement

Documentationoftrainingmustbemaintainedby the local agency (LA) and made available upon request by the New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH).

Breast Pump Assessment

- 1. The QN or CPA must conduct breast pump assessments prior to issuing breast pumps. These assessments include a review of the breastfeeding dyad's medical conditions and pumping needs.
- 2. TheQN orCPAmustfollowtheNYSWICProgram BreastPumpIssuanceGuidelines, to determine the appropriate breast pump for each participant.
- 3. TheQN orCPAmustdocumentthebreastpumpand collectionkitissuance, and issuance reason in the participant's record, as appropriate.
- 4. When a participant has a breast pump that does not meet the needs of the breastfeeding dyad (i.e. f rom Medicaid, private insurance, or gift, etc.), a breast pump assessment must be conducted and, if necessary, an appropriate breast pump issued.

Participant Education and Follow-Up

- 1. A breast pump does not replace breastfeeding and if issued unnecessarily, may interfere with or undermine breastfeeding. The QN or CPA must ensure that the participant is educated on the importance of feeding the infant at the breast.
- 2. The QN or CPA must ensure that the participant is educated on the importance of hand expression. Hand expression of breast milk is important for all breastfeeding persons, especially during emergencies when electric breast pumps may not be available.

1	NEW		WIC Pr	ogram Manu	ıal
~	YORK	WIC	Sect	ion 1225	
SIATE	STATE	Program	Date: 06/2021		Page 3 of 5
		Brea	st Pump Program		
3.			eparticipant todevelop apumpir aintenance and proper breast		provide
4.	Foranyparti	cipantwhoisissuedane	lectricbreastpump, theQN orCP	Amust:	
	 operat ensurel docume follow-u 	ing correctly and th baby'sweightischecked entedinthe participant upatthenextWIC appoi	tactwithin24-72hours toensure at the participant is using it p froutinelyatWIC orby thehealthca 'srecord ntment,orbyphone,as needed iseloris offeredforcontinuedsupp	roperly ireprovider, and	umpis
5.	Foranyparti	cipantwhoisissuedama	anual breastpump,theQN orCPA	Amust:	
	• follow-u		72hours intment,orbyphone,as needed iseloris offeredforcontinuedsupp	ort	
6.			C issuedbreastpump,theQN or the breast pump by referring to		
lssuand	e/Return/Parti	cipant Liability			
1.	Agreement		breast pump must read and s m must be scanned into thepa		
2.		smustbeadvised that the WIC LA.	theyare responsible forreturnin	gloanedmulti-us	erbreast
3.	to contact	the participant and t or damage. All conta	breast pump is not returned or ake their statement describing ct attempts and any information	g the events rela	ated to the breast
4.	TheLAmust	notfineaparticipant orv	vithholdbenefits foralost,stolen,or	damagedbreast	pump.
5.		IYS DOH, document	cted, such as in the case of a t the circumstances, and refer t	•	-
Breast	Pumps and B	reastfeeding Aids			
1.	Local agen Breast Pui		aseorleasebreastpumps thatar	eidentifiedon the	NYSWIC
	Breast Pu	nps List.			

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1225	
		Date: 06/2021	Page 4 of 5

Breast Pump Program

- 2. Local agencies have the option to purchase or lease hospital grade electric multi-user pumps. The LA must weigh the benefits and risks of owning or leasing, and consider the cost of insurance, maintenance, liability, and storage.
- 3. Local agencies must follow the Breast PumpReview Process described in the WPM 1225 Breast Pump Program Policy Supplement when considering the addition of a new breast pump.
- 4. Local agencies must adhere to WPM 1412 Annual WIC Program Budget Policy when purchasing breast pumps and breastfeeding aids.

Inventory Management

- 1. Two types of breast pump inventory must be maintained, including an ongoing inventory in the management information system and a monthly physical inventory. Inventory records must be retained, per WPM 1401 Record Retention, and available to NYS DOH upon request.
- 2. At least two WIC staff must participate in the breast pump physical inventory management process. The staff person who conducts the monthly physical inventory cannot order breast pumps or issue breast pumps to participants.
- 3. When a participant transfers to another LA, staff must ensure that the participant's pumping needs are met and that the management information system inventory is updated. The receiving LA must not fill out the "Actual Date Returned" in the 'BF Pumps and Kits' tab until the breast pump is physically received by the issuing LA
- 4. Returnedbreastpumpsmustbe thoroughlyinspected toensuresafety(e.g.,checkingpressure with a pressure gauge, ensuring no broken parts, etc.), and cleaned according to the manufacturer's instructions.
- 5. Breast pumps must always be safely secured in an area within the LA, that will reduce the risk of theft. Storing breast pumps in a location under lock and key is strongly recommended and preferred.

GUIDANCE

Breastpumps support the initiation and continuation of breastfeeding in situationswhere the infant cannot nurse at thebreast and/or the breastfeeding dyad is separated. The QN orCPA should communicate with health care providers when electric pumps are issued to high-risk breastfeeding dyads and if there are ongoing medical concerns related to breastfeeding management or infant growth and development. Appropriate forms must becompleted before discussing participant health information witha health care provider.

Section 1225

Date: 06/2021

Page 5 of 5

Breast Pump Program

The QN or CPA should be aware of breast pumps manufacturers that local hospitals use, as well as the pumps available through Medicaid and private insurance. This is to ensure that proper support can be provided to participants with a non-WIC issued pump including troubleshooting issues that may occur.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1220:BreastfeedingAssessmentandTailoringServices Policy
- #1401:RecordRetentionPolicy
- #1412:BreastPumpFiscal Policy

WIC Library:

- BreastfeedingAssessmentTool& Guidance
- BreastPumpAssessmentandJustification Form
- BreastPumpDecision Model
- NYSWICBreastPumps List
- NYSWICProgramBreastPumpIssuanceGuidelines
- NYSWICBreastPumpProgramTechnicalSpecificationsandRequirements Form
- BreastPumpAgreement Forms

Other Resources:

- USDAWICBreastfeedingSupportCampaignwebsite
- <u>www.BreastfeedingPartners.org</u>
- <u>NYSDOHPolicyStatement:SituationsWhereBreastfeedingisContraindicatedorNot</u> <u>Advisable</u>

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1240	
		Date: 10/2023	Page 1 of 4

Outreach and Retention

POLICY

- 1. The local agency must annually develop, implement, and document a plan for increasing and/or sustaining enrollment and participation of eligible individuals in the WIC Program.
- 2. The local agency must inform all eligible individuals, as well as offices and organizations that serve significant numbers of eligible individuals, of the availability of Program benefits, including eligibility criteria and the location of local agency sites, through public announcement and distribution of information at least annually.
- 3. The local agency must collaborate with private and public health care providers, education systems, community programs, and organizations that provide services to potentially eligible individuals.
- 4. The local agency must designate an Outreach Coordinator to coordinate all program operations related to outreach and retention.

REGULATIONS

Requirements, 7 CFR § 246.4(a)(7)

Outreach/Certifications in Hospitals, 7 CFR § 246.6(f)

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

Staffing

- 1. Local agency (LA) staff are responsible for conducting outreach and retention efforts related to their area of expertise, as assigned by the Outreach Coordinator.
- 2. The Outreach Coordinator must ensure appropriate outreach and retention activities are completed by staff to meet established goals and objectives.
- 3. The Outreach Coordinator, must ensure all staff have access to the NYS Local Agency Outreach Toolkit and work with the WIC Coordinator to identify and meet staff training needs.

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1240	
		Date: 10/2023	Page 2 of 4
Outreach and Retention			

Community Assessment

- 1. The LA must complete an annual community assessment to identify areas of unmet need and underserved populations. The assessment must include:
 - WIC participant data and caseload using available management information system (MIS) reports
 - community data, including geographic location, demographics, culture, economics, and existing groups, institutions, businesses, and organizations as outlined in the NYS Local Agency Outreach Toolkit
 - LA resources and operations, including staff; site location(s); hours of operations; appointment flow; participant-centered services; relationships with health care providers; education systems and community organizations
 - surveys of current participants
 - feedback from stakeholders of organizations serving WIC eligibles, as well as input from advisory boards and focus groups, as available

The Outreach Plan

- 1. Using the information obtained from the community assessment, the LA must develop an annual outreach plan that includes at least one goal with supporting objectives and planned activities. The outreach plan must be documented in the MIS within 30 days of the start of the Federal Fiscal Year.
- 2. The plan must consist of efforts that:
 - are tailored to the needs of the community based on assessment
 - are culturally and linguistically appropriate for the populations served
 - address potential barriers to WIC participation, as outlined in the NYS Local Agency Outreach Toolkit
 - include strategies to reach underserved populations, such as women in the early months of pregnancy and migrants
 - include retention strategies to increase and maintain the participation of enrolled individuals, especially children beyond age on
- 3. The LA must conduct outreach and/or retention activities to meet the minimum requirements, as outlined below:

Activity Type	Description	Minimum Requirement
Tier 1	Ongoing or standardized efforts that do not require a significant amount of time or resources	1x Monthly
Tier 2	Targeted efforts that will require a moderate amount of time and/or resources	1x Quarterly
Tier 3	Large-scale events or efforts that require planning	1x Annually

4. Staff must document all outreach and retention activities in the outreach log in the MIS, and must include the type of activity, location, date, and staff name(s). The Outreach Coordinator must monitor the outreach log to ensure the minimum required activities are completed.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1240	
		Date: 10/2023	Page 3 of 4

Outreach and Retention

- 5. At least monthly, the LA must evaluate caseload by utilizing available MIS reports. and modify the outreach plan as needed to maintain the assigned target caseload.
- 6. At least annually, the Outreach Coordinator must evaluate the effectiveness of all outreach and retention efforts and modify the next year's plan as needed to achieve established goals.

Partnerships and Collaborations

- 1. The LA must identify and build relationships with other programs, organizations, and providers that serve the WIC-eligible population to share information, establish referral networks, and coordinate program services.
 - establish Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) and Joint Program Service Agreements (JPSA) with other programs, as outlined in WPM #1044 Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests policy
 - establish effective methods of communication with health care providers to share WIC information and ensure the referral of potentially eligible individuals to WIC. At minimum, this includes:
 - \circ $% \left({{\left({{{\left({{{}}}}} \right.}} \right.}\right,}\right.}$
 - \circ visiting and/or engaging with health care provider offices annually

Retention

- 1. The LA must implement strategies to ensure individuals participate until categorically or otherwise ineligible.
 - maintain a participant-centered environment as outlined in WPM #1020 Participant-Centered WIC Environment
 - assess and adjust scheduling practices based on participant surveys
 - implement procedures to contact participants about upcoming and missed appointments as outlined in WPM# 1100 Certification Overview and by using MIS reports

WIC Welcomes You

- 1. The LA must ensure all components of the WIC Welcomes You Initiative, as outlined in the NYS Local Agency Outreach Toolkit, are employed at all WIC sites.
- 2. The WIC Welcomes You poster must be prominently displayed at all sites in languages appropriate to the site and community.
- 3. The Outreach Coordinator, in conjunction with the WIC Coordinator, must monitor and assess the implementation of the WIC Welcomes You Initiative, which includes:
 - observing and evaluating site processes and staff who provide services
 - ensuring staff understand their roles and responsibilities related to the initiative
 - providing staff training and guidance

TORK	/IC rogram
------	---------------

Section 1240

Page 4 of 4

Outreach and Retention

Date: 10/2023

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement available ⊠Yes □No

Best practice is to designate a LA staff other than the WIC Coordinator as the Outreach Coordinator due to the demands of each role.

The annual Local Agency Compliance and Self-Assessment (LACASA) document serves as a management tool to address key program areas and can assist LAs with evaluating their outreach plan.

LAs may use the MIS at outreach events to prescreen applicants and schedule appointments and at popup sites to conduct appointments.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1020: Participant-Centered-WIC- Environment Policy
- #1040: Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement Policy
- #1044: Guidelines for JPSA, MOU, Research and Data Requests Policy
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview Policy
- #1241: Referral to Other Services Policy
- #1460: Local Agency Nutrition Staff

WIC Library:

- NYWIC Guidance Packet, Outreach Planning and Tracking Log Guidance QRG
- NYS Local Agency Outreach Toolkit
- Pop-Up Sites Guidance

Other:

- Nutrition Services Standards, Standard 10. Program Coordination
- <u>WIC Works Resource System</u>
- The WIC Hub

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1241	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 1 of 4
Referral to Other Services			

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staff must provide Program applicants and participants with referral information to appropriate health-related and public assistance programs based on the assessed needs and interests of each applicant and participant.
- 2. Local agency staff must follow up on referrals at least once during the certification period or more often, as appropriate.
- 3. Localagency staff must documental referrals and follow-up information in the participant's record.
- 4. The local agency must work with internal and external community partners to establish a referral network and maintain a system to facilitate referrals within and between programs.
- 5. The local agency must maintain a current referral resource list for local agency staff to use to provide appropriate referral information to participants, based on their needs.

REGULATIONS

Certification of participants, <u>7 CFR §246.7(a)</u> Programreferralandaccess, <u>7 CFR §246.7(b)(1) and(3)</u> Nutritional Risks, <u>7 CFR §246.7(e)</u> Drugand other harmfulsubstance abusescreening, <u>7 CFR §246.7(n)(1)-(2)</u> Nutritioneducation, <u>7 CFR §246.11(a)(3)</u>

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes ⊠No

- Local agency (LA) staff must refer uninsured and underinsured applicants and participants to the New York State of Health for health insurance. Staff must provide written information when referring participants to the Medicaid Program.
- 2. LAstaff must provide referrals for:
 - prenatal care if currently not receiving care; pregnant women without private insurance must be referred to the Medicaid Obstetrical and Maternal Service (MOMS) or local area facilitated enroller
 - abnormalor lack of hematology and leadtesting
 - other nutrition assistance programs, as appropriate, to improve food security or to assist participants when a WIC Program waiting list has been established
 - other internaland external resources and community organizations, as appropriate

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1241	
		Date: 07/2022	Page 2 of 4
Referral to Other Services			

- 3. The LA must maintain and provide, as appropriate, a list of current resources for substance use counseling and treatment.
- 4. LA staff must screen participants for immunization status and refer participants in need of vaccinations to local providers.
- 5. LAs must make every effort torefer and transfer participants to other WIC local agencies when there is a disruption of WIC services, such as a disaster or site closure.
- 6. LA staff must obtain consent from the participant or Participant Representative prior to sharing any participant information with another organization.
- 7. LAstaff mustdocument the following in the participant's record:
 - incomingandoutgoingreferrals
 - the provision of written and electronic information and resources
 - currentparticipationstatus in thereferred program
 - declination ofreferrals
 - follow up information including, but not limited to, whether services were obtained, any barriers to obtaining services, and any additional follow up plans
- 8. The local agency referral resource list must be reviewed at least annually and be kept up-todate to be used as a resource when referring participants.

GUIDANCE

All LAstaff play a vitalrole in assessing an applicant or participant's need for referrals and must be aware of the programs and organizations in their community that can meet these needs.

To ensure participants' needs are met, follow-up on referrals should occur as often as possible, especially during appointments that require assessment, such as health and nutrition update appointments.

In order to provide better continuity of care, LAstaff may document in the participant's record that no referrals were needed at the time of the assessment.

To ensure follow through, LA staff may assist participants in connecting with other services and programs when possible. This may include sending participant contact information to the referred program, such as name and phone number, through paper forms or online referral systems, allowing the program to then contact the participant directly. LA staff may also contact the referred program directly to assist the participant in the initial connection. However, consent from the participant must be obtained prior to sharing any participant information. LA staff must also document the referral appropriately in the participant's record.
NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1241	
			Referral to

The LA should maintain an adequate supply of written materials, such as pamphlets or brochures, about other programs in their communities to facilitate immediate distribution to participants as needed. Local agencies should also consider sharing information electronically, such as website links.

An effective referral system not only includes providing referrals to participants, but also maintaining a relationship with other community partners to facilitate referrals to the WIC local agency. LAs are encouraged to monitor and document how applicants are referred to WIC in order to identify any gaps in outreach strategies.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sectionsand Policy Supplements:

- #1100:WIC CertificationOverview
- #1043: Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1183: Immunization Screening
- #1185:HematologicalTestingand Lead Screening
- #1186:SubstanceUseScreening, Education, and Referral
- #1240Outreachand Retention

WICLibrary:

- WICNutrition Services Standards
- NYSWICReferralResource List
- LocalAgency Outreach Toolkit

Other:

- WIC Works WIC LearningOnlineJob Aid–ReferralResources
- NY StateOf Health, the OfficialHealth Plan Marketplace

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Program -	Section 1250	
		Date: 01/2023	Page 1 of 3

WIC Food Packages and Tailoring

POLICY

- The supplemental foods authorized for use in the New York State WIC Program include infant cereal, infant food vegetables and fruits, infant food meat, milk and milk alternatives, cheese, eggs, canned fish, vegetables and fruits, breakfast cereal, whole wheat/whole grain bread, tortillas, pasta, and/or rice, juice, legumes and/or peanut butter, infant formula, exempt infant formula, and WIC-eligible nutritionals.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must prescribe the appropriate food package and tailor the type and amount of foods most appropriate for the participant based on a complete nutrition and breastfeeding assessment.
- 3. When tailoring a food package, the Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must make available, but not exceed, the full monthly maximum allowances of supplemental foods in each federal food package category.
- 4. Homeless participants and participants who lack adequate food storage and preparation facilities must be offered alternate foods to accommodate their needs.

REGULATIONS

Supplementalfoods, 7 CFR §246.10

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

- 1. All participants with an active certification must be assigned a category specific food package, even if no food benefits are issued, in order to maintain an accurate caseload record.
- 2. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must prescribe and tailor the food package to provide the type and amount of supplemental foods most appropriate for the participant based on:
 - acomplete nutrition assessment including dietary assessment for each participant;
 - a breastfeeding assessment of the breastfeeding dyad;
 - the health care provider's (HCP) documentation when indicated;
 - the participant's category and/or breastfeeding status; and
 - the participant's needs and preferences in relation to the food package including personal/cultural/religious food preferences, and household conditions.

) TURK		WIC Program Manual Section 1250		
				Date: 01/2023
		WIC Food Packages and Tailoring		

- 3. Monthly quantities of supplemental foods may only be reduced for individual participants and only for sound nutrition reasons based on nutrition risk, nutrition and dietary needs, personal food preferences, household conditions, or for proration purposes. Nutrition counseling and education must be provided when reducing monthly quantities.
- 4. Food packages for the breastfeeding dyad are closely tied and their breastfeeding statuses must match. If a participant is breastfeeding multiple infants with different breastfeeding statuses, their breastfeeding status must match the infant with the highest level of breastfeeding.
- 5. Participants breastfeeding partially (some) and participants breastfeeding multiples partially (some) do not receive food benefits when their infant turns six months old. They remain certified and receive breastfeeding support, peer counseling, and breast pumps as appropriate, and participant-centered nutrition education until their infant is one year of age.
- 6. Benefits issued must be used only by the participants for their personal use and cannot be used in the preparation of meals served in a communal food service setting. This restriction does not prevent the foods from being used personally by the participant in a nonresidential setting, such as a childcare facility or residential institution.
- 7. The QN/CPA must carefully assess each participant's living situation to determine the most appropriate supplemental foods to provide, such as individual serving-size containers or modified forms of certain foods to accommodate participants with inadequate food storage or preparation facilities.
- 8. Local agencies (LAs) must communicate with homeless facilities and institutions in which WIC participants reside to ensure food package conditions are met, per WPM Section 1100 WIC Certification Overview Policy supplement. If a participant is found to be living in a homeless facility or institution that does not meet the required conditions, LA staff must discontinue issuance of WIC foods. The participant shall, however, continue to receive infant formula and all other WIC benefits, such as nutrition education, including breastfeeding promotion and support, and referrals until the required conditions are met.
- 9. LA staff must be aware of NYS WIC approved foods and formulas available for participants. Staff must provide the current list of acceptable foods in appropriate languages to participants and must instruct participants on the appropriate redemption and use of supplemental foods.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available $ext{ Yes } \Box ext{ No }$

When tailoring food packages, it is important for the QN/CPA to convey to participants that the quantities of WIC foods are supplemental, and by design, intended to deliver priority nutrients to WIC participants and address the prevalence of inadequate and excessive nutrient intakes for each WIC participant category. Nutrition education should focus on the optimal use of WIC foods, such as shopping for value and nutrition, and preparing and cooking WIC foods to assist participants in full use of their WIC food benefits.

) IUKK	MIC	WIC Program Manu	
	WIC Program	Section 125	0
		Date: 01/2023	Page 3 of 3

WIC Food Packages and Tailoring

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1135: Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1220: Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services
- #1253:WIC Formulas
- #1255:Food Package III and Medical Documentation
- #1260: Food Benefit Issuance

WICLibrary:

- ApprovedFormulas in the New York State WIC Program Formulary
- Monthly Maximums of NYS ApprovedFormulas
- WIC AcceptableFoods Card
- WICNutrition Services Standards
- USDA WICFood Package Policy and Guidance 2018

Websites:

<u>Nyswicvendors.com</u>

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual		
		Section 1253		
		Date: 06/2022	Page 1 of 3	
WIC Formulas				

POLICY

- 1. Local agency staff must issue one of the New York State primary contract infant formulas as the first choice for formula issuance.
- 2. Formulaissuancemust not exceed the Monthly Maximums of NYSApproved Formulas.
- 3. Local agency staff must only issue infant formulas, exempt formulas, or WIC-eligible nutritionals that are currently on the Approved Formulas in the New York State WIC Program Formulary.
- 4. Local agency staff must tailor the food package to provide the type, form, and amount of formula most appropriate for the participant, based on the nutrition and breastfeeding assessment.
- 5. Local agency staff must only issue ready-to-use formula under certain circumstances, which must be documented in the participant's record.
- 6. To issue Food Package III, local agency staff must obtain medical documentation from a healthcare provider licensed to write medical prescriptions. The medical documentation must substantiate a qualifying medical condition.
- 7. Thelocalagency must discard all returned formula due to safety issues.

Regulations

Food packages, <u>7 CFR §246.10(e)</u> - Local agencies must issue the primary contract infant formula as the first choice of issuance. State agencies must provide at least the full nutrition benefit authorized to nonbreastfed infants up to the maximum monthly allowance for the physical form of the product specified for each food package category. Infant formula amounts for breastfed infants, even those in the fully formula fed category, should be individually tailored to the amounts that meet their nutritional needs.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □ Yes ☑ No

- 1. Inform participant representatives that WIC is a supplemental program and the amount of formula offered by WIC is limited to the maximum allowed under USDA regulations.
- 2. Tailor the food package to provide the appropriate type, form, and amount of formula, based on a participant-centered assessment of need, formula tolerance, breastfeeding status, age, and any other relevant factors.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Progran	nManual
	Program	Section 1253	
		Date: 06/2022	Page 2 of 3

WIC Formulas

- 3. Assess and address feeding skills, techniques, and participant representative's concerns prior to changing formula type or form.
- 4. When starting or switching to a new formula, staff must tailor the formula and issue the lowest quantity until formula tolerance is determined. Issuance must be based on assessed need, while minimizing barriers for the participant, such as transportation and site schedules.
- 5. Offer frequent WIC appointments and phone contacts untilformula tolerance is established to reduce the need for formula returns.
- 6. When significant formula intolerance is identified, the Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent ProfessionalAuthority (CPA) mustconduct an in-depth evaluation of infant feeding practices, and refer the participant to the HCP as warranted. Refer to WPM 1253 WIC Formulas policy supplement for required evaluation criteria.
- 7. TheQN or CPA must only authorize ready-to-use (RTU) formula when at least one of the following conditions exists:
 - unsanitary or restricted water supply
 - inadequate refrigeration
 - participantrepresentativehas difficulty diluting powder or concentrateformula
 - formulaproduct is manufactured only intheready-to-useform
 - participant has significant intolerance to powder or concentrate formula, and staff determines after a thorough nutrition assessment that RTU is indicated

Ready-to-useformula may be issued under the following conditions only when issuing Food Package III:

- theready-to-useform better accommodates the participant's condition
- theready-to-use form improves the participant's compliance in consuming the prescribed WIC formula

TheQN or CPA must document the justification for authorizing RTU formula in the participant's record.

- 8. Inaccordance withFood Package III issuance, with appropriate medical documentation, theQN or CPA may:
 - assign and issue higher amounts of formula or WIC-eligible nutritionals in lieu of solid infant foods to infant participants 6 to 12 months of age who are unable to tolerate solid infant foods
 - issueaformula or WIC-eligiblenutritionalto achild or woman participant
- 9. When a breastfeeding mother requests infant formula, the QN or CPA must conduct a breastfeeding assessment to determine the reason for the formula request, and ensure the mother receives support from WIC staff with breastfeeding training, a peer counselor, lactation

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1253	
		Date: 06/2022	Page 3 of 3
WIC Formulas			

specialist, or other healthcare professional whocan adequately address the mother's concerns, and help her continue to breastfeed.

- 10. The QN or CPA must encourage breastfeeding mothers to choose powder formula to minimize the amount of formula that is prepared at one time. Staff must support breastfeeding women to continue breastfeeding to the maximum extent possible through minimal supplementation with infant formula.
- 11. Local agencies must accept unused (unopened) WIC issued formula from participants when there has been a change in formula type or form.
- To protect participants from potentially unsafe formula, all returned formula must be discarded. Returned formula must not be given to other WIC participants or donated to other organizations or programs.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available ☑ Yes □ No

FoodPackage III formula refers to all contract and exempt WIC formulas and WIC-eligible nutritionals issued to a Food Package III participant.

Formula issuance is based on USDA's definition of Full Nutrition Benefit (FNB). The Monthly Maximums for NYS WIC Approved Formulas provides information on the maximum amount of NYS WIC approved formula which may be issued to a participant. This resource is available electronically to all local agencies and is updated whenever a revision occurs.

As the infant grows and requires more calories and nutrients, the amount of formula provided by the NYS WIC Program may not be sufficient. Refer participants needing additional formula to health insurance programs, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), health care providers, and food pantries.

RESOURCES

WICProgramManualSections and Policy Supplements:

- #1220Breastfeeding Assessment and Tailoring Services
- #1250WICFood Packages and Tailoring
- #1255FoodPackage III and MedicalDocumentation
- #1460LocalAgency Staff

WICLibrary:

- ApprovedFormulas intheNYSWIC ProgramFormulary
- Basic FormulaandInfantFeedingTraining
- Monthly Maximums of NYSApproved Formulas
- NYSWICFormula Tolerance Screening Tool

5	NEW
5	YORK
	STATE

WIC

Program

Section 1255

Page 1 of 5

Food Package III and Medical Documentation

Date: 10/2022

POLICY

- The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must only authorize Food Package III for women, infant and child participants who have a qualifying condition that requires the use of a Food Package III formula, as documented by a health care provider licensed to write medical prescriptions.
- 2. The local agency must obtain the appropriate medical documentation from a health care provider prior to issuing Food Package III.
- 3. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must only issue Food Package III formulas that are currently on the Approved Formulas in the New York State WIC Program Formulary, and issuance must not exceed the Monthly Maximums of NYS Approved Formulas.
- 4. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must always assess Food Package III prescriptions for accuracy, appropriateness and compliance with WIC regulations and guidelines, and collaborate with the health care provider, as appropriate, and with the participant representative's consent.
- 5. The Qualified Nutritionist or Competent Professional Authority must tailor the food package to provide the type and amount of foods most appropriate for the participant based on the health care provider's medical documentation and assessed need.
- 6. Local agency staff must educate the participant representative on the proper procedure for redeeming WIC benefits for exempt formula and WIC-eligible nutritionals.

BACKGROUND

Medical documentation, <u>7 CFR 246.10(d)</u> - Medical documentation is required for the issuance of the following supplemental foods: any non-contract brand infant formula; any infant formula prescribed to an infant, child, or adult who receives Food Package III; any exempt infant formula; any WIC-eligible nutritional; any authorized supplemental food issued to participants who receive Food Package III.

Food packages, <u>7 CFR 246.10(e)</u> - Food Package III is reserved for issuance to women, infants and child participants who have a documented qualifying condition that requires the use of a WIC formula (infant formula, exempt formula or WIC-eligible nutritional) because the use of conventional food is precluded, restricted or inadequate to address their special nutritional needs.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMAPolicy Required □ Yes ☑ No

WIC Program Manu	al
------------------	----

Section 1255

Page 2 of 5

Food Package III and Medical Documentation

Date: 10/2022

- 1. The Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) must authorize Food Package III for participants with medical documentation of a qualifying condition from a health care provider (HCP) for the following participants:
 - infants 6 months or older with higher amounts of contract infant formula in lieu of infant foods (infant fruits and vegetables and infant cereal)
 - infants and children with exempt infant formula
 - children withcontract infant formula

WIC

Program

- children and women with infant foods (infant fruits and vegetables and infant cereal) in lieu of the cash value benefit
- children and womenwith WIC-eligiblenutritionals
- 2. Qualifying medical conditions that may require the issuance of Food Package III include, but are not limited to:
 - premature birth

NEW

YORK

ΤΑΤΕ

- lowbirth weight
- failure to thrive
- inbornerrors of metabolism and metabolic disorders
- gastrointestinaldisorders, malabsorption syndromes, immune system disorders
- severefood allergies
- life threatening disorders, diseases and medical conditions that impair ingestion, digestion, absorption or utilization of nutrients that could adversely affect the participant's nutrition status
- 3. Local agency staff must obtain medical documentation at every certification <u>or</u> at the end of the prescribed length of use period, whichever is first. Medical documentation is also required in the following instances:
 - when changes to the prescribed foods and Food Package III WIC formula are needed within the medical documentation approval period
 - when an infant changes from an exempt to a contract formula during the medical documentation approval period
- 4. Local agency staff must obtain medical documentation on the NYS WIC Medical Documentation Form, an HCP prescription or on HCP letterhead and must include:
 - participant's name and date of birth
 - qualifyingmedicalcondition(s)
 - name of the WIC formula(s) or WIC-eligible nutritionals
 - quantity needed(ounces) per day of prescribed WIC formula(s) or WIC-eligiblenutritionals
 - length of time prescribed (approval period)
 - supplementalfood restrictions or contraindications, if applicable
 - signature of the HCP and date
 - contact information of HCP(astamp is acceptable)
- 5. TheQN or CPAmust assess Food Package III prescriptions from the HCP and communicate with the

WIC Program Manual	
--------------------	--

Section 1255

Date: 10/2022

Page 3 of 5

Food Package III and Medical Documentation

HCP when there are omissions or discrepancies, or when the prescriptions do not meet the requirements of this policy or appear to be inappropriate for the participant. The local agency must obtain consent from the participant before contacting the HCP in accordance with the WPM and sponsor agency guidelines.

- 6. Medical documentation must be scanned into the participant's record. Staff must write a General or Nutrition Education Note with the heading MED DOC stating that a WIC Medical Documentation Form was received and whether it was approved, pending due to missing or incomplete information, or disapproved. In addition, the following must also be documented in a Med Doc Note:
 - whenonemonth of benefits wereissued

NEW

YORK

ΓΑΤΕ

WIC

Program

- when the QN or CPAreceived clarification from the HCP
- a verbal consent for a release of information from the participant representative is given with written consent to follow within one month
- when a participant's condition changes and a previously approved, valid medical documentation form is no longer consistent with WIC guidelines or policy
- when a participant receives any formula from a source other than WIC (Medicaid, private insurance, etc.)
- whenfurther documentation is neededfrom the HCP by the next appointment
- allattempts tocontact HCPfor clarification or missing information
- 7. The QN or CPA must not issue a Food Package III formula without medical documentation. When medical documentation is missing or is incomplete, the QN or CPA must obtain a verbal confirmation from the HCP before issuing Food Package III. The verbal confirmation and all attempts to obtain verbal confirmation must be documented in the participant's record. After accepting a verbal confirmation, one month of benefits may be issued, and written medical documentation must be obtained within one month.
- 8. Food Package III recipients are eligible to receive all of the supplemental foods for which they would have qualified in the absence of their special medical needs.
- 9. When a participant receives any formula from a source other than WIC (Medicaid, private insurance, etc.), they may still qualify for supplemental foods under Food Package III if they have a qualifying medical condition and medical documentation from the HCP. For special formulas that are not on the NYS Formulary, local agency staff must refer participants to Medicaid or private insurance. If participants are receiving formula from another source in an amount that is less than the federal monthly maximum, they may receive the remaining amount from WIC. The total amount of formula provided from all sources must not exceed the federal monthly maximum.
- 10. The QN or CPA may determine the form (powder, concentrate or ready-to-use) of formula based on the nutrition assessment. Ready-to-use formulas must only be authorized when the QN or CPA determines and documents in the participant's record that at least one of the required conditions exists, as per WPM 1253 WIC Formulas.
- 11. Food PackageIII mustnot be authorized for:
 - infants whose only condition is a diagnosed formula intolerance or food allergy to lactose, sucrose, milk protein or soy protein that does not require the use of a formula

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1255	
		Date: 10/2022	Page 4 of 5

Food Package III and Medical Documentation

- women and children who have a food intolerance to lactose or milk protein that can be successfully managed with the use of one of the other WIC food packages (i.e., Food Packages IV-VII)
- solely for the purpose of enhancing nutrient intake or managing body weight without an underlying qualifying medical condition
- anon-specific food intolerance
- 12. Local agency staff must inform participants where they may redeem Food Package III benefits, and assist them with identifying appropriate WIC vendors, if needed. Local agency staff should work with their Vendor Management Agency (VMA) to locate special formulas as needed.
- 13. For inbound out of state transfers, the local agency should request a copy of medical documentation from the sending agency as part of the Verification of Certification (VOC) process. However, receipt of such documentation is not required for the transfer of benefits and should not become a barrier to service. If the infant is approaching 6 months of age and a copy of the medical documentation cannot be obtained, the QN/CPA must contact the HCP prior to issuing infant foods.
- 14. If there is any reason to suspect fraud (medical documentation is inconsistent or conflicts with participant's assessment, etc.), make a referral to the Bureau of Special Investigations (BSI).

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available ☑ Yes □ No

Non-specific symptoms such as formula or food intolerance, fussiness, gas, spitting up, constipation, diarrhea, vomiting, dermatitis, colic, to enhance or manage body weight (without an underlying condition) are not qualifying medical conditions. Participant preference is not a qualifying medical condition. Low birth weight and premature birth apply only to infants and children < 24 months old; failure to thrive applies only to infants and children.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1038 Program Complaints and SuspectedFraud or Abuse
- #1043 Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- #1135 Nutrition Assessment Process
- #1160 Transfers and Verification of Certification
- #1250 WICFood Packages and Tailoring
- #1253 WICFormulas
- #1260 Proration of Food Packages
- #1460Local Agency Staff

WIC Library:

- ApprovedFormulas in the NYS WIC Program Formulary
- Basic Formula and Infant Feeding Training
- Formula Tolerance Screening Tool

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Program -	Section 1255	
		Date: 10/2022	Page 5 of 5

Food Package III and Medical Documentation

- LocalAgency Guidance for NYS WIC MedicalDocumentation for Food Package III Monthly Maximums of NYSApprovedFormulas NYSWIC Medical Documentation Form(DOH-4456) •
- •
- •

	MIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1260 Date: 09/2022 Page 1 of 4	
		Section 1260	
	Program	Date: 09/2022	Page 1 of 4
	Fo	od Benefit Issuance	

POLICY

- 1. Benefit issuance must be based on nutrition and breastfeeding assessments, and be coordinated with appointments for certifications, nutrition education, health and nutrition updates, breastfeeding support, and other nutrition services.
- 2. Physical presence requirements must be followed when determining if benefits may be issued without the participant or Participant Representative's physical presence.
- 3. Local agency staff must document exceptions to normal benefit issuance procedures in the participant's record.
- 4. Benefits mustnot be issued tohospitalized participants.
- 5. When a participant's needs have changed after benefits have been issued, local agency staff must void and reissue benefits to meet their current needs.
- 6. Benefits must be prorated when issued 16 days or more past the Benefit Start Date, unless exceptional circumstances apply.

REGULATIONS

Issuance of food instruments, cash-valuevouchers and authorized supplemental foods, 7CFR §246.12(r)

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes⊠No

Benefit Issuance

- 1. Benefit issuance occurs after the Qualified Nutritionist (QN) or Competent Professional Authority (CPA) has assessed needs, offered nutrition education, and assigned a tailored food package.
- 2. Local agency (LA) staff must not issue benefits until the QN/CPA has assigned a food package that matches the participant's category and meets their nutrition, breastfeeding, and medical needs; personal, cultural, and religious food preferences; and household conditions.
- 3. Based on eligibility, professional judgment, and participant needs, LA staff may issue one, two, or three months of benefits. A prorated month of benefits is considered one month of benefits when determining the maximum number of months a participant may be issued benefits.

	MIC	WIC Program Manual		
	TE Program	Section 1260		
		Date: 09/2022	Page 2 of 4	
	Fo	od Benefit Issuance	·	

4. LA staff must provide education to all participants and Participant Representatives on the eWIC shopping process, including how to select WIC approved items and how to use an eWIC card.

RemoteBenefitIssuance

- 1. LAstaff mustfollow allbenefit issuanceprocedures noted above when issuing benefits remotely.
- 2. Instances in which LA staff may issue benefits remotely without the participant or Participant Representative's physical presence include, but are not limited to:
 - when a nutrition education appointment is completed remotely, including online nutrition education
 - whenaparticipantrequires a food packagechange(FPC)
 - when a participant or Participant Representative was physically present for the appointment but left the LA before benefits were issued, due to circumstances such as:
 - o equipmentfailure
 - o stafferror when issuing benefits
 - $_{\odot}\,$ LA was awaiting and has now received complete medical documentation or unopened containers of formula
 - after receipt and verification of missing proof of eligibility to certify a participant with a temporary 30-day certification
- 3. When benefits are issued remotely, the LA must notify the Authorized Representative (AR) when the benefits have been issued and document this communication in the participant's record.
- 4. When completing a nutrition education appointment or FPC remotely over the phone, LA staff must verify the participant or Participant Representative's identity by asking them to verify the AR's date of birth and mailing address zip code prior to issuing benefits.

Signatures for eWICCards and Benefits

- 1. When an eWIC card is assigned to a household in person, LA staff must obtain the Participant Representative's signature at the household level to acknowledge receipt of the card.
- Prior to issuing benefits, LA staff must verify that the participant or Participant Representative understands their Rights and Responsibilities and has confirmed they would like benefits to be issued.
- 3. When issuing benefits in person, LA staff must obtain the Participant Representative's signature at the household level using either the signature function of the management information system (MIS) or Paper Certification Form and scan or upload the form into the participant's record.
- 4. When issuing benefits remotely, LA staff must use the signature function of the MIS to document at the household level, that a signature was not obtained due to remote issuance.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual			
		Section 1260			
	Program	Date: 09/2022	Page 3 of 4		
Food Benefit Issuance					

Reissuance of Benefits

- 1. LA staff may reissue the current month's benefits if the original benefits were incorrect through no fault of the participant or if they must be changed for medical or breastfeeding needs.
- 2. LA staff may reissue future months' benefits if the original benefits were incorrect through no fault of the participant or if they must be changed for medical, breastfeeding, nutritional, religious, or food preference needs.
- 3. Prior to reissuing food benefits, the QN/CPA must review the food package and update it if necessary.
- 4. LA staff must void and reissue the appropriate food items, taking into account any redeemed quantities.
- 5. Benefits from past months, such as unopened containers of formula, cannot be reissued in the current or future months.
- 6. If reissuance is needed due to a formula change, benefits must not be reissued until the LA has received complete medical documentation and any unopened formula containers, if applicable.
- 7. LAstaff must document there issuance of benefits and there as on in the participant's record.

ReissuanceofRedeemed Benefits

- 1. Redeemed benefits must not be reissued except under extreme circumstances such as being destroyed in a house fire or lost while fleeing a domestic violence situation. The LA must obtain approval from the NYS Department of Health prior to reissuing redeemed benefits that were lost.
 - LAs must not reissue redeemed benefits in areas where a mass disaster has affected multiple households where mass care relief organizations, such as The American Red Cross or the Salvation Army, are providing feeding services.
- 2. LA staff must determine which food items were lost by reviewing the participant's benefit record and having a discussion with the AR. Only the lost redeemed food items from the current benefit month can be replaced.
- 3. If benefits are being reissued 16 days or more past the Benefit Start Date (BSD), LA staff must accept the system-applied proration, regardless of the amount of redeemed benefits that were destroyed.
- 4. The AR must sign a statement, such as the "Attestation of Lost Benefits", attesting to the fact that their food benefits have been lost. This statement must be maintained in the participant's record.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual			
	STATE Program	Section 1260			
		Date: 09/2022	Page 4 of 4		
Food Benefit Issuance					

5. Thereason for the reissuance must be documented in the MIS.

Proration

- 1. LAstaff may only override the system-applied proration in the following circumstances:
 - when the proration is caused by astaff or system error
 - when it can be justified that the participant has a nutritional need and can reasonably use the food benefits in the days remaining before the next BSD
- 2. LA staff must document the reason for overriding a system-applied proration in the participant's record.

GUIDANCE

While nutrition education appointments may be offered remotely, face-to-face personalized contact is considered the optimal method for providing nutrition education. LA staff must assess the participant's needs, concerns, and preferences and use professional judgment when determining if remote nutrition education is appropriate, which includes determining the number of months of benefits to issue.

In disasters affecting a large number of people, of a regional or State nature, where emergency declarations initiate action by traditional Federal and State public and private disaster assistance providers, the role of WIC should not be considered a first-line defense to respond to the nutritional needs of disaster victims. Replacing redeemed but lost benefits should only occur in an isolated personal misfortune situation, where one or a few households might be affected by some destructive incident such as a house fire or domestic violence situation.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sectionsand Policy Supplements:

- #1100:WIC Certification Overview
- #1101: Physical Presence Requirements
- #1200: Participant Centered Nutrition Education and Counseling
- #1250: WICFood Packages and Tailoring
- #1255:Food Package III and Medical Documentation
- #1330Lost, Stolen, or Damaged eWIC Cards
- #1408:Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Planning

WICLibrary:

- USDAFood Package Policy and Guidance
- SampleAttestation Statement for Lost Benefits

	WIC	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1325	
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 1 of 2

eWIC Card Inventory

POLICY

- 1. The local agency must develop and maintain procedures for the receipt and security of eWICcards and for the maintenance of the EBT Cards Inventory in the management information system.
- 2. An EBTCardInventory Report mustbesubmittedquarterly toCentralOffice.

REGULATIONS

Fooddelivery methods,7CFR§246.12(a)

Definitions, 7 CFR §246.2

Certificationofparticipants, 7CFR §246.7(f)(2)(iv)

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions locatedinSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMAPolicy Required Ves 🗆 No

- 1. EBTinventory procedures must encompass a list of all local agency sites, card distribution methods, card security measures and duties of designated staff.
 - Distributionmethods must include staffresponsible for cards and the inventory process for each site.
 - eWICcards mustbestored inasecurearea, as designated by the agency.
 - Staff must be designated as back-up to complete the functions performed by staff that are absent.
- 2. eWICcards willbeshipped directly from the EBT contractor to the designated local agency ship-to site.
- 3. Local agency staff must enter the EBT Cards Inventory in the management information system upon receipt of the shipment. (e.g. If the agency received 24 sleeves of cards, all 24 sleeves must be accounted for in inventory at the site level).
 - Cardranges should be no greaterthan 250 prior to issuance to WIC households.
- 4. eWICcards must be assignedtosite(s) in the management information system and distributed to site(s) actively seeing participants by the designated staff.
- 5. The local agency must submit the quarterly EBT Card Inventory Report to Central Office in October, January, April and July. The report must be submitted no later than the 7th business day of the month the report is due to ensure an adequate supply of eWIC cards.

NEW YORK STATE	wic	WIC ProgramManual			
		Section 1325	1325		
	Program	Date: 04/2022	Page 2 of 2		
	eV	VIC Card Inventory			

eWICCard SiteClosure Procedure

- 1. Allunassignedgroups ofcards mustbereturned to the mainsite.
- 2. The management information system must be updated to accurately reflect the status of all eWIC cards.
 - Anygroupofcards thatis "Unassigned" mustbereassignedtoanothersite.
 - Any groups of cards that were "Active" and have had cards issued from the group must be returned to the main site to be closed. The local agency must notify Central Office of the card group number range.

eWICCard AgencyClosureProcedure

1. The local agency must notify. CentralOffice of all eWIC cardranges and the status so that Central Office can determine possible redistribution to another agency.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🛛 Yes 🖂 No

eWIC cards will be shipped on an as-needed basis as determined by Central Office, to maintain an inventory equal to twenty percent (20%) of local agency active caseload. The cards will be returned to the contractor if damaged. Agencies must notify Central Office to assist with the return process.

RESOURCES

WICProgramManual Sectionsand Policy Supplements

- #1405:LocalAgency Policy and Procedure Manual Policy Supplement
- #1419:SiteChanges andRenovations Policy

WIC Library

- EBTCardInventory Report Submission Guide
- EBTCardGuidance

WIC ProgramMan	ual
----------------	-----

Section 1330

Page 1 of 2

Lost, Stolen, or Damaged eWIC Cards

Date: 05/2022

POLICY

- 1. eWICcards reported as lost, stolen, or damaged must be deactivated in the management information system.
- 2. When an eWIC card is reported as lost, stolen, or damaged, localagency staff must issue a replacement card.

REGULATIONS

NEW YORK

FoodDelivery Methods, <u>7CFR §246.12</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

WIC

Program

PROCEDURE

LA/VMAPolicy Required □Yes ⊠No

DeactivatingandReplacingLost, Stolen, or DamagedeWICCards

- 1. When an eWICcard is reported as lost, stolen, or damaged, the local agency must deactivate the card in the management information system, destroy the card if damaged, and replace the card.
- 2. TheeWICcard must be replaced withinseven business days of noticefrom the participant or authorized representative.
- 3. If an eWIC card is returned to the local agency review the household record associated with the returned card.
 - If the eWIC card contains active benefits and a new card has not been issued already, contact the authorized representative to pick up the current card at the local agency or the local agency may mail a replacement card and destroy the old card.
 - If the returned card has already been deactivated and a new card issued, destroy the card.

MailingReplacement eWIC Cards

- 1. Local agencies must mail a replacement eWIC card if there is a barrier preventing the authorized representative from physically coming to the local agency.
- 2. When mailing a replacement eWIC card is required, local agency staff must first confirm the authorized representative's mailing address and instruct the authorized representative to contact the local agency upon receipt of the card.
- 3. The replacement eWIC card must be mailed prior to assigning the new card number in the household record. eWIC cards must not be mailed with active benefits on the card.

WIC ProgramManu

Section 1330

Date: 05/2022

Page 2 of 2

Lost, Stolen, or Damaged eWIC Cards

- 4. eWICcards must be mailed firstclass, including the following phrase "Do Not Forward, Return to Sender" on the envelope.
- 5. Window envelopes must not be used to maile WIC cards.

Program

WIC

- 6. Local agencies must only use their street address for the return address and not include "WIC" or the WIC Program name on the envelope.
- 7. Once the authorized representative confirms receipt of the card the local agency must verify the card number and assign the card to the household record.
- 8. Local agency staff must use the signature function of the management information system to document at the household level that a signature was not obtained for the eWIC card due to mailing, but that it was confirmed with the authorized representative that they have received the card.
- 9. The local agency must inform the authorized representative that their remaining current month's benefits are now available on the card.
- 10. Local agency staff must keep a log to track all eWIC cards that have been mailed and staff responsible.

GUIDANCE

NEW

YORK

TATE

Onceareplacementcard is assigned to a household in the management information system, any remaining benefits will automatically transfer to the new card.

WhileeWIC cards must bereplaced within seven business days of notice, localagencies must make every effort to replace cards as soon as possible to avoid an interruption of benefits.

Thefollowing is an example tracking sheet for logging mailedeWIC cards:

HH#	Auth Rep Name	Mailing Address	Card #	Date Mailed	Staff Mailing Card	Date Received	DateCard Assigned	Staff Assigning Card

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1325:eWICCardInventory
- #1038:Fraudand Abuse

5	NEW
2	YORK STATE
2	6

Program

WIC Program Manual

Section 1401

Page 1 of 2

Record Retention

Date: 06/2017

POLICY

- 1. Records that are directly related to the performance of the WIC Program contract (contract deliverables) must be maintained for the year in which they were made, plus six additional years.
- 2. The agency must establish a disposition schedule, which must be maintained in the Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual.
- 3. The agency must make all files available for United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and NYS DOH personnel to inspect, audit and copy.

BACKGROUND

Federal Regulation 7 CFR 246.25 requires the state and local agency maintain full and complete records concerning Program operations.

New York State regulations, contained in Clause 10 of Appendix A of the standard contract, mandates retention of records for the remainder of the calendar year in which they were prepared, as well as six additional years thereafter.

Confidentiality of participant and vendor information is protected by Federal regulation, 7 CFR 246.26.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions.

PROCEDURE

- 1. The sponsor agency is responsible for ensuring that records are retained for the required length of time, even when the agency no longer provides WIC Program services.
- 2. Ineligible applicant information must be maintained and is subject to retention requirements.
- 3. The disposition schedule, which must be maintained in the Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual, must address:
 - Number of years the files will be maintained in active storage
 - How and when inactive records will be removed from active filing system
 - Number of years the records will be maintained in inactive storage
 - Current inventory of inactive records and where they are stored
 - Methodology for destruction of records
 - Boxing and labeling of records
 - Maintenance of tracking form
- 4. All participant records must be stored in secured locations.

	MIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1401		
	WIC	Section 1401		
	Program	Date: 06/2017 Page 2 of	Page 2 of 2	
Record Retention				

- 5. Files may be kept in electronic form (e.g. electronic copies of scanned documents) rather than paper form with the exception of documents for which it is critical to retain an original signature and/or notarized documents. Sponsor agencies are required to maintain security and confidentiality of electronic records.
- 6. The current federal fiscal year plus two years must be stored on site. The remaining four years of records may be stored off-site in a secure location with limited access as long as they are accessible within 48 hours' notice. The current year ends at the federal fiscal year closeout date (February of the following year).
- 7. After the record retention requirements are met, inactive records that contain confidential information or that identify a specific individual, must be shredded, incinerated or destroyed in such a way that confidential information cannot be revealed.
- 8. When local agencies close or no longer provide WIC Program services, prior to ceasing operations, arrangements must be made to retain all WIC Program records in accordance with the retention requirements outlined in this policy.

GUIDANCE

All peer counselor files are subject to retention requirements and filed in participants' paper charts when applicable. They are not to be saved in one file as "Peer Counselor Documents."

Records or documents that do not contain confidential information or personal identifiers can be disposed of in accordance with the sponsor agency policy.

RESOURCES

- Record Retention Policy Supplement
- WPM 1043 Confidentiality, Releasing/Disclosure of Information
- WPM 2006 Vendor Files

WIC	Program	Manual
-----	---------	--------

Section 1402

Page 1 of 3

Nutrition Services & Administration Expenditures

Date: 9/2023

POLICY

NEW

YORK

STATE

WIC

Program

- All sponsoring agency staff who are paid with WIC Nutrition Services and Administration (NSA) funds must participate in quarterly time studies. Staff must complete Employee Time and Effort Study Timesheets which document time spent on each NSA functional category: General Administration, Breastfeeding Promotion and Support, Client Services, and Nutrition Education.
- 2. Quarterly time studies must be submitted for the months of November, February, May and August each federal fiscal year as documentation of personal service costs, unless otherwise directed.
- 3. Each Local Agency (LA) shall expend a minimum of one-sixth (16.67%) of NSA Costs on nutrition education activities each federal fiscal year.
- 4. Each LA's NSA Costs toward breastfeeding promotion and support activities must equal or exceed the USDA breastfeeding promotion and support activities percent threshold for the federal fiscal year.
- 5. Each LA must submit the NSA Expenditure Summary at the end of each federal fiscal year.

REGULATIONS

Nutrition education, <u>7 CFR § 246.11</u> Program costs, <u>7 CFR §246.14</u>

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

USDA breastfeeding promotion and support activities percent threshold – the percentage threshold is calculated each year on October 1 by multiplying the annually adjusted national minimum expenditure amount by the number of pregnant and breastfeeding women in the Program based on the average of the last three months of final data.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required □Yes ⊠No

Completion of NSA Expenditure Summary Reporting

- 1. There are two (2) components that must be completed as part of NSA Expenditure Summary reporting:
 - Employee Time and Effort Study Timesheets submitted quarterly
 - If a required staff member cannot complete the Employee Time and Effort Study Timesheet for any reason, an email must be sent to <u>wicnsatimeandeffort@health.ny.gov</u> with the staff member's name and an explanation.

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1402	
		Date: 9/2023	Page 2 of 3

Nutrition Services & Administration Expenditures

- New staff members must document their time for their first two (2) weeks of employment if their start date is in either August or September.
- If a new staff member's hire date occurs within a reporting month, the staff member is required to complete the Employee Time and Effort Study Timesheet, starting on the hire date through the end of the reporting month, regardless of number of days.
- The LA WIC Coordinator, or their designee, must approve the staff entries in the Employee Time and Effort Study Timesheets by the end of the following month. If the LA WIC Coordinator wishes to have a designee, contact Regional Office Representative to obtain designee authorization.
- NSA Expenditure Summary submitted at the end of the federal fiscal year
 - The NSA Expenditure Summary must be used to report Personal Services expenditures, including salaries and fringe benefits for each position charged to the WIC budget, and Non-Personal Service NSA expenditures for the federal fiscal year.
 - $\circ~$ The NSA Expenditure Summary must be completed by the LA after the final voucher for the fiscal year is submitted.
- 2. For the purposes of documenting expenditures, NSA Costs are separated into the following functional categories:
 - General Administration expenditures generally considered overhead or management costs
 - Breastfeeding expenditures for breastfeeding promotion and support
 - Client Services expenditures for certification, food delivery, and other client services and benefits
 - Nutrition Education expenditures for general nutrition education

Submission of Data

- 1. Each LA must submit complete and submit accurate NSA Expenditure Summary reporting by the deadlines provided by NYS DOH.
- 2. Amounts reported on the NSA Expenditure Summary must agree with the corresponding Budget Line Totals on the LA final voucher.
- 3. NYS DOH will analyze the information submitted by each LA. LAs must correct any discrepancies or errors in the data within 5 business days.
- 4. LA must retain copies of the completed NSA Expenditure Summary.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available Series ONO

Refer to the Nutrition Services & Administration Expenditures Policy Supplement, #1402, for more detailed information on how to determine NSA functional categories.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1402	
		Date: 9/2023	Page 3 of 3

Nutrition Services & Administration Expenditures

- #1401: Record Retention Policy
- #1401: Record Retention Policy Supplement

WIC Library:

- NYWIC Time Study Instructions
- LA Memo: Federal Fiscal Year Close Out Dates
- LA Memo: Nutrition Services & Administration Expenditure (NSA) Reporting Percentages

	WIC Program	Manual
	Section	1405
	Date: 2/2021	Page 1 of 2
Local Age	ncy Policy and Procedure Man	ıal

POLICY

- 1. Each local agency and vendor management agency must develop and maintain a Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual that includes policies and procedures as directed by New York State Department of Health.
- 2. The Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual must include any policy and procedure when it is more specific than New York State Department of Health standard or when it is a sponsoring agency requirement.
- 3. All policies in the Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual must be approved by New York State Department of Health prior to implementation.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required \Box Yes \boxtimes No

- 1. The Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual (LAPPM) must contain, at a minimum, a local agency policy for each of therequired/mandatory topics that have been identified by New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH).
- 2. WhenaNYSDOHpolicyisupdated,thecorrespondinglocalagencypolicymustalsobeupdated and submitted to NYS DOH for approval within 90 days.
- 3. TheLAPPMmustbeaccessibletoall staff.
- 4. TheLAPPMmustbeavailableforNYSDOHreview uponrequest.
- 5. Local agency staffmustreview the LAPP Matleastannually to ensure it reflects current policies and procedures.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available ⊠Yes⊡No

The Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual Policy Supplement includes a complete list of the required policies and procedures that must be included in the LAPPM. The Procedure section of updated WPM Sections now indicate if a local agency policy is required.

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1405	
	Date: 2/2021	Page 1 of 2
Least Area as Deliver and Decendent Menuel		

Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual

Where required by the WIC Program Manual or Administrative Directive, the LAPPPM should include procedures describing how the LA will implement and support program policies and practices. Additionally, when applicable, LAPPM policies should clearly define staff roles, agency expectations, timeframes for completing each task, required documentation and routine operating guidelines.

	WIC Program M	anual
	Section 1406	
	Date: 01/2021	Page 1 of 2
Comr	liance and Self-Assessment	

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies and vendor managementagencies must complete an annual Compliance and Self-Assessment demonstrating the agency's operations, including the development of goals and objectives for thecoming year.Local agenciesmustestablish and includeanutrition education plan.
- 2. TheComplianceandSelf-Assessmentmustadhere to a format determined by theNew York State Department of Health (NYS DOH).

REGULATIONS

Management evaluation systems, <u>7 CFR §246.19(b)</u> - requires local agencies, including vendor management agencies, to establish managementevaluationsystems to review their operations and those of associated clinics or contractors. Agencies are required to complete an annual self-assessment in accordance with state directives.

Nutrition Education Plan and evaluation, <u>7CFR §246.11(d)</u> - requires local agencies to develop an annual local agency nutrition education plan consistent with the State's nutrition education component of program operations. Local agencies develop a nutrition education plan which establishes nutrition priorities, including breastfeeding promotion and support, and focuses activities to improve participant health and nutrition outcomes and serves as abasis forallocating nutrition services resources.NYSDOH has implemented acomprehensive evaluation approach through the Local Agency Compliance and Self - Assessment.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes ☑No

- 1. Theagencymustcompleteacomprehensiveself-assessmenttoensure thatWIC servicesare provided in accordance with federal and state requirements.
- 2. TheComplianceandSelf-Assessmentmustbe prepared inaccordance withNYS DOH directives on format, content and timeframes.
- 3. AgenciesmustworkwithNYSDOH toprepare goalsand actionsteps toaddressareasneeding improvement for the following year.

GUIDANCE

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1406	
	Date: 01/2021	Page 2 of 2

Compliance and Self-Assessment

The Compliance and Self-Assessment process provides agencies the opportunity to review operations and assess its competency in providing high quality program services. The process enables the agency to identify strengths and weaknesses, evaluates compliance with WIC program regulations and policies, and incorporates the local agency's nutrition education plan for the following year.

AgenciesworkwithNYSDOH staff to develop and implement corrective measures and improvements, as necessary. NYS DOH staff conduct an independent assessment then provide collaborative technical assistance and training to address areas needingimprovement; and follow upwitheach agency to ensure that proposed solutions are implemented.

TheComplianceandSelf-Assessment processis effectiveinmonitoringand reviewing:

- programoperations
- compliance with WIC program policies and procedures
- compliancewithagency policies and procedures
- thepotential forlossorweaknessininternalcontrol systems

The Compliance and Self-Assessment is a continuous process and should be integrated into the agency's on-goingactivities.

RESOURCES

WIC Library:

- Local AgencyComplianceandSelf-Assessment(LACASA) GuidanceManual
- VendorManagementComplianceandSelf-Assessment (VCASA)GuidanceManual
- NutritionServices Standards

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1408	
		Date: 08/2021	Page 1 of 2

Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Planning

POLICY

- 1. LocalAgencies(LA)andVendorManagementAgencies (VMA)mustdevelopandmaintainan Emergency Preparedness/Disaster Plan.
- 2. The Emergency Preparedness/Disaster Plan must be synchronized with sponsor agency plans especially in the areas of emergency services notification, site or building evacuation, and contacts with utility service providers.
- 3. Local Agencies (LA) and Vendor Management Agencies (VMA) must contact the New York State Department of Health for any occurrence that disrupts WIC services or poses a threat to participants orstaff.

REGULATIONS

USDAPolicyMemorandums95-9and 95-A

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required

🛛 Yes 🗌 No

- 1. LAs and VMAs must develop an Emergency Preparedness/Disaster Planincollaboration with their Sponsor Agency, that includes, at a minimum, the following components:
 - MaintainingCritical Functions
 - o ananalysisofpotentialhazardsandemergenciesthatcouldoccurand
 - LifeSafety Procedures
 - necessary actionsteps to protect the health and safety of everyone in the facility including evacuation procedures, establishing assembly areas, providing training, and conducting drills of evacuation procedures
 - Communications
 - a description of the proposed methods of communication and contingency plans to report emergencies, warn personnel, and notify participants, vendors, the public, and the media
 - Directionand Control
 - a description of the system formanaging resources, analyzing information, and making decisions
 - PropertyProtection
 - o procedureforpropertyandequipment protection

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1408	
		Date: 08/2021	Page 2 of 2
Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Planning			

- 2. The Emergency Preparedness/Disaster Plan must be reviewed annually and updated as needed.
- 3. The Emergency Preparedness/Disaster Plan must be reviewed by all agency staff upon hire and annually thereafter. Documentation of completion must be kept on file by the agency.
- 4. LAsandVMAsmustcontacttheirNYSDOHContractManagerduringanemergency and/ordisaster situation and provide the operational status in following areas:
 - thespecificsites impacted
 - theservicesthat aredisrupted
 - staffcontactphonenumberifadditional informationisrequired
 - planstocontinueoperationortheextentoftimethatservices will beinterrupted
 - communicationplanto notifyparticipants
 - ifsitedamageoccurs, report of damage and plant or estore operations
- 5. WICservicesmustcontinue tobeprovided,totheextent possible.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available 🛛 Yes 🛛 🗋 No

The LA or VMA should develop the plan in conjunction with sponsor agency administration, information technology staff, and staff responsible for agency security. The plan should include phone numbers and contacts of building management and emergency personnel for all WIC sites. WIC Program staff should also be involved in plan development with a focus on areas of concern and emergency contacts for all staff.

LAsshouldhave access to, andbe familiarwith, thepapercertifications process if computer systems are unavailable.

Local Agencystaffshouldkeepanupdatedlistofparticipants' contactinformation.Staffshould be familiar with their autodialer company's procedures if communications need to be sent.

TheLAorVMAshouldmaintainalistofall staffmembers' contactinformation.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual and Policy Section and Policy Supplements:

- WPM1100-WICCertificationOverview Policy
- WPM1100-NYWICPaper CertificationPolicySupplement
- WPM1325-eWICCardInventory Policy

Other:

FNS Guide to Coordinating WIC During Disaster: https://www.fns.usda.gov/disaster/guide-coordinating-wic-services-during-disaster •

N.Y.S.DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH-WIC PROGRAMMANUAL

DCH	DQH
-----	-----

Subject: Program Administration

POLICY

- 1. The local agency must monitor caseload regularly by running reports directed by the State.
- 2. Thelocalagencymust develop an annual WIC budget tosecurefundingfor all WIC functions.
- 3. TheWIC budgetmust conform to the format required by the State and must include clear and complete justification for all WIC costs.
- 4. The WIC budget must receive approval from New York State Department of Health Regional and Central Offices and the New York State Office of the State Comptroller in order to be considered fully executed.
- 5. WIClocal agenciesmust submitmonthlyvouchers and reports of expenditures against approved budget lines in accordance with the terms of their WIC contracts in order to receive reimbursement for actual WIC expenditures.

BACKGROUND

The NYS Department of Health (DOH) is responsible for ensuring that as many participants as possible are served with the funds received from USDA. NYS DOH is also held responsible for managing grant fund expenditures. NYS DOH enters into agreements with local agencies (LAs) to serveauthorizedcaseload levels in order to comply with regulatory requirements formanaging WIC grant funds. The caseload for each LA is assigned based on a variety of factors - the number of estimated eligible participants in the planning area served, the capacity of the LA to serve an estimated percentage of that number, and the available funding.

Available funding is determined each year by NYS DOH Central Officestaff, whothen develop the annual Budget Call Letters. LAs are required to submit budget requests outlining anticipated costs for the upcoming federal fiscal year (October 1 – September 30) based on the Budget Call Letter. An approved budget is established through negotiations between the LA, Regional Office and Central Office. Upon Central Office approval, the complete contract is routed through the NYS DOH, NYS Officeofthe Attorney General, and the NYS Officeof the State Comptroller (OSC) for final approval and execution. Upon final execution, LA's receive a fully executed contract containing original signatures/stamps.

Throughoutthefiscal year, theLAhas routineand ongoing communication with Regional and Central Offices to manage caseload and contract expenditures.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions.

N.Y.S.DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH-WIC PROGRAMMANUAL

Doh	Sub

PROCEDURE

- 1. Using the annual Budget Call Letters ent by Central Office, the LAmust develop an annual budget to meet the assigned caseload.
- 2. TheLAmustdevelopmeasures needed to meet caseloadtargets whendeveloping an annual WIC budget.
- 3. The budget must include reasonable funding for Personal Service, Fringe Benefits, Space, and Other Than Personal Service(e.g., Program Operations, Travel, Equipment, Audit, etc.).
- 4. Thebudgetmust includespecific funding forBreast Pumps andCollection Kits.
- 5. Thebudgetmust includespecific funding for the Enhanced Peer Counseling Program, including Personal Service, Fringe, Travel, Equipment, Peer Counselors, and Other.
- 6. The LA must submit two original Appendix X (contract signature page) containing original signature and original notarization in blue ink, Appendix B (budget), current and appropriate insurance forms, and current charities registration information, as directed by Central Office.
- 7. Caseload must be monitored regularly by the LA in consultation with the Regional Office to determine when action is needed to increase participation or to redeploy resources to meet emerging needs in the community.

GUIDANCE

Central Officewill send out guidanceannually to LA to assist in completing thebudget request.

RefertoContract and Caseload Management Policy Supplement forfurtherdescription of the process.

N.Y.S.DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH- WIC PROGRAMMANUAL

Sul	ject:AnnualWICProgram	Budget
Duk		Duuget

Section# 1412

POLICY

- 1. WIC local agencies must list and justify projected WIC allowable costs, even if the total exceeds assigned budget limits.
- 2. WIC local agencies must use the WIC Budget Justification forms/worksheet. These forms/worksheetswillbe provided on an annualbasis to accommodate changes in administrative procedures.
- 3. WIC local agenciesmust adhere to the fiscal timelines established by NYS DOH as specified in the WIC local agency contract.

BACKGROUND

Agencies that are providing WIC program services must develop an annual budget in accordance with the WIC local agency contract. Budget call letters are established by the Central Officebased on agency caseload and available funding. Call letters aresent to each local agency prior to the start of the contract year (federal fiscal year). Agency completed budgets are reviewed by Regional Office Representatives and approved. Final approval from the Central Office results in the Appendix B (contract budget) being generated and processed with contract and/or renewal.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions.

PROCEDURE

- 1. When preparing the annual WIC budget request, local agencies must basetheir request on previous or anticipated program costs.
- 2. TheSummary Budget Form must total the call letter amount.
- 3. Personal service items must be accurately identified on the WIC Budget Justification Personal Service forms (Program Support, Non-Direct Staff, Competent Professional Authority). The Personal Service Summary form must include totals of information provided on individual Personal Service forms.
- 4. If fringe benefits are paid to current WIC employees according to a standard rate, the rates and amounts must be indicated for each component listed on the WIC Budget Justification Fringe Benefits form.

N.Y.S.DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH- WIC PROGRAMMANUAL

Subject:AnnualWICProgram Budget

Section# 1412

Date: 6/13

5. Space costs for all sites must be entered on the WIC Budget Justification Space Summary sheet. Space costs must identify both permanent and temporary sites, including physical address and caseload served at each site the local agency utilizes to provide program services to participants. A WIC Justification Space Site Detail sheet must be provided for each site listed on the summary sheet. The space type must also beidentified as one of the following: sponsor owned/operated space, not sponsor owned/operated, no formal lease, commercial rent/lease space.

Note: Space costs for sites that do notserveparticipants (administrative sites) will not be supported by the WIC annual budget.

- 6. Other non-personal service items must be accurately identified and entered on the WIC Budget Justification Other Non-Personal Service forms. All individual category pages must be accounted for on the Other Non-Personal Service Summary form including Program Operations, Travel, Equipment, Audit, and Other.
- 7. The local agency may only budget indirect costs if they have or intend to submit an indirect cost plan. The amount allowed to be budgeted is dependent upon the indirect cost rate approved by the State WIC Program or federal cognizant agency and the extent to which funds are available within the overall State WIC funding. Indirect costs can be capped by the State WIC Program to ensure consistency among agencies and preserve the integrity of WIC program services. A cost may not be allocated to a grant as an indirect cost if any other cost incurred forthe same purpose in like circumstances has been assigned/charged to a grant as a direct cost. The proposed indirect cost rate must be entered on the Indirect Costs Justification Form.
- 8. All costs for breast pumps and collections kits must be entered on the Breast Pumps and Collection Kits Justification Form. Local agencies must have a Regional Office approved written breast pump policy and procedures prior to the procurement and distribution of breast pumps and collection kits to participants.
- 9. All Peer Counseling costs must be entered on the Enhanced Peer Counseling Justification Form. Local agencies will begiven aspecific funding level annually forthe Enhanced Peer Counseling (EPC) program. Local agencies must develop a sub-budget for this funding. The WIC Budget Justification will include EPC forms for the following categories: administrative staff, fringe, travel, equipment, peer counselors, and other.

GUIDANCE

Referto Annual WICProgram Budget Policy Supplement.
DOH	Subject: Reimbursement Requests	Section# 1415	
		Date: 3/14	

POLICY

- 1. The WIC local agencymust completeand submit a Claim For Payment and a Budget Statementand Report of Expenditures forreimbursement of allowable WIC expenses.
- 2. Themonthly voucher and Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures must besubmitted in the method prescribed by the State.
- 3. The local agency must retain, for audit purposes, all vouchers and supporting documentation for WIC Program expenditures in accordance with Record Retention Policy.

BACKGROUND

TheClaim ForPayment (AC3253-S) will be paid by the State as specified in the New York State Prompt Payment Legislation.

When a local agency's contract is fully executed, a copy of the budget and a Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures (BSROE) will be provided to the local agency (LA) by the New York State Department of Health.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions.

PROCEDURE

- 1. The Claim For Payment must be completed using the method prescribed by the State.
- 2. TheClaim ForPayment mailed to the Central Officemust contain an original signature of an authorized agency representative.
- 3. TheBSROEmust reflect themost current approved lineitem budget andthetotal expenditures on any line item must not exceed the amount that appears on that line in the "Budgeted Amount" column.
- 4. TheClaim ForPayment and theBSROE must besubmitted together with every reimbursement request.
- 5. Allreimbursement requests, including those resubmitted, must be received by Central Officeby the date established by Central Office.

DQH	Subject: Reimbursement Requests	Section# 1415	
		Date: 3/14	Page 2

GUIDANCE

Reimbursement requests will not behonored forpayment until the local agency's contract is fully executed.

Referto the Reimbursement Requests Policy Supplement.

TheCentral Officewill send out guidanceannually on submitting reimbursement requests.

Subject: Budget Modification Requests

Section# 1418

Date: 8/11

Page 1

POLICY

- 1. Localagenciesmust obtain stateRegional and Central Officeapproval of a budget modification request prior to vouchering against the proposed change.
- 2. Lineitem interchange requests must be submitted for approval prior to anychanges to budget lines in the approved contract budget.

BACKGROUND

During a program year, it may become necessary for a WIC local agency (LA) to request an increase/decrease in funding due to dramatic changes, extenuating circumstances, or to make changes in the amounts allocated to discrete budget lines in the approved contract budget so that each budget line equals or exceeds the amounts actually expended. If the requested modification affects the <u>total</u> budget amount, the modified budget (amendment) is subject to approval from the New York State Comptroller's Office.

It may be necessary to complete several line item interchanges to move accrued savings to cover shortfalls in various line items. Such changes may be requested at any time during the program year; LAs should consistently review their budget to make adjustments timely without waiting until the end of the fiscal year. The State may initiate a line item interchange or amendment based on the review of an agency's budget.

DEFINITIONS

Budget Modification - Any change to the approved budget in the current contract. A Budget Modificationthatrevises the total Personal Services or OtherThan Personal Services subtotals by 10% or more, or increases or decreases the total contract value, will necessitate a contract amendment that must be approved by the Office of the State Comptroller.

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions.

PROCEDURES

1. The LA must contact the Regional OfficeRepresentative to discuss details and justification of a budget modification request and the potential consequences of taking such an action. The Regional OfficeRepresentative will advise on the availability of funds, the timing of the request in relation to the federal fiscal year, the estimated length of time for approval, and other factors that should be considered before making the official request.

DQH	Subject: Budget Modification Requests Section#		418	
		Date: 8/11	Page 2	

- 2. Once there is agreement that the budget modification is necessary, the LA must submit a formal written request to the Regional Office Representative, including the proper documentation for the budget line item interchange.
- 3. When submitting aline item interchange or amendment request, LA must complete the line item interchange justification forms and line item interchange request form. LAs must follow the instructions provided with the annual fiscal worksheet that is sent at the beginning of each fiscal year.
- 4. The authorized WIC LA representative must print, sign and date the line item interchange form and submit it to the Regional Office Representative for approval, along with documentation and a cover letter that briefly summarizes the requested transaction.
- 5. Budget modification requests must be ubmitted by the deadline specified by Central Office.
- 6. If expenditures aremade based upon aproposed line item interchange, LAs will <u>not</u> be reimbursed for those expenditures if the line item interchange is not approved.
- 7. A line item interchange request that results in a net change (increase or decrease) over ten percent in the major budget categories (Personal Service and Other Than Personal Service) requires a budget amendment. After approval of the request by Regional and Central Office staff, LAs will be provided with a new Contract Signature Page (Appendix X) and revised Budget (Appendix B) to sign and submit.
- 8. Funds must not bemoved from theunallocated line into anotherbudget linewithout prior Regional Office and Central Office approval.
- 9. Once approved, the LA will receive a letter from Central Office along with a revised Budget Statement and Report of Expenditures (BSROE) form. A new fiscal worksheet reflecting the approved changes will be provided electronically.

GUIDANCE

CentralOfficewill review all lineitem interchanges approved by Regional Officeand makeafinal decision prior to the deadline for the receipt of final vouchers.

Contact the Regional Office Representative with questions regarding the allowability of costs and status of budget modifications/contract amendments.

The approval process for a budget modification usually takes four to six weeks. LAs must plan accordingly when deciding if abudget modification is necessary to meet their required needs within a federal fiscal year to maintain fiscal year integrity.

DQH	Subject: Budget Modification Requests	Section# 1418	3
		Date: 8/11	Page 3

Anybudget modification request madelatein the federal fiscal year is only acceptable in certain extenuating circumstances, and must be fully discussed with Regional Office staff prior to submission.



WIC	Program	Manual
-----	---------	--------

Section 1419

Page 1 of 3

Site Changes and Renovations

Date: 10/2022

POLICY

- 1. Local Agencies and Vendor Management Agencies must submit all requests for site development to NYS Department of Health.
- 2. Local Agency staff and Vendor Management Agency staff are responsible for ensuring agency demographic information in the Management Information System is accurate.

REGULATIONS

OMB Uniform Guidance § 200.310 states that agencies must provide insurance coverage for property and equipment acquired with federal funds.

Agreements with local agencies, 7 CFR §246.6

Selection of local agencies, 7 CFR §246.5

Procurement and property management, 7 CFR §246.24

Food Delivery Methods, 7 CFR §246.12 (h)

Program Costs, 7 CFR §246.14

Nondiscrimination,7CFR§246.8(a,b)

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions in Section 1011.

Site Development - The opening, closing, relocation, and renovations or modifications of temporary and permanent WIC sites.

Permanent Site - Permanent WIC sites provide clinical WIC services, administrative services, or a combination of these functions. The following are requirements of permanent sites:

- clinical WIC functions (reception, scheduling, certification, nutrition education, food instrument production and food instrument payment and reconciliation) are offered at least three (3) days per week
- at least two (2) staff must be available during service hours, one (1) of whom must be a Competent Professional Authority (CPA), who is qualified to perform nutrition-related duties at the local agency under the supervision of a Qualified Nutritionist
- fulltimecontrol of space which provides physical security to all equipment
- access to the management information system through an internet connection with enough bandwidth to support the number of users as well as any other competing usage

Temporary Site - Temporary WIC sites offer clinical WIC services only. They do not perform administrative functions. The following are requirements of temporary sites:

- operate on a part time basis, less thanthree(3) days per week
- space is not dedicated full-time and there is limited security when not in use. These sites are not usually part of the sponsor-owned building and are typically held in town halls, churches, fire departments, etc.

WIC F	Program	Manua
-------	---------	-------

Section 1419

Page 2 of 3

Site Changes and Renovations

Date: 10/2022

- each day the temporary site is operational, the local agency staff transport equipment and other materials as required to and from the agency's permanent site
- must have at least two (2) staff members available during clinic hours, one (1) of which must be a CPA, who is qualified to perform nutrition-related duties at the local agency under the supervision of a Qualified Nutritionist
- must provide access to the management information system through an internet connection with enough bandwidth to support the number of users as well as any other competing usage

Administrative WIC Site - WIC administrative sites may be approved on a limited basis. These sites are used for administrative services and do not provide WIC clinic services.

PROCEDURE

NEW YORK

STATE

LA/VMA PolicyRequired Yes 🛛 No

WIC

Program

- 1. The Local Agency (LA) or Vendor Management Agency (VMA) sponsor must submit a written request to the NYS WIC Director when proposing the closure of an agency. The request must:
 - be on official agency letterhead and include asignature from the authorized signatory
 - include the date of closure
 - explainthereason(s) for closure
 - 2. LA or VMA staff must submit acompleted WIC Site Change Request to the DOH Contract Manager when opening, closing, moving, or renovating a LA, site, or VMA.
 - Requests must providejustification.
 - Requests to open or close a WIC site must be submitted to DOH at least six (6) months in advance.
 - LAs must support the required activities through their current WIC LA budget or by in-kind funds from their sponsor agency. No additional funding will be provided by the State.
 - Requests for renovations, modifications, or temporary site changes must be submitted to DOH at least three (3) months in advance.
 - Requests for renovations or modifications that exceed \$5,000 require USDA approval must:
 - be submitted to DOH by May 1 of the federal fiscal year in which the funds will be obligated. Requests submitted after May 1 may or may not be considered
 - include a completed Request to Renovate or Repair Real Property (FNS 813-
 - If any actions are taken prior to approval, the Local Agency will be responsible for payment if the request is denied.
 - 3. LA and VMA staff must participate in meetings with DOH staff to discuss the details of the proposed site development and must adhere to the timelines that are provided by DOH.
 - 4. LA and VMA staff are responsible for reviewing agency demographic information in the Management Information System and submitting requests to update as needed. Updates must be provided by submitting the appropriate modification request to the DOH Contract Manager.
 - The WIC Coordinator or VMA Director must conduct and document an annual review of their Agency's demographic information in the Management Information System.

WIC	Program	Manual
-----	---------	--------

Date: 10/2022

Section 1419

Page 3 of 3

Site Changes and Renovations

GUIDANCE

NEW YORK

STATE

WIC

Program

All WIC LA infrastructure changes must be carried out in a manner that ensures minimal disruption of services to WIC participants. WIC site development, renovations and modifications entail a lengthy process that involves cooperation and coordination between local agency, regional and central office staff.

Procedures will ensure the WIC Program network of permanent and temporary sites is accessible to the maximum number of eligible participants.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sections:

- #1020: Participant-Center WIC Environment
- #1100: WIC Certification Overview
- #1325: eWIC Card Inventory
- #1408: Emergency Preparedness
- #1412: Annual WIC Program Budget
- #1421: Purchasing Policy
- #1422: Asset Inventory Policy
- #1452: User Account Security and Guidelines
- #1460: Local Agency Staff

WICLibrary:

- NYWIC Workstation Configuration Guide
- WIC SiteChangeRequest
- Agency InformationNYWIC Modification Request
- Site Information NYWIC Modification Request
- Sponsor Agency NYWIC Modification Request

Other:

• Request to Renovate or Repair RealProperty (FNS 813-1)

X:\program manual\draftprogram manualsections\1419 Site Changes and Renovations June 2022

DOH	Subject: Sub-Contracts, Agreementsand Leases	Section# 1420	
		Date: 3/12	Page 1

POLICY

- 1. The local agencymust obtain approval from the New York State Department of Health prior to entering into any sub-contract for WIC program services.
- 2. The local agencymust obtain approval from the New York State Department of Health prior to entering into a lease or other agreement for space to be used for WIC program sites.
- 3. The local agencymust obtain approval from the New York State Department of Health before vouchering the State for space costs incurred under an agreement for WIC program space.
- 4. The local agency assumes full responsibility for sub-contracts, leases and agreements.

BACKGROUND

Withpriorjustification and approval, local agencies (LAs) areallowed to enterinto sub-contracts, agreements and leases to obtain services for the WIC program.

DEFINITIONS

Less-Than-Arms-Length Agreement – An agreement in which one party to the transaction is able to control or substantially influence the actions of the other(s). Such transactions include, but are not limited to, those between divisions of an organization. As an example, if a sponsoring agency rents clinic space to the WIC local agency contractor it may not be the true value as there is a relationship between the sponsoring agency and the WIC local agency contractor.

PROCEDURES

Sub-Contracts

- 1. Asub-contract or agreement for WIC related services or aportion of services is permissible when:
 - TheLAmanagesthecontract to ensure that all contract deliverables aremet;
 - The sub-contractor provides specific WIC services to assist the LA in meeting its contract deliverables (e.g. employment agencies, blood work, and maintenance agreements, etc.); and
 - The agreements follow the provision of the non-assignment clause of New York State Appendix A.
- 2. Costsforapprovedsubcontracts must be projected and justified in annual budget proposals as line items.

Subject: Sub-Contracts, Agreementsand Leases	Section# 1420	
	Date: 3/12	Page 2

Leases

- 1. Leases for WIC program spacethat havebeen entered into prior the start date of the WIC LA contract require review by the New York State Department of Health prior to reimbursement being allowable.
- 2. New leases for WIC program space that will be effective after the start date of the WIC LA contract must be submitted to the New York State Department of Health for review prior to being executed.

GUIDANCE

RefertoSub-ContractPolicySupplement.

Refer to WPM sections:

- AdministrativeBudget Process
- Annual WICProgram Budget

NEW	MIC	WIC Program	lanual	
		Section 1421		
-	Program	Date: 01/2022	Page 1 of 4	
Purchasing				

- 1. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must provide adequate justification and obtain the necessary prior-approvals based on the unit prices and total purchase amounts of each purchase.
- 2 Local agencies and vendor management agencies must obtain the appropriate number of price or rate quotations from an adequate number of qualified sources, or procure via sealed bids, based on the aggregate purchase amounts of each purchase.
- 3. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must maintain all documentation related to each purchase, including quotes and bids, and make it available for New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH) review upon request.
- 4. Sponsor agencies must maintain insurance to cover the replacement value of NYWIC computers and assets purchased with WIC funds.
- 5. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must comply with their approved NYSMinority and Women Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) goals.
- 6. The New York State Department of Health may deny reimbursement or recover funds reimbursed to asponsor agency that cannot provide adequate documentation of compliance with these procedures.

REGULATIONS

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance refers to 2 CFR Chapter I, Chapter II, Part 200, et al. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; Final Rule.

ProgramCosts, $\frac{7 \text{ CFR } \$246.14(a)(1)}{246.14(a)(1)}$ - Provides information on allowable costs under the program.

Insurancecoverage, <u>2CFR §200.310</u> - Agencies must provide insurancecoverage for property and equipment acquired with Federal funds.

Conferences, <u>2CFR§200.432</u> – Defines allowable conference costs.

Non-Computer Equipment Purchases Less than \$25,000, <u>USDA WIC Final Policy Memorandum</u> <u>98-3</u> - Authorizes WIC state agencies to purchase or allow their local agencies to purchase noncomputer equipment with a unit cost less than \$25,000 without prior approval from FNS

Food and Nutrition Services (FNS) Handbook 901 defines the purchase thresholds for computer equipment.

NEW	MIC	WIC Program	Manual	
	WIC	Section 1421		
	Program	Date: 01/2022	Page 2 of 4	
Purchasing				

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions locatedin WPMSection1011.

Federal Micro-Purchase Threshold, as defined in OMB Uniform Guidance § 200.67 – The micropurchase threshold is set by the Federal Acquisition Regulation at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1(Definitions). It is \$10,000 except as otherwise discussed in Subpart 2.1 of that regulation, but this threshold is periodically adjusted for inflation.

Procurement by Sealed Bids, as defined in OMB Uniform Guidance $\S200.320$ (c) – Bids are publicly solicited and a firm fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price.

Equipment, as defined in OMB Uniform Guidance §200.33 – Tangible personal property (including information technology systems) having a useful life of more than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level established by the non-Federal entity for financial statement purposes, or \$5,000.

Quote–Price obtained and documented from a potential vendor for an item or service. Fax, Email, Phone, or internet posting are all acceptable forms.

FormalQuote – Pricesubmitted in writing on vendor letterhead by a potential vendor for an item or service.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMAPolicy Required ⊠Yes □No

- 1. Obtaining Approval
 - Includeallanticipated purchase needs in the annual Budget Request under nonpersonal service. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must provide cost estimates and detailed justification of need for all purchases anticipated during the contract period.
 - Computer equipment with a unit cost of \$5,000 or more and non-computer equipmentitems witha unit cost of \$25,000 or more must have prior approval by United States Department of Agriculture (USDA).
 - Renovations over \$5,000 require FNS approval and mustfollow the guidance contained in FNS Instruction 813-1.
 - Purchases with aunit cost of \$1,000 or more that are not reflected in the approved annual budget require NYS DOH pre-approval.
 - Allpurchases requiring USDAapproval must besubmitted to NYSDOH by May 1st of the Federal fiscal year in which the purchase will be made, with appropriate justification and price quotes or bids.
 - Agencies cannot make a purchase untilthey receivewritten approval from NYS DOH.

NEW YORK STATE Pro	MIC	WIC Program	Manual
	WIC Drogroup	Section 1421	421
	Program	Date: 01/2022	Page 3 of 4
Purchasing			

- 2. EnsuringBest Value
 - Local agencies and vendor management agencies must obtain price or rate quotations from an adequate number of qualified sources for all purchases with an aggregate dollar amount of \$3,000 or more.
 - Purchases withan aggregated ollar amount over \$5,000 requireform alquotes.
 - Purchases with an aggregate dollar amount over \$50,000 require procurement by sealed bids.
- 3. Loss, Damage, Theft
 - Sponsor agencies must maintain insurance to cover the replacement value of NYWIC computers and assets purchased with WIC funds. Insurance costs for this purpose are an allowable WIC budget expense.
 - Requests for exceptions to insurance coverage policy (self-insured agencies) must be submitted in writing to the regional office.
 - Any loss, damage, or theft of items purchased using WIC funds must bereported to NYS DOH immediately.
 - The Sponsoring Agency is responsible for the difference between the full replacement value of the WIC equipment loss and the insurancesettlement if the policy has a deductible. Self-insured agencies are responsible for the fullvalue of the loss regardless of funds available from the insurance reserve.
 - Theprocurement of essential replacement equipment must not be delayed while insurance claims are processed.
 - NYSDOHmust be notified as soon as any payment for an insurance claim is received.
- 4. ReportingandRecord Keeping
 - All quotes, formal quotes, and procurement by sealed bid records must be maintained in accordance with the Record Retention Policy (WIC Program Manual Section 1401).
 - Agenciesmustreportpurchases appliedtotheMWBEgoaltoNYS.
 - NYS DOH may deny reimbursement or recover funds reimbursed to a sponsor agency that cannot provide adequate documentation of compliance with these procedures.
 - Local agencies and vendor management agencies must keep an inventory of assets purchased with WIC funds in accordance with the asset inventory policy.
- 5. HealthyMeetingGuidelines
 - Local agencies and vendor management agencies must comply with the NYS DOH requirements for healthy meetings when NYS DOH is reimbursing for all or a portion of the meeting costs. NYS DOH reserves the right to review the site, menu and agenda so that the State can ensure the nutrition, physical activity, sustainability and tobacco-free guidelines are met.
 - Meeting costs must be justified as reasonable and necessary, especially when it comes to the serving of meals, which may not be deemed an allowable cost at all meetings.

S TORK	wic	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1421 Date: 01/2022 Pag	421
	Program -		Page 4 of 4
	·	Purchasing	

- Under 2 CFR Part 200.432 meals and refreshments are identified as an allowablecost, judgement must be used to ensure that costs are minimized.
- 6. Sponsoring Agency Procedures

•

• Localagencies andvendor management agencies must alsocomply with the purchasing procedures of their sponsoring agency.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available \boxtimes Yes \Box No

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1401:Record Retention
- #1419:SiteChanges and Renovation
- #1422: Asset Inventory

Other:

DOHHealthy Meetings Guidelines

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	WIC	Section 1422	422
	Program	Date: 07/2017	Page 1 of 2
AssetInventory			

- 1. Localagencies andvendor management agencies must maintain an inventory system to track assets purchased with WIC funds.
- 2. Aphysicalinventoryofallnon-WICSISassets mustbeconducted every twoyears.
- 3. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must maintain an inventory system to track all WICSIS computer equipment provided by New York State.
- 4. Aphysicalinventory of WICSIS computer equipment must be conducted every year.
- 5. InventoryLogs must be maintained and submitted to the NYSDepartment of Health (NYSDOH) every year.

BACKGROUND

Perthefollowing Sections of the OMB Super-Circular:

§200.312(a) The non-federal entity must submit an annual inventory listing to the federal awarding agency

§200.313(d)(1) and(2) Property, equipment, materials and supplies purchased with federal funds must be accounted for through the management of an inventory system that records identifying or serial number, property description, funding source, acquisition date, cost, location, use and condition, and any ultimate disposal and sale price of that property.

§200.314(a) Thevalue of residual unused inventory of supplies must be refunded to the federal government.

§200.453(b) Items withdrawn or removed from inventory should becharged under consistently applied, recognized inventory withdrawal pricing methods.

DEFINITIONS

Asset – Tangible property that has a unitvalue of at least \$500 and a usefullife of more than one year.

PhysicalInventory – Involves actual sighting of the equipment, confirming its location and verifying the serial number or unique tracking number.

PROCEDURE

1. Assets purchased with WIC funds must be maintained on inventory logs and labeled as "Property of WIC."

) IUKK	WIC	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1422	1422
	Program	Date: 07/2017	Page 2 of 2
AssetInventory			

- 2. Local agencies andvendor management agencies must maintain two inventory logs, one for NYS WICSIS Computer Equipment and one for all other assets.
- 3. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must perform an annual physical inventory of all New York State WICSIS computer equipment in accordance with Section 1453 of the WIC Program Manual.
- 4. Amonthly inventory of WICSIScomputer supplies must be performed and sent to NYSDOH to ensure the local agency has adequate quantities of supplies.
- 5. Inventory logs must reflect dates the local agency or vendor management agency conducted the last physical inventory.
- 6. Inventory logs mustbeupdatedaschanges occur.
- 7. Inventory logs mustberetained inaccordancewith the record retention policy.
- 8. Localagencies andvendor management agencies must ensure these curity of New York State WIC computer equipment in accordance with the equipment security guidelines.
- 9. Local agencies and vendor management agencies are responsible for timely reporting to the proper authorities the loss or theft of any assets purchased with federal funds.
- If WICSIS computer equipment (computers, monitor, laptops, communication devices, printers, signature capture pads or other peripheral devices) is discovered to be missing or vandalized, the local agency or vendor management agency asset disposal is responsible for timely reporting to NYSDOH.
- 11. Prior to disposing assets, local agencies and vendor management agencies must request approval from DOH using the *Request to Remove Asset from Inventory* form.
- 12. The local agency or vendor management agency must update the Asset Inventory log to reflect the actual disposition and date of disposal. Approved *Request to Remove Asset from Inventory* forms must be saved in accordance with the record retention policy.
- 13. When disposing of computers and other electronic devices with storage capability, the hard drive must be destroyed to prevent unauthorized access to confidential information.

RESOURCES

AssetInventoryPolicySupplement Equipment Security Policy Record Retention Guidance

NEW YORK STATE Prog	MIC	WIC ProgramManual		
		Section	n 1423	
	Program	Date: 09/2021	Page 1 of 3	
		Travel		

- 1. Eachlocalagency and vendor management agency must have awritten travel policy included in the agency's policy and procedure manual.
- 2. Local agencies andvendor management agencies must provide adequatejustification and include all travel costs in the annual Budget Justification worksheet.
- 3. Localagencies and vendor management agencies must takesteps to use the most cost effective method possible for all travel.
- 4. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed at the lesser of the rates set forth in the written standard travel policy of the sponsoring agency, the New York State Office of the State Comptroller guidelines, or United States General Services Administration rates, unless prior approval is obtained from New York State Department of Health.
- 5. Localagencies andvendor management agencies must maintain alldocumentationrelated totravel expenses, and make it available for New York State Department of Health review upon request.
- 6. The New York State Department of Health may deny reimbursement or recover funds reimbursed to asponsor agency that cannot provide adequate documentation of compliance with these procedures.

REGULATIONS

General Services Administration (GSA) Federal Travel Regulations, <u>41 CFR 300-304</u> – In accordance with these regulations the New York State Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) has established travel rules and regulations to be followed by all State agencies and applicable contractors. WIC local agency travel expenses shall be reimbursed at the lesser of the rates set forth in the sponsor agency's written standard travel policy, OSC guidelines, or United States General Services Administration rates.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

1. Each local agency and vendor management agency must have a written travel policy included in the agency's policy and procedure manual that details the agency's requirements and procedures for obtaining approval and reimbursement of travel-related expenses.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	WIC	Section 1423	1423
	Program	Date: 09/2021	Page 2 of 3
		Travel	

- 2. Include all travelcosts for the contract period in the annual Budget Justification Worksheet under Non-Personal Service Budget Line. Provide detailed justification for all anticipated travel throughout the contract period. The Budget Justification Worksheet must include the estimated cost of all local travel and detailed justification for all anticipated non-local travel.
 - Local travel includes travel between local agency sites for supervision, deliveries, staffingcoverage, inter-agency meetings, vendor monitoring activities, local meetings, and outreach and community liaison activities.
 - Non-local travel includes overnight travel for meetings, conferences, and trainings.Non-localtravel mustbe itemized with an estimatedcost givenfor each instance of travel and should include all associated expenses, such as registration fees, when applicable.
- 3. Significant changes to the overall travel budget require a budget modification request.
- 4. Reimbursement of non-localtravelexpenses that are not reflected in the approved annual budget require NYS DOH pre-approval.
- 5. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must takesteps to use the mostcost effective method possible for all travel.
- 6. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed at the lesser of the rates set forth in the written standard travel policy of the sponsoring agency, the New York State Office of the State Comptroller guidelines, or United States General Services Administration rates, unless prior approval is obtained from NYS DOH.
- 7. Localagencies andvendor management agencies must maintain anaccuraterecord of expenses and travel details including departure and return times, mileage and all receipts while in travel status including meals, hotel, airplane tickets, airport shuttle fees, taxi fees, rental car, tolls, parking fees, etc. Retain all travel-related receipts and corresponding documentation for review by NYS DOH.
- Local agencies must ensure that WIC clinic operations and participant services are not impacted by multiple staff traveling for conferences or training, unless prior approval is obtained from NYS DOH.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available□Yes ⊠No

The purpose of this policy is to help local agency employees apply travel rules to secure the most economical method of travel and for reimbursement of expenses incurred for WIC travelactivities. These activities include but are not limited to travel to competency-based and mandated trainings, conferences, outreach programs and inter-site travel.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	Drogram	Section 1423	1423
	Program	Date: 09/2021	Page 3 of 3
		Travel	

WIC local agencies and vendor management agencies must take steps to keep travel costs to the most cost effective method possible, and when travel costs exceed the GSA rates, the local agency must obtain NYS DOH approval prior to travel if they intend to exceed those rates.

If requesting air travel, the cost of the airplane ticket, ground transportation, lodging, meals and other allowable cost for each traveler should be compared to the cost of making the same trip using a rental car, fuel, lodging, meals, tolls, parking and other allowable costs. If there are multiple travelers, assume all travel in the same rental. In most cases, driving will prove the most economical, even if the travel time is substantially longer.

Travel guidance resources listed below provide a variety of information, tools and guidance regarding travel in NYS.

RESOURCES

New York StateOffice of the State Comptroller TravelInformation: http://www.osc.state.ny.us/agencies/travel/travel.htm

GeneralServices AdministrationTravelInformation: <u>https://www.gsa.gov/travel-resources</u>

New York State Office of General Services Business Services Center: https://bsc.ogs.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2018/11/travelandexpensefinanceprocedures.pdf

NEW YORK STATE Pro	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 1426	1426
	Program	Date: 07/2017	Page 1 of 3
Incentive Items			

- 1. Localagencies and Vendor Management Agencies mustprovide adequatejustification and include all costs associated with the purchase of incentive items in the annual Budget Justification worksheet.
- 2. Incentiveitems mustpromote the specific program purpose of outreach or education.
- 3. Programincentiveitems must have a unit cost of less than or equal to \$4.00.
- 4. Publicationspurchased or developed that are intended as WIC Program incentive items, must include the USDA approved non-discrimination statement.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions" located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

- 1. Localagencies andvendor management agencies must include the estimated cost and detailed description and justification of all incentive items anticipated during the contract period.
- 2. Reimbursement of incentive items that were not included in the annual budget require DOH preapproval.
- 3. Incentive items may not exceed a unit cost of \$4.00. Local agencies and vendor management agencies must adhere to prior approvaland bidrequirements outlined in the purchasing policy based on the aggregate purchase amounts.
- 4. The local agency or vendor management agency must document the approval and purchase of incentive items in the correct category, and provide supporting documentation of the purchase, when requested by DOH.

Outreach Incentives

- 1. Incentive items purchased for program outreach must include a WIC-specific message that targets the intended population. Items must include WIC contact information such as the local agency name, address and/or telephone number; web or email address.
- 2. Outreach items are usually purchased and distributed in large quantities are must be distributed to or seen by the general public, health care providers, organizations or programs providing services to WIC-eligible populations or WIC participants.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	Drogram	Section 1426	1426
	Program	Date: 07/2017	Page 2 of 3
Incentive Items			

- 5. Outreach incentives mustconstitute(or show promise of) an innovative or proven way of encouraging WIC participation.
- 6. Examples of allowable outreach incentives include pens, pencils, calendars, appointment books, magnets, pocket sized hand sanitizers, and reusable grocery bags.

Education Incentives

- 1. Educational incentive items purchased for educational purposes must target the intended population and must meet the personal and cultural preferences of the individual to which they are being distributed.
- 2. Educational incentive items must have a clear and useful connection to WIC nutrition education messages, healthy lifestyles, breastfeeding, or generalWIC education.Materials must be designed to promote positive nutrition, health, and physical activity habits. Items must convey enough information to be considered educational, or be used by participants to reinforce WIC contacts.
- 3. Examples of allowable education incentives include tooth brushes, sippy cups, child-sized silverware & cereal bowls, portion control plates, plastic 4 oz. juice glasses, measuring spoons, measuring cups, children books, reference books, water bottles, balls, jump ropes, hula hoops, activity & educational coloring books & crayons, chalk with activity ideas, pedometers, books and activity DVDs and CDs.

Breastfeeding Incentives

- Breastfeeding promotion and support incentive items must have a clear and useful connection to promoting breastfeeding among current WIC participants or convey information that encourages breastfeeding, informs participants about the benefits of breastfeeding, or offer encouragement to women to initiate and continue breastfeeding.
- 2. Examples of allowable Breastfeeding Promotion and Support items include infant bibs or onesie's imprinted with WIC logo or breastfeeding message, nursing reminder bracelets, breastmilk storage bags, nominal value breastfeeding aids such as nursing pads.
- 3. Demonstration materials such as breastfeeding aids, slings, videos, baby dolls that are purchased in limited quantity for demonstration of proper techniques and are not intended for distribution to participants are not considered incentive items.

GUIDANCE

Best practice is to have items imprinted with the WIC Logo or the agency name whenever possible.

RESOURCES

Refer to WPM sections:

WPM1200 Participant-CenteredNutritionEducationandCounseling

	WIC ProgramManual	
	Section 1426	
Date: 07/2017 Page 3 of 3		Page 3 of 3
Incentive Items		

WPM1217Criteriafor WIC Education Materials

- WPM1240Outreach and Retention
- WPM1040CivilRights andNondiscrimination Statement
- WPM1421 Purchasing

Healthy Lifestyles Toolkit\Resource Lists

Refertolssuing Breast Pumps and Breastfeeding Aids Fiscal Policy Supplement for more information on incentive items for breastfeeding promotion and support

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section # 1451	
	Date: 8/2021	Page 1 of 4
Electronic Communication Use		

- 1. Localagencies and vendormanagementagencies must establish accounts through the sponsor agency to communicate electronically with program participants and the public regarding WIC.
- 2. Allelectroniccommunicationmustadhere tofederalandstatelawsandregulationswhileensuring compliance with confidentiality requirements.
- 3. AllelectroniccommunicationaccountsestablishedforWICProgramuseareboundbyWICProgram requirements and must not be used for personal use or unauthorized purposes.
- 4. Electroniccommunicationmustadhere toprofessional standardsofconductandmustrelateto approved WIC Program tasks.
- 5. All electronic communication devices purchased with WIC funds remain the property of New York State Department of Health and are subject to audit.

REGULATIONS

Federal Regulation 18 U.S.C. 1030 [Fraud and related activity in connection with computers] provides for punishment of individuals who access Federal computer resources without authorization, attempt to exceed access privileges, abuse Government resources and/or conduct fraud on Government computers.

Definitions, *Sign or signature*, <u>7 CFR §246.2</u> - indicates if the State agency chooses to use electronic signatures, the State agency must ensure the reliability and integrity of the technology used and the security and confidentiality of electronic signatures collected in accordance with sound management practices, and applicable Federal law and policy, and the confidentiality requirements in §246.26.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection 1011.

PROCEDURE

LAV/MAPolicy Required ☑Yes □No

System Use and Security

1. Thesponsoring agency is responsible for the electronic communication of its employees and must ensure that electronic equipment, communication, and Internet services are used securely and appropriately.

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section # 1451	
	Date: 8/2021	Page 2 of 4
Electronic Communication Upo		

Electronic Communication Use

- The local agency must develop a written policy on appropriate electronic communication use to ensure program integrity, including prohibitions and restrictions against illegal, unethical, or professional activities.
- 3. WIC participantdocuments must only be accessed usingsecuredevices or accounts, all of which must follow the sponsor agency's policies. If sending confidential participant information, such as the participant's name, address, phone number, date of birth, etc., electronically, it must be sent securely, following sponsor agency policy.
 - Confidential applicant, participant, or vendor information may be sent by fax if the confidentiality statement is attached, or by encrypted email.
- 4. All electronic messages, documents, and attachments related to WIC Program business are records and must adhere to the WIC Program record retention and confidentiality policies and may be subject to the Freedom of Information Law or released as a result of legal actions.
- 5. Sponsor agency policies and procedures must ensure electronic communications can be accessed and monitored to ensure WIC Program integrity and policy compliance; to diagnose and resolve technical problems; or for any other legitimate WIC purpose. The New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH) has the right to request access at any time. Electronic communication of WIC Program business, while confidential, is not considered private.
- 6. Staffmusttakeall reasonableprecautions to avoid unauthorized access to WIC electronic accounts and devices.

SocialMedia

- 1. Local agencies must follow sponsor agency policies for using the Internet and social media platforms and are responsible for developing and implementing a procedure for monitoring social media posts and comments.
- 2. WICPrograminformationpostedontheInternetmust be:
 - accurateandupdated,as needed
 - adherentto WPM#1217CriteriaforWICEducation Materials
 - reputableandfreeofbias,productpromotion, and political or religious views
 - monitoredforposts or comments with negative intentor in a curacy, and corrected or deleted in a participant-centered manner
 - compliantwithcopyrightandfairuseof copyrightedmaterialsownedby others'
- 3. Local agency websites and social media accounts must include the nondiscrimination statement or a direct hyperlink to the full statement, as outlined in WPM #1040 Civil Rights and Nondiscrimination Statement.
- 4. The Talent Release Form, or comparable form, must be completed and signed before posting a WIC participant's likeness, name, picture, etc., to web-based publications.

NEW	WIC	WIC Program Ma	nual
STATE		Section # 14	51
STATE	Program	Date: 8/2021	Page 3 of 4

Electronic Communication Use

5. Allsocialmediaaccountsmustinclude the following disclaimer:

The purpose of this site is to promote New York State WIC Program services to the community. The viewpoints, opinions, and actions expressed in comments are those of the individuals themselves and may not reflect the opinions and position of (Local Agency Name) or its employees. All posts and comments must be reputable and free of bias, advertisement, and political/religious views. Posts or comments with a clear malintent will be deleted, and incorrect information will be corrected.

Electronic signatures

- 1. The sponsor agency is responsible for the reliability and integrity of the technology used and the security and confidentiality of electronic signatures in accordance with state and federal laws. In compliance with these regulations, staff may:
 - electronicallysignmandatorylettersandvital documents
 - acceptelectronicHealthCareProvider (HCP)signatures

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable □Yes☑ No

There are many choices in electronic communication and equipment. The WIC Coordinator or VMA Directorshould ensure the needs of the population are met by communicating with WIC participants in a manner that is comfortable and convenient, such as using texting platforms and social media.

Local agency staffmay usevideoconferencingplatformsinaccordancewithsecurity and confidentiality policies.

Whensendingconfidentialparticipantinformationsecurely, best practice is touse a confidentiality notice with outgoing correspondence such as:

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY: The documents accompanying this facsimile may contain information of a personal and sensitive nature related to an individual's health. Redisclosure without additional patient authorization is prohibited. This message is intended for the use of the person or entity to which it is addressed and must be maintained in a secure and confidential manner. If you have received this facsimile in error and are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified thatany disclosure,copying,or distribution of this information is strictly prohibited.

OR

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email and any attachments may contain confidential information that is protected by law and is for the soleuse of the individuals or entities to which it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the senderby replying to this email and destroying all copies of the communication and attachments. Further use, disclosure, copying, distribution of, or reliance upon the contents of this email and attachments is strictly prohibited.

) IUKK	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section # 1451	
			Electr

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1200:Participant-Centered NutritionEducationand Counseling
- #1217:CriteriaforWIC EducationMaterials
- #1043:Confidentiality,Releasing/Disclosureof Information
- #1040:CivilRightsandNondiscriminationStatement
- #1401:Record Retention
- #1450:AdministrativeComputer Guidelines

Other:

- <u>NYS-P03-002InformationSecurity Policy</u>
- NYSElectronicSignatures and Records Act(ESRA)Regulation
- <u>NYS-G10-001SecureUseofSocial MediaGuideline</u>
- <u>CopyrightLawoftheUnitedStates</u>

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WICProgram Manual Section 1452		
	WIC			
	Program	Date: 10/2022	Page 1 of 2	
User Account Security and Guidelines				

1. AllstaffmustcomplywithsecurityrequirementsmandatedbyNewYork Statefortheiruseraccounts.

2. LocalAgencyCoordinators/VendorManagementAgencyDirectors are responsible forassigning, monitoring, and deactivating user accounts.

REGULATIONS

OtherProvisions, 7CFR §246.26 (d)(e)

InformationSecurityPolicy, NYS-P03-002

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

- 1. Anti-virus and firewall software must be installed, configured, and maintained on computers used to access user accounts.
- Staff must protect participant confidentiality and account security. User accounts and passwords are the responsibility of the assigned individual and may not be shared with others.
- 3. Staff with user accounts must receive computer security training upon hire and annually thereafter. Documentation of completion must be kept on file by the Agency.
- 4. LACoordinators/VMADirectors are responsible forassigning,monitoring,anddeactivating useraccounts.
 - TheLA Coordinator/VMA DirectormustcompleteandsubmittheNY.gov Applications AccessForm to requestnew accounts, changes to an accountor to deactivate an account.
 - ManagementInformationSystem (MIS) accessmustbelimited to functions within the individual's job title.
 - TheLACoordinator/VMA Directormustconductand documentanannual reviewof MIS accounts and user roles assigned to all staff.

	NEW/	MAG	WICProgra	am Manual
~	YORK	WIC	Section 1452	
	SIAIE	Program	Date: 10/2022	Page 2 of 2
		User Acc	count Security and Guideline	es
	Coord i.	inator/VMA Director r Immediately deactiv inactive. Submit an NY.gov A	vate staff MIS access by setting their Applications Access Form to their I the staff's NY.gov account within five	r MIS account to DOH Contract
	UIDANCE	vailable 🛛 Yes	Νο	
Pol 1.	licy Supplement A Staffactionswhi	vailable	aybemonitored; thereisno expectatior	
	licy Supplement A Staffactionswhi Staffarerespons Accesstospecifi IfLA/VN	vailable Veloggedintothe MIS ma vailable fortheintegrityanda cscreens intheMISare MAstaffwork at multiplea Aprimary agencymus		eraccount. r role(s). VY.gov account. edapplications. assignedbyCentral

NY.govApplicationsAccess Form

NEW	WIC	WIC Program Manual Section 1460		
				STATE
Local Agency Staff				

- 1. Localagenciesmustmaintain adequatestaffinglevels to provide quality nutrition services while ensuring compliance with federal regulations.
- 2. LocalagenciesmusthaveaWICCoordinatortooverseeprogram operations.
- 3. Localagenciesmust haveaccesstoaQualifiedNutritionist.
- 4. Local agencies must recruit staff that meet the minimum qualifications for the position and follow New York State WIC Program hiring procedures.
- 5. Localagenciesmustfill all vacancieswithin90days.
- 6. Localagenciesmustmaintain documentation of all WIC staffqualificationsincludingcredentials, trainings and continuing education credits.
- 7. Local agenciesmustkeepeachpositiontitlewithinthescopeof practice.

REGULATIONS

Definitions, 7CFR §246.2 - Competent professional authority

Agreementswithlocalagencies, 7CFR§246.6-Provisions of agreement

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

Paraprofessional (Peer Counselors) – An individual without extended professional training in health, nutrition, or the clinical management of breastfeeding whoare selected from the group to be served and are trained and given ongoing supervision to provide a basic service or function. Paraprofessionals provide specific tasks withina defined scope of practice. They assist professionals, but are not licensed or credentialed as healthcare, nutrition, or lactation consultant professionals (WIC Breastfeeding Model for Peer Counseling).

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes⊠No

- 1. The local agency must obtain approval from the New York State (NYS) Department of Health (DOH) for all new WIC Coordinator, Qualified Nutritionist (QN) and Competent Professional Authority (CPA) hires, including thosewho transfer from another WIC agency or are promoted, and student interns.
- 2. Minimum qualifications required when hiring or promoting all staff, as outlined for each position below.

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1460	
	Date: 06/2021	Page 2 of 7

WIC Coordinator

There are no minimum qualifications for the WIC Coordinator as local agencies vary in size and need for managerial staff. It is preferred that the WIC Coordinator has a public health, public administration or nutrition degree.

Preferred Qualifications:

- Bachelor's degreein publichealth, public administrationornutrition from anaccredited collegeor university AND
- 2yearsofsupervisoryexperience
 <u>OR</u>
- Master's degreeinpublic health, publicadministration ornutrition from anaccredited collegeor university <u>AND</u>
- 1yearofsupervisoryexperience

Job Description:

- overseeallWICservicesandensurecompliancewithall federal regulationsand statepolicies
- providesupervisionandensureall staff aretrained and competent in their role
- ensurethateachstaffmemberhas atrainingplantailoredtotheirneeds
- definestaffresponsibilities, workschedules and clinic hours
- workincollaborationwithsponsoring agencyandDOH todevelopandmanageWIC budgetand caseload
- establishclearprocedures onappointmentschedulingandreminders,walk-ins,latearrivals and monitor clinic flow regularly
- participateinthedevelopmentandimplementation of the annual Local AgencyCompliance and Self-Assessment (LACASA)
- actasamentor toall staffandprovidenecessaryguidancetodeliverqualityservices toWIC participants
- providedirectleadershiptomaintainprogram integrity
- maintainLocal Agency Policy and Procedure Manual, and ensure staffare familiar with requirements outlined in the manual
- ensurecollaboration within tra-agency staff, health care providers and community-based organizations
- otherdutiesasassigned

Qualified Nutritionist (QN)

MinimumQualifications:

- RegisteredDietitianNutritionist(RD/RDN) <u>OR</u>
- Bachelor's, Master's, or Doctoral degree in Nutrition from an accredited collegeor university

	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1460	
Le la	Program	Date: 06/2021	Page 3 of 7

Job Description:

- mayconductalldutiesofCPA,NutritionAssistantandProgramSupportstaff
- developandimplementindividualcareplans(ICPs)andoverseehighriskcaretoall participants
- provideoversightandguidancetoCPA andNutritionAssistantstaff
- coordinatenutrition education, including breastfeedingpromotion and support, that is responsive to the identified needs/interests of each high-risk participant
- referhigh-riskparticipantstootherhealth-relatedandsocialservices, as necessary
- trackhigh-risk participants' progressinimproving their health and document for outcomes
- ensure the efficient flow of the assessment and education processes
- provideleadershipinplanning, conducting, and evaluating participant-centered nutrition services
- provideleadershipandassistinorienting,trainingandmentoring new local agency(LA)staff
- provideleadershipin developing, conducting and evaluating nutrition training for LA staffin nutrition education topics
- otherdutiesasassigned

Competent Professional Authority (CPA)

MinimumQualifications:

- RegisteredNurse(RN)withaBachelor's degree from anaccredited collegeoruniversity <u>OR</u>
- NutritionandDieteticsTechnician,Registered(DTR/NDTR) <u>OR</u>
- Bachelor's degree in an appropriate health-related field from an accredited college or university with at least <u>6 credit hours</u> in nutrition

Job Description:

- mayconductallduties of Nutrition Assistant and Program Supportstaff
- conductacompletenutritionassessment, determinenutritionrisk and enroll participants
- conducta breastfeeding assessment, and provideparticipant-centered counseling that helps a mother initiate breastfeeding, establish a milk supply, exclusively breastfeed and continue breastfeeding
- addresscommonbreastfeedingconcerns and issuebreastpumps
- prescribe, tailor, authorize, issue, and reissue all food packages
- review and approve formula requests requiringmedical documentation in consultation with the Health Care Provider
- identifytheneedforanindividualcareplanandreferto aQN, as appropriate
- carry out ICPs established by the QN, provide participant centered counseling for high-risk participants, and work in conjunctionwith the QN to ensure continuity of care and to decidewhen the ICP can be closed
- provideanddocumentparticipant-centerednutritioneducation/counseling (individual/family sessions and facilitated group discussions) for participants
- documentnutritionservices provided, including referrals and follow-up to referrals
- ensurereferralsforleadtestingandimmunizationsareprovided, as appropriate
- trackparticipant'sprogress, and document outcomes
- develop, conductandevaluate nutrition training for LA staffin nutritioned ucation topics

NEW	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 14	60
STATE	Program	Date: 06/2021	Page 4 of 7

- provideguidancetoNutrition Assistantstaffincollecting nutritionassessmentdata .
- orient,train,andmentor NutritionAssistantstaff .
- otherdutiesasassigned

Nutrition Assistant (NA)

MinimumQualifications:

- HighSchoolDiplomaOR LicensedPracticalNurse AND
- experienceworkinginthehealthcarefield, including volunteer experience
- experiencewith providing customerservice and computer data entry, including volunteer experience

Job Description:

- mayconductallduties of Program Supportstaff •
- provideclinicandofficesupporttoQNandCPA staff
- provideexcellent customerservicetoparticipants •
- reviewRights and Responsibilities with participants
- conductprogramorientation,includingexplainingprogram benefits,issuingeWIC card,settingup WIC2GO and providing list of authorized vendors
- collectinformation for the nutrition assessment process, including obtaining anthropometric and . hematological data, as trained
- participateinbreastfeeding promotionand support activities
- completeissuanceof foodpackages thatdo notrequiremedical documentation, once prescribed • by the QN or CPA
- assistbyissuingWIC benefits as partofaQN/CPA-ledfacilitated groupdiscussion, whenno food . package changes are needed providereferralstohealthandsocialservices, and document in participant's record
- identifyandreferparticipants toaQN orCPA, when appropriate
- assistQNs andCPAsinplanningandevaluatingparticipant-centerednutritioneducation (such as • FitWIC, food demos, etc.)
- provideadditional programinformationonsuchtopics as WIC benefitsandtheFarmers' Market . NutritionProgram
- issueFarmers'Marketbenefits toparticipants
- otherduties asassigned

ProgramSupport

MinimumQualification:

HighSchoolDiploma OR

GED

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1460	
	Date: 06/2021	Page 5 of 7

Preferred Qualification:

• experiencewithproviding customerservice and computer dataentry, including volunteer experience

Job Description:

- general receptiondutiessuchasansweringphones, scheduling appointments, following-upon missed appointments, and greeting participants
- reviewRightsandResponsibilities withparticipants
- conductprogram orientation, including explaining program benefits, issuing eWIC card, setting up WIC2GO and providing list of authorized vendors
- collectinformationforthecertificationprocessincludingverifyingidentity, incomeandresidency
- providereferralstohealthandsocial services, and documentinparticipant's record
- completeissuanceof foodpackages thatdo notrequiremedical documentation, once prescribed by the CPA or QN
- provide additional program information on such topics as WIC benefits and the Farmers' Market NutritionProgram
- issueFarmers'Marketbenefits toparticipants
- other duties as assigned

Breastfeeding Peer Counselor

Minimum Qualifications:

- isaparaprofessional,asdefinedbythe<u>WICBreastfeedingModelComponents forPeer</u> <u>Counseling</u>
- recruited and hired from WIC'starget population, and, to the extent possible, represent the same racial/ethnic background as the participants they support
- havebreastfedatleastone baby
- istrainedbasedontheFNSWICBreastfeedingCurriculum

Job Description:

- providebasicbreastfeedinginformationandsupporttopregnantand breastfeeding participants
- areavailable toWICparticipantsoutsideusualclinichoursandoutsidetheWIC clinic environment
- counselprenatal andpostpartumparticipantsviaemail, phone, homevisits, hospital visits, and face to face
- refer participants to the DesignatedBreastfeedingExpert(DBE),QN/CPA, or other community breastfeeding resources for situations outside the peer counselor's scope of practice
- followuponparticipantreferrals inatimelymanner
- documentinteractionsandreferralstootherstaffinthemanagementinformationsystem (MIS)
- otherdutiesasassigned
- 3. Staffmustcompletethefollowingcontinuingeducationrequirements everyyear:
 - WICCoordinator, Qualified Nutritionistand Competent Professional Authority-12 hours

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1460	
		Date: 06/2021	Page 6 of 7

- NutritionAssistant, Program SupportandBreastfeedingPeerCounselor –6 hours
- 4. The LA must developwritten descriptions of job duties that adhere to the scope of practice outlined in this policy for all staff. The duties described in this section are intended to identify the appropriate scope of practice for each title, but do not necessarily reflect all of the duties and responsibilities of each title.
- TheLA mustcomplywith WIC Program Manual (WPM) 1467 Staff Training and, trainall new staffon WIC Program policies and procedures within <u>six months</u> of employment. New staff can provide services in the WIC clinic as they attain competencies.
- 6. The LA must complywithWPM 1401RecordRetention and develop asystem for maintaining records for staff qualifications including resumes, transcripts, DOH approvals, professional licenses, registrations, certifications, training and continuing education.
- 7. Applicants with foreign degrees must have an independent foreign degree evaluation agency validate their degree as equivalent to a Bachelor's or Master's degree conferred by a US regionally accredited college or university.
- 8. Thelocal agencymustdesignateastaffmemberfor thefollowingroles:
 - TrainingCoordinator
 - Itis recommended thatthe WICCoordinatorserveas the TrainingCoordinator for the LA, although duties may bedelegated to the Nutrition Coordinator as necessary
 - NutritionCoordinator (NC)
 - BreastfeedingCoordinator (BFC)
 - DesignatedBreastfeedingExpert (DBE)
 - PeerCounselorCoordinator (PCC)
 - PCC is not a required role; it is based on caseload and is necessary only if the LA peeds to have a separate person to help manage the Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program
 - OutreachCoordinator
 - NationalVoterRegistration ActCoordinator
- 9. TheNCandBFCarerequiredtospendadequatetimeeachweektoperform thedutiesand responsibilities of the position.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available

⊠Yes⊡No

Thispolicy is intended to establish minimum qualifications for the hiring and promotion of staff within these titles.

Thesetitles do not necessarily reflect an organizational hierarchy, except that it is expected that a QN or CPA oversee the work of Nutrition Assistants and that the Nutrition Coordinator is responsible for ensuring that procedures are in place to provide WIC participants with the highest possible quality

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 1460	
		Date: 06/2021	Page 7 of 7
		Local Aronov Ctoff	

participantcenterednutrition services. All WIC nutritionstaffmustpossess theskills, knowledgeand confidence to carry out the duties assigned to them.

ThefirstchoiceforaQualifiedNutritionist is aRegistered DietitianNutritionist (RD/RDN).

International BoardCertifiedLactation Consultant (IBCLC) orCertified LactationCounselor (CLC) is a preferred qualification for a QN and a CPA.

If theminimum qualifications are questionable, local agencies are encouraged to consult withDOH prior to interviewing potential hires. Transcripts should be obtained and reviewed for all potential CPA hires with a health-related degree. Hires must have 6 credit hours from pertinent nutrition courses. Thesis writing does not count towards these 6 credits.

RESOURCES

WICProgram ManualSectionsandPolicySupplements:

- #1020Participant-CenteredWIC Environment
- #1135NutritionAssessment Process
- #1186SubstanceUseScreening,Educationand Referral
- #1216HighRisk Care
- #1401Record Retention
- #1406Complianceand Self-Assessment
- #1452UserAccountSecurityand Guidelines

WICLibrary:

WICStaffCompetencies

Other:

- <u>CodeofEthicsfortheNutritionandDieteticsProfession</u>
- ForeignDegreeEvaluation Agencies
- WICNutritionServices Standards

	1	WIC Program Manual	
S NEW YORK	WIC	Section 1465	
STATE	Program	Date: 08/2021	Page 1 of 3
	•	Student Interns	

- 1. Student Interns are required to maintain confidentiality and follow state and local agency policies and procedures.
- 2. The WIC Coordinator or designated supervisormust develop a job description based on thelearning plan for each Student Intern and provide appropriate training(s) for the job description.
- 3. Student Interns may only be granted access to the management information system with the Student User Role and only when the job description includes nutrition assessment or nutrition education duties.
- 4. Local agencies are responsible for all acts, errors and/oromissions due to the actions of Student Interns.
- 5. StudentInternsmustnotserveasaproxyforanyWICparticipantservedby thelocal agency.

REGULATIONS

Confidentiality of applicant and participant information, $\S_{246.26(d)(1)}(ii)$ - The State agency must restrict the use and disclosure of confidential applicant and participant information to persons directly connected with the administration or enforcement of the WIC Program whom the State agency determine have a need to know the information for WIC Program purposes.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes⊠No

- 1. Localagencies(LAs)mustfollowallapplicablepolicies of thesponsoring agency.
- 2. The LA must follow a learning plan that reflects the responsibilities of the Student Intern and the learning outcomes as determined by the Student Intern's curriculum. The LA Coordinator must ensure that it does not impact services to WIC participants.
- 3. The LA Coordinatormust requesta managementinformation system user account for the Student Internby submitting the *NY.gov ApplicationsAccess Form* to the Department of Healthforapproval.
- 4. The LA Coordinator will be notified when a user account has been created for a Student Intern. The Student Intern will be notified by the New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH) via email to log into NY.gov to activate the account.
|) IUKK | WIC | WIC Program Manual
Section 1465 | |
|--------|-----|------------------------------------|--|
| | | | |
| | | Student Interns | |

- StudentInterns granted access toparticipantrecordsmustadhere to confidentialitypolicies and
- 6. LAs arerequired to provide an orientation to Student Interns to ensure they understand WIC Program policies and procedures. The Student Intern's training(s) must be documented and kept on file at the LA. Documentation may include, but is not limited to, confidentiality statement, job description, password security log, Annual Computer Security training, and assessment(s).
- 7. The LA Coordinator or designated supervisor must assess the roles, responsibilities, performance, and competencies achieved of each Student Intern throughout the course of the internship. The outcome of the assessment(s) must be documented and kept on file at the LA.
- 8. TheLA Coordinator must deactivate the Student Intern's management informationsystem account immediately when the Student Intern leaves the LA, or any time deemed necessary. The LA Coordinator must notify the NYS DOH to remove the user account by completing the *NY.gov Applications Access Form*.
- 9. If a Student Intern is offered any permanent position at the LA, the LA Coordinator must update the staf f information in the management information system and submit a new *NY.gov Applications Access Form* to the NYS DOH to remove the Student user-role and assign the new role.

GUIDANCE

5.

PolicySupplement Available □Yes ⊠No

computer security policies.

Current shifts in population demographics and health risk factors, along with escalating healthcare costs, have shifted the focus of health care and public policy toward promoting health, preventing disease, and eliminating health disparities at the population level. These shifts require a highly competent workforce with the goal of protecting and improving the nutrition and health of communities and diverse populations. Appropriate learning opportunities in WIC are crucial for students to gain the needed experience to meet the skills and competencies required for public health practitioners, including public health and community nutritionists. Interning at WIC provides students with the opportunity to work with diverse populations, and provides them with the practical experiences needed to become successful in the field.

Local agencies are encouraged to provide interning opportunities to qualified students to ensure that they are exposed to, and have a good understanding of the WIC Program, and that they are prepared to meet the needs of an increasingly diverse population. Providing these opportunities also allows LAs to build a strong and competent workforce in their communities, while developing leadership and management skills of current staff.

Local agencies should usediscretion while screening and selecting Student Interns who have access to participant and/or applicant information.

Student Interns' learning plans should reflect the opportunity to gain knowledge and experience in the WIC Program and other community-based programs that promote health and well-being of low-income families.

	WIC	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1465		
STATE	Program	Date: 08/2021	Page 3 of 3	
Student Interns				

Student Internsmay assistin participant-centered nutritionservices such as developingposters and assistingingroups and food demonstrations, under the supervision of the Nutrition Coordinator.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

- #1040:CivilRightsandNondiscriminationStatement
- #1043:Confidentiality,Releasing/DisclosureofInformation
- #1401:Record Retention
- #1452:WICMISPasswordsandSecurity
- #1467:Staff Training

WIC Library: NY.govApplicationsAccess Form

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 1466	
	Section		
	Date: 07/2021	Page 1 of 2	
Employee Participants			

POLICY

1. WIC employeesmustnotcompleteanycertification activities todetermine eligibility forthemselves, relatives, close friends, or foster children in their care.

REGULATIONS

State plan, 246.4(a)(27) - The State agency's policies and procedures for preventing conflicts of interest at the local agency or clinic level in a reasonable manner. At a minimum, this plan must prohibit the following WIC certification practices by local agency or clinic employees, or provide effective alternative policies and procedures when such prohibition is not possible:

- (i) Certifyingoneself;
- (ii) Certifyingrelatives or closefriends; or,

(iii) One employee determining eligibility for all certification criteria and issuing food instruments, cash-value vouchers or supplemental food for the same participant.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required ⊠Yes⊡No

- 1. All WIC Program certifications and subsequent certifications for employee participants, their relatives, close friends, or foster children in their care, must be reviewed by the WIC Coordinator within two weeks.
- 2. The WICCoordinatormustensure that employee participants meetall program requirements and do not participate in the determination of their own eligibility or benefit issuance.
- 3. In the event that the WIC Coordinator is an employee participant or foster parent, the WIC Coordinator's supervisoris responsible for reviewing the transactions and documenting thereview.
- 4. TheWIC Coordinator or WIC Coordinator's supervisor must document thereview in the management information system (MIS) to confirm that proper procedures were followed.
- 5. The local agency must develop a written policy on handling employee participants to ensure program integrity. This policy must be kept on file and be available for review in the Local Agency Policy and Procedure Manual.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable

□Yes⊠No

	WIC Program Manual Section 1466	
	Date: 07/2021	Page 1 of 2
Employee Participants		

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements: • #1100:WICCertification Overview

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section	Section 1467	
	Date: 03/2021 Page 1 of 3		
StaffTraining			

POLICY

- 1. The local agency and vendor management agency must designate a Training Coordinator, who shall be responsible for overseeing new staff training, annual staff training plans and documentation of training.
- 2. WIC local agency and vendor management agency staff must have a documented individual training plan that contains training goals to support job proficiency.
- 3. All new WIC local agency and vendormanagementagency staffmustcompletean orientation training program.
- 4. WIC local agency and vendormanagementagency staffmustcomply with mandated trainings identified in this policy and as directed by New York State Department of Health.
- 5. WIC local agencystaffmustobtaincontinuingeducation credits appropriatefortheirWIC program responsibilities.
- 6. Documentationoftrainingsattendedby eachagency staffpersonmustbemaintainedby theagency and available for New York State Department of Health review.

REGULATIONS

NutritionEducation, §7CFR 246.11

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required XYes No

- 1. In accordance with WPM #1460 Local Agency Staff, the local agency or vendor management agency must designate a Training Coordinator. It is recommended that the WIC Coordinator serve as the Training Coordinator for the agency, although duties may be delegated to the Nutrition Coordinator as necessary. It is recommended that the VMA Director serve as the TrainingCoordinator for the vendor management agency, although duties may be delegated to other supervisory staff as necessary. Agencies must notify the New York State Department of Healthwhen the agency designates a new Training Coordinator.
- 2. All staff must have a documented individual staff training plan specific to their job role and responsibilities. The training plan must be developed to ensure that all staff involved in program operations have the requisite abilities, skills, and knowledge to perform their assigned duties.

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1467	
	Date: 03/2021 Page 2 of 3	
StaffTraining		

Once developed, the plan must be re-evaluated and updated annually thereafter, as part of the annual training plan cycle. Training plans for local agency staff must include topics that address performance problems identified in Quality Assurance (QA) observations and record reviews.

- 3. WIC Coordinators, VMA Directors, and supervisors must work continuously with staff in the annual training plan cycle, which includes planning and preparing for the training, attending the training, and supporting staff post-training.
- 4. NYSDOHmaymandatelocal agency andvendormanagementagencystaffattend specific trainings in addition to trainings identified in staff training plans.
- 5. Thefollowingmandatory trainings prescribedbylaw, policyandregulationsmustbecompleted by all staff:

TrainingTopic	WPM#	Frequency
ProgramComplaintsand SuspectedFraud orAbuse	1038	Annually
Civil RightsandNon- Discrimination Statement	1040	Uponhire,thereafter annually
OfferingtheOpportunityto Register to Vote	1110*	NVRACoordinator –annually; Asneededforstaffinvolvedin voterregistration activities
UserAccountandSecurity Guidelines	1452	Uponhire,thereafter annually
BreastfeedingEducation, Promotion,and Support	1224*	Uponhire,thereafter annually

*Localagencystaffonly;doesnotincludeVendorManagementAgency staff

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available $ext{Ves} \square$ No

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements

- #1200:NutritionEducationContacts andMaterials
- #1200:NutritionEducationContacts andMaterialsPolicySupplement
- #1406:ComplianceandSelf-Assessment
- #1460:LocalAgencyStaff
- #1460:Local AgencyStaffPolicySupplement

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 1467	
	Date: 03/2021 Page 3 of 3	
StaffTraining		

Staff I raining

WIC Library:

- RecommendedTrainingsforNewStaffHires •
- StaffTraining Guidance •
- BreastfeedingCoordinator CompetencySetFinal •
- BreastfeedingPeerCounselorCompetency SetFinal •
- SupportStaffandNutrAsstCompetencies updated2020 ٠
- QNCPACompetencies updated2019 •
- WICCoordinatorCompetenciesupdated2020 •

Other:

- **NYSWICTrainingCenterwebsite**
- USDAFNSNutritionServices Standards •

NEW YORK	WIC	WIC Program	Manual
	L CREATING CONTRACTORS	Section 1500	
Y	Program	Date: 03/2023	Page 1 of 2

Farmers' Market Nutrition Program

POLICY

- 1. Local agencies must issue Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) checks during the statedesignated issuance period.
- 2. Local agencies must refer to the annual Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Procedure Guidance Document to determine if checks are to be issued to households or individuals.
- 3. Local agencies must instruct participants on the proper use of Farmers' Market Nutrition Program checks.

REGULATIONS

Federal Regulations 7CFR Part 248 implements the mandates of the Farmers Market Nutrition Act of 1992. The New York State WIC FMNP is designed to provide the nutritional benefits of fresh fruits and vegetables to WIC families and to promote the purchase of New York State grown fresh fruits and vegetables from farmers at authorized farmers' markets and roadside stands throughout the state.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required ☑ Yes □ No

- 1. Market schedules listing the locations, days, hours, and contact information of participating farmers' markets must be provided to all participants who receive FMNP checks. These materials will be provided by the Department of Agriculture and Markets.
- 2. During the FMNP issuance season, an authorized staff member must determine, at each participant appointment, whether the participant is eligible to receive FMNP checks. Refer to the annual Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Procedure Guidance Document to determine eligibility criteria.
- 3. Local agency staff must instruct participants on the purpose and proper use of FMNP checks, and where the checks can be used, at the time of issuance.
- 4. Local agency staff must provide nutrition education regarding purchasing fruits and vegetables at Farmers' Markets.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 1500		
		Date: 03/2023	Page 2 of 2	
Farmers' Market Nutrition Program				

- 5. Local agencies must implement policies and procedures, as outlined in WPM 1500 Policy Supplement, to ensure that the inventory of FMNP checks is stored in a secure locked location and that checks are signed in and out of storage by local agency staff in the Local Agency Policy and Procedures Manual.
- 6. Local agencies must not replace lost or stolen FMNP checks.
- 7. Local agencies must report all unissued, lost, and stolen checks to the NYS Department of Agriculture and Markets after the FMNP season. Thefts and losses of unissued checks must be immediately reported to NYS DOH Central Office.

GUIDANCE

RESOURCES

WIC Library:

• Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Procedure Guidance Document for the current year

WIC Program Manual

Section 2001

Date: 07/2021

Page 1 of 2

Vendor Management and Stakeholder Communications

POLICY

- 1. Vendormanagementagencies mustestablish andmaintainapositiveworking relationshipwithWIC vendors and stakeholders to provide information on WIC program requirements.
- 2. Vendormanagementagenciesmustestablish andmaintainacooperativeworking relationshipwith WIC local agencies to ensure participant access to supplemental foods and formula.

REGULATIONS

Program referral and access, Food Delivery Methods <u>246.12(g)</u> requires State agencies using a retail food delivery system must authorize an appropriate number and distribution of vendors in order to ensure the lowest practicable food prices consistent with adequate participant access to supplemental foods and ensure the effective state management, oversight and review of its authorized vendors.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes ☑ No

- 1. Vendormanagementagenciesmustrespond tovendor questions and requests forinformationwithin three days of receipt of the request.
- 2. Vendormanagementagenciesmustprovidevendors theopportunity tocommunicate facetoface with staff during annual vendor training.
- 3. Vendormanagementagenciesmustrespond tolocal agencystaffquestions and requests for information within a three days of receipt of the request.
- 4. Vendormanagementagenciesmustcollaboratewithlocal agency staffandvendors to facilitate arrangements for special formula required by participants.
- 5. Vendormanagementagency staffmustattendorparticipateinWIC coordinatormeetingsas scheduled to answerquestions and provide feedbackregarding vendorrelated issues.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable □Yes ☑ No

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 2001	
	Date: 07/2021 Page 2 of 2	
Vendor Management and Stakeholder Communications		

In addition to annual vendor training, vendor management staff should utilize vendor monitoring opportunities to provide technical assistance, clarification, education and reinforcement of program obligations with WIC vendors.

Vendor management staff should offer local agency staff the opportunity to attend annual vendor trainings held in their area so they can better understand the complexities of the vendor management program and vendorexpectations.

A list of active vendors, which is updated weekly is available on the New York StateVendor's website at https://nyswicvendors.com/find-a-wic-store/ so participants and local agency staff can easily identify authorized WIC vendors. Additional vendor communications can also be found on the NYS WIC Vendor website at nyswicvendors.com/find-a-wic-store/ so participants and local agency staff can easily identify authorized WIC vendors. Additional vendor communications can also be found on the NYS WIC Vendor website at nyswicvendors.com.

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sections:

- #2004VendorTraining
- #2005Vendor Monitoring

OtherResources:

- www.health.ny.gov
- <u>nyswicvendors.com</u>
- VendorHandbook

WIC Program Manual

Section 2002

Date: 05/2021

Page 1 of 4

Participant Access

POLICY

- 1. Vendormanagementagencies mustauthorizevendors inareas where participant access is not met.
- 2. Vendormanagementagencies mustassess participantaccesswhenreviewingaRequest for Vendor Application, before denying an application for authorization, or terminating an authorized vendor.
- 3. Vendor management agencies must assess and apply exception criteria if the vendor applicant is not needed for participant access, regardless of whether the vendor applies inside or outside the designated Open Application Period. Exception criteria include cultural, geographic, sales and other exception criteria as defined by the Commissioner.
- 4. Vendormanagementagenciesmustonly apply the Minimum Authorization Criteriawhen authorizing vendors needed for participant access.
- 5. Vendormanagementagenciesmustexpeditetheauthorizationprocessforvendors determined to be needed for participant access ormeeting exception criteria.
- 6. Vendormanagementagenciesmustattempttorecruitvendorapplicantsingeographic areas where there is inadequate participant access.

REGULATIONS

Food Delivery Methods - <u>§246.12</u> states that the State agency must authorize an appropriate number and distribution of vendors in order to ensure the lowest practicable food prices consistentwithadequateparticipant access to supplemental foods and to ensure effective State agency management, oversight, and review of its authorized vendors

Food Deliver Methods - <u>\$246.12</u> states that the State agency must develop procedures for processing vendor applications outside of its timeframes when it determines there will be inadequate participant access unless additional vendors are authorized.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions"locatedinSection 1011

Cultural Exception Criteria – criteria used when an applicant vendor applies outsidetheir Open Application Period (OAP) and is not needed for participant access. Cultural exception criteria identifies a vendor that serves 25 or more WIC participants that cannot be properly served by another authorized vendor located within a one (1) mile radius due to a barrier stemming from language, ethnicity, nationality, or religious belief.

MinimumAuthorization Criteria –criteriadefinedinFederal Regulations and used by the Department of Health to authorizevendors located in areas identified as having inadequate participant access and

	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 2002	
	Date: 05/2021	Page 2 of 4
Destisinent Access		

Participant Access

includes compliance with minimum stock requirements, compliance with prohibition of providing incentive items by Above-50-Percent Vendors and assisting vendors with compliance of competitive price criteria and Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) capability.

Non-Open Application Period – a specified timeframe during which vendor applicants located within an identified geographic area, as defined by the Departmentof Health, can not apply for authorization.

Open Application Period –aspecified timeframeduringwhichvendorapplicantslocatedwithin anidentifiedgeographicarea, as defined by the Department of Health can apply for authorization.

ParticipantAccess–theminimum numberofvendors to beauthorized by a state to ensure participant access to WIC foods.

Rural Urban Commuting Area (RUCA) Code – codes developed by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) to measure geography and capture labor and food commodity market differences that contribute to food price differences.

Sales Exception Criteria –criteria established by the Department of Health allowing corporations with more than \$5 million in food sales during the previous year and demonstrating Electronic Benefit Transaction (EBT) readiness to apply for authorization.

Store Exception Criteria – criteria established by the Department of Health to be used when selecting vendors for authorization i.e., the store is currently authorized as a WIC vendor or the store is currently authorized as a WIC vendor and there is a change in ownership within the last 60 days.

Vendor Authorization Criteria–criteriaestablished by the Department of Healthtobeused when selecting vendors for authorization.

PROCEDURE

LA Policy Required □ Yes☑ No

- Staff must assess participant access using guidance and zip code lists developed by the Department of Health. Zip codes are included on the list if they have more than 100 eligible individuals per cash register, or at least 100 eligible individuals and no cash registers, AND any part of the zip code is located more than one mile from the nearest authorized WIC vendor in an urban area, or ten miles from the nearest authorized WIC vendor in a rural area.
- 2. Staff must consider physical barriers or other conditions that make ground travel to another authorized vendor within one mile of another urban vendor and ten miles of a non-urban vendor impossible, and discuss these barriers or conditions with the contract manager. Geographic barriers may include, but are not limited to, multi-lane highway or roadway; bridge or railroad crossing not suitable for foot traffic; a mountain or unbridged body of water; or prolonged or frequent road closure.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 2002	2002
	Program	Date: 05/2021	Page 3 of 4

Participant Access

- 3. Staffmustapplyparticipant accesscriteria:
 - a whenreviewingaRequestforVendorApplicationreceivedduringanOAPOR a Non-OAP;
 - b. priorto terminatinganauthorized vendor's contract
- Staff must evaluate all vendor applicant Requests for Application submitted during AND outside the designated OAP to determine if the applicant meets any of the following exceptioncriteria:
 - a Cultural ExceptionCriteria
 - b SalesException Criteria
 - c. StoreException Criteria
 - d otherexceptional circumstances as defined by the Commissioner that warrants authorization (contact Department of Health for guidance)
- Staff must authorize vendors needed for participant access who do not meet competitive price selection and continue to work with vendors to meet competitive price. Staff must only apply the following minimumstock criteria(a), and mustensurecomplianceinareas and(c)whenauthorizing avendorneededforparticipantaccess:
 - a compliancewithminimum stock:
 - i. twodifferentfruits
 - ii. twodifferentvegetables and
 - iii. onewholegraincereal authorizedbythestate
 - b. forA50vendors only, compliance with prohibition of providing incentive items
 - c compliance with EBT capability; the vendormanagementagency must assist vendors deemed necessary for participant access with complying to these criteria
- 6. Forvendorsdetermined tobeneededforparticipantaccessormeetingexceptioncriteria, staff must authorize the applicant or reapplicant vendor:
 - a immediatelyfollowingthecompletionofall authorizationmilestonesAND
 - b priortothefirstdayofthenewcontractperiod for thevendor's assigned Vendor Contract Period.
- 7. If denying avendor's application or terminating an authorized vendor would result in inadequate participant access, the vendor management agencies must:
 - a requestapproval from the Department of Health befored envingor terminating the vendor;
 - b attempttorecruitanadditionalvendorapplicantwithinthesamegeographic area.
- 8. Staff must document assessment of participant access including zip code, physical barriers, or selection criteria in the vendor record as specified by the Department of Health.

GUIDANCE

Policy Supplement Available □ Yes☑ No

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 2002	
		Participant Access	

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections and Policy Supplements:

• 2003:Vendor Authorization

TURK	WIC Program
------	----------------

Section 2003

Page 1 of 3

Vendor Authorization

Date: 11/2023

POLICY

- 1. The vendor management agency must respond to inquiries from retail food vendors and pharmacies seeking information on becoming a WIC authorized vendor.
- 2. The vendor management agency must review all Requests for NYS WIC Vendor Application to determine if the vendor applicant meets the Open Application Period for the geographic area in which they are applying; or meets participant access or exception criteria or identifies unique circumstances beneficial to the program as defined by the New York State Department of Health.
- 3. The vendor management agency must provide eligible applicants with a NYS WIC Vendor Application and upon return, review the application in accordance with procedures defined by the New York State Department of Health.
- 4. The vendor management agency must apply authorization criteria defined by the New York State Department of Health when authorizing vendors.
- 5. The vendor management agency must authorize an appropriate number of vendors to ensure participant access and in areas where participant access is not met, use minimum authorization criteria defined in Federal Regulations and used by the New York State Department of Health.
- 6. The vendor management agency must use a standard contract document developed by the New York State Department of Health when contracting with approved vendors.

BACKGROUND

Retail food delivery systems: Vendor authorization <u>246.12</u> The State agency must authorize an appropriate number and distribution of vendors in order to ensure the lowest practicable food prices consistent with adequate participant access to supplemental foods and to ensure effective State agency management, oversight, and review of its authorized vendors.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to Acronyms and Definitions located in Section 1011.

Minimum Authorization Criteria - criteria defined in Federal Regulations and used by the Department of Health to authorize vendors located in areas identified as having inadequate participant access. Criteria includes compliance with minimum stock requirements; compliance with prohibition of providing incentive items by Above-50-Percent Vendors; provision of equipment for Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) capability and authorizing and continuing to work with vendors needed for participant access who do not meet competitive price criteria.

Vendor Authorization Criteria - criteria established by the Department of Health to be used when selecting vendors for authorization.

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Drogram	Section 2003	
	Program	Date: 11/2023	Page 2 of 3

Vendor Authorization

PROCEDURE

VMA Policy Required □ Yes ☑ No

- 1. Staff must direct applicants interested in applying for WIC authorization to the NYS WIC Vendors website for information on how to complete a Request for NYS WIC Vendor Application.
- 2. Staff must review all Requests for NYS WIC Vendor Application to determine if the applicant meets the Open Application Period (OAP) for the geographic area in which the applicant is located or meets participant access or other exception criteria or unique circumstances beneficial to the program defined by the New York State Department of Health (NYS DOH).
- 3. Based on the review of an applicant's Request for NYS WIC Vendor Application, staff must provide eligible applicants with a NYS WIC Vendor Application and notify ineligible applicants of their status.
- 4. Staff must review the NYS WIC Vendor Application to ensure all required authorization criteria defined by the NYS DOH are met or criteria outlined as meeting unique circumstances approved by NYS DOH Required Authorization criteria include:

Grocers:

- eWIC readiness
- Current SNAP authorization
- Minimum stock requirements
- Reasonable hours of operation (defined as at least 6 days per week, 8 hours per day)
- Competitive pricing
- Provision of incentive items A50 vendors prohibited
- Business integrity background check

Pharmacies:

- eWIC readiness
- Pharmacy Registration License
- Minimum stock requirements
- Reasonable hours of operation (defined as at least 6 days per week, 8 hours per day)
- Competitive pricing
- Business integrity background check
- 5. Staff must deny vendor applications that do not meet all required vendor authorization criteria or criteria meeting unique circumstances and notify the applicant in writing of the denial.
- 6. Staff must review vendor applications that meet participant access criteria, and only apply the following minimum stock criteria (a). Staff must authorize vendors that do not meet competitive price selection and continue to work with the vendors until competitive price selection is met. Staff must ensure compliance in areas (b) and (c) when authorizing a vendor needed for participant access.
 - a) Compliance with minimum stock:

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	WIC	Section 2003	.003
	Program	Date: 11/2023	Page 3 of 3
Vendor Authorization			

- i. two different fruits,
- ii. two different vegetables, and
- iii. one whole grain cereal authorized by the state.
- b) Compliance with prohibition of providing incentive items for A50 vendors.
- c) Compliance with EBT capability; the vendor management agency must assist vendors deemed necessary for participant access with complying to these criteria.
- 7. Staff must attempt to recruit applicant vendors in geographic areas where a participant access issue exists, or another vendor has been authorized or allowed to remain authorized using minimum authorization criteria.
- 8. Staff must use standardized contract documents developed by the NYS DOH when contracting with approved vendors.
- 9. Staff must document the vendor authorization process in the vendor's file.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

• #2002: Participant Access Policy

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual		
		Section 2004		
		Date: 7/2021	Page 1 of 4	
VendorTraining				

POLICY

- 1. Vendor management agency staff must provide direct and interactive training to each vendor applicant during the initial contract authorization process and at least once every 12 months to authorized WIC vendors.
- Vendor management agencies must offer twoconsecutive training opportunities to vendor applicants and three consecutive training opportunities to authorized Women Infants and Children (WIC) vendors.
- 3. Vendor management agencies must provide training to vendor applicants prior to conducting an initial monitoring of the applicant's store.
- 4. Vendor management agencies must provide technical assistance any time there are participant or public complaints made or when deficiencies or problems are detected by vendor monitors or local agency staff.
- 5. Vendor management agencies must use the curricula and standardized vendor training developed by the state for training purposes and must retain documentation relevant to the vendor training.

REGULATIONS

Retail food delivery systems: Vendor training, <u>7 CFR §246.12(i)</u> require the state agency to provide training to vendors to prevent programerrors and noncompliance and to improve program service. The content of the training must include instruction on the following topics:

- 1. PurposeoftheWIC Program
- 2. Vendorcontractterms
- 3. ProceduresforprocessingelectronicWIC benefits
- 4. WIC-acceptablefoodsauthorizedby thestateagency
- 5. InfantFormulaSupplier List
- 6. Stockingrequirements forWIC-acceptablefoods
- 7. Useofincentiveitems, coupons/bonuses
- 8. Vendorcomplaintprocess
- 9. Claimsprocedures
- 10. Penaltiesand sanctionsthatcanbeimposedbythestateforWIC Programabuseandviolations
- 11. Anychangestoprogram requirements sincethelasttraining

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC Program Manual Section 2004	
		Vei	ndorTraining

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes☑No

Methods and Types of Training

- 1. Vendormanagementagencies (VMAs) are required totrainvendors to ensure compliance with program regulations.
- 2. Methods for vendor training may include classroom training, web-based training programs, onsite training at a vendor store, newsletters, and technical assistance including, but not limited to, letters and telephone contacts.
- 3. Thetrainingmethodused by VMAswillvaryaccordingtothespecific typeof trainingprovided and includes three types of training:
 - initial trainingprovidectovendorapplicantsduringtheauthorization process.
 - routineinteractivetrainingprovidedtoexistingvendorsatleast onceevery 12months.
 - technicalassistanceasneededtocorrectspecific deficienciesor toclarifypolicy.
- VMAsmusttrainvendorsusingtheNYSWICVendorStandardizedTrainingprovided bythestate agency.
 - VMAsmayincorporateaninteractivecomponentintothetrainingtalkingpointstoenhance the vendor training through use of examples.
 - VMAsmustnotmakeanychanges to the standardized vendor training.
- 5. VMAs must conduct technical assistance as needed and to correct complaints and any deficiencies noted during vendor monitoring visits.
 - technical assistance is regarded as supplemental and does not replace the routine training requirements.
 - VMAsmustusemiscellaneousvendorcontactsastechnical assistanceopportunities.
 - technical assistance should focus on the initial specific problem or information request and may be expanded to educate the vendor, representative, or employee on other program requirements and provide appropriate guidance.

Scheduling Vendor Training

- 1. VMAsmustprovidetrainingtoall vendors atleastonceevery 12months.
- 2. VMAsmayrequirevendors toattendmorefrequenttrainingif deficienciesareidentified.
- 3. VMAs must use the following procedure to schedule training for vendors and to reschedule vendors who fail to attend scheduled training sessions:
 - establisharegularscheduleforconductingclassroom or remote trainingsessions.

WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
	Section 2004	
	Date: 7/2021	Page 3 of 4
V	endorTraining	

- schedulegroup trainingsessionsatacentral locationwithinthegeographic region to minimize travel time and cost for VMA staff and vendors. scheduleenoughsessions toprovide trainingwithinrequired timeframes.
- schedulesessionsatvarioustimestoaccommodatevendors' schedules.
- establishamethodtotrackandschedulevendors duefor training. •
- informvendors of scheduledandrescheduled trainingsessionsbymail and/orelectronic • communication stating the place, date, and time of session.

Documentation

- 1. VMAsarerequiredtomaintaincomprehensivedocumentation ontrainingprovidedtovendors.
- 2. VMAs must maintain a central WIC vendor training file. A single file may contain training documentation for all the VMA's contracted vendors. The file must include the names of individualswhoconducted thetrainingsessions, the date of the training, thevendors invited, and the vendors in attendance.
- 3. The individual vendor file must include a signed copy of the "Certificate of Training." Individual vendor files and the central WIC vendor training files must be made available to state personnel for review.

An Authorized Vendor Fails to Attend Training

- 1. Afterthefirstmissedtraining the VMA will schedule the vendor for next training session.
- 2. AfterthesecondmissedtrainingtheVMAwill send anoticeto thevendor.
- 3. TheVMAwill advise the vendor that failure to attend the third training session will result in the vendor's termination from the WIC Program in accordance with the vendor contract.
- 4. If the vendor fails to attend the third training, a termination letter must be mailed to the vendor and the VMA will change the contract status in the current Management Information System (MIS) to pendingtermination with an explanation in the vendor file.

A Vendor Applicant Fails to Attend Training

- 1. After the first missed training the VMA will send a notice to the applicant advising the vendor applicant that failure to attend the second training session will result in their application being withdrawn.
- 2. If the vendor fails to attend the second training an Application Withdrawn Letter must be sent to the vendor applicant and the VMA will update the application status in the current MIS to withdrawn with an explanation in the vendor file.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual Section 2004	
		VendorTraining	

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available □Yes☑No

RESOURCES

NewYorkStateDepartmentof HealthStandardizedVendorTraining

NEW YORK STATE	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	WIC Drogram	Section 2	Section 2005 Date: 10/2021 Page 1 of 3
	Program	Date: 10/2021	
VendorMonitoring			

POLICY

- 1. Vendor Management Agencies mustconduct monitoring visits to ensurecompliance withprogram requirements.
- 2. Vendor Management Agencies must conduct monitoring visits prior tovendor authorization and periodically throughout the vendor authorization period.
- 3. Vendor Management Agencies mustconductvendor monitoringvisits in accordance with guidance and tools provided by the Department of Health.
- 4. Vendor Management Agencies must document all monitoring activities in aformat approved by the Department of Health and must notify the Department of Health when vendor deficiencies are identified.

REGULATIONS

Routine Monitoring- <u>7 CFR §246.7(j)</u> - the State agency must conduct routine monitoring visits on a minimum of five percent of the number ofvendors authorized by the State agency as ofOctober 1 of each fiscalyear in order to survey the types and levels of abuse and errors among authorized vendors and to take corrective actions, as appropriate. The State agency must develop criteria to determine which vendors willreceive routine monitoring visits and must include suchcriteria in its State Plan in accordance with §246.4(a)(14)(iv).

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

Minimum Authorization Criteria – criteria defined in Federal policy and used by the Department of Health to ensure vendors located in areas identified as having inadequate participant access meet compliancewith minimumstock requirements, compliancewith prohibition of providing incentive items by Above-50-Percent Vendors, compliance of competitive pricecriteria and Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) capability.

VendorAuthorization Criteria –criteria established by theDepartment of Health to be used when selecting vendors for authorization.

NEW YORK STATE	WIC	WIC ProgramManual	
		Section 2005	2005
	Program	Date: 10/2021	2005 Page 2 of 3
VendorMonitoring			

PROCEDURE

LA/VMA Policy Required

🗆 Yes 🗹 No

- 1. Vendor Management Agency (VMA) staff must conduct monitoring visits to review and confirm the accuracy of information provided in the vendor application, or contained in the vendor's file.
- 2. VMAstaffmustconductunannounced monitoringvisits to ensure compliance withall program requirements.
- 3. VMAstaff must conduct monitoring visits for applicant vendors after the applicant has completed initial vendor training, and prior to authorization.
- 4. VMA staff must conduct monitoring visits within 90 days of authorization for newly contractedvendors. Newly authorized vendors must receive one additional monitoring during the first year of their contract to fulfill the annual monitoring requirement.
- 5. VMA staff must conduct an annual monitoring visit for each authorized vendor no later than 45 days prior to the vendor contract renewal date.
- 6. VMA staff must conduct any additional monitoring visits as needed, to follow up on specific deficiencies or complaints; or as directed by the Department of Health.
- 7. VMAStaff mustconduct vendor monitoringvisits in accordance with guidance and usingforms provided by the Department of Health. During the monitoring visit, staff must:
 - collectshelfprices of WICacceptablefoods and formula.
 - determineifthevendor ischargingreasonableprices.
 - summarizefindings and provide feedback to the vendor at each visit.
 - provide the owner or authorized representative with a copy of the monitoring results.
 - obtain a signature indicating receipt of the monitoring visit results from the owner or authorized representative at each monitoring visit.
 - documentresults of all monitoring visits in the vendor's electronic file.
- 8. VMA Staff must complete appropriate documentation of any failed pre-authorization monitoring visits. If a vendor applicant fails the first pre-authorization monitoring visit, staff must ask the owner/authorized representative if they would like to move forward with the application process:
 - if the applicant vendor chooses not to move forward with the application process, staff must notify the applicant vendor within 30 days that the application has been withdrawn.
 - if the applicant chooses to move forward with the application process, staff must return within 30 days and complete a second pre-authorization monitoring visit.
 - If the applicant vendor is needed for participant access, and failed the second preauthorization monitoring based on the Vendor Selection Criteria defined by the Department of Health, the VMA must authorize the vendor.

	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	WIC	Section 2005	2005
	Program	Date: 10/2021	Page 3 of 3
	Ve	ndorMonitoring	
		eded for participant access, and fa	•

- not meeting the competitive price criteria, VMA staff will work with vendors to negotiate the best possible prices for supplemental foods.If the applicant vendor failed the pre-authorization monitoring visit based on one or more
- If the applicant vendor failed the pre-authorization monitoring visit based on one or more of the Minimum Authorization Criteria, the VMA must notify the vendor in writing that the application for authorization is denied.
- 9. VMA Staff must conduct as econd monitoring visit of any authorized vendor who fails aroutine monitoring within 30 days of the previously failed monitoring.
- 10. VMA Staff must assess participant access for any authorized vendor who fails asecond consecutive monitoring visit.
 - If thevendor is not needed for participant access, VMAstaff must terminate thevendor contract.
 - If thevendor is needed for participant access and failed the monitoringvisit based on the Minimum Authorization Criteria, VMA staff must terminate the vendor contract.
 - If the vendor is needed for participant access and failed the monitoring due to not meeting the competitive price criteria, VMAstaff will work withvendors to negotiate the best possible prices for supplemental foods.
 - If the vendor is needed for participant access and failed the monitoring based on the Vendor Authorization Criteriaestablished by the Department of Health, the VMA must
 - i maintain the vendor's existing contract.
 - i Continueto monitorthevendor as directed by theDepartment ofHealth

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available □Yes ☑No

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

• #2004: Vendor Training

WIC Library:

- NYSWICAcceptableFoods Card
- MinimumStockRequirements –Grocery andPharmacy
- Vendor Initial Monitoring Guidance

WIC Program Manual

Section 2006

Date: 04/2021

Page 1 of 2

Vendor File Review and File Maintenance

POLICY

- 1. Vendormanagementagencies mustmaintain vendor files for all applicant, authorized and inactive vendors.
- 2. Vendormanagementagenciesmustmaintainvendor files for theyearinwhich theywerecreated plus six additional years.
- 3. Vendormanagementagenciesmustestablisharecorddispositionschedule,whichmustbe maintained in the agency's Policy and Procedure Manual.
- 4. Vendormanagementagenciesmustreview filesofall authorized vendors inadesignated Open Application Periodusing documents and guidanceprovided by the Department of Health.
- 5. Vendormanagementagenciesmustrequestanymissingoroutofdatedocuments from the authorized vendor to ensure the file contains the most current information.
- 5. Vendormanagementagenciesmustmakeall vendor filesavailable forUnitedStatesDepartmentof Agriculture and New York State Department of Health personnel to inspect, audit and copy.

REGULATIONS

Record retention CFR 7§246.25

Confidentialityofvendorinformation, CFR 7§246.26(e).

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required

□Yes⊠No

- 1. Vendor management agencies must completea review of all authorized vendors inadesignated Open Application Period (OAP) using checklists and guidance documents created by the Department of Health.
- Vendor management agencies must follow up with authorized vendors to obtain all missing or out of date documents identified during the file review and upon receipt, upload these documents into the electronic file.
- 3. Vendormanagementagenciesmustdocumentcompletionofthefilereview inthevendors electronic file.

	WIC Program	Manual
	Section 2006	
	Date: 04/2021	Page 2 of 2
Vendor F	ile Review and File Maintenance	e
	npleteWICvendorapplication adorcontractand any all appropriateappend	lices,amendments
application for SNAP	utritionAssistanceProgram (SNAP)Authori (authorized grocers) cyregistration(authorizedpharmacies)	zationor proofof
 originalinfant formulasuthe program deskauditdocumentationi trainingcertificate 	upplierinvoices, receipts orletterpresented f available	upon application to

- 5. Vendormanagement agencies must establish and maintain adisposition schedule in the agency's Policy and Procedure Manual as outlined in WPM 1401.
- 6. When a sponsor agency closes or no longer performs VMA services, arrangements must be made, prior to ceasing operation of a VMA, to retain VMA records in accordance with the retention requirements outlined in WPM 1401.

Guidance

PolicySupplement Available □Yes⊠No

RESOURCES

WICProgram Manual Sections:

- #1401:Record Retention
- #1451:ElectronicCommunicationsUse

	WIC Program I	Manual
	Section 2008	
	Date: 08/2021	Page 1 of 2
Vendor Contract Agreement		

POLICY

- 1. Vendor management agencies must enter into a non-transferrablewritten agreement with authorized vendors in their designated service areas for a period not to exceed three years.
- Vendor management agencies may contract withmultiple stores authorized under the same Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) using one contract but must specify all vendors included within the contract.
- 3. Vendormanagementagenciesmayaddordeleteanindividual vendorunder thesamecontract without affecting the remaining vendors.
- 4. Vendormanagementagenciesmustensure the contractissigned by a representative with legal authority to obligate the vendor.
- 5. Vendormanagementagenciesmustuseonlycontractdocumentsandamendmentscreatedand approved by New York State.

REGULATIONS

Retail Food Delivery Systems: Vendor Agreements 246.12(h)(1) requires State agencies to enter into agreements with authorized vendors for a period not to exceed three years. The agreement must be signed by arepresentativewho has legal authority to obligate the vendor and the State agency. When the vendor representative is obligating more than one vendor, the agreement must specify all vendors covered under the agreement. When more than one vendor is specified in the agreement, the State agency may add or delete an individual vendor without affecting the remaining vendors.

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronymsandDefinitions locatedinSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LAVMAPolicy Required □Yes ☑ No

- 1. VMAs must enter into non-transferable written agreements with authorized vendors for a period not to exceed three years using only contract documents and amendments created and approved by New York State.
- 2. The contract is made between the WIC authorized Vendor and the VMA named in Appendix 1 of the contract. For multiple stores authorized under the same FEIN, the VMA must review and verify the individual store information contained in Appendix 2 is correct.
- 3. VMAsmustensurethecontractissignedby are presentative with legal authority toobligate the vendor.

	WIC Program	Manual	
	Section 2008		
	Date: 08/2021 Page 2 of 2		
Vendor Contract Agreement			

- 4. VMAsmustensure the contractisdatedandnotarizedandthedateof the signature must be the same date as the date of the notary.
- 5. Vendormanagementagenciesmustreturntheoriginal executedWIC vendorcontractsignatory page to the vendor for their records.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable □Yes ☑ No

RESOURCES

WPMSections:

• 2003Vendor Authorization

Other Resources:

- WICVendorContract-VendorManagementSharePoint/Forms& Letters
- www.health.ny.gov
- <u>nyswicvendors.com</u>
- VendorHandbook

{	NEW
2	YORK STATE
,	Ye

WIC

Program

WIC Program Manual

Section 2010

Date: 12/2023

Page 1 of 2

Conflict of Interest with Vendors

POLICY

- 1. The vendor management agency must ensure no conflict of interest or appearance of a conflict of interest exists between vendor management agency personnel and authorized vendors or vendor applicants.
- 2. The vendor management agency must require that employees fully disclose any potential conflict of interest that exists between any vendor management agency personnel and authorized vendors or vendor applicants.
- 3. Vendor management agency staff must annually sign an attestation of conflict of interest.

REGULATIONS

Conflict of Interest section 246.12 (h) (xx) states that the State agency is mandated to terminate an agreement if the state agency identifies a conflict of interest, as defined by applicable state laws, regulations, and policies, between the vendor/participant and the state agency or its local agencies.

DEFINITIONS

Refer to "Acronyms and Definitions" located in Section 1011

PROCEDURE

- 1. The vendor management agency must require that employees fully disclose any potential conflict of interest that exists between vendor management agency personnel and authorized vendors or vendor applicants.
- 2. Vendor management agency staff must sign an attestation of conflict of interest on an annual basis.
- 3. The vendor management agency must maintain and make available to state staff conflict of interest statements for each employee. The vendor management agency must notify the state when a conflict of interest has been identified.
- 4. The vendor management agency must handle all declared conflicts of interest on a case by case basis.
- 5. The vendor management agency must establish and maintain policies and procedures for managing disclosed conflicts of interest.

NEW	MIC	WIC Program Manual	
	Drogram	Section 2010	
4	Program	Date: 12/2023	Page 2 of 2

Conflict of Interest with Vendors

GUIDANCE

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

• #2003: Vendor Authorization Policy

Forms:

Conflict of Interest Attestation Statement

NEW	WIC	WIC ProgramManual Section 2011			
4	Program	Date: 1/2018 Page 1 of 3	Page 1 of 3		
VendorDesk Audits					

POLICY

- 1. Vendor management agencies mustconduct desk audits of every authorized vendor at leastonce in each three-year vendor contract period.
- 2. Vendor management agencies must conduct desk audits in accordance with Department of Health guidance and procedures, including use of letters as supplied by the Department of Health.
- 3. Vendormanagement agencies must discontinuedesk audits in progress if avendor contract is terminated or not renewed, or if a vendor is disqualified from the WIC program.

BACKGROUND

Federal Regulation Section 246.12 (j) requires that the state agency (or its delegate) monitor vendors for compliance with program requirements to prevent fraud. New York State Regulations require that vendors retain invoices and purchase slips for WIC food items for three years, and allow unobstructed inspection of these records by state, federal, and vendor management agencies. Federal Regulation Section 246.12 (g) directs the state agency to provide a list of authorized infant formula wholesalers, distributors, or retailers to WIC vendors, and Section 246.4 (a) mandates that WIC vendors provide only infant formula purchased from those on this list in exchange for WIC food instruments specifying infant formula. Federal Regulation Section 246.12 (h) authorizes higher penalties when program funds of over \$100 have been fraudulently obtained.

DEFINITIONS

DeskAudit (Vendor) – The examination of invoices or other proof of purchase documents to determine if a vendor has purchased sufficient quantities of authorized supplemental foods from an authorized supplier to substantiate check redemptions by that vendor during a specified period of time.

Inventory Audit (Vendor) – The examination of avendor's physical inventory, in addition to invoices or other proof of purchase documents to determine if a vendor has purchased sufficient quantities of authorized supplemental foods from an authorized supplier to substantiate check redemptions by that vendor during a specified period of time.

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions located inWPMSection1011.

PROCEDURE

Identification of Vendors for Audits

- 1. TheDepartmentofHealthwillselectvendors for desk audits.
- 2. TheDepartment of Health willsupply WIC food itemredemption quantities and dollar amounts for each vendor selected for audit to the vendor management agencies.

NEW	MIC	WIC ProgramManual Section 2011		
	Drogram			
-	Program	Date: 1/2018	Page 2 of 3	
VendorDesk Audits				

Initiating a Desk Audit

- 1. Vendor management agencies must informvendors that they have beenselected for audit. This letter includes the audit timeframe and WIC food items of interest, allowing the vendor 21 calendar days from receipt of the letter to supply invoices and purchases lips for designated WIC food items.
- 2. If the vendor does not provide requested information within 21 calendar days, vendor management agencies must contact the vendor and send a second written notice letter with a requestfor information, allowing thevendors 14calendar days from receipt of the letter to provide the documentation. This letter includes a warning that failure to comply could result in contract termination.
- 3. If the vendor fails to comply with a second request for information, the vendor management agency will initiate contract termination proceedings in consultation with DOH.

Desk Audit Process

- 1. Vendors must submit all invoices and purchases lips for designated WIC food items to the vendor management agency.
- 2. Thevendor management agency mustverify thatvendor redemptions are substantiated by purchase slips and invoices provided by the vendor.
- 3. The vendor management agency must issue the vendor a no findings letter if the quantities purchasedmeets or exceeds redemptions during the designated time period. No follow up action is required by the vendor.

Procedures for Unsubstantiated Redemptions

- 1. The vendor management agency must determine if the quantities purchased are less than the quantities of WIC food items redeemed during the designated time period.
- 2. The vendor management agency must notify the Department of Health in writing of those vendors that have unsubstantiated redemptions and send all audit documentation to the Department of Health within 14 calendar days.

Infant Formula Supplier Verification

- 1. Vendor management agencies mustverify whether formula suppliers utilized by avendor were approved by the Department of Health at the time of purchase.
- 2. Thevendor management agency must exclude invoices and purchases lips from suppliers that are not approved from the audit documentation.
- 3. The vendor management agency must issue a warning letter to the vendor if all redemptions are substantiated but unapproved infant formula supplier(s) were used.

NEW	MIC	WIC ProgramManual	
	Drogram	Section 2011	
Y	Program	Date: 1/2018	Page 3 of 3

VendorDesk Audits

GUIDANCE

TheDepartment of Health may opt to expand the time frame or reinitiate an audit if warranted, and will perform these enhanced audits.

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- WPM1038- ProgramComplaints and SuspectedFraudor Abuse
- WPM2003- Vendor ContractReview Process

Guidance Documents:

- Vendor desk audit procedure
- Vendor desk audit letters
- Comparison spreadsheet
- Desk audit tracking spreadsheet
- Desk audit worksheet

NEW	MIC	WIC Program I	Manual	
5 YORK	WIC	Section 2012		
SIAIE	Program	Date: 08/2021	Page 1 of 2	
eWIC Equipment and Certification				

POLICY

- 1. VendormanagementagenciesmustassesseWICcapabilitiesforall new WICvendors.
- 2. Vendormanagementagenciesmustmaintainpointofsale system (POS)information forall WIC vendors and update any changes in system information for existing authorized vendors.
- 3. VendormanagementagenciesmustensurethenumberofeWICstandbesidedevices doesnot exceed the number of lanes in a vendor location.
- 4. Vendormanagementagenciesmustcontactstatestaffforvendors requestingmore than onestand beside device

REGULATIONS

EBTfooddeliverymethods: Vendorrequirements: 246.12(z)

DEFINITIONS

eWIC Capable – theWIC vendor demonstrates their cashregister system orpaymentdevicecan accurately and securely obtain WIC food balances associated with an EBT card, maintain the necessary f iles such as the authorized product list and successfully complete WIC EBT purchases.

Stand Beside Device – is a payment device separate from the cash register, which includes a barcode scanner, card reader, printer and PIN pad that is used by authorized WIC vendors solely for use with the WIC Program.

IntergratedCashRegisterSystem–anelectroniccashregistersystem thatcantransact multiple tenders, such as, cash, credit card, SNAP and WIC.

Third Party Processor (TPP) – A company that interfaces between the vendor and the EBT processor to accept payments on behalf of the vendor and deposit it into the vendor's bank account.

PointofSale (POS)–isavendor'scashregistersystem forconductingtransactions and payments.

	N	/IC	Pr	ogi	am	Man	ual
--	---	-----	----	-----	----	-----	-----

{	NEW
5	YORK
$ \leq $	STATE
	Y

WIC	
Progra	m

Section 2012
Date: 08/2021

Page 2 of 2

eWIC Equipment and Certification

PROCEDURE

LAV/MAPolicy Required □Yes⊠No

Inorder to assess new vendorse WIC capability, vendormanagement agencies must take the following steps:

- providenewvendorsorvendors reapplyingwiththeeWIC ReadinessSurvey to complete and submit with their WIC application
- review eWICReadinessSurveys todeterminewhether thevendorwillbeusinganintegrated cash register system or a stand beside device.
- recordeWICreadiness informationinthemanagementinformationsystem.
- compare integrated cash register information provided against the current list of certified Third Party Processors (TPPs) and Electronic Cash Registers (ECRs) to ensure vendors will be eWIC ready after authorization.
- enter new vendor information in the eWIC database to start the process for the EBT Processorreview and Level 3Certification orstand beside equipment shipment and training.
- inform integrated vendorswhose system has notpreviously been certified that they cannot transact WIC until they have been certified by the State.
- determineifthevendorrequestingastandbesidedeviceis neededfor participantaccess.
- ensurevendors requestingmore thanonestandbesidedevice does not exceed the number of cash register lanes that are reported for the store.
- refer to State staff forminimum lane coverage requirements for any vendors requestingmore than one stand beside device.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplement Available □Yes⊠No

RESOURCES

Other:

<u>NYSWICVendorWebsite_eWIC_certifiedTPPs&_ECRs</u>

NEW YORK STATE	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual				
		Section 2013				
		Date: 07/2021	Page 1 of 5			
Fair Hearing Process for Vendors						

POLICY

- 1. Vendor management agencies or the Bureau of Special Investigations must provide written notification to the applicant, or authorized vendor of their right to request a fair hearing if they are deemed ineligible for program authorization.
- 2. Vendormanagementagenciesor the Bureau of Special Investigations must refer an applicant or authorized vendor's request for fairhearing to the New York State Department of Health.

REGULATIONS

Program referral and access, <u>7CFR246.18</u> Program referral and access, <u>10 NYCRR Section 60-1.8</u> Program referral and access, <u>10 NYCRR Section 60-1.10</u> Program referral and access, <u>10 NYCRR Section 60-1.11</u> Program referral and access, <u>10 NYCRR Section 60-1.12</u> Program referral and access, <u>10 NYCRR Section 60-1.13</u>

DEFINITIONS

RefertoAcronyms andDefinitions inSection1011.

PROCEDURE

LA PolicyRequired □Yes ☑No

1. Because the Bureau of Adjudication opts not to provide abbreviated administrative reviews, the vendor management agency or Bureau of Special Investigations must notify an applicant or authorized vendor of their right to a fair hearing with full administrative review in all of the following circumstances:

- Denial of authorization based on the application of the vendor selection criteria for minimum variety and quantity of authorized supplemental foods (246.12(g)(3)(i)), or on a determination thatthe vendor is attempting to circumvent a sanction (246.12(g)(6))
- Terminationofanagreementforcause
- Disqualification
- Impositionofafineor acivilmoney penaltyinlieuof disqualification
- Denial of authorization based on the vendors election criteria for business integrity or for a current SNAP disqualification or civil monetary penalty for hardship
- Denial of authorization based on the application of the vendors election criteria for competitive price
- Theapplication of theState agency's vendorpeer group criteria and the criteria used to identify vendors that are above-50-percent vendors or comparable to above-50-percent vendors

WIC Program N	Manual
---------------	--------

Section 2013

Page 2 of 5

Fair Hearing Process for Vendors

- Denial of authorization based on a State agency-established vendors election criterion if the basis of the denial is a WIC vendors anction or a SNAP with drawal of authorization or disqualification
- DenialofauthorizationbasedontheStateagency'svendorlimitingcriteria
- Denial of authorization because avendor submitted its application outside the time frames during which applications are being accepted and processed as established by the State agency
- Terminationofanagreement because of achangeinownership or location or cessation of operations
- Disqualificationbasedona traffickingconviction

WIC

Program

NEW

YORK

STATE

- DisqualificationbasedontheimpositionofaSNAPcivilmoney penaltyfor hardship
- Disqualificationoracivilmoneypenaltyimposedinlieuofdisqualificationbased onamandatory sanction imposed by another State agency
- AcivilmoneypenaltyimposedinlieuofdisqualificationbasedonaSNAPdisqualificationunder 246.12(I)91)(vii)
- Denial of anapplication basedona determinationofwhetheranapplicant vendoriscurrently authorized by SNAP.
- 2. Actionsnotsubjecttoadministrativereview arelistedat7CFR268.18(a)(1)(iii).

3. The vendor management agency or Bureau of Special Investigations must include the following information using the Department of Health developed written notice to the applicant or authorized vendor of the right to request an appeal:

- adescriptionoftheadverseaction,theeffectivedateandthereasons for it
- thestatement "This disqualification from WIC may resultin disqualification as a retailer in SNAP. Such disqualification is not subject to administrative or judicial review under SNAP." when the vendor is subject to disqualification.
- areferencetoandexplanationoftherequirements foravendorintheWIC program
- a statement that the vendor has the right to request a fair hearing either verbally or in writing
- anexplanationofthepurposeandprocedures of afairhearing
- a statement that theapplicant or authorized vendor or a representative (including a relative, friend, legal counsel, or other spokesperson) may present positions or arguments at the Fair Hearing
- theDepartmentofHealth'sofficelocation and phonenumber to request a FairHearing.
- a notice that the request for Fair Hearing must be made within 15 days of the date the notice of adverse action is received and that failure to make the request within that timeframe will result in loss of the right to the Fair Hearing
- 4. ThevendormanagementagencyorBureauofSpecial Investigationsmustproperlydocument and keep on file the reasons for an applicant or authorized vendor's ineligibility.

FairHearing

5	NEW	MIC	WIC Program Manual Section 2013				
5	YORK	WIC					
	SIATE	Program	Date: 07/2021	Page 3 of 5			
Fair Hearing Process for Vendors							
1.	receiving the	he notice of the right	ndor, or representative requests a Fair to request a Fair Hearing, the Departm umentation to the Bureau of Adjudicatic	ent of Health must forward			
2.	The Bureau of Adjudication will send a written notice of the hearing by certified mail or encrypted email with read receipt, to the applicant or authorized vendor, their representative, and the vendor management agency at least 10 days before the date of the hearing.						
 3. TheNoticeofHearing will: givethedate,timeandplaceof thehearing statebrieflytheissues thatarethesubjectof thehearing explainhow theFairHearingwill beconducted advisetheapplicantorauthorizedvendorof therightto: berepresentedbyanattomey,relative,friend. orotherspokesperson testify,presentevidence offerarguments, producewitnesses,and question or disprove any testimony or evidence crossexamineadversewitnesses examine,beforeandduringthehearing, thedocuments supportingthe action under appeal atleastone opportunity to reschedulethe administrativereview dateuponspecific request 							
			eapplicantorauthorizedvendororrepreset the applicant or authorized vendor's				

4. The role of the vendor management agency is to present evidence to support the agency's decision to deny authorization or reauthorization. The vendor management agency must work with the Department of Health's Bureau of Special Investigations togather appropriate evidence.

Notification of Fair Hearing Outcome

- 1. A copy of the Fair Hearing Decision and Ordermust be sent to the applicant or authorized vendor, their representative, and the vendor management agency or Bureau of Special Investigationswithin 45 days of thedate the hearing request was received by theDepartment, unless the hearing has been postponed by the Bureau of Adjudication.
- 2. The Fair Hearing Decision and Order issued by the Bureau of Adjudication must inform that vendor that it may be able to pursue judicial review of the decision in the New York State courts using an Article 78 proceeding.
- 3. When the Fair Hearing Decision and Order is that authorization or reauthorization was incorrectly denied or terminated, the vendor management agency must continue the application process or reinstate the vendor immediately.

	WIC Program	WIC Program Manual	
		Section 2013	
		Date: 07/2021	Page 4 of 5

Fair Hearing Process for Vendors

- 4. When the Fair Hearing Decision and Order is that authorization or reauthorization was correctly denied or terminated, the vendor management agency must ensure that the vendor record is appropriately documented.
- 5. When the Fair Hearing Decision and Order is that the civil money penalty was incorrectly imposed, the Bureau of Special Investigations must rescind the civil money penalty and issue repayment to the vendor immediately.
- 6. When the Fair Hearing Decision and Order is that the disqualification was incorrectly applied, the Bureau of Special Investigations must rescind the disqualification and reinstate the vendor immediately.
- 7. When the Fair Hearing Decision and Order is that the civil money penalty or disqualification was correctly applied, the Bureau of Special Investigations must ensure the vendor record is appropriately documented.
- 8. RecordsoftheFairHearing mustbekeptatthevendormanagementagency orBureauof Special Investigations for seven years from the date of the Decision and Order.

GUIDANCE

PolicySupplementAvailable □Yes ☑ No

Dismissing a Fair Hearing request

- 1. ArequestforaFairHearing will bedeniedordismissedbytheDepartmentofHealthif the:
 - request is not received by the Department of Health within 15 days of the date the vendor management agency notifies the applicant or authorized vendor in writing of the adverse action
 - applicantorauthorized vendor or theirrepresentative fails, without good reason, to appear at the scheduled hearing
 - requestiswithdrawninwriting to the Bureau of Adjudication by the applicantor authorized vendor or is stated for the record at the hearing

Recording a Fair Hearing

- 1. ThevendormanagementagencyorBureauofSpecial Investigationsmustkeepalog of all Fair Hearings which includes:
 - Name(s)ofinvolvedparties
 - Reason(s) for adverse action
 - Dateofrequestfor hearing
 - Dateofschedulehearing
 - DecisionandOrder issuedbytheBureauofAdjudication

WIC Program Manual

Section 2013

Date: 07/2021

Page 5 of 5

Fair Hearing Process for Vendors

RESOURCES

WIC Program Manual Sections:

- #1038:WICProgram Integrity-ReportingFraudandAbuse
- #1040:CivilRightsand NondiscriminationStatement
- #2003:VendorAuthorization

WIC Library:

- NYSWICVendorHandbook
- NYSWICVendorFairHearingRequest Form
- NYSWICVendorDenial Letter
- NYSWICVendorTerminationLetter